Public Document Pack

® 3 Civic Centre,
xr Arnot Hill Park,
edling ¥

Nottingh hire,
Borough Council o [\?(r;n; 6IITJ

Agenda

Cabinet

Date: Thursday 4 September 2025

Time: 3.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber

For any further information please contact:
Democratic Services
committees@gedling.gov.uk

0115901 3906

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio
or another format.



Cabinet

Membership
Chair Councillor John Clarke
Vice-Chair Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth

Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Kathryn Fox
Councillor Viv McCrossen
Councillor Marje Paling
Councillor Lynda Pearson
Councillor Henry Wheeler

WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note that this meeting will be live streamed on the Council's YouTube
channel and via the website (www.gedling.gov.uk). At the start of the meeting
the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being broadcast.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance
with the Council’s published policy.

For more information about how your personal data is collected and used please
view our privacy notice https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/

Responsibility of committee:

Cabinet is the meeting of all executive members. The Executive will carry out all of the local
authority’s functions which are not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority,
whether by law or under the Constitution. Cabinet Portfolios are detailed within Section 6,
Part 9 of the Council’s Constitution.


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/

10

11

12

AGENDA Page

Apologies for Absence.

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 5-6
30/07/2025.

Declaration of Interests.

Forward Plan 7-13

Report of the Democratic Services Manager.

Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review - Consultation 15-92
Response and Funding Decision

Report of the Community Infrastructure Levy Officer and Section 106 Monitoring
Officer.

Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield 93-123
Report of the Assistant Director of Development.

Temporary Maintenance Policy 125 - 226
Report of the Assistant Director of Housing and Resettlement.

Update on the work of the Policy Advisors 227 - 230
Report of the Chief Executive.

Budget Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April to July 231 -253
2025

Report of the Senior Leadership Team.

Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2025/26 and Treasury Activity 255 - 269
Report for the Period April 2025 to July 2025

Report of the Principal Finance Business Partner.

Gedling Plan - Quarter 1 2025/26 Report 271 - 292
Report of the Senior Leadership Team.

Any other items the Chair considers urgent.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

MINUTES
CABINET
Wednesday 30 July 2025
Councillor John Clarke (Chair)
Present: Councillor David Ellis Councillor Lynda Pearson

Councillor Kathryn Fox Councillor Henry Wheeler
Councillor Viv McCrossen

Absent: Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth and Councillor Marje Paling

Officers in M Hill, F Whyley, T Adams, M Avery, N Osei, E McGinlay, L
Attendance: Squires

12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hollingsworth
and Councillor Paling.

13 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING HELD ON 10.07.25.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be
approved as a correct record.

14 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
None
15 UPDATE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION

A report of the Chief Executive was circulated prior to the meeting for
Cabinet to consider the outcome of the Full Council debate on Local
Government Reorganisation and resolve the Council’s position on
which option to develop as a final proposal(s) for submission to
Government in November 2025.

RESOLVED:
THAT CABINET:
a. Considered the options appraisal and summary document provided

by Price Waterhouse Cooper (PWC) (Appendices 4 and 5 to the Full
Council report).

Page 5



16

b. Develop Option 1e as this Council’s preferred option for submission
as a final proposal to Government by 28 November 2025.

c. Further considers other viable options (should they be developed)
that stop any part of the current Gedling Borough being merged with
an expanded City area.

d. Supports a countywide approach to engagement activities during
the period August to September 2025 tailored for different stakeholder
groups across Gedling and Nottinghamshire.

e. Supports continued collaborative working with other local authorities
across Nottingham and Nottinghamshire with a view to developing a
final proposal for Local Government Reorganisation.

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.

None.

The meeting finished at 8:05 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 6



Gedling

Borough Council

FORWARD PLAN
FOR THE PERIOD 1 SEPTEMBER 2025 TO 31 MARCH 2026

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key and non-key decisions which the Executive Cabinet expect to take during the next six months.
The current members of the Executive Cabinet are:

Councillor John Clarke — Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources and Performance
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth — Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Growth and Economy
Councillor David Ellis — Portfolio Holder for Public Protection
Councillor Kathryn Fox — Portfolio Holder for Life Chances and Vulnerability
Councillor Marje Paling — Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services (Operations)

~UCouncillor Lynda Pearson — Portfolio Holder for Communities and Place

g Councillor Viv McCrossen — Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Natural Habitat

o Councillor Henry Wheeler — Portfolio Holder for Lifestyles, Health and Wellbeing.

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by contacting the relevant officer listed against each key
decision, within the time period indicated.

7 wal epuaby



Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Open / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a Key Decision?

Community Infrastructure Levy
Strategic Review — Consultation
Response and Funding Decision

That Cabinet:

a) Note the representations and comments
received in relation to the Community
Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review
Consultation, and

b) Approve the updating of the Council's
Infrastructure List in accordance with the
Officer recommendations.

4 Sep 2025
Cabinet

Lewis Widdowson,
Planning Officer

Officer Report

Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Growth and
Economy

Open

Yes

TJpdate on Houses in Multiple
Qccupation (HMOs) in Netherfield
0 update Members of the suitability of
plementing an Article 4 direction to
troduce a requirement for planning
permission to change from a C3
Dwellinghouse (family dwelling) to a C4
HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share
facilities) in the Netherfield Ward.

4 Sep 2025
Cabinet

John Krawczyk,
Assistant Director -
Development

Officer Report

Portfolio Holder for
Communities and Place

Open

No

Housing Strategy 2025-2030

The Housing Strategy set out Gedling
Borough Councils vision and priorities for
housing in the Borough over the next five
year period.

4 Sep 2025
Cabinet

Paul Whitworth,
Assistant Director -
Housing and
Resettlement

Officer Report

Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Growth and
Economy

Open

Yes

Burton and Station Road development
options

To assess the potential development of the
Burton and Station Road sites

4 Sep 2025
Cabinet

Paul Whitworth,
Assistant Director -
Housing and
Resettlement

Officer Report

Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Growth and
Economy

Part exempt

Paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972

Yes




Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Public / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?

Temporary Maintenance Policy 4 Sep 2025 Paul Whitworth, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
Temporary Maintenance Policy Cabinet Assistant Director - Communities and Place
Housing and
Resettlement Yes
Update on the work of the Policy 4 Sep 2025 Mike Hill, Chief Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
Advisors Cabinet Executive
To update Cabinet on the actions and
activities that the Policy Advisors have No
undertaken since the last report to Cabinet
in September 2024.
udget Monitoring and Virement Report | 4 Sep 2025 Tina Adams, Chief Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
gr the period April to July 2025 Cabinet Finance Officer &
o update Cabinet on the forecast outturn S151 Officer, Scott
(or Revenue and Capital Budgets for Anderson, Finance Yes
@9P25/26 and to request approval for the Business Partner
changes to the budget as set out in this
report.
Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 4 Sep 2025 James Goodall Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
2025/26 and Treasury Activity Report Cabinet
for the Period April 2025 to July 2025
To inform Members of the performance 17 Sep 2025 Yes
monitoring of the 2025/26 Prudential Code | Council
Indicators, and to advise Members of the
Treasury activity as required by the
Treasury Management Strategy
Gedling Plan - Quarter 1 2025/26 Report | 4 Sep 2025 Dan Reason, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
Cabinet Assistant Director - Corporate Resources
Digital, data and and Performance
technology No

September 2025




Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Public / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?

Annual report of Senior Information 4 Sep 2025 Francesca Whyley, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
Risk Owner 2024/25 Cabinet Deputy Chief Corporate Resources
To give members the annual report of Executive & and Performance
Senior Information Risk Owner for the Monitoring Officer No
2024/25 year
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 17 Sep 2025 Andrew Solley, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
Consultation Council Assistant Director |
The purpose of this report is to seek Revenues & Welfare
approval to consult on proposed changes Services Yes
to the operation of the Council’'s Council
Tax Reduction Scheme.
g(eisure Transformation update 25 Sep 2025 Lance Juby, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
o give members an update on the Leisure | Cabinet Assistant Director of Lifestyles, Health and
(Dransformation project Communities, Wellbeing
(BN Leisure & Wellbeing Yes
o
Ambition Arnold 9 Oct 2025 Nathan Wall, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
To seek approval of design work to Cabinet Assistant Director - Sustainable Growth and
regenerate land at Arnold Leisure Centre, Economic Growth Economy
with delivery subject to significant funding and Regen Yes
either from government, private investors
of a combination of the two.
Artificial Intelligence (Al) Policy 9 Oct 2025 Dan Reason, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
To seek Cabinet approval for the Cabinet Assistant Director -
introduction of an Atrtificial Intelligence Digital, data and
Policy to ensure appropriate, lawful and technology Yes
ethical use of Al within the Council.
Business Case for Revised Cemetery 6 Nov 2025 Sarah Troman, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
Opening Hours Cabinet Andrew Burgin, Julie Climate Change and
Snowdon Natural Habitat
Yes

September 2025




Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Public / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?

Indicators, and to advise Members of the
Treasury activity as required by the
Treasury Management Strategy.

Gedling Plan Q2 Performance 6 Nov 2025 Dan Reason, Officer Report Portfolio Holder for Open
2025/2026 report Cabinet Assistant Director - Corporate Resources

To inform Cabinet in summary of the Digital, data and and Performance

position against Improvement Actions and technology No
Performance Indicators in the 2023-27

Gedling Plan at the end of Quarter 2 of

2025/26.

Greater Carlton Long Term Plan for 20 Nov 2025 Nathan Wall, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
Neighbourhoods Cabinet Assistant Director -

To seek approval of the Regeneration Plan Economic Growth

and 4 Year Investment Plan and Regen Yes
Fees and Charges 2026/27 11 Dec 2025 Scott Anderson, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open

determine the level of fees and charges | Cabinet Finance Business
r 2026/27 in accordance with the Partner
orporate Charging Policy. 21 Jan 2026 No

® Council

H

FHudget Monitoring and Virement Report | 29 Jan 2026 Tina Adams, Chief Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
— August to November 2025 Cabinet Finance Officer &

To update Cabinet on the forecast outturn S151 Officer, Scott

for Revenue and Capital Budgets for 4 Mar 2026 Anderson, Finance Yes
2025/26. Council Business Partner

To request approval from Cabinet for the

changes to the budget as set out in this

report.

Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 29 Jan 2026 James Goodall Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
2025/26 and Treasury Activity Report Cabinet

for the period ended 30 November 2025

To inform Members of the performance 4 Mar 2026 Yes
monitoring of the 2025/26 Prudential Code | Council

September 2025




Description of the decision Date decision Responsible Officer | Documents to be Cabinet Portfolio Public / Exempt (and
is expected to considered by the reason if the decision is
be taken and decision maker to be taken in private)
who will take
the decision? Is this a key decision?

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 21 Jan 2026 Andrew Solley, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open

The purpose of this report is to seek Council Assistant Director |

approval for the adoption of the Council's Revenues & Welfare

Council Tax Reduction Scheme for Services Yes

2026/27.

General Fund Revenue Budget 2026/27 | 19 Feb 2026 Scott Anderson, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open

This report sets out the revenue budget for | Cabinet Finance Business

2026/27 which aligns to the Gedling Plan Partner

priorities, objectives and priority actions for | 4 Mar 2026 Yes

the Council for the forthcoming year. Council

gapital Programme and Capital 19 Feb 2026 Scott Anderson, Officer Report Leader of the Council Open
vestment Strategy 2026/27 to 2030/31 | Cabinet Finance Business
(Mhis report summarises: Partner

S The proposed Capital Investment 4 Mar 2026 Yes

MSxrategy for 2026/27 to 2030/31. Council

b) The proposed Capital Programme for

2026/27 through to 2028/29 for approval,

and the indicative Capital Programme for

2029/30 and 2030/31, in light of the

Council’s priorities and the resources

available; and

¢) The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts

Strategy 2026/27.

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and | 19 Feb 2026 James Goodall Officer Report Leader of the Council Open

Treasury Management Strategy Cabinet

Statement (TMSS) 2026/27

To present for Members’ approval the 4 Mar 2026 Yes

Council’s Prudential Code Indicators and Council

Treasury Strategy for 2026/27, for referral

to Full Council on 4 March 2026.

September 2025




Description of the decision

Date decision
is expected to
be taken and
who will take
the decision?

Responsible Officer

Documents to be
considered by the
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio

Public / Exempt (and
reason if the decision is
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?

Council Tax 2026/27

This report summarises the Council’s
General Fund Revenue Budget for
2026/27. The report also includes
information about the Council’s external
funding support and sets out the basis
from which decisions can be made
regarding the Council Tax level for
2026/27.

4 Mar 2026
Council

James Goodall

Officer Report

Leader of the Council

Open

Yes

Adoption of Local Labour Agreement
SPD
To adopt Local Labour Agreement SPD

21 May 2026
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Planning
Policy Manager

Officer Report

Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Growth and
Economy

Open

Yes

¢T obed

September 2025




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Strategic Review

Date: 4th September 2025

Author: Community Infrastructure Levy and

Section 106 Monitoring Officer
Wards Affected
Borough-wide

Purpose
That Cabinet:

a) Note the representations and comments received in relation to the CIL

Strategic Review public consultation, and

b) Approve the updated Infrastructure List to include suitable strategic

infrastructure projects in accordance with the following Officer recommendations.
Key Decision
This is a Key Decision as it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on the

communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards in the
Borough.

Recommendation(s)
THAT Cabinet approves

1) The addition of Project SIP5 - Carlton Leisure and Community Centre
onto Gedling Borough Council’s Infrastructure List for future funding
through Strategic CIL receipts.

2) Projects SIP1, SIP2, SIP3 and SIP4 be held for future consideration
as part of the Stage 2 full CIL Review to commence prior to the

Page 15



3)

4)

5)

6)

adoption of the Gedling Local Development Plan.

Projects SIP6, SIP7, SIP8, SIP9, SIP10, SIP11 and SIP12 are not
added to Gedling Borough Council’s Infrastructure List.

The existing Project Secondary School Contributions at Top Wighay
Farm is retained on Gedling Borough Council’s Infrastructure List.

The existing Projects Gedling Access Road, Gedling County Park
Visitors Centre, and Secondary School Contributions at Chase Farm /
Gedling Colliery are removed from Gedling Borough Council’s
Infrastructure List.

The publication of the revised Infrastructure List set out in Appendix
3 to the report.

11

1.2

1.3

Policy Background

The Planning Act 2008 introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy
(“CIL”) as a tool for local planning authorities in England and Wales to
help deliver infrastructure to support the development of their area. CIL
came into force on 6th April 2010 through the Community Infrastructure

Levy Regulations 2010.

Gedling Borough Council introduced CIL in October 2015. Following an
independent examination in March 2015 and approval at full council on
15" July that year, the Gedling Borough Council Community
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 16" October
2015.

On 1%t September 2019, the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 were published which introduced a
new requirement into the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (“the CIL Regulations”) for all Charging Authorities to publish an
annual document, known as the “Infrastructure Funding Statement”,

before 315t December each calendar year.

Page 16




1.4

15

2.1

Included within the annual Infrastructure Funding Statement is the
‘Infrastructure List’ which is a list of future infrastructure projects to be
funded through ‘Developer Contributions’ such as Section 106 and the
CIL. This Infrastructure List supersedes the ‘Regulation 123 List’ which
was adopted as part of the Charging Schedule by Gedling Borough
Council on 16™ October 2015.

In accordance with the CIL Regulations (as amended), and in order to
ensure transparency in the way that Gedling Borough Council reviews its
Infrastructure List, the Council adopted the Planning Obligations and
Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance Note in December 2016 which
sets out the processes and due diligence the Council will undertake when

reviewing its Infrastructure List.

Consultation

The CIL Regulations state that Charging Authorities, for the purposes of
CIL, must use up to 80% of all ‘CIL Receipts’ collected to fund strategic
infrastructure projects within the administrative boundary from which it

was collected.

Page 17



2.2

2.3

2.4

A motion was passed at Full Council on 17" April 2024 that “This Council
resolves to undertake a full review of the approach to Strategic and
Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy allocation following
introduction of the updated regulations, to ensure it is expended
effectively in local communities where development has or will take place
and in consultation with those local communities and ward members and
within the next year will commence a review of the current 123
infrastructure funding list and consult with communities and Councillors
on appropriate infrastructure projects.” Further to this Cabinet resolved to
“approve a 6-week consultation on the review of strategic projects set out
in the Infrastructure List (formally Regulation 123 List)” on 121" December
2024.

Gedling Borough Council commenced the 6-week consultation on 17t
January 2025 and consulted with all relevant stakeholders who have
registered an interest in the CIL, Elected Members, local developers,
Parish Councils and local residents. A link to the consultation was also
posted directly on both the Council’s ‘Have Your Say and ‘CIL’
webpages. The consultation was live for 6 weeks with the final deadline

for representations to be submitted by 28" February 2025.

The consultation sought to understand the views of stakeholders and
members of the public in relation to an initial list of potential strategic
infrastructure projects which were identified by Officers using evidence
from the emerging Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan and more
specifically the draft Infrastructure Development Plan, along with several
projects which were identified as potential Council priorities moving

forwards.

Page 18



2.5

2.7

A summary of the proposed strategic projects which were outlined within
the CIL Strategic Infrastructure Project Review and Guidance Document
are as follows:

- (SIP1) Active Travel Links

- (SIP2) Leapool Roundabout Park and Ride Service

- (SIP3) Blue / Green Infrastructure Improvement Works

- (SIP4) Ambition Arnold

- (SIP5) Carlton Leisure and Community Centre

- (SIP6) Gedling Country Park Heritage Centre

The consultation posed two questions to stakeholders and residents. The
first question asked if the participant agreed with the projects identified for
potential inclusion on the Council’s Infrastructure List, whilst the second
asked if there were any other Infrastructure Projects which the participant
believed would be appropriate for inclusion on the Infrastructure List as a

Strategic Project.

Consultation Responses

In total the Council received 89 responses to the consultation. These
representations contained, in some instances, responses addressing
individual projects, whilst others responding to proposed projects as a
collective. A summary of the representations and the broad views
expressed on each project; a comprehensive list of each of the
representations received; and relevant Officer comments is attached in

Appendix 1.

Page 19



3.2

3.3

3.4

A large proportion of the representations received were either silent on
the proposed projects outlined within the CIL Strategic Infrastructure
Project Review and Guidance Document or neither confirmed support for,
nor objected to the projects. A proportion of the representations received
did not agree with the inclusion of SIP5 and SIP6 on the Infrastructure
List. These objections were often accompanied with requests to use CIL
receipts to fund new infrastructure projects within Calverton Village,
rather than Carlton or Arnold. Several new projects which relate to
infrastructure projects within Calverton have been submitted for
consideration as part of the responses to the consultation, these projects

and comments are addressed in full in Section 5 of this report.

Whilst full and proper regard has been paid to all representations
received in response to the consultation, the projects suggested in the
responses specifically relating to Calverton, are not considered to be
strategic in nature and as such not appropriate for inclusion on the
Infrastructure List as part of this review. A more appropriate source of
funding for the localised projects suggested in the responses specifically
relating to Calverton is the Neighbourhood portion of the CIL.

Other points which reoccurred throughout the consultation are
summarised below, where appropriate these comments are addressed
within the specific project assessment within Section 5 of the report:
- An increase in Active Travel and Blue Green Infrastructure is
positive.
- Leapool Roundabout has potential but further research regarding
funding is required.
- Carlton already has a functioning leisure centre.
- Gedling County Park Heritage Centre would be nice but is not
considered a necessity.

- More funding should be spent in Bestwood Village.

Page 20



3.5

3.6

- More funding should be spent in Calverton.

- Calverton Leisure Centre should be improved, and

- CIL receipts from Calverton should not be spent outside of
Calverton.

As well as seeking stakeholder and the public views on the proposed
strategic infrastructure projects, the consultation also asked if participants
had any other projects in mind which could be funded through the
strategic portion of the CIL. In total six additional projects were submitted.
These were as follows:
- Mapperley Allstars Community HUB, Gedling;
- Connectivity between Papplewick Village and Mansfield Road
(Disused Calverton Railway Line);
- Expansion of Calverton Village Centre Car Parking;
- New Cemetery at Hollinwood Lane, Calverton;
- Development of William Lee Park into a heritage and leisure
centre; and
- Play Area Redevelopment a Manor Park Infant and Nursery

School, Calverton.

The Council should also note that prior to the Strategic CIL review being
commenced a request was received for two new defibrillators at either
end of Calverton Village using Strategic CIL. The Council noted the
project at the time the request was made, however, the provision of two
defibrillators within a village would not constitute a strategic infrastructure
project and as such would not be appropriate for funding through the
strategic portion of CIL receipts. The Council is mindful that this project
was no longer included on the list of projects nominated for Calverton that

was submitted to the Council during the consultation period.

Page 21



3.7

4.1

4.2

Before assessing the projects nominated, it is important to provide the
context of the recent changes to the Council’'s role in the Greater
Nottingham Strategic Plan and the impact on some of the potential

strategic CIL projects as outlined below.

Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan and Gedling Local Development

Plan

The Aligned Core Strategy which was adopted in September 2014, forms
Part 1 of the Gedling Local Plan and sets out the strategic context for the
Part 2 Local Planning Document which was adopted in 2018. Combined,
these documents set out the strategic policy direction for future
development in the Borough up to 2028.

There is a legal requirement for Local Authorities to review local plans
every five years. Gedling Borough Council had, until recently, been
preparing the Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan (GNSP) in conjunction
with Broxtowe Borough, Nottingham City and Rushcliffe Borough
Councils. Several documents including the Growth Options (2020 and
2021), the Preferred Approach (2023) and the full Publication Draft plan
(2024) had all been consulted on alongside the progression of further

evidence base including a draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan.

Page 22



4.3

4.4

4.5

Preparation of the GNSP had taken place in the context of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which sets out the governments
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.
On 12" December 2024 a revised NPPF was published which included
several wide-ranging changes as well as a change to the way in which
the number of homes that needed to be identified on non-strategic sites
were to be calculated resulting in an increase compared to the numbers
in the Publication Draft GNSP. In light of the changes set out by the new
NPPF, the GNSP no longer complied with the national policy and as such
a report was taken to Cabinet on 13" February 2025 where approval was
given for the Council to withdraw from the preparation of the Greater
Nottingham Strategic Plan and commence the preparation of the Gedling
Local Development Plan covering strategic and non-strategic matters.
Full Council resolved to progress a Gedling Local Development Plan at

its meeting on 5 March 2025.

As a result, the evidence base that was previously being progressed
under the GNSP, including the draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan which is
of specific importance to the Strategic CIL Review, will no longer be
progressed. Instead, Gedling Borough Council has commenced work on
drafting its own Infrastructure Delivery Plan to evidence and inform the
preparation of the emerging Gedling Local Development Plan. This work
cannot be completed until there is greater certainty around the location of

proposed housing allocations.

A full review of the CIL Charging Schedule and Infrastructure List is
proposed in advance of the adoption of the Gedling Local Development
Plan which is anticipated in Spring 2028.

Page 23



5.1

5.2

Project Assessment

There is no requirement set out in the CIL Regulations to tie the
expenditure of any strategic CIL receipt to a particular location or
development given that the funds will be used for strategic infrastructure
which should be considered to provide a benefit to the Borough as a
whole. Any projects put forward for consideration will be assessed
technically for compliance with the CIL Regulations. Where projects
clearly comply with the CIL Regulations they will be assessed in detail by
the Council against several key criteria including;

- Can the project be linked to new development;

- Public benefits;

- Deliverability and sustainability;

- Value for money; and

- Match funding opportunities.

The CIL Strategic Project Evaluation Sheet attached to this report as
Appendix 2 sets out the Officer assessment of each project based on the
level of detail available at the time. Each criterion is given a weighted
score with the highest weighted consideration being match funding
opportunities to ensure that the Council obtain the greatest value for
money from its CIL receipts. Each overall score is then ranked to show
which projects should be considered potentially essential / most desirable

to mitigate the impact of new development delivered in Gedling Borough.

Page 24



5.3

All six new projects which were detailed within the CIL Strategic
Infrastructure Project Review and Guidance Document and the six further
projects which were nominated during the consultation by various
stakeholders have all been evaluated by officers (see Appendix 2). The

table below provides a ranking for each project bases upon its final score.

Project Name Evaluation Score Rank
1st

Centre

SIP1 - Active Travel Links 51.5 2nd

SIP3 - Blue / Green Infrastructure 51.5 2nd

Improvement Works

SIP4 - Ambition Arnold 48 4th

SIP2 - Leapool Roundabout Park and 41 5th

Ride Service

SIP6 - Gedling Country Park Heritage 41 5th

Centre

SIP7 - MAS Community CIC HUB 35.5 7th

SIP10 - New Cemetery at Hollinwood 31.5 gth

Lane

SIP11 - Re-development of William Lee | 31.5 gth

Park

SIP12 - Manor Park Infant and Nursery 31.5 gth

School Play Area

SIP8 - Connectivity Between Papplewick | 30.5 11th

& Mansfield Road

SIP9 - Expansion of Calverton Centre 30.5 11t

Car Parking

Table 2. Strategic project ranking list.

Page 25



5.4

5.5

The project SIP5 - Carlton Leisure and Community Centre scored the
highest when assessed against the relevant criteria ranking 1t out of all
of the projects assessed. The project is considered to be of high strategic
value given the potential risk of loss of services to Gedling Borough
Councils Leisure Services should no action be taken. The redevelopment
and improvement of leisure facilities are considered an entirely
appropriate use of the Strategic CIL, being in compliance with the CIL
Regulations and being able to demonstrate strong public benefits to
residents of the borough. It should be noted that whilst the project did
score low on two of the criteria within the evaluation, this was considered
acceptable given that further studies into the costings and sources of
match funding are underway as part of the Councils Leisure & Wellbeing
Transformation project. These studies will take a holistic look at the
Council’s future Leisure Strategy regarding all its leisure facilities across
the Borough. The Council are mindful of the comments received in
relation calls for funding for Calverton Leisure Centre, however, based on
the current studies and evidence collected, it is considered imperative
that Carlton Forum Leisure Centre receives investment to protect and
enhance an existing asset which attracts significant footfall but is ranked
high on the Council’'s Corporate Risk Register due to critical infrastructure
issues. Calverton Leisure Centre as with all the Council’s other Leisure
Facilities will continue to be assessed as part of the Councils Leisure &
Wellbeing Transformation project. Taking the above into consideration,
the project is expected to be deliverable and is deemed essential to
ensure the Council’s leisure facilities can meet the need of an increasing
population for the Borough. It is therefore recommended that this project

be included on the Infrastructure List.

The projects SIP1 — Active Travel Links and SIP3 — Blue Green
Infrastructure Improvement Works, ranked joint 2" when evaluated

against the relevant criteria. These projects scored highly in both being

Page 26



5.6

5.7

able to demonstrate a link to development and public benefits given the
boroughwide nature of the proposals, however, details in relation to
funding for specific projects are presently unavailable. These projects
were initially identified through the draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan which
was progressed alongside the GNSP. In light of the changes to national
planning policy, but nevertheless being mindful of the otherwise relatively
high scores for these projects, it is recommended that while these
projects should not yet be included on the Infrastructure List, they remain
in consideration to be further reviewed during the Stage 2 full CIL Review

in advance of the adoption of Gedling’s Local Development Plan.

The project SIP4 - Ambition Arnold is a developing long-term vision for
Arnold town centre. The project would deliver significant benefits to
Arnold Town Centre within the Borough, improving existing leisure and
cultural facilities and improving the public realm. It is considered that the
Strategic CIL would be an appropriate source of funding given the
widespread footfall that Arnold Town Centre receives, however, the
project requires significant external funding which is yet to be secured. It
is therefore proposed that this project should not yet be included on the
Infrastructure List but instead be retained for now until further evidence
and detail has been provided from the Stage 2 full CIL Review in advance

of the adoption of Gedling’s Local Development Plan.

SIP2 - Leapool Roundabout Park and Ride Service ranked joint 5" out of
projects identified. Whilst scoring highly in public benefit there are
significant funding barriers and Nottinghamshire County Council, a key
stakeholder in their capacity as the Highways Authority have concluded
that presently the project is not feasible. Notwithstanding this, the County
Council continue to investigate potential sources of funding and continue
to safeguard the land for a new Park and Ride on this site and the site is
identified on the extant Gedling Local Planning Document policies map.

As such, it is recommended that this project should not yet be included

Page 27



5.8

5.9

on the Infrastructure List but be carried over to be considered during the
Stage 2 full CIL Review which will commence in advance of the adoption
of Gedling’s Local Development Plan when further evidence may be

available.

The project SIP6 - Gedling Country Park Heritage Centre whilst ranking
highly in certain criterion, specifically links to development, it is not
considered that sufficient evidence is available to demonstrate how this
project meets a specific need created by that development. In addition,
no feasibility work has commenced to explore whether the project is
viable. Whilst the project would provide a new local attraction, further
enhancing one of the Council’s Green Flag parks, it is not considered that
this project can be recommended for inclusion on the Infrastructure List
based on the information available to date. It is therefore recommended

that this project is not included on the Infrastructure List.

Projects SIP7, SIP9, SIP10, SIP11 and SIP12 were all submitted by
various stakeholders as part of the Strategic CIL public consultation.
Whilst each of the projects have their own individual merits in terms of
public benefit, it is considered that due to the lack of strategic significance
and the benefits to the Borough as a whole, that these projects would not
be appropriate to be funded through the Strategic CIL. In addition to the
Strategic CIL, Regulation 59A of the CIL Regulations places a duty on
Charging Authorities to allocate at least 15% (up to a cap of £100 per
existing council tax dwelling) of CIL receipts to spend on priorities that
should be agreed with the local community in areas where development
is taking place. This is known as the ‘neighbourhood portion’. Where a
Neighbourhood Plan has been adopted the ‘neighbourhood portion’
increases to 25% with no cap. Regulation 59A requires that where a
Local Parish Council exists, the Charging Authority must pass the
‘neighbourhood portion’ of CIL receipts directly to the Local Parish

Council for that area that any receipt has been collected in. Regulation

Page 28



5.10

59C sets out that a local council must “use CIL receipts passed to it in
accordance with regulation 59A or 59B to support the development of the
local council’s area, or any part of that area, by funding; (a) the provision,
improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure; or
(b) anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that
development places on an area”. The Projects SIP7, SIP9, SIP10, SIP11
and SIP12 are all considered to meet a more localised need and, whilst
there are clear public benefits to each of these projects, it is not evident
how these address a strategic need for the Borough as a whole. It is
therefore recommended that these projects would be more appropriately
funded through the ‘neighbourhood portion’ of CIL rather than the
Strategic receipts and the recommendation is that these projects are not

included on the Infrastructure List.

The last remaining project which was submitted as a result of the
Strategic CIL public consultation is SIP8 - Connectivity Between
Papplewick & Mansfield Road. Having reviewed the project submission it
is considered that this project is in fact intrinsically linked to the project
SIP1 - Active Travel Links which looks to provide for enhancement and
improvement works to travel links across the Borough. As previously
identified above, project SIP1 is subject to further evidence detailing
specific requirements and locations as to where these improvements are
most required to meet the needs of new development. With this in mind it
is recommended that this project be considered as part of the wider
project SIP1 - Active Travel Links and reassessed during the Stage 2 full
CIL Review in advance of the adoption of the Gedling Local Development

Plan.

Page 29



6

6.1

6.2

Current Infrastructure List Projects

The existing Infrastructure List (formerly Regulation 123 List) refers to

four projects as listed below:
1) Gedling Access Road, Gedling Colliery,
2) Gedling County Park Visitors Centre,

3) Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm Secondary School Contributions,
and

4) Top Wighay Farm Secondary School Contributions.

Of these projects, the Gedling Access Road (GAR) and Visitors Centre
have now been delivered, with the GAR being partly funded and the

Visitors Centre (Café) being entirely funded from CIL receipts.

The project in relation to Secondary School Contributions at Gedling
Colliery / Chase Farm is recommended to be removed from the
Infrastructure List. Whilst this project has not been delivered,
Nottinghamshire County Council, in its capacity as the Education
Authority, have confirmed that this project is no longer necessary
following completion of a Deed of Variation modifying the relevant
Section 106 Agreement dated 3™ March 2017. The effect of the
modification is that the previously defined ‘Primary School Contribution’
was repurposed for a ‘Secondary School and Pedestrian Crossing
Contribution’, and as such the County Council are content with the
removal of the Secondary School Contributions at Gedling Colliery /

Chase Farm project from the Infrastructure List.

Page 30



6.3

7.1

7.2

Finally, the project in relation to Secondary School Contributions at Top
Wighay Farm remains extant as the development is yet to be
commenced and no other sources of funding to deliver the project have
been identified at this time. Nottinghamshire County Council have
confirmed their support for the retention of this project the Infrastructure
List. Once commenced the development at Top Wighay Farm will
generate significant CIL receipts. The Strategic portion of these receipts
will be used to cover the funding gap for Secondary School Contributions
at Top Wighay Farm enabling other Strategic receipts collected
throughout the Borough to deliver other Strategically important
infrastructure included on the Infrastructure List, such as the development
of Carlton Leisure and Community Centre as proposed.

Summary

To conclude, of the projects currently on the Infrastructure List it is
proposed that the following projects are now removed as they are no
longer required: Gedling Access Road, Gedling County Park Visitors
Centre, and Secondary School Contributions at Chase Farm. It is advised
that the Secondary School Contributions at Top Wighay Farm is retained
on the Infrastructure List as this project has not yet been developed and

no alternative sources of funding have been identified.

Of the projects that were included in the CIL Strategic Infrastructure
Project Review and Guidance Document, and those submitted in
response to the Strategic CIL Review public consultation, it is considered
that Project SIP5 - Carlton Leisure and Community Centre is most
suitable for inclusion on the Infrastructure List given its link to a strategic
need to meet the demands of development within the Borough. The
project is envisaged to be deliverable and is a strategic priority for the

Council moving forward to provide leisure facilities to the Borough’s

Page 31



7.3

7.4

residents.

Projects SIP1 - Active Travel Links (and by associated SIP8 -
Connectivity Between Papplewick & Mansfield Road), SIP2 - Leapool
Roundabout Park and Ride Service, SIP3 - Blue / Green Infrastructure
Improvement Works and SIP4 — Ambition Arnold are all considered to
meet the requirements of the CIL Regulations, however, given Gedling
Borough Council’s withdrawal from the GNSP it is considered appropriate
to pause the inclusion of any of these projects until such a time as a more
comprehensive evidence base has been collected through the Council’s
progression of its own Local Development Plan and any associated

studies.

Projects SIP6 - Gedling Country Park Heritage Centre, SIP7 - MAS
Community CIC HUB, SIP9 - Expansion of Calverton Centre Car Parking,
SIP10 - New Cemetery at Hollinwood Lane, SIP11 - Re-development of
William Lee Park and SIP12 - Manon Park Infant and Nursery School
Play Area are all considered positive projects which each have merit in
relation the public benefits they provide. Notwithstanding the above, it is
considered that these projects (excluding SIP6) do not meet a strategic
need within the borough and are more appropriately suited to funding
through the Neighbourhood Portion of the CIL. Officers will liaise with the
relevant stakeholders to advise how best to progress these projects
outside of the Strategic CIL review. With regards to SIP6 whilst it could
be considered to meet a strategic need given its association with the
borough’s flagship green space, there is insufficient evidence to progress

with this project at this time.

Page 32



8.1

9.1

Recommendations

Taking into account all representations received during the Strategic CIL

Review Consultation, and having carried out an evaluation of the

submitted infrastructure projects, the following recommendations are

made:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

The addition of Project SIP5 - Carlton Leisure and Community
Centre onto Gedling Borough Councils Infrastructure List for future
funding through Strategic CIL receipts.

Projects SIP1, SIP2, SIP3 and SIP4 be held for future
consideration as part of the Stage 2 full CIL Review in advance of

the adoption of Gedling’s Local Development Plan.

Projects SIP6, SIP7, SIP8, SIP9, SIP10, SIP11 and SIP12 are not

added to Gedling Borough Council’s Infrastructure List.

The existing project: Secondary School Contributions at Top
Wighay Farm, is retained on Gedling Borough Council’s

Infrastructure List.

The existing projects: Gedling Access Road, Gedling County Park
Visitors Centre, and Secondary School Contributions at Chase
Farm / Gedling Colliery, are removed from Gedling Borough

Council’s Infrastructure List.

The publication of the revised Infrastructure List set out in

Appendix 3 to the report.

Alternative Options

Cabinet could not approve recommendations as set out in Section 8 of

this report and could look to determine future strategic projects for

inclusion on the Infrastructure List without further dialogue with relevant

Page 33



9.2

10

10.1

10.2

11

111

stakeholders, however, this could result in significant lost opportunity and
would not be in compliance with the Planning Obligations and Community
Infrastructure Levy Guidance Note 2016 which sets out the Council’s
approach to reviewing the Infrastructure List and could result in
insufficient Infrastructure Projects being available for the Council to fund

through its collection of Strategic CIL Receipts.

Cabinet could pause the review until the Infrastructure Delivery Plan for
the Gedling Local Development Plan has been completed which will allow
a full review of the Gedling CIL to be undertaken, however, this could
result in significant delays and a lack of approved strategic projects for

the Council to fund using the strategic CIL in the interim period.
Financial Implications

Failure to ensure that a suitable roster of Strategic projects is identified
and included within the Infrastructure List could mean that the Council are

unable to expend its Strategic portion of the CIL.

This report does not alter the amount of money that can be collected from
developments through the use of the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) or Section 106 Planning Obligations.

Legal Implications

Charging authorities that have adopted the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) must operate in accordance with the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). These regulations govern the
lawful use of CIL receipts and as such the Council must ensure that all
decisions regarding CIL are legally compliant. The Council also has a
duty to conscientiously consider consultation responses before a decision

is made ensuring that due regard is paid to the representations made.

Page 34



12

12.1

12.2

13

13.1

14

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

15

15.1

15.2

Equalities Implications

The Strategic CIL Review has been subject to a 6-week consultation with
a wide range of stakeholders and members of the pubic. All
representations received in response have been reported and

considered.

An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of this
proposal, attached at Appendix 4.

Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications

A Climate Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of this
proposal, attached at Appendix 5.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Strategic CIL Review Consultation Responses
Appendix 2: CIL Strategic Project Evaluation Sheet
Appendix 3: Revised Gedling Borough Council Infrastructure List

Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Community Infrastructure Levy
Strategic Review

Appendix 5: Climate Impact Assessment Community Infrastructure Levy
Strategic Review

Background Papers

Gedling Borough Council CIL Charging Schedule -
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%
20July%202015).pdf

Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance Note
2016

Page 35


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%202015).pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%202015).pdf

16 Reasons for Recommendations

16.1 To comply with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and ensure that a suitable selection of Strategic Infrastructure

projects are identified and set out within the Council’s Infrastructure List.

Statutory Officer approval

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer

Page 36




UB|d AN SINJONUSEIIU] AYIUNWLIOYD B UILIM Josiold
Sl Jo UoISNoUI 8L awWodjem PUB 8Jjued ebejusy B Jo aAlsoddns ele em 9d|S 108loide
‘JUSWIUCJiAUG DLO)SIY SUY) Jo} seiunuoddo
84 pINoS 86U} YoIyM 4o ‘sjuewwancidl wieas olgnd sejelodosul ydIS josfolds
‘elqissod J1 Jybnos ese sepunpoddo pue siesodosd Aue uj paapisuod
©q UED Jl Jey) 0 8INjonseyUl anjg /Usals) J0 JUsUOdLIOD B SE JUSWUGIIAUS JLO)SIY BLj)
0} S9UsJB}eJ B SUIODJOM PINOM SM UONDES J98(0Jd JO JusLISSEsSE, BU) JBPUN £dIS 108l0id.
“Wbnos aq o) waly 8b.n pinom em ‘joslosd $IU} yBnouy) esurdyubls
Jisy pue siesse obejusy ssueyue pue Jasjoud o) sepiunyoddo Aue aie asey) )1 ZdIS waloide
‘sjustuecidw) podsuel oy yBnouys ‘sjesse abejuay Jo eouealubls
8U} [ednel Jajjaq 0} sefjjunpioddo Aue ale eiey) Jl 1senbau pinom am |dIS 198l0ude
“JuswuolIAUS JLJ0ISIY 8L} eduByUS pue J98joid 0} sefiunyoddo yees pue
sfesodo.d JisU) LILJM JUSLULIOIIAUG OLOSIY SU} JBPISUCD SIBUNOD Jey) Jsenbay skeme app
VIN el siyj & UoieIapisuoo Joj asiel o} sjoefold oypeds Aue aaey Jou Op puB|BUS SLIO}SIH.
*AJUNUIIOD Bujsessoul
4oA9 UB Uo Joedwi B1g B eABY pInom JBU; smeln Aw o alwos isnf ate esey] "auo sk JaLebo) ewoa piNod AJUNWWoD Jeplm 8y} 0s aiBlepA
el apisul usyoly & Bumnd el BUOP 6q PINOd B0 YINW PUB WOPRI0g ybnouyy umoys wsijepueA ayy uo joedw) Biq & aney pinom J snid i
‘eBues sbe Jiey) uiyym ebipepmouy| sjeIBUSH pue Spueiy exew o} edeld e Buno ey) Joj pue AUNWWOD sy} Jo UyInoA 8y} Jeyyeboy Bupg osje :
PInom siyy eBpsmouy pue syibuess sejdoed JoyieBo) Buuq speys u} Uew ey} yym pue spuil Jiey Bulkdnoso ‘diispueu} 'sseuljeuo} Jequios
PInom yaiym BunoA pue Apspie JeLabo) Buug pinom nok eseu UiAL 'spunoib Buipunouns pue enjue) AJUntUIOD 8u} Jo ash ejeleLab
PIN0 Udiym spunosb esejjep sioul eu Buisn jiepus plnom jasfoud ey} os pue asn o} suspisel ou Jo} 86B[IIA au LILIIM INjINASELLI JO ‘esuodsed Joyjo Aus ui pajsi| eABY | UDIUM
98] 8L} 0} 8np S| SIL) ‘@SN 0) seIjioB) ou ele eley) SE SPBUS U} Lsy oX!f Lojieieusb Jepjo ey Adnooo o} seniAnoe pesu OM "esN 0} saRj1o8} suoRe ejeieust o} Aeuou 10 pesu U| seeE JBLIO JBU} Yonw SB UJ sed Anunog Bulpes) pue
‘PojoU sjusLIaD) o eABY oym BunoA sy; Adnooo 0} SENIIB) LINCA JO PEBU U SI YaIum SBefiiA PooMmised o} Uonielel uj pesn eq pjnoys Asuow Jeu) enslieq op | e4usD einsie] plowy Buieq Asy) pue yym seibesip PInom | yoium sioefoud om ese eiey ]|
sHoddns AjbuoJls dnoJb spual) sy 18Y) Josio.d JuBljug
B 8q 0} $)00| SIYL "SS[HOQ JOJeM JO} PSBU B} BABS 0} UIRIUNO) YULIP SS8208 Uedo ue o
Koy i pods BuiBeinooue sued syl um Z “sse098 pejqesip ebexyord ayj jIIAn 'L “suoys
T BABY | PUIW U1 SIL WYIA " Wab & 8q 0} Yeg au) JUBM BAN "qInjal & Buieb uojiaed Suy
Apioys yued ay) djay o} ueid e eonpoud lim pA 10 adsoid ay) eno| Apspeeyeioum em dnoib SJBd UBYOUQ JO SPUSL B} JO JaGIawl

‘Pojou sjusio)

“Maaey 2i60jelS i0 8y uey Jeye)
UORENNSUOD MBIAGY POOUINOGLBISN YSLEL-UON IO Juadel
oy} o} pajejal Alesofo aow aq o} Jeadde - pajou Sjuswiwoy)

“}iom poob ey dn desy pue ‘sie:

{"i~"es10U Aqqoy [euosiad) JLuEs| Useq JOU JjiS @ARY SUOSSS] LOILM LU
1sed pejuie} Aiesy e o} joo] iBlelsou & jou ‘SAEYMNOL 3j00] ases|d ‘Auew oo} sugrs||

e1ued ebejusy Jeyjour Jng Bujuonouny sy )i ‘yoelold iy} o suoh sey Asuow ybBnous g,
a1y ey} o jfem sxoo josfoid sy se ybnoyy, 3
weiqoid e eq b of 1L "ID Joy Jeijy deb Bupunoy njasn & eq pinoo siyL dig| . -
¢pebeinoous eq pinos sanno| -
980 juasaud ay} 1 8ouabINsel B 89S JYBIw aJjusd umo) pjowy sdeyied ng ‘yejndod joul -

S UoREd0j 8y} ‘sjunoos|p Juss [eRUBISANS Jo enlia AQ pe1dnaoo Ajuo aJe sjiun ey 10edsns

| S€ $8839NS B Jou S JWY 110 puoheq eq pinom siy :sjeas| [euel yby uo jusiel o} Jeeq| - - -
©}3y6nouq eq pinoa spJojpue| uo eunsseid [eatliod ‘persebbns se esmipuedxe [evo) peywi| -
4q pelpswa) 8q JouLEd YOIUM 'SPUB.) D{LLIOUOIS [RUOHBU 0} 8Np BULBLNS S| plousy pdis| . - ¢
'Sieusq AJUNWLOD pUNos LM ‘sjLsW AUBW 8ABY SSOP £d|S|

iPauinbeJ )1 SUOISSNISIP JOLINy Joj BLI JOBIUOD BSBS|d "Sesng|
Jejjews Buisn Ajqissod ‘peos Bul 6y} pue BUET 8SOIXO BIA SIS DWDAND 8y} pue sureld
Kspeddeyy Bupjul se yans 'yBnouy peoy pleYSUEK LB} S8JnoJ JaL0 aAIes INOD B}s 8y
11D 40 eweje “Syiom Buusauibus Al Jofew pue sesezuoind puB| [BIUBISGNS JNOUIM PeIeAliSp 8q JOULED
oibiejeng ey} uey Jayjes Buipund pooynoguBieN ID 40 PEOY pleysuely uo seue| pue sxul| eynos snq pesodoid eyy pue pejenyis Alpeq si ejis ey L
esn sjeudoidde alow & aq 0} JepISUCD BIE S|[elS PUB JOSEW 'siepjoy|e}s elow ebeincaus o} Bujpuedxs pssu B ek s|qeesh o) ‘Buidojersp Ayanoe  ‘suoses. jeonoed Aiea oy paddoip/peuodisod useq sey j se ‘peloid s|qisesjun ue st Zd|S|
alenbg e|be3 0) UoRE|eI Ul SHUBUILIOD BY | ‘Pelou SJUSIILLOD D1UOUD3 3IqBIA S1 8J6u) I "NEaq AIsA 64 IS UED Eale By ‘PaysIiqEISe Aliedoid S| mou ‘38 sl[ejs pue jaxuew sienbg a|be3 o) spesbdn ‘sjyeueq Ajunuuwod [eseush o} se jusL 1es16 oy} sey LdiS ON|
“(mojeq uonsasbbng ses) papnusp! s 99foid Inyoeduwii Alleluswuosiaug Js8q pue pasnooy| -
ebEjusy ‘s|qeUIRISNS JSOW Bl BINSUS 0} SUORAO || JO JUSWSSESSE-8) [NI3JED B PUBLIW0DS.|
‘aJjued ebejiA Bullpag) elesoBiAuIR) PUB S1BQUNU JOJISIA JO Insseid 8y) peaids PInom Ing ‘axued ebejuay Bulpse) (20| B ejesI0 0} UORIqWE U} Yitm saJbe | - odIS
0} Buidjay "YND Jeuuo} ey} Buole * Aemenos jsael; eAne, LIS ‘Auoud 1D Jeyjoue e 4D 8Y) 0} paXU| 39 UBD 3| ‘gD ey Ul pjing mau e
0} UoNjos JeReq e aq pinod pue Apunpoddo snoinqe ue si uonels pio Bulpes ‘eaueisul Jo4 ‘(senss| ysiy 1y ebiejusy, |eoo| Guissalppe se "(mojaq 2es) syyeusq ebejuay vignd Jeylo S1E}|IOB} UBD PUE SjnoJ abejuay Jesnpinw
1M se) Buip|ing meu & 1o} pesu ey} PICAE pinom Buipjing ebejuay e ‘Jo asn-a1 pue ‘Ul JuswyseAU| "S|ERUBPSID A) GEUIEISNS [BUBWIUOIIAUS 93)-0uel) ‘Uesib ‘ajes & siayo ) se Aleinoned ‘sjyeusq [enuejsgns pue Jes(o )i Joj Ajloud
Jayeq pue enjea ebejusy [eUORIPPE BABY PINOD JBU) PaJapISUOD 8 PINOUS iuad aBejusy auy o suoie20| eAnews)y ‘Bulpes € SE paiopIsuod aq pinoys sull Aemiiel YNO Jauuoy oy} jo Buisodind-a sy ‘4D Bulpes)
‘PSIOU SjUBLLILOY) Jo ebejuey [ed0] 3y} 8]qissedde Bupjew pue Buneigsjea Jeypny Jo eapl sy woddns A)jny | ‘ejqepne| 51 42 Bulipes je ague) ebejueH ey | 0} $5820€ Bunoidw) 0} soussejed Jejnoiued ypm ‘jeael| BARoY ‘LdIS 8} yym saube |

¢TI0 943 JO UOIMO J1B3]eAIS D3 YhNOJY} palaAllap 21517 24n3onJjseagu]
SIUSLILIOD 192110 24 0 ISIT 24NJONASEAU] BU) U0 PBPNIIUI 3G PINOD J3PISUOD NOA Jeuy sjoafold aimoniyseljur o1bajens 1930 aJaly) a1y (Z uoysany 115UN0J 3y3 Uo uoisnjoul 1oy payiuapl syoafold ayy yum saibe nok oq (L uonssny

seslodsay UORBJINSUOD Mairay 11D JID8)ESS | Xipuaddy




‘pajou sluswwoD ua.pjiy2 pype Joj pepasu slop

‘pajou sjusluwo) VIN

"98B 8y} 34 0} 85N LUPIP jey) pue skep asay) abel|iA 8U) Ut pnw S| eeu

$089 i 9s.n09 JO Jely} Inode paLsouod 8q PINoys Sealyo (egnau Alleoniied ey Jou ‘abejin sy} pejees aAey (1ouno) ybnoiog Buljpes
Kem ay jo asnedaq abel|iA siy) ul Jequisw Aped Jnoqe & aq 0} Buisseuiequia awosaq s,)| "ybnoiog auj Ul asje auokions se UOloAIRD

U} Bulpuny pue seifioe; 0} SS8998 SWIBS BU) SAISSSP PUE [lIY AU JOAD ISIXE aM Jeu) uswebpeimousoe Jo pun swios eAey o} isnf suejd
oibejesis 1ok Jo auo Ui 821U eq pjnom JI Inq (jaunsopo enued ainsie) pesodoid) 10]|10UN0d B SEM | 91IUYM }1 JO BLUIOS JSISa 0} Jsaq AW pIp | ‘mou
8ped8p B J6A0 Jlom o} jounod ybBnolog Buipes £q uodn Ajeysiduios ussq SBY UoueA[e) Jseuoy eq o} ing ‘Aipyiosds Jo [eAs] Jeu) Je JoN
*dn peusdo pue papuny sem 3| Ji ybnolog

‘pajou sjuswwog

U} USAIB 8.)U8D BINSI LUOUSAED Ul JUSWISBAUL BU S| SISUA ‘SORI[IOR) LIBPOW UIM 31jU8D)

ebein Bupuedxs ue Joj pepesu aie ssay) se A

ESTEE

40 ebue. e Buuenod Jo josfoid pue suoleBiseAU] S0USIOS UG SPUBY Joj soeds 8y} &sn pinos
siojunf pue Juejul 8y josfod 40 yiom [ealeid Joy 49 Aq pesn eq pInoa siy} ~sdoysyiom
1I%s 8)1j Jo} 85N o} UOHRAIED UI [00UdS BU} JO {2 Joy Paleesd adkds Mau B eq PINoys sley |

‘PoULIBPUOD PUE Aeme uexe) sem pey Aey Jeym Jeye Juswdinbe Joopino
Uo Juads Aauouws Buiaey Jou Lym puisq ya| Bulsq el [ooyds Kiesunugjuejul sued Jouepy

*Aioedes Jeno o} enp Ajunpioddo Buiney joul
34e s19yjo Buiuesul S| sjuspisal Ul 8SBEI0U] 8L} ‘PESU SI0W UL S| JEIUGD SINSIS] UOLBAIED
usum ‘uojed u) Jejue eunsie) meu e Buipping jueds eq pinoys Asuow 18y} eaubesip |

ISl 8Uj Ul pauiino se aJnjonujseljul usalg-enig ay) o)

JUBW)SBAUS Ypm s3J68 OS|e | |1DunoD sy} Joy Jeuses Keuow fenusjod e pue ‘weybumon o
(puoAaq pue) yBhoiog BulIPe) WO SIBINWILLID Jo} Jasse Jealh B 8q PINOM Ud1ym ‘sLuayds
9P pue Sied puels| loodea suy yum Ajesnus aeibe | ‘JusUUCIAUS PUBLISP BUIlpUMP B uy
Ilejed asow Buibeinoaus o pesjsu; Suisnoy o} esn jo abueyo oy Ajdde o} syun |1e3e1 Bupsixs
Joy Jo|se® }l S3Ew 0} S| Op UED NOA 1584 BU) 1881)S JUOIS UO BI0JS MOU B U| JS8AUI 0} EPSY
196 UeD nok ssejun Jng JesewWw ayj uo qof 1826 B SUOP SANOA ‘H 3 Asuow oyjgnd Bupjonyp|
doig "sseak 0z 1s€| 8Y) U] Ueldieisew, YiGL S) INOGE UO SI PIoUY PUY ¢ PaAI99a) 9ABY hok
sidiesas ey} pue ‘sieek Juede) Ul UOHBAIZD) Ul POMO|[E SANOA jJuewwdojaAsp JO JUNOWE JseA

8.nsia) Wapow jus|jedxe Ue Apealje si wnio4 UolHeD ‘AHEjiLUIS ‘UopeAleD Jo ejdoad ey,

Jinsu} ue pue eoe1BsIp & 89 pInom siy} YBnoay) sued Ajunod Bulipes u) swns uesiub)s|

Jeyun BunseAu; uopeneD Ul eys di-jiods A1e1jjod Jewioy Jejiuis AioA ayy pejess; sey

089 ABm 8l Je 30| noA UsUM JesSE KUNWIWOD Jusjjeoxe Ue Apesile s,) ‘sjustuaodull

aJnyny poddns o} swoaul YBnoua uey) esow apincid pINoyYs Jey) 8}is jel) uo sabieys Bunjied
Burebums peounouue jsnf eA,n0A “seWweyos dieg Anunod Buypes ey 10 |l yum asube:
'$8SSNQ 9Je 218y} S18UM BIIUED UMO]

o

SI0UM oLy} Jyeusq pinom JBY) Aselewed meu au) Jo) piey ebny & sey uopieAleD *ed o} elqe aq pinom sidoed LUoLeAed sy} pue ‘siey yed u Buisnoy ea1u ewos peeu eidoed BunoA “Buiddoys sulp uo o} anp Junuys sey |iLjey ‘8usd)|

oum ejdoed euojsiedde pue yBnosogpoom ‘UoXo 8l Joj enssi auj djey pinom Aspeddew je epu pue xed e sdeyied “weybumoN o) snq sy}
166 0} uopeAled o) BuLp sebejjin Joujo woy ajdoed Lm uoRENYS 8pu pue xed e jis st susy |

‘eBe[IA 8U) J0 SPUS JBJ BU] LI BIBL) BALIP PINOD B1)UBD UMO}

umoj ey ul Buip|ing Busnoy ejqepioye pue paysiiowep sdoys Adwse sy 10 swos uim
Plowly 's| }f Aem ey} euy st yued £3unoo Bullped *Aio euj oju SALD [lem,

‘Pejou suswWLOD - Ajfensn Aeyy sio0jo0p eu} Jo sdoys au} o) dj[em juop ejdoed pue Jing Lseq eABY SBSnoY 80w ‘Bluso obgjjiA ay) u1 Buppied spesu UoueAlRD ABw nok 1) Jey} UBALP BABY NOA 31 >Hom pinom pugjsi joodes je epu pue ed & yuiy) Eo&

"JBUOOS YaNUl Ul SALIL} PUE MOID “ABId 0} USJP|IYO SL) DUMO|[E AJUNWILIOD 8L} Ul

UBJPJIUo U} Jo SPasU PUE sjselajul o 86UBJ 8SIBAID BU} SYINS UDIYM JUSLILICIIAUS BURRINWS PUE UN) & epiroud o} ysim Jooyos ey ‘seainos
JaLjo Wouy s(qelieAe Jou ele spuny pue Aeme usye} usaq sey juswdinbe Aeid uiew sy ‘s)ussasbe 9oL UOJ}o8s BAISSBOINS U] PEYOONBAD
usaq sey Jey} UopeAeD Ul Inoj 3y} Jo euo Ajuo ey} st ooyds siu Juswdojerspel eele Aeid j00yos Alesinu pue Juejul sued JouBy
"UDHJEUIISOP JOJISIA 8]GEN(EA B 8 PINOM YDIUM ‘997

WEIAA Jo 8)1] 8y} Uo paseq |l ebejusyaunasnw e yiwm Buoje ABsiens pau Buikeld u) peau 8y} Jemsue 0} Yoes) XINg eb.e| pue ‘yoyd esn
HnW O¢ & sjelodiosul PINED PUE '8yis iU} UMG [10UN0D Ysued UOMEAIED ‘BAUSO 8iNsie] puE sbejuey & oJul YJed 887 WEH||I Jo Jusudojersq
22k 01 158| PN AlejaLuao sil} ‘YBNooq au) ssooe saoedS JUBULIBIUL S pUB lelng jo efiBloYS eJeAsS € S| esaly|

“Buipuny o} 10efans josfoud siy} Buiuels uoos 8q Jm PUE S8.08 G| pUB] SIL} UMO [10UNod YsLEd UOHBA(RD 'aUBT PooMUlIoH Je AJsjawad maN
"80BJINS JBULIE) B spasu Ajjuabin siy ‘aBe|iA ayy ur sejolyeA Bixe ey [[e Jo esneoeq Alessedeu slWodaq sey pue

PasnisAa AleAlssew si a)is sued 87 WR(IAA 84} 12 YJed Jeo MOpIeAd pesselb abie| sy} uonippe Uj “eef jse| Aisay eI 0} psulno fpealje

LTS o) Se “iied Jeo Mol & Wi} pesn Keuow |1 ey) pue pue) Buikng [ounoo ysued UopBAIED) BAJoAUI pinom siy} ‘Gupied Jes exjued Uopenie)

“(Ieydso sed 13 8oliod) dwnsiung je juswAoldwe o} Bunnwwioo A ejqeus pinom jnq sisiAS ainste) Joy Ayllioe) Inyasn

‘PejoU SJUBLILIOD & 2q Ajuo jou pinom siy | “(ogv ey Buoje Alqeqoid) duinjsyung oy joodeeT woJ elnol 8o & 8q pinom josfoid Jayjoue 1o} uonsebibns v

al

*sjo0losd|
pesodoid ey} Suipuny ele jey; sjusludoleasp au} Jo soale ay Bupebyi ‘paau Juabin asow
sl edey} eJeym Juads Buieq Buisnoy meu woy pajessusb Ksuow ey} ses 0} Jajeid pinom app|

sjed Ajunod Bulipss je aljues ebejusy & Joj swes sy 'yBnooq ey ssoloe sjuawsaiinbal
SINoNASELU! JUSBIN SI0W YINW 8JE 818U UBYM BUO MBU B U0 Spunod Jo suoljjiw Auew
Buipuads ut Juiod ou s, 818y} ‘UojeD 1B B1jUAO BINSI| B ApeaJle sj aley) ‘ealbe J,uop am oN

‘PEOY Pleysuel uo ind aq o} sanilior) 8104 sjenbepe sjqeus

PING2 Sy | "prOY PieysuelN uo uojjsebuoa aljel} eonpal pinod joodes1 j8 epiy pue Med)
‘uiseg jued |

¥e o6puiq apisiejep BuCdULIO} SU) 0} 198D USL) PINOM Ji SB “Yied YomoD o} ydjopieg
©)0}S WOJ SNONUIUCD BPEW 8q 0} JuaJ | 8U} JO YUBQ YLON 6U) UO 8noJ 8y} 8es o} poob eq
PInoM Jj ‘el 1 8y Jo Yueq ULiON auj o) 8jqissod Ji pue ‘plaiusLieN ojul syuy ajes o pjnoys
8184} pus JSOM-LIN0S 8y Iy "sJe} sjuswidojeAsp Buisnoy meu sy o} peoy wospiem|

0} AoauIp 13uu0d pinoys AemussiB Aemjiel su) Jey) JueHodwi st 3f ‘paxul) Ajojes 10U sem

H 9snedsq sjqesnun useq sey jeyl aumniseyul BuifoAo poob Jo sejdwexe useq eey aisy)
ised ey} u) syomieu Bursxe Uiim Ajeles pue AusiusALCd sjoeuu0d Bulpko pue Bupem
10} sInjonJisesju) meu Jeu Aoy si 3t sesed |l uj “Aemiies plo sy} uo Aemusesd pesodoid i
0} jul) osie ‘sjejse [efjuepisal sy} ybnoiy) ejnos paubis e pue sueld Aepaddeyy uo sen)jioe)|
Buwoidw epnjout pinos siy L "sepis uue esey pue sue Buuds yjog wouy peaoidwi

84 PInoys $s8008 Yled Ajunod Bujpss) ey} J04 ‘pemio) sacw J0sfoid SUSD UMD

Piouly aup pue sposlod eumorulseLU) Usein-anig el “ed Anuno? Buypas) o} sUIT jeABl )
SARDY SUj} 835 0] Usey Alenonsed ase ap “dnoib ey} Jo SIaqUISW JSLIO L) PS)NsUoD|
Buiney ‘dnoub uBiedwes epks wWeyBURION 8y 'sieped Jo Jequiew g se Buipuodserwe |




“Josloid asnjonuisBUI UB S| SIU} Moy Binsun we | “yed Aqunoo Buypes 18

@1jued abejuey & 40 pesisul peiepisucd sjosfoid BiNjONSELUI [ERUSSSS BLIOS 88 0] %I PINOM | 'uopeindod |eo0)| Ul 8sealoUl JUBSHIUBIS BLY
0} enp uoyejnded [800] U} jo puBLUSP B} LyIm 8dod 0} BjqBUN SI d 4o juel| 8y) pue sjuswudojerep Buisnoy Juese) ey Bupmojjo}
©d0 jouued 916 welsks SUIBIP ‘SPECs Bu} ‘SIMONSEIU| J0) PEBU slelsdsep & OABY oM UoleA[eD Uj 'UCIHED U} 8JJUSD 8INSIST MBU & Jo
PE2}SU} UoREJBPISUOD SPau SI Aj2nS PUE enjusD) 2INSIST] UOLBAIED U JUSWISBAUI OU / Ofj USR] SBY 818y | "Base au) Joj peuued sewoy
Jayuny Wy uonelndod uj eseasoul Juedy|uBis au 83idsep PeOoPBAC S| uoleAle urebe souo ‘sjoefoid pesodoud Jo isi| au) yyum saubesIp i
"JeUOO0S Lonw 8ALIL} pUE MOIb "AB|d 0} UaIP|iLd 8L} BUMOIIE AJUNLULIOS 8y Ul

UBJPIILO OLj} JO SPasU asIsAIp B SHNS YoIym Jusuucliaua Bulieinuins pue uny e spesu jooyos 8y "sjusludojensp Mau el woy sjuswes.be
901 UOKOSS BAISSEIINS L0 Jno PassIW SeY jeu) abie|iA sy} ul S|ooyds oy 8L o sUo AjUO 8U) SI {0OUOS 8l PEACLUSS PUE PEUWSPUOD

sem Juswdinbe Aejd ulew pio ey eauis ‘punciBield s jooyog KiesinN pue JuB| Yed Jouel Jo JuswdoleAaaQq UoRN|oABY [BHISNPUY

3y} Jo Jed )81l 8Y) JO JOpUNo; ‘887 WEI|IAA UO paskq aJued abejusy & pue “ued XNg ebuej *soeds Aejd-ninw o¢ & Buipnjou ‘seibejess
abejuey pue Buiked sy jo sjuswelinbes Bupemsue ‘anuss abejuey pue JOYSIA B OJul Jouung Yued 887 Wel|IM a4 Jo wiswdojeasq

‘sieef 00| )se] plnom Alsjeweo

108 g1 SI} pue yBnolog sy ssoie sjojd yse pue [eunq oljgnd Joj peeu sjesedssp e si asey) ‘Buipels spesu Aisjewwsd sueT poomuijloH
"8024NS JBULE} B SPesu Apusbin )1 ‘apu pue sed eiyoun ue s ‘ssasn yed Ag 18Nl j0u ‘mou Aep Kione pasn s| yed ea Weljim

1 3i/ed Jea mojano sseub su) uonippe Uj “pue| sy} ANg Jiounco ysued ey 1 ‘eBE|IIA 8U) Jo aued 8y Ul seoeds Bupired siow seg “Jouncs
"PBJOU SjUBWIWOD  Ysiied UOMBAED Ui UCHEUIP.I0-00 Uj Asuow Tj0 Buisn D89 Aq papuny ‘Uopeaies) uj sjosfoid ainjonijseyul Bumoi|o} 8y} ees o) ey PINOAA

‘PaIoU sjUSLIWOD

“Aljess yym auf 4o o Kiea swieas ueid JusLnd Inok -sease JaLo se |Iem se uoleAles U BunseAul Jepisuod

eses|d ‘00 seyoyd jleqioo} ‘Juswidinbe Aejd ‘sxied se yons ‘UsIpIy Jo} SeniIoBs MO PesuU om sieak e Jono J|ing useq Buney sejejse

"Pejou sjuswwo] Buisnoy meu [BISASS ) ‘0S| Inoge suop sjeb Jeae Buiyjou inq sdoys Jo sjes yjoq Aq Bupyed feuonippe Joj ejeisdsep oe em UOUBA[RD U]
"PRIOU SJUBIWOD SOA

"18U00S Ljanw sAUL) pue moub ‘Aeid o} uaIp|Iyo 8y BuImO|le AHUNWLIOD Su} Ul USIP|IYD BUY

40 SpasU 3sI2AIP oL SUNS URILM JUBWILOJIAUS BUNBINWIAS PUE UN) & SPsaU |00Y0S 8l | “sjuswdojeAsp Mau ey} WoJj sluatsslbe g| LoRIes
SAISS399NS U JN0 passil sey jely abiellin ey} uj sjooyos Jnoj au) 40 BUO AJUO U S 00UDS BU | ‘PSACWISS PUE PLLISPUOD SEM juswdinbe
Ae|d uieu: pjo sy} euls ‘punosBAeid s,jooyas AlesinN pue JUBJ| Yed JouB JO jueludoleAed UORN|oAS] [BLISNPUI B8U) JO MEd ISl 8} Jo
4epunoj ‘a7 WEI|IM U0 peseq exued ebejuey e pue yed XNG ebis] ‘soeds ~Aejd-ninw O¢ & Bupnjou ‘seibejens ebeusy pue Buikeld oy)
Jo sjustuednbe; Buuemsue ‘enued ebejuey pue JojSIA B o) Jeyuny xued ee) WeNIA aU) Jo Juswidojersq ‘siesk 0ol 1Sel pinom Alejsiuies
8198 9| SI} pue UBnoioq ey ss0soe sjold Yse pue [eunq aliand Joj peeu ejeledsap e s| slek) ‘Bune)s spesu Aiajeles 8UE"} POOMULIIOH
"82BHNS delLe) e spesu Ajusbin )i ‘spl pue yed jeigoun ue s ) ‘siesh sued Aq jsnf jou ‘Mou Kep fieAe pesn sidyed 87 Wejlim

¥ i1ed Jed mojueno sseib sy} LoRIppe U] puBj eu) Ang [1ounos Ysued eus 4 ‘eBejliA 8y} Jo exuED 8U) Ul sedRds Buiied ssow Je4 “|unod

"PRjOU SlUBIWOD  Uslied LUOMBAIBD U3 UOHBUIRIO-0D U1 Aeuoul 7 Buisn 089 Ag papuny ‘UopeAle) | Soefoid einjanuselUl Bumolio} el ses o) 1] pjnom |

‘PejoU SJUBWIWIOYD “uopeAeD Ul sposfod ue Jusds aq A|uo pInoYs LopBAfeD oy spew Asuow uleBy

‘selfialedis ebejusy B Aejd au) Jo sjuswanbes sul|

Bugiesw - yory} dwind / XIAG € Jo uoisinoid ey} Buipnouy juswidojeaapad Jeyuny Juedyubis
ulo Jusueq pinom ee7 Welllim 1e yed ey Ing Iunoo ysied sy wody juetudojenep!
Injlapuom slios uses eAey uopeAleD ui syJed Aejd ey “sdoys ‘sowo jsod 'de) se yons
sejjluewe abej|in oy) Buisn a1e oym sidoed Joj eBejjIA 8U} J0 81USY U UI saoeds Bupjied
[euolippe sauinbe. ebejjia 8y} ‘Jusiounsul pue Buijie S1 8JNJONASEAU JUSLIND S} YoNS

SE pue jusiudojeasp Buisnoy Juesyiubis pey sey UCHBAED “[IDUNOD USUEJ LIOLSAED) UM
uoRBUIRJ00Y LY Aeuow 19 Buisn D89 Aq pepun; ‘uopeales ui sjoaford Bumojioy sy ees
1 83l] PINoM PeSIsu| PUE 1s1] injonJse.ul |Iounod eyl uo sjosfosd syl Yim eaJ6e jou op |

‘paidnooe
PUe 3jinq 8q o} sesnol peuueld gog punoJe 106 IS enam pue ‘mou bl uopsARD
ui eanjonuselul peaosdwi Joj pesu ejeledsep & aney op “sjoelold pesodoud ey Buipuny
o.e Jey} sjusludojersp ey woy sjoeduwl o spaye ey) Bupebniw ‘pesu Juebin alow s| siey)
aJaym Juads Asuow enonnselul au) ees o) Jejed pinom | ¢1oslosd aimonsselu; juepodw)
Ue se pamsiA 8q siy} Ued Moy “ed Ajunod Buiipas) je axueo ebejusy pasodoid ay) Joy
aswmedI 'yBnoloq sy} u) Bunuswsidwi pasu Jey syoefoid sumoniiseLul JusBIn MOU ‘slow
J&} 1€ 88U} PUE ‘B1jUB0 2INSIS| LOUBAED UO Asuow Aue puads )uop ok Lisum Aeioadse
‘auo meu e Bulp|ing uo spunod uolliw og Jo OZ Bulpusds u} julod ou si sJey) ..._89

ur exueo aunsie) e Apeaife s| aJay L "sjoefosd pasodod Jo Jsif au) yum sa.besip A|Buo,
Ul Jueds 8q pjnod Asuow pue

Buisse.pe pasu jey) senss| o} eb.n elow Yyonw eJe esey) “Wed Ajunod Bujpad Je e

abejuay au) s1300f0id eImonysesU; UB Jo Jeig Bu JeeUl 0) WIees Jou Seop e psfo

"00} ploUJe pue uolsAles apeiBdn 0} pesh aq uay) pinoo Jeb

Bujulewsal auj-aUl MU BIOUM B Ul WIOE S1SEM LUOP g }f Uj ISSAUI US) ‘S)UBLISASIAWII SP:

) 41 ‘'25usd ainsie| poofb B sey Apeeie uojped ejdwexs Joy ‘sjoefold ey Yym ealbe jou |
SOA

‘petdnaoo

PUE Jling 2q 0} sesnoy pauued 0og PUnoJB J0bB (s 8A,8m puB ‘Mou JBU UoUBARD)

Ul einjonyjselul penosdwi Joj pseu sjeledssp e aAY e “sjosfosd pasodoud sy Buipuny
eJB j2y) sjuellidojersp ey woy spoedw! jo ssye ey Bunebiiw ‘peeu juebin eiow s| sleyy
e.eum Jueds euow sinjaniselUl ) 86s 0) Jajeld pinom | ¢1asloid sumonnseu; Jusyodw)
Ue Se pamalA eq siy) Ues moy ed Aunog Bulpes) je enuss obejisy pesodoid auy Joy|
ssimali "yBnoloq eup Ul Bunuswaidwi pesu Jey) saelold sinoniseLul JUSBIN MoU ‘elow
e} 81e 818} PUB ‘2UB0 BINSIS] UoLBARD) Uo Asucwi Aue puads juop nok usym Ajieedss|
‘auo meu e Buipjing uo spunod uoljiu og Jo 0Z Bulpusds Ul juiod ou s) sleL) ‘uoie)

Ut equed sinsle| e Apealfe s) esey | "sjosfold pesodoud 1o 1sij aU) Lym saibesip AiBUosS |

‘uopeAle Ajuo pue uopeAleD Buiepdn uo juads eq pInoys Jt YUY} | jaJaymasie Aauow ey
pusds usy) pue uoueAled 4o} sJadojensp Wiy ABUOW 4o Jo| & pey eAnoA ‘eelbe Juop | ON

‘1uno) ysiied [e0] sy} ‘Jo Ajiliqisuodsel ey} pue 'Aq
peulusiep sq pinom sidieasy IO Jo Uood poolnoqubieN
ey} jo axnjipusdxe Ly uBnoJog oy} o Bl peysued

€ ullpim pejenyis st pefoid pasodoad e jey uea [0 jo
uoniod pooyinoguBieN ey} Joj ‘ajeos sl usaib ‘psiins Jepeq

8Jow 1o} suejd pue Apeslje aJ8y Jjing
§1ZD o} esuodse. ul pejsebbins joefoid ey ‘pejou sjusiuog

useq senJedoud ssow Auew os eAey em se papasu Ajelulep s Bupyied Jeo esow pue sued Xwq B Wo. jysueq pInom UOHBAIED YUju} op |
"uopeAled Ul Aunwwiod 1no Joy Buipting
‘PuncibAeld sued Joue Joj Buipund "eAu o) uoesauab SunoA 1o Mmojie o} yed ae WENIAA Jo} Buipung urens aJow sienbe sesnoy siop

jussaud je sqjued ainsieT

ejenbepe eAey Aoy se selifioe} ejuss) ens|eT] Mel Speal UoYLEY) jey} eeIbe juop |
IA1LNIONN id[aY Spasu UouaAeD)|

'33HOVSIq AiBuoss

"UOHED0] [BA4USD B Ul S| Yolym "Apeinba dn jesuw o} A}JIoB) AHUNWWIOD Jo oS

8ulos asn pinoa oym Yo} ALeple saey apn 'lood saniadwios B se pesn eq o aq 0} spesu
¥ ezis 8y} Jley si jood BuMS INO “4oEq 30 B Jou Buijeb eq o) Jeedde ing 1O spiemoy
spunod Jo suojjjiu BupnguILod ele eBE|IIA B SB 8N .44,LU0LBARD Ul suaddey jeupm

‘pajou sjusiwe)

'POJOU SJUBWIWIOD “BuiAUNS enuRUED 0} SUORRUCP Uodn juelie) ‘edlAes AIOSIAPE AILNWWWOS eljussse UB JHOD ‘Buip|ing eues einsie} JaUouR pasu LUSeOp }| ‘W10 8y} seY Apeedle uceD) ‘ON



‘2JJUsD aInsie] Juaund ey bujoe|de
Jo Buwnoudus Aq ebe)pia ey Ut sepijioe; Buteqjjemyeinsie| arciduw| o) pesn 84 osje pjnoa Asuow uone(ndod SUOHBA|BD Ul 8sB8IoUI dfBWBID
8U3 USAID "00} 2Pl pue djied LW & se pesn S| S|y Se Asuolu 10 Aq Pe,ceuLR) 6q P02 UCISUSHB sJed Jeo jjeH ebejiiA ey 1oe uf eBejia
U} Jo sEa.e JoUo pue aJenbs spujlm IS Bulpunouns speos Bulpnjou; ‘eBejiiA 8Uj Ul sjods JOy Jo JBquinu B Bunesio ‘sebeya bujpunouns

Aq ,spu pue sued, 1seA e se pesn Apesile s UOLSARD “21ju8D 8y Ul Bupped sjiand asow se yons sjoefoud uo Jueds Jspaq g PINOD SAIUCW "sjdoad [e90] Jo spssu sY} Josw 0} aJey) uoisiroid ejenbape Apesufe si

'POJOU SjuslWa?) esey | "eJelp Jjing Buteq Buisnoy ey} jje 0} enp ‘Uoleindod Jiey U esEeIOU) BL) UBAIB ‘UopieAfeD Ul Jueds 8q pjnoys SeluoW IO SIOW 88y} ‘efue einsieT] uojied uo seluow 7|9 Aue Buipueds pesodoud ey Ljm sa.Be Jou op |
“HIng Buieq s9sNOY MBU JO JUnolte ey) Joj $89n0se]

‘PaJOU SJUBWIWOD “abejia o) Joj Buped alop “esse punoiBAeid |00YoS Med JOUBH Jo Bunepdn ‘aueo ainsie uopeAe) jo Bunepdn alow spssu Alejesadsep uolened "sjosloid spesedsep jou sue Aey) “soibesip Kbuoys |
"slepling *abe||IA sy Jo esuadxe oy}

PUE sjuepjses woy yBnoloq Bullped Aq peniesal sajuowl ay) eyidsap siu) Bulpuny sauo ey 8q o} Jeadde J1Bunos ysued 8yl ‘UsJpliyo  Je YBnolog euy Jo seale Jey)o Joj pasn Bulaq si pue BeJE [Ba0] 8y} Ul pejseAulel Bulaq joul

Joj seainose. pue Bullooyds Ut jusiiseAu; 'je dYJei} 'SjUsPISal U) 8SE8IIU| U Yojew o} eausssid soljod Jejeesb ‘sBejiin auy Ultim sedinles S| siepling eu) Aq pepiaoud Asuow 8y | "SSRIUBLUE J0 LUOHEONPS ‘SINOMIISEIUI Ul JUSW]SIAU

'PRJOU Sjuswwoe) Jo uoisuedxe ‘abe|liA au 1o} speod Jajes pue Bupied uo Buissnooy sioefold eq pinous eiey Jng sioeloid 18U} JO S|IRjep JO 8ins Jou We | ou ym eBeljiA auj punole Jing sesnoy Jo Jequinu abiej e BUIABY S| UCHBAIED "ON)|
’ ‘Buipjingau 0} pJemio) Aem ay |
"N 8L Moys pinoo nok jeu ensijeq | pue A1alljod au) je diysedljusidde (2aL308]8 B PRY | SLOM [EOLI0S(S O SLLIO) JALY0 PUE JB3 sJesuibua

{eauosle ‘sisquinid "siekepioud sepes ay) ul eBsilod IleH piojseq ey sdiyseonuaiddy “sqof sjeas o) qny & ojul pewn [ooyds 8y L ‘8loymas|a juads Ajfeoysueq siow

“PadweAs] eAjusd eunsie| 8y L “BUISNOY MaU 8L} JUNCSIE Ojul B} O} SRIoB) U juads Asuow aney soejd Injineaq siy} 8as o} 8A0| pjnom  aq Ued Aauow auy) pue esuadxe JSeA e si yed Bullpes je enues ebejuey ey} snid “Apeale)

'PRIOU SIUSWWIOY | "UMO} Jlews B Bupuooeq Mou s s Jeak | 1o} A1s|[|o0 UOHBAIED 1B PEXIOM PUE B8} LIoq Sem | ‘eBE([IA BUlUIW J[ewsS e Sem o SI UCJRA[RD 8UO SI 49Y) Jey) JoB} 6} 0} 8NQ "UCHED Ul 3JUSO SINsIa] MBU 8L} Uim ss.6e Juop | N

OS[e UJeauod B §1 INOIABYS] [RI00SHUE PUE WD)

‘Bupped yusipynsui s sey | AUNWLIOD

UepjIyd pejgesip Jo} Aunwiniod ey) Ul seRijioe} Se [|em e pepesu Ajejeiedsep S| S|00Uds 4 [[e Ui Uoisinoid NIS 8U) Ul PUB S|00YOS B} Ul Ljogq URIPHIYD PB|gBSIP JO) S82IN0ssl JUsinsU) ele a1ay ]|

‘uolieAled uj 8Aj| Apesie oum ejdoed eLy Joj S82N0sBl JuUSIDIINSU

‘PSjou sjuswWon “IE18P Yans Ul uo Juswioo Ued a1ignd sy} Jo Jequiew AJeuipio Ue BUIYIGWos JoU SISIUL  8Je 248U | 'Jou S| BINjoNSEluI S} *Ajpides uogeindod pue azis ui Buwolb si uoueAie) oN|
'sj0{d [euNng Jo} pesu ejeladsep e

1 aJey) se pspe)s sq Aguebin o) spasu Aisjswed aug| pdomuljoH ‘uolnjoAal [eLsipul 8y} uj Jeheld A B @7 WEIIIAA JOPUNOY B} UO paseq ‘2doo o} BulBBinas Apealle s1 31 usym sunjoruseAUl ebe||in ay) Buisn pue peidnooo aq

811U sbejuay v ed 181000s PUE YoBl) XWq & pue Yojid 8sn Binw Qg & Buipniou) seiBsiens pue ebejusy jo sjuawelibnal Buuemsue i YoIum Jing Buieq sawoy 0gE JaLjouR punose S| sy "aJey 1jing Buiaq s Jeum 4o S1o8)
@Jjued Joyisia pue abejay e ojul Jayuny sed as Buym Jo Jusiwdojaraq “JeUoos pajejnLUYS 8 pue dojersp wauy djey o} jusdinbe sy} ajeBw djay o) peeu Jusbin siow Ul S1 UoNeAleD "sjosfoid ainjonuyselul juebin aiow
Bunejnuuns pue uny e pasu UsIPIYD Y | "BulpUNy PeY 1,USBY UDIUM UCHSA[ED Ul [00yds Ajuo auj s1 1| "pade|da. Buijou useq sey atey} uo jusds KaLious oLy} 995 0) Jojeid PINOM | ¢SINIONIISELU) JO} PeeU JuEpodW] UE SE pequosap|
PaAoWal pue peulapuod sem juswdinbe Aed plo ay) aulS “punciBAed ey) uo juswdojersp SPesu [00LIS Kiewud pue Jueju yued Jouep o4 SiLp uea moy died AJunod Bulpes) uj s5uad sbeyjusy pasodoud eyy Joj esimeyi "ybnoy
“Butooeuise; spaeu Kjejesadsep J ‘epu pue yJed [BIa1joun Ue se Inq ssesn xied Aq 1snl jou mou Aep s} u1 Bugpueds Joj pesu Juebin alow yshw ‘enuss sinsie| SUOLI@AIBD) Ui JSOAUI J,UOP
“PaJOU SjUBLUWLIOD) AJaAe pasn siied ee Wel I Jo eale sseib ey L "pue| ey} Anq jounos ysued ey} jej ‘eBejiA ey ul pepeau ale seords Bupyred aJow Je4  UBYM BUO MBU B UO UBHjiW OF 0} 0Z pueds Aym uojpeD Ul aued BuNsie| B Apealle si .
‘(ess pied) senilioe)
Aununtoo ‘sjosfosd ueelb esoul ‘SJuUBPISEI MBU B} JO} SINPNISELUI Jopag ‘BuoBuN|
‘seBef|in Buipunowns uj usddey o) Ji pue $eSNoY SJ0W O] J|EY B ‘S0. SPosu abe||ia
"UlInd @Jam S8SNOY MaU el) Usym aue| sy
uo Buiuuerd Jood o) enp pejseBuos Jo ‘oujesy Aaeey o} enp Jood ele speol ey] ‘ebejn
Ajunwwos [eao] eyy Aq uess Buleq sjyeueq e(qibue) Aue Jnolym Buisnoy juedyubls pey
"PRIoU SjusIWo) "eBeljin euy u Buipling pue| wosy Asuow ey Buisn abe||iA suy soueyuS o) sioeloid pejsebBns S112UNoD [12UN0D YBNO.O] SUCLBAIRD  UoHIeAIED “UleBe Bulp|eB ‘plowy ‘UOIED 0} UoISIACId PeSESIoUI SPJEMO) SEId € S| atel) ‘ON
‘@Jnjonyjseu)
4no 0} ppe / s)epdn o} abe|lIA LUoUBAIED BUY) O Yoeq ‘BuIod 8q PINOYS }i GISyM O} JUBM
Kauow siyy awy noqe § “Apealje it uo jueds suolu pey sey sued Ajunod Bulipao *Apeaife
VN 18jueD aunsie| & sey uoje) ‘uopeAled Buidiey jou sue sjosfoid pesodoud sy * sesbesiql

"PEIOU SJUBWIWOYD

“Hed Jouep je punoibAe|d ey} Jo JUSWYSIQINRY  "Pesselppe Useq Jou eABY SIISEq aU) Usym Ainxny, uo jusds sq 03 Asuow 1o} s AL} Jou
1 SIU} jeu swees §i pue uipuny siinbal yoium speloid [ENULSSE BJe Bisl | "SeWR BJ2)SNE
ied 987 well[A 18 Yed 1o sy jo Bupepns sjeudoddy Ul Buial eJe em SuBd Ayunag Bullpes je ,Lono} eoju, B 8q pinom eJjusd ebejusy e ybnouyy

Auejaliad ey} Jo uoisuedxy -asodind Jo} 1o ale a8y} Selijioe)
Bupsixe ey - uojeD I JusludojeAsp axjues einsie meu pauueid U} 8)ou Of paABWSID W |
"SI} epiroud o3 paseyound aq pinoo LuoIym

2[qelieA puey Jo joid elqeins e S| aley) - A1aBins 4o se Yons sapuse [enussse Bulssaooe 0} aaued abea aup u) Bunyed peseeiou) 089 Aq ebe|iA|

8y} 0} pejesoje syeloid Buisnoy sy} o) onp ejel jeuswousyd e je Buipuedxs si uojendod

‘PRJOU SjuBlULOD :Bumoljo} ey seinbes UojeARD Jna jeA ‘usiuidojersp pue Bujuueld einjoniseIUI LWL PRIWO AjBURNOS S| UOLSAIED)]
18U00S Yonw eAL pue molb *Aeld 0} UsIPIYR 8y} BUIMO]IE AHUNWLICS BU} UJ URIPIIYC BU) JO SPEBU 3SISAIP BU) SHNS YOIYM JUSWLOJIAUS

Buljeinwgs pue uny e spasu jooyds 8y "sjusludojeasp maU Uy WoY SusWssIBE "pal1dna0)

901 UOHOSS BAISSSI0NS U0 JN0 Passiw sey ey} abellia ou) ul S|0049s oy aU Jo 3Uo U0 BUJ S1 [00UOS 8Y | ‘PEACLIA] PUB PAUWSPUOS PuE JIINg 84 o} sesnoy psuueld gog pUnoJe 106 (IS 8A,8Mm pue ‘Mou Jybu uoleAleD

semjuswdinbe Aed urew plo sy) eauis ‘punciBieid s,jooyog AIasInN pue JuBJU| Yed JOUBN Jo juswdojenaq “uonnjos [esnpul uf aimjonyselu percsdui Joj paasu ejesedsep e 9ABY 8N “sjosloid pasodoad ey Buipuny

8U} Jo Led Js1y 8y} JO JOpUNO} ‘997 WM Uo paseq exusd abejusy e pue ued XWe eB.e] ‘eoeds Ae|d-pinw Se & Buipnjoul ‘seibsiens  aue Jey; sjuswdojeAsp 8y} woyy spoedull Jo sjoeye ay) BuneBniu ‘pasu Jusbin ssow si ssy)

abejey pue Buiked oyj Jo sjuswaiinbal Buusmsue ‘snueo ebejusy pue Jo)isIA B OJul Joypn; spied 837 WA SU} Jo Juswdojensq  eleym juads ASUOW SINONISEIL Y} 838 0} Jajoud pinom | ijoelosd eunjoniseur yuepodui

‘sJeak Q0| Ise| pinom Alsjswed UE SE PsMBIA 3 SI} UBD moy Sed Anuned Bulipes je eueo ebejuay pesodosd sy Joy

8108 g1 SIU} pue yBnoloq ey ssoloe sjold Yse pue feung aljand Joj peeu sjessdsap  si asay) ‘Builels spesu Aiejowss BuBT poomullioH  esmay|T "ybnoloq ey uj Buluswaidwi paau jeyy spsfosd sunjonsselul JusBin mou ‘slow

'30BLNS deuLE) e spesu Apuebin §) ‘epl pue yied [eidwoun ue s ‘siesh yed £q3snfjou ‘mou Aep AieAe pesn sised sewelpm  Je) ele eley} pue ‘aJjued ainsie| UoHeAle) uo Asuow Aue puads Juop nok usym ||epsdss

¥e siied Jeo mojseno sseib su) uolippe Uf “pue| auy Ang j1ounoo ysued ey} 1 ‘eBe|lin sy o siuse Y} ul sededs Bupped siow Jed “|UNCd ‘3uo mau e Bulp|ing uo spunod uoiliiw o Jo oz Buipusds | Julod ou s) saY) ‘UolED

'PejOU SjueliWo]  Ysued uopeAleD Ulm UoRBUIPIG-00 Ul Asuow 1i0 Buisn Ogo) Ag Papun} ‘uolieAle] Ul spsfoud aunjonuiseuu) Bumolo) euy aes o} eMif PINOA Ul ejued aunsts| & Apesule s| eJey L ‘sioefoid pesodoud Jo 1s1| sy} Y seibesip Albuong |




‘Pejou sjuswog) sdoys slow paJjede.s speoy
‘Pajou sjusSWIWoD 1i"suonoesue. eBaj|l aJow Aunq, jim siy se paddols aq 1SNiN seuiepunoq Aluoyiny jo Buunonysey
‘ybnolog "e2e|d Ul aseU) 106 0} Jey1abo) pexiom OgS pue Ddo swp jnoqe s} avejd uj Apeaie speford jou aie esayy yBnoyly

Jjue aup ssosde s1djsoey IO Wl pejosljos s D J1BslenS
8Y "UOLIBAIED LM WOL JOU BRIY PBYSLBJ-UON 8l 'seljiuie; mel el Je Wim edoo 0} s10)00Q
Uit WwoJy pejosijod sideioey 1D 40 Ualliod pooyncqubien ood BuLWIMS/eUeD 8INsiaT] SMEN

euj slem (dWY) eoeidissiiely plowry euy puny jied “Hing Buteq e Jeyy sesnoy sy} [ Yim 5dod 0} SOYIS SME
) pasn sjdiedsy IO ey} ‘UoREOPIIRIS Jo "PejoU SUSWIWOD) ‘NOLYIATVO ¥O4 SNY1d

"45U00S Yonw ALY} pUe mosB ‘Aeid 0F uelplyo sy Buimolle ANUNWWOD Sy} Ul USIPIIYD BU] 4o spaau SSIBAIP U3 SHNS UDIYM JUSWILOIIAUS
Buyejnuins pue unj e speau [ooLos 8y L sjuaLidojeAsp MAU 8U) Loy SjUSWSsIBE

901 UOHISS 8A|SS830NS L0 IO PISSIW seY Jey ebe|lin au} Ul SI00UDS INoj By} 102U AU SU) 1 [00YDS BY 1 "PeAOLIS) pue pauwepuod
semjuswdinbe Aejd uiew pjo ey} esuls ‘punoibied Silooyos AlesinN pue jueju| yed Jouep o juswdoleaeq “UORN[oAS] {ewisnpui

ou} Jo ped is1y au) JO Jepunoy ‘88 WA UO peseq aJjuso ebejuey e pue ued Xwg obie| ‘eoeds Aejd-ninw o¢ & Bupnjoul ‘seibejens
ebejuay pue Buiked ey Jo sjuswelinbal Bupemsue ‘aued abejusy pue Joysia e ojul Jeupny yied 2377 WENIA aY) Jo jusudojaneg
‘sseah 001 158| pinom Aisjewia

.08 91 siy) pue yBnoloq auy ssotoe sjold Yse pue feLnd aijqnd Joj pesu sjeJsdsep e s| aieyy ‘Buiue)s spesu fiajowad aue poomulljoH
‘89BLNS JeWe) B spaau Auebin ) ‘apu pue yJed jeisyjoun ue s ‘siesn sied £q isnfjou 'mou Aep Aeas pasn s yued 997 WelIm

1e sped Jeo moano sseib sy} uonppe ] ‘pug ay) Ang llounoa ystied ayj i ‘eBejjin sy Jo ajuad Y} Ul seseds Bupped aiow le4 “llounod
‘PEIOU SUBWIWOD  ysued UOLBAIED Uim UORUIPIO-09 Uj Aeuow 19 Buisn Ogs Aq pepun; ‘UopsAeD u sjosford eanjongseyu) Sumolio) sy; aes o} sy PiNoMm |

‘Papsau Afeluyep si ey 1SI1ENIQ

*PSIOU SJUSLIWIOD 'PEOJ JB1}(09 JO BuuaPIM

"Jauoos yonw ey} pue moib ‘Aeid o) usipiiyo

8U} Buimolle AHUNLULIOD U} Ul USIPRYD BU} JO SPEBU SSIBAIP 8L} SHNS LOIUM JUSLULIDIIALS

Buneinuins pue uny e spasu jooyos

8y "sjuswdoanap meu sy} wiol) sjuswoeaibe

901 UONSS 8AISSa30NS L0 1o passiw sey ey} ebe||in ay) ul s|ooyds noj eu) 10 auo AjUo eUj S| [00UDS U] ‘PeACLIB) pUB peulwepuod

sem juswdinbe Aeid ulew pio ay) souls punoJBAeld s jooyog AissinN pue Jueju) yed Jouely Jo JuswdoleAa( "uoHNIoAB] [BLISNPU]

8u} Jo Hed jsJi au) Jo Jspunoy ‘957 WEIJIAR Lo peseq aajued ebejusy e pue ued Xg ebie|

‘aoeds Aejd-pinw O¢ € Buipnjou) ‘seibejess sbejuay pue Buikeld ayj Jo sjusweinbes Buuemsue ‘a5uas sbejuey

PUE JOJSIA B OJul JaLINy Yied 8o We 8U} Jo Jusludojenaq "sJeek oL 1SE| pInom Aisjewed 810 9|, i) pue YBNo.oq eu} SSoJoe sjold yse
Ppue [eunq o1iqnd Joj pesu sjeledsep & si eJey) ‘Bulels spesu Aisjewes SUBT pooMUI|[O "eoBlNS DBULE)} B Spasu Ausbin )i ‘epu pue yed
[eldYoun ue s)) ‘stesn ued £q jsnfjou ‘mou Aep Aieas pasn st yed 8o Wel[|IM Je yed Jed mojeno sselb ey} uohippe uj ‘pue; ayy

Ang (1punoo ysued sy 4t ‘ebelIA 4} JO a1USD B Ul SooRdS Buppred aiow se4 *|ounos ysued

‘Pejou sjuswweD) UOHSAED LM UoREUIPI0-00 Ul Asuow 113 Buisn D89 Aq pspury ‘uopiaAles u) sioefoid sinjonuseul Bumoljoy ay) eas 0} LL pinom |

18U008 Lonl sALIL puE moib *Aeid o) UaIp|Iyo eu} Buimole AYUNLILIOD BU) Uf UBIP|IYD 8L} JO SPaBU 8SIEAIP eU) SHNS Uolum jusiuoljAue

Bugeinugs pue uny e spesu joouos ey "syuswidojensp Mau au] Woy sjuswesIfe

90} Uolaes aAISSe0Ns U Ino pessiw sey jeu) eBe|liA sU} Ul S|00yas JNoj au) 40 8UO AJUO BUj S| [00UOS BL] ‘PeACWB] puB peuwepuod

sem juswidinbe Aejd ujew pio ey) souls ‘punciBAeld s jooyos KiesIn pue Juep) Yied Jougly jo Juswidojersq ‘uonnjoAs) [esnpul

oy} Jo ed sl oY) JO Jepuno) ‘e8] WEAA U peseq enues abejusy e pue yed xwg abie} ‘eoeds Aeid-pinw S¢ e buipnjoul ‘saifejens

ebejuay pue Buikeld ey jo sjuswedinbes Bupemsue ‘ajuad abejusy pue JoySIA B ojul Jsylng yed 887 WEIIIA o Jo juaudojersq

‘sdeef 0oL 1sef pinom Ksjewes

©408 9| silj) pue ybnoloqg ey ssooe sjojd yse pue [eunq aijqnd 1o} peeu sjeledsep e s| eiay; ‘Bunle)s spesu Aisjewed sue poomuljjoH

'82BLNS dBULE) © spesu Auebin 3| ‘epl pue ied [eoloun Uk s ]| ‘siasn sed Aq jsnf 1ou ‘mou Aep KieAe pasn s yed 897 WM

1e>ised Jea molsao sselb ay) uonippe | “pus| sy Anq jIoUnco usued ey 3 ‘abel|in sy Jo 2jus2 sy) Ul saoeds Bupued siow Je IoUNCY

‘PejOU SjUBWIWOD  Uslied UOUBAIRD LM LONRUINIO=09 Ut ABuow 40 Buisn 089 £q pepuny ‘uopea) u) sjoeloid einjonsseLul BUMO|io} ay) 888 0} eyI| pjnom |
“AlleonseIp way} poddns pinom juswidinbs Aejd ‘speeu AJaLEA JO SJUSPN}S AUBW ©ABL PUE [00Yas Jusiisoxe Ue aJe ey

‘poloU SjusWIWOD “uslp|iyd ey Joj Juawdinbe Aeid mau ainbes pue pequosans Jao ase Aely Jooyos Auesinu pue sjueyul yJed Jouew Joj peJinbas Bujpund
*J8UQOS YoNW 8AL) PUE ‘MoJb

*Reld o3 way) molfe 0} UBIPIIYD SUJ JO SPaBU BSISAIP S} SHNS LDIUM JUBLILIOIIAUS Bunenuys pue uny e spesu jooyos ey “sjuswidojersp

MaUl el woy sjuawesiBe 90| UONIBS BAISSEOINS BL} U0 JNO PesSIW SBY Jeu) 8BBJJIA 8U) Ul 7 ol Jo 8U0 Ajuo sy} s1 jooyas By ‘parowe)

PuE pstiuspuod sem eele Aeid pjo el eauls ‘puncibAeld sjooyds Aiesinu pue uejul yied Jouep Jo sjusudojeAs UolINIOAL [eLISNpUI e

afe||i ey) jo do) sy Je sdoys 8Jow pesu s
¢ ojduwexe swud e Buleq punod)|

A10 wyoN ~seguoyiny |80 Ul 341y oq o} Wees pinom Asuow a1jand Jo Buipuads ageun

"SNVId JNOA JHL HLIM FFUOVSIA ATTVLOL | 10d uspjog)
84} Jo ey S)| Pey UOLIeAeD) SWI) JNOQE S, ASUOL YoNW OS Pejsiem aAeY [|& noA Buj|pes)

pue Aunog wieyBunioN *AD WeyBuRoN Usemieg "Buljou 196 pue SUSZRID PUBH PUOISS

SB passe|(d 812 UOUBAIRD Ui M Ja4 Jje eiue) UMO | plouly U0 UOLIBA[ED 0] pejedo)ie

Aeuowr a3sn Apesuje aney DES ‘PIiNG 0} BI0W | PUE }ING LSS SABY e} Sesnoy Mau
o4} lie wod NOLYIATYD 0} pejead]ie 8q pinoys Jeys Asuow ay) Bujpuads DEg) st AUm |

“pe1dnaoo|
PUe }1ing 8q 0} sesnoy pauueld og PUNOCIE 106 IS 9A,aM pue ‘Mou JyBL UoUsARD
up aunjonysesul peacsdwl Joy pesu sjesedsap e aney e “sjosloud pasodoud euy Bujpuny

ale jeys syusludojoasp oy} WoJ sjoedul Jo sioaye o) Bunebpiw ‘pasu Jusbin siow s) sey),

aiaym juads Asuow anjoniseLul ay) 88s 0} Jeyo.d pinom | Ljaslosd eanjonsseyul Juepodw|
Ue SB PameIA &q SN} Ued moy ed Anuno) Bulpes) e aljuso ebejuay pasodoid sy Joy
asimenI "ybnosog eup us Bupusweidwi pesu jey sisfoud simjoniselul juabin mou ‘aloul
Jej 818 818U} PUB 'a1jU3D BINS|9| UOHEARD Uo Asuow Aue puads Juop Nok usum Ajleedse
‘auo mau e Bulp|ing uo spunod uol|w g Jo gz Bulpuads urjuiod ou 1 818y} 'uojpe)

Ut su30 aunsie] e Apealje si aiay ) "spoafoid pesodoud 4o 1sif ey} yym 2eubesIp Albuons |
U0 }1 98N 0} Peau em Jey) sBuly IS S.8i8y) UsyMm!

Alleroadse syosfoid esey) jo jo Aue puny o} pasn Bujeq Asuow uopeAleD i Addey jou wi,)

'pa1dnago pue Jjing aq o} sesnoy pauueld 0og punoJe 106 [Igs oao.L

puUE ‘Mou JyBU UOPBAJED Ul 2njonusi 4

Ppanoudwl Jo} pesu sjesedsep & aaey ap “sjosfoid pesodoud sy Bupun; sJe jel
sjusLudojesp ey} Wwoy sjoedwi jo sjoele ey Bunebiiw ‘pasu JusBIN elow sI alel) 8Jd a4
jueds Asuow sinonsseUl oY) 89s 0} Jajaid piny
| &yosloid aunonuyselu Juepod

UE SB Pamain 8q S|} Lied moy Sped Anunod Bujipes je asuseo ebejuey pesodosd sy v

esmai] ‘ybnoloq sy} ul Bupuewadwi pesu jey syefoid sinjonysesul jusbin mou ‘ofd)
1B} 918 9JSLY) PUB '81JUSD BINSIB| UOHBAIED)

o Asuow Aue puads },uop NoA ueum Ajjeioadsa‘auo mau e Bulpjing uo spunod uoijiw

0€ Jo oz Buipuads u| juiod ou s| aay] ‘ucie)

Ul aued aunsiel e Apealle si aiey L ‘spefoid pesodoud jo 1811 84} yum eaubesip ABuolg |

paidnaso

PUE }jing &g 0} sesnoy peuueld 00E PuncJe 106 [|is 8A,8M PUE ‘MoU JUBLI UousAlRD)

Ul esnjongselul peacsduw) Jo} pssu ejeledsep e aaey apA ‘siosloid pasodoid sl Buipuny
eJe jey} sjuswidojeAsp e} wiol spoedull o spoaye ey BuneBriw ‘pesu Juabin eiow LIEIET
dJsymjuads Keuour eanjonyseyus ay) ses o) Jsjeud pinom | jasfoid ©JnjonJiselul Juepoduw)
Ue SB pemeln 8q si UBd Moy “jed Ajuna) Bupes) je enued ebejley pesodoud ey) Joj|
esimeyr "ybnoiog ey} u) Bunuswe|dwi pesu jey) sjosfoid injanujseul Juebin mou 'elow
e} ae @18y} pue ‘a.jued aInsie) UouaAle) uo Asuow Aue pueds juop nok usym Ajeedse
‘auo maul e Bujp|ing Lo spunod uoliw g 10 oz Buipueds ut Juiod ou S| 218y} ‘uoje)

uj exued einste| e Apeafe si eley L "spefod pasodod J0 181 o Y oalbesip Ajbuoys |

BOJE [e00] BY) Ul Jueds Jejieq aJe spuN 8y Jejusd ains|s] B SBY UOJIED ON

‘pejdnaoo pue Jjing eq 0} sesnoy peuueid oo punole|
BABY [IIiS oM U ‘Mou JyBu UolsAED Ul SiueweAadull SINJONISELU) Joj pasu sjeledsep el

10 ued §sul 8y) JO JOPUNO} ‘967 WRIIAA UO Peseq axusd abejusy pue ued xng ob.1e} ‘soeds Aejd-pinw o¢ & Buipnjoul 'seibajens abejusy saey e ‘siosloid pasodosd sy} Buipuny e jey s)uswudojeasp su woj spedwi pue sjoeye

pus Bulfeld ey 1o sjuewslinbes Buusmsue ‘eues ebejey PUB JOJISIA B 0jul YJed @8] WM 8U) Jo Jusludojeraq] 'sieek 0Q 1 1SB| plnom

joid esoe 9|, sy} pue YBNoI0q el ss0.08 Sjojd Yse pue feung aijgnd Joj pesu ejeJadsep & si sJau ‘Builie)s spesu Kis)eiued sue POOMUIOH

"8deNs JeuLe} B spesu ARuebin 3 ‘spu pue jyied |eldyjoun ue §| pue sasn yed Aa 1snljou ‘mou AepKiens pesn sied 9o weiljaA 12 sued

Jea mojpiano ssesb ey uonippe uj “pue| au Ang [1ounod ysied eu 3 ‘eBeliiA 8y} Jo susD By Uy ssoeds Bupped ssow se4 “ounos ysued

‘POJOU SO UOHeAIBD Lijim UoHEUIPJO-09 U1 AeLiow Ti0 Buish DES ey A pepunos UCUSAIED Ul spslosd ainjanseul Bumoiio) ey ees o eXI) pinom |
“Buiylou yoeq wiy Bumib pue

‘PRJOU sjUBlLOY - sn Wy pue| no Bubje) a1,nok ‘siemes 10 syied ou Lym sesnoy meu Buipjing pue Buipjing deay NOA "UOHRA[ED U| okJ} XUid & pue Lopd ©¢

el BuneBniw ‘pesu Jusbin aiow | ey} seym jueds Buleq Asuow SIY} 988 Jsljjed pjnom

1 ¢)99f0ud eanjonnseuul Juepodw) Ue paispisucd i si mo\ “yed Anunod Buipss je enusd
abejusy pesodoud sy} Jo4 ‘UopeARD 8] SeNUSD Jajo Lo Juads Buleq Asuow ou s| ssayy|
usum jjejoadse “suo meu & o spunod Jo suofjjiw Bulpusds uj3uiod ou S| eiay) ‘Uoje?)

ul eued einsie] & Apealje si eJey ) "sjoeloid pesodoid Jo 11 sy UM esibesID AiBuoys |
“yoeq )1 Bupioow desy noA puy ‘sieek

Joj mou uo BujoB useq s LLWAB uouBAles Jo adwensl su) s 2JeUM "eaibesip KiBuoys oN|




“unoY ysued [Bo] ey} ‘Jo Aijiqisuodses eyy pue ‘Aq
pauluslep 8 pnom sidieoey IO Jo Uoilod pooylnoqybieN
8y} jo ainjipuedxe ey} ybnolog eu) jo eale paysued
€ uim pajenyss s1joefoid pesodoud sy jey) usai 11 Jo
uoiod pooynoqybien u) o} ‘e[eds s}l USAIB ‘pajins Japeq
S1 2D 0} #suodsal uj pejsabbns joefo.d ey ‘pejou sjuSWIWIOD ‘Juewdinbe Aejd meu spesu yed Aeid Asjque

‘UolsA[eD ul Buisnoy jo uoisuedxs

U} Woy pejessuab Aoalip Asuow iD ay} Buish uopenles jo aidosd sy peusq pinom sjesodoud esey | “|leuyony o} Ajjenjusae pue

sue efepbuo o} Alleniul “yoes BulioAo/Buiiiem e oju) Kemjiel plo sy Buipaauos pue “yed Anunoo e o pJek Bujpeo) yid plo ay) Buidojeasp

0} UAIB 89 Osfe PIned UONEISPISUOD PO SS808 BU} J0 JUBLISACIdWI PUE LOBSIULISPOL sauinbal ainsie] UoueA|e ‘Apuepodul ol

"a0.6e AJIE10} | UOIUM LM SIUSWIWOO DD 0)

Jajei eseald "AJunwwIos Buipuedxe U Uy)M SjUspISa) UopaAeD Jo speau sy Jyausq aNY ybnoloq ey Joy pesu oibejens e jesw sjesodoud

"PRIOU SjUsIWOD UL "sjuspisal Uouan(e) Jusueq pue dn paxom Lsaq aAY Jeu) sjosfoud 11O vIBelels jeseaes pasodoud eAey flounos) ysued uouaale)

5jusd ainsie]
Plowy 0} 06 0} eABY | BujwWMS 0B Op | UBYM JuSWOW L) 1y '100d W GZ © PBY M J 810U S]UEI S.NSIS| UOUSAIED 0 06 pinom | ejenbape
'POJOU SJUBWIUICD  JOU S| BABY OP 8M JBU} BUO ey “Jood Buluwms Jeb6Big e UlM 0P pnood UoLBA|ED "SaSNOY 2Joul 40 pes)sul yJed Jeo 810U Yim op Pinco ep

"18U00S Yonu 9AUY) pue mob ‘Aeid o} uaipiyo sy} Bumole Ajunwwos ey ul

UBIPIIY0 2} J0 SPaBLl 8sISAIP SU) SHNS YdIym JusLIUOIIAUS BUpEINWAS puE uny B spesu [ooyds sy | ‘sjuswdojersp mau 84} woy suswealbe
901 U033 8AISS@0NS U Ino pessiw sey jeu) ebellin auj ul $100yas noj 40 8UO AjUO 8L SI [00UIS 8U) PEACLUAI PUE PAULISPLIOD

sem juswdinbs Aejd uiew pjo sy} eauis ‘punoiBAeld s jooyos AJsInN pue Jueju| yied Jouep jo jusudojeasq yed Xg oble| e ‘soeds

"sebe(ln su) Joj JuspNSU) ON

"$S9028 0) AjIjuN 8.8 SJUSPISal UOLBAIED) Jey) SBSJE JaUI0 Ul UBy) Jouies

ainjon.selul abejliA jeoof U1 sjuswenoiduwl saeael ‘WBU Aq PINoys UouaAieD ‘Buipuny 0
40 JUNOWE [BUEISANS B PSINQLIU0D 3J0jeJey) Pue ‘Bulsnoy Mmau Jo Jequinu sjeuoiodoidsip)
B PjepouiLLodde sey UopeAleD Jey) Ueis) “Bujpuny 10 Jo suue) sy yim Aidwod Agows
Jou saop ayjued sbejuaH pesodosd au Jey) eAsijeq | Jsusq o} S|qRUN 8q [|IM 0S Lodsues)
olfand Joauip Aq sjoelosd esey) sseaoe 0} sjgeun ale uopeAe) woy ajdoad eate g

U ejdoad o Ayolews sy Jyeusq Juop Asu se siosloid pesodoud sy yim se.besip AjBuogs |
- asje Buiylewos

4o exjous & pey oAy oum sidoed 10} eJ0W peBu puy * S10W PEBU aM JNq BJED AIoWall BUIOS
106 0} BuiLE)s @12 @A * LiRIq InoA Joj BuiBuls Jo BRuSWSP Y aidoad Joj 8jed Aowsw,

€ 0} {8ABJ} 0] ©ABY LUPINoYs UoBAeD 4o 8ldoed 'p|o aui pue BUNoA au) Jo} e10W pesu oy

'P8idnooo pue 3jinq 94 o) sesnoy pauueld Og PUNCJE ||IS 8Je 8ley) pue
MoU JYBU UoNBAES U] aInjorujselul paaoidw) Joj pasu sjeiadsap & sl asey spelosd
Buipuny aJe Jeu s lojansp ay) woy dwi| Jo syoaye ey} Bunebpiw ‘pesu jusbin i
B S alaU) asaym jueds Aeuow sinjonysenul sy oes o} Jejesd pinom [ ¢1osloid sinjorujs
juepodwl Ue se pamalA 8q siy} Ued moH led Ajunos Buipab je alued ebejusy

Aeid ninw D¢ e Buipnjou; ‘sjuso sBejUBY PUE JOYSIA B Ol Joyuny yizd 887 WAL au} Jo Juswdojeneq ‘sseak Oo| se| pInom A

198 9|, SIu) pue YBnoioq 8L ssoioe sjold yse pue felng aijqnd Jo} pasu sjeledsep e si ausy | Butels speeu Kisjewiad sue poomulijoH

"82BLINS JBULR) € speeu Ajuabin el siy) pue epu pue sied [eiowoun Ue sk jng siash yed Kqsnljou Aep Aiene pasn siJed ee

‘PRIOU SIUBLILLOD WENNA 18 Yied Jed MoLeA0 sseJB 8y 1. "puel su Anq Jiounco ysuied ey 41 ‘eBe(iA oU) Jo a:jusd ey Ul seoeds Bupiied asow aes o} ey pjnom |

‘looyas sed Jouep je juswidinbe

Aeld ‘sededs eunq Jo) pesu ejesadsap e st siey) B pejejduwiod eq o} K1ejeWwed sle| POOMUI|IOH “UOHBA[ED JO B1USS ey ul Bunped

‘PSJOU SjusWWoD Wads aq 0} Aeuocw oy Jejeid pinom | esyAr
umop usye) sem

diys ejeuid sy} mou seluely Buiguipd ou sey [ooyas Hed JoUB UsA® ‘uopealed uo Aeuow siow pusds o} pasu em * Bujuaddey s) Buisnoy

‘POjOU sjusWWOD 20w ' ood |[ews & sey AJuo Jey} 8ued ansie| e Bunped ou ‘Mou 16U UoUeAED ul ainpniseul perosdw) Joy pasu ejesadsep e aABY apn

"MOU JuswiseAu; saunbax iy} 'slidnd Jleys jo aouspiadxe ey} saAcIdUl awy Aed pue jooyos

Jejndod e sulews. sued Jouely ‘Bujoejdes senbau siy ‘PauWepLIod sem ease Aeid s3ed Jouepy Jus)seAUl Jeuuny elinba s Jooyos 8y

'$J6sN JO Jaquinu

8L} J0 SpuetLBp 8Uj 88l 0} yBnoue Jou s jussesd ARUBLIND Jequinu oY) se sdulel XWa/BuipJeoqeleys [RUORIPPE wouy yeueq 0sje pjnom

sued ey ‘peysiuy Ajfeucissejoid eq o) speeu Bupyed leuonippe ey ‘eouepusie sied jeseust pue |leH oBE|IA By} uj SJUSAS 'SIUSAS [[EqI00)

0} 9np pusxeam ey Je Asnq si yued ey | "ee.e Bupired [2UCRIPPE SU) BUOELLLIE) 'SIL) OF LORIPPE U| "SBAIBSWY} &anu) Ajsnouas pue jle}

0} 8138 8sNe UEJ JI PUE YBNOIY} UNJ S100. 88J) U} SE BuIdENNSaI SB YINS 1ND [[GI00} JOOPU] PUE SUNOD) SIUUS | ey} o} sejepdn ‘s|dwexs

JoJ "uojuape sauinbas )i pue UclRAED J0) GNY & BL009Y Pey BSJE SIYL WiBd 957 Wl 0} Uoisuedxs 8y spnjoul spafoid [puonpPpY

‘Jeu} op o} eqe eq Aljenjoe o} ‘UcHsA[RD eq o} eoeld Bunses [eul JISL JO} USIM OLM esoLy MoJ|E 0} pesn pue pauedo aq o) spasu Alslews))

8y ‘senuiued suom yold O¢ ey isiiym (ani do ) siejiepn sIeUI ey Jogdiied Jeo e se pesn buieq Ajueiodws) pue sjew; esioy Joy yed

10 peyLio]b & 531 mou yBIY “Alsjewie) sue] poomullioH Jo esn pue juewdojeAsp sy} :apnjoul pinous sjosfold yang “salf o) soeid sAlsUsdXe

‘PejOU sjusWWIOD  Ue s ) YBnoyy uane Ajo.6 joo| aBEiiA SY) sexew SIYL ‘PeuSIuL JOASU Jna peye)s ussq SABY JBY) UOHOAIRD UM S)aaloud fesones sk sioy)
) , . ’ - ‘BOJe 8U) Ul seuoz sjelidoidde

obe Joyeq esem auay) 4l Yeem e shep g 8jqe|ieA. epew pue penosdwi 2q pInoo siy Aepsiny ) & uo sey sposfosd YnoA uns Aay| ‘pejeacus

‘pajou sjusWWoy Buteq wol jyausq pinom sued ainsie| ey 1 "sdoys ||EWS ey Jo} epes pepeaU Yonw u) Buuq pinom sdoys sy Jesu sease Bupyed meN

f id auy Joj asimenr "ybnoloq euy us Gupusweldui pasu jey) sjoafoud ainjonse

JusBin mou alow Jey aJe sl PUB S4USD SINSIS] UOMAAIED UG Asuow Aue pueds
089 usym Ajjeioadse ‘auo mau & uo uoljiw 0g-0Z3F Bulpueds uj juiod ou s| s1ay; 'uo)|
ul a.uso aunsie] e Apeelle si eJsy L “sjosfoid pesodoid Jo Isi| ey yum saibesip AjBuo,

“BINIONASBAYUI POACIGW] JO

ejeiedsep u) Apealje pue UOUBAIED 0} pauueld SSSNOY OE JSUIOUE BABY 9 ‘sjosloud

pasodoud ey 6ujpuny ale jey sjuswidojeasp sy Wwoy sjPaYs 8y} Bunebpiw ‘pesu Juabin

8JoW s| 8JBY} 8JoyYM Jueds Aeuow ey} 8es 0} Jojeud PINOM | ¢, simanseLul JuBLodw|

S pemalA eq ied Bulipes) Je enued abiejuey & UBd MOH "JBYJOUR UO SUOK|IW puads|

Aum'anued ainste| poob e sey Apesule uojeD " siesodesd sy yim saibesip AiBuons

"aujued ebeplsy e paau j,useop sed Bullpse) pue ‘aijued
ainsie] jealb e sey Apeaije uoyue) ‘syosfoud pesodoud Jo 1s)) sy Uym eaibesip Aoiejdwoo |

"2INjonASBLU S}t usybuess o} uopeAleD UM Juads eq pinoys Keuot Peejsu) ¢Mo] os si
JusuAseAUl Ul UINel 84} Usym Asuow pusds Aym usy) ‘seiols Jo Buiso ey o) anp Bufnpel
St I[eRoo} 4] "eee ey Bulres) sessauisng o} anp BuIkp sijeens Ybiy au se o) pesn Aoy}
aJsym Jesu aseymAue Bulwoped Luase Asy) Ing ‘si aoeld Jexiew plo ay; aseum sBuipjing
Meu ‘eved jexiew Jo eBuBYD B LM ‘sieak Jusdsl Ul Juew)seau) ebief e pey Sey pjowy|
'9910A S Uoiduseyd pue ebejjia su Joj Yonuwt os op {1DUNOD Used AU Usum Ajjeiadse Wby
100d & ul ysied ey} sAejdsip 31 ‘Buiseeusul Ajlenunuod si jng Buisq $9SNOY JO Jequinu iy
usum pue ebiel|ia ey Jo meia BunsnBsip e sanlb 1) “ede} Buiddeim pue Jsuj Ul € Ul palenco|
SeM JoUI0 8U) ‘ja]io} Buiiiom suo sem s1sL)) ‘pusNesm By Je aieu} plIYS Aw Bure) Jeuy
“BupsnBsip eue a;3uD iNsie sy} UM seale BuIBUEYD Y | ‘eURD SINSIeT UOLBAIRD

Uo juads eq pinoys Aeuow sy peejsu| ‘paulejulew [jom Apeaife sijey) eusd ebie|

B sl Wnio UolIeD "8Jjua) ainsie W0 uojues o} sjuswencsdwi yum eaibesip ABuoss |
‘d09 Jo el 0} Jeyuny Suiyihue Buippe anjeA Aue ses JouUBD | ‘sjusiudojeAsp

sypny Aue aiinbas jou ssop ‘adeds slisejuB) B IS|ium Yed Aiunog Bulpes Buinuyj
Apesile ese foy) aloym sesie 8soy) UO S| SO0} ey) ulebe 18A "sueld sD99 ynm salbesip |

"LUOMBAIED UBY),
idinbe Jeneq Yonw e seale JOUIQ “Balk su) eAoidWl 0} SPUN) PAPSSU YONUI U S| UCLBAIRD




9BE|IIA 8U} Ul BINJONUISBUUI SINSIS| SI0W PUB SjUSD SINSIS] UOHBAIED 0} JUSWSACIdW|

‘PAJOU Sjuswio?) sp|ing mau Aq pesneo uoyieindod Buisealou; ayy poddns o) UoUsAleD Ul 84juso Yiesy Jebie) v

HEd 897 WM 0) UORIPPE INjesn AJoA & oq pINom ANSS Ulim Ua1p|iya poddns o) sxyted ey Joj juswdinbs Aeid pedepe

SLOS "UBIP|IUD Jo Jequinu BuisERIOU 8Y) J0} PBPEBU S92N0SA) JOOPINO auy Jog Hoddns Buipuny spesu Jenoed ur 100428 SjuBj) 8y) - WaLy

uo Bujpusds Asuow pasu sjooyds [800] BY | 'JUSPINOE Ue sl aley) 810589 do-0 8y} Jesu yed o) aseymetuos Bs - 19y SABY oM SalIUBWE

M8} 8l 0} 559008 pesu ejdoed pue Bujaoidwi spasu elenbs spUYIAA IS ‘abejjiA au ulued o} ©aB|d B pull JeABU UBD aM - SP|INg Meu 8y}

40 8UO UL 8A|| | "eJ8i] piing 0} uoissiuuied usAB eem Aoy) Usum uowwIsIed pue eBpubueT ‘Aem|jog Wwoy uee) Keuow 8y Jo swos K|ieloedse

- Mou Asuow esn pue JuBnoy) e1oj BARY 0} BSUBS BIOLU BXEW PNCM }) “HOSH U} WMO) B 8licosq JIm pue abe|iiA e eq Jabuoj ou [iiM 3 gL IXeu

*PoIOU SHUBLLIIOD ouy ul AjleBny s|u) esee.OUI 0] J8s Bl |IDUN0D AJUNOD BU) SWIASS JI pue sIBak 0Ol Ise| 8ui ul sp0) Aq uonendod s)i pesesiou sey uoPSARD
"MaIASY IO viBBleAIS L Jou pue (YD) uonesiueBiosy

JUBLILIBAOE) [007 0) elow sjefRl 0} Jeadde pinom sjusiwo) OoN

Jeaf Bumoyjoy ey} uo Buiddop ) uewy Jeuies ybiy 1eBpng ybnoioq

L) dee) 0} Jsnf Aeuow BuRsEM JNOJE (€ S, B O} SWees Jou 10 eunjonyselut jst Aw jo doy eq pnom speo Inq pejelel jou eghew uieby
*$61IS PliNg MaU Juadel 8U) JO ||B WO} SBIUCW 9O B4} AQ ABMAUR Papun) aq

PINOUS 421y - suoRipuoa Buln| aAoidwl 0} suollippe [nYBnoY) sWos Wyw eq o} pesn §) se ebe|in Bulgsng € eq ulebe souo pjnod UoleAIED
"PeUWapUOD Ueeq Ajsnoinsid ey Yolym Bae J0opINo oy} eleAcuss of ASUOW JO pesu sjeledsap Ul sI [00UdS Yed Jouepy

"997 WEIIIIM -1saJejul [BOLOISI - aljued abejisy e ppe pue yed 997 wel|jip dojeAep o} Butpuny Jeyund

"yBnoJoq el ss0I08 Joj PaaU Sjesadsep Ul a1k oM YaIym sjojd SWIOS BIqE[IEAE eyew o} Bunels seJinbas Ausjewsd sue poomuljjoH

'$80BdS JOULN) 8jqeUS 0} ded 897

WA O} JusdEfpe puey ey Joj 8depNs deuLE} B Ujm Buole seoeds Bupied Jed o(qeUS 0} - 18NS LB UO 8snoY 10l[eJap 8L} Jo eseydind
112UNOY ysued UOHBARD

uocpeAleD

S8RINOYIP JuBLIND 8Y) 8jeiAs|le o} seoeds Bupped siow sjeeld

108losd Bupped

Jlouno)

‘PRIOU SjUBWWOD - s|ied UoRAIED UM UOREUIPIo-00 ut Keuow i3 Buisn 989 Aq papuny uopeAled ul spefold enjonsselu; BUMo|(o} Uy 885 0} o] pjnom |
*pajou sjusIWoD 11ounoD ysiied uousales Aq peliugns soeloid eag

‘pejouU sjueuuo)

"48U00S Yonw el pue moub ‘Aejd 0} usip|iyo sy} BuImo]ie AUNUWWIOD e} Ul USIP|IYD BU} JO SPEBU BSIBAIP

U} SHNS U9IUM JusLuuoliAuS Buneinuuys pUE Unj e spasu [00yDs 8y "SIUSWAO|oASp MeU BU} U0 SIUSWISEIBE g0j UOHDSS BAISSS0ONS U0

no passiW sey jeu sBelliA au) Ut S|00yDS JNoj 8UY Jo 3UO AJUO BU} 1 [004DS Bl L "PEAOLIS) PUB PBLLIBPLIOS Sem Jusiudinbe Keyd uiew pjo sy}

souls ‘punosBAeid s jeoyog AissinN pue jueu) sed Jouel jo Juswidojensd “UORNIOAR] [eLISNPUI B Jo Hed jsil 8y} JO JSpUNO) ‘98 WellIM

Uo paseq a.jueod ebejuay e pue yed XNg obie ‘soeds Aeid-pinw og e Buipnjul ‘seibojels ebejusy pue buikeld su; jo sjusweanbay

Buuismsue *a1jusd abejuay pue JopsIA 8 o) Jeyuny yed a3 WENIAA 24} Jo Juewdolensq 'siesh 00| 1Se] pinom Kisjowsd eioe g siy}

pue ybnoloq eLy sso.oe sjojd yse pue |eunq oljgnd Joj paau sjeiedsep & s1 aJey ‘Buiieys spesu Aejewss sue poomulfjop

"80BHINS JBWLE) B $pseu Ajuebin ) ‘apu pue yied [eploun ue s ‘siesn sied £q 1snf jou ‘mou Aep fene pesn siyed aa Welm

¥e jjied Jed mojenc sseid sy} uonippe u| “pugl oy} Anq [1ouncd ysuied el 4t ‘aBejIA BY) 10 81UBd Bl ut seoeds Bupiied esow Je4 “|ounco

‘POIOU SjusWOD  Ystied LopBAfED Ly UOKBUIPIO-00 U Asuow 19 Buish D@9 Aq papuny ‘uopaAeD Ui spelold ainjonuseyul Bumol|o) au) aas o) aI| pjnom |

slyblens auip u) sle sBup|ing Jeyo Auew os usym AsLIoW SjIdUNOd 40 s)sem pes

Buipeo je Buiping ebejuey & Aum

*98|@ bujIAUE pjing 0} pesu ou

- 9j0 suep.eb {eLiowew ey} - sJey) | Jeum 8es o} 0B Apeeufe ejdoad jo Aue|d ‘pioye },ueo|
M 0L pue AInNXnj € S{U} JSPISUCD PINOM | "SIOYSIA 10 JIBIE PINOM SJel) B1jUSD sbejIey
B MOy 88s JUED | jBOp] sllodiem & jou aue sebieud Bupyied meu UBNOUHE - UBYO JISIA oM
Yolm eaeds Ajoao] B st} ) Uo Jueds Aeuow Jo Jo] e pey Apesife sey sied Aguno? Bujjpes

‘uonenyis siyy djey o} pepesu si ALOW InjonJSeu

ON ‘UIeBe |ie}joo) eJow joBIiE puE seuo Ajdwie euy dn exe} pinom siejE}e] BJOW JBL|

os 'sdoys 10} sejed ey} Bunemo| Aq peacsdiut seupn) eq pinod siy| “ssaddoys o} uonoeIye

Ue Apeaile S1 yoiym 8)is Jexew pjo ey} Lo eale perciduwl UB SBY eusd UMO | plowy|
“ued euj ul peynuep! sjefoid ey} uym saube Jou op

mou Buiyiiue ebue
Aum os 1ayjaBio) Bujulof 4o Jenaq ou g [m sjounoa el ejeledes jday eq pinoys sy

181} 24} Jo do) eq pINoM 1 Inq siL o AUE o} pejejel
agfews Bujop peeu yeu; sBuiy) is1| s,ApogAue Jo doj eq pInoys pue si yaiym Buioepnses sp
aJinba |fe seaJe YBnolog 4o sBAIB JaLO PUB PiOWIY PUB LOUSAIED JO B AljBS) Usum,
0} enp uohueNe Yanw jou eJey) eese Buipes Bulip e s plowy os Buisols aJe sosseul
Auew os se pjowy o} ainponuseyul pue Angnd esesioul o) Bulejes BuiyiAue ui eseeldl
Aue eAey jou 0} Aouous Jo ejsem abny & se 3 ees Jsnl | SoUSIOYIP B SPew LUSABY JBY)
syinsay yw ebueyo sbuil) Jo speoj pey sey plouly ulebe Jailing ¥oBq 2y} Uo jnd UousARD
urebe 384 pequosep sesle ey uo Buluueld a1e nok Jeym 40 sesp! ey} LM oo.be Juop § ON

"s|dwexe Jo} UopeAIED J0 8suadxs ey) e Apeaile pajseul usaq sey AsUow yonu

8JaUm - ied Aunod Bullpes) pue aiusd UMO L plousy Joj Buipuny Jeuuny o} pesodda osjy|
"UOMSAIED) ) BqelieA. 8sou) 0|

$590X8 Ul Je} Apeaule ase saljllioe} ey L esjueD einsie uojed au) o) pesoddo AjBuos w,|
‘sabeqiia BulAEno euy Ul senssi

Buppied BUIAOS®) Ul ISISSE PINOM SIU L 09Y 8U} Lo 8pIx $)Jed B 4O JNCAR) U) Yohl AJeA w|
JUBWISIAUI BJ0W Selinbel UOMBAIRD S ON

‘paldnado pue jjing eq|

0} sesnoy peuueld goE puUnose 0B IS AeM pue ‘mou bl UoLIsAED)!

Ul aJnjongseyul parosdwl Joj paeu ejeredsep e aney apn “syoelold pesodoid sy Buipuny
oJe Jey) sjuswdolaasp auj Woy sjoedust Jo sjoaye sy Bunebiu ‘pasu Juabin siow s aey)
eleym Jueds Aeuow snpnselu) ey} ess o} sajaid pinom | ¢1oslold eimonnsesul yuepoduy
Ue se pamalA aq siy) ued moy ‘sed Aiunod Bullpe je aiuso sbejusy pesodoid ay) Joy|
asimeNIT “ubnouog sy} ut Bunuswe|dwi pesu jey) sjasfold sunjanuselu) usbin mou ‘siow
Jej &ie 818y} pUB ‘a)us0 ainsie] UoUBAIBD Uo Asuow AUe pusds juop nok usum A|epedss
‘auo meu e Bulpjing uo spunod Uol|liw og o 0z Buipusds ujjujod ou S| 3IaL) ‘UOHIED

Ut ejued aunsie| e Apeaile s) ssey | "sjoafoid pasodoid jo sif ayy Lim saibesip AjBuong |




"Pejou sjusWor "Runwwod ey} uo Joedw ga_mon PUB J08.ip & 9ARY [ Kiguqi) weyBuioN ‘ucusAleD ek puedxe o) Buipun; Jsyung

"18U00S Yonw 8ALY} pue Mo ‘Aeid 0} usIp|IyO sU} BuIMO|IE ANUNLILIOS BU} Ul USIPIILD BU} JO SPeBU BSIBAIP U} S1INS YDIUM JUSWILOSIALS

Buneinwugs pue uny e speau [ooyds ey “sjusLdojeASp MAU BU) oY SjUsISE.Ge

901 UOHISS BAISS8I0NS LD Ino Passiw sey ey} eBejiin auj ul $jooyas noj e} 4o auo Ajuo BUj 1 [00UDS L) ‘PBACLIB) PUE PBULISPUOD

sem Juswdinbe Aeid urew plo sy; souls ‘puncibield s,Jooydg AussInN pue Jueu| dieq Jouep Jo Juswdojersq "UOHNIoAS) jeLsnpul

au 40 Wed jsay BU) J0 Japuno} ‘98 WA Uo peseq aljusd ebejusy e pue “ted XWg eb1e) ‘soeds Aejd-ninw o¢ e Bulphjoul ‘seibajess

ebejuay pue Buikeld ey} Jo sjuswelinbes Buuemsue ‘aues sbejuay pue JoyisiA & ojul Jayuny ysed 887 Wl ey} Jo jJusiudojeneg

‘sJeak 001 Jse| pjnom fisjowso

.08 9| sIu} pue yBnoioq ey} ssouoe sjofd Yse pue |eunq oIlgnd Joj peeu sjeiedsep & si aley ‘Bule)s spaau Asiswed 8UE poomullioH

"80BLNS JBULIR) B Spasu Ajjuebin 3 ‘spu pue yed [epiwoun e )| ‘siesn sued Aq isnf Jou ‘mou Aep Kieaa pasn s1yJed 897 Wel(|ips

1e sjjed Jeo MolsAo sselb ay) uoIppe Ul "puel syl £ng rounco ysued ey} J| ‘eBelia sy Jo anues sy} ) seoeds Bunyed siow Je “'|jpunos

"PRJOU SlUBWIWOD  YsUed uopsAleD UM UoleUIpIo-0d uj A3uow 1D Buish 089 Aq papuny ‘Uopaae) Uj syeloid snjonssesul Bumolioy ey} aas o) eI pjnom |
"S|00YOS sue sdoys sy yioqg 1e

"Peiou sjuewwod  swejqoud Bunpied ey} inoge Sulyjewios op o} osy HHoel Xwd Jo yedeleys & Xl Jojeq pejsabbins useq se yons op o} sphy sy} Jo} Bujyjslog

'PBIOU SJUBWWIOY “sug poomulljoH uo Ausjewss sy pjing o} Aeuow 719 Buisn Jepisuoo eses|y

‘Palou sjusWILOD ‘abk||A uanoBio} 8y} UoUBAIED - BUO PUB UO $906 }8|| oy ‘sjuswianed ‘sejoyjod ‘sdous ‘Bupped Jed ‘siopoq

"(umoy lews) ,eBe)|iA, 8y spunolins mou Ajfeied Ajuo jew; 11eq uselb ay) uo JJIng eq || sesnoy aow

‘PojoU slusWILIOD  ou jewy esjuesent v sbejlin sy} ul ing 8q 0} S3WIOY SJ0W UBAS 0OE 40 JBI| SU} Ul UCHBAIED U SjuswaAcidwi peos 'se0lAleS snq paAosdw]
"Jooyos yed Jouely 1o}

punosbAerd meu e pue uopsAles Ul Bunyed Jes slow posu Aisnuyep epn “(peidnooo pue Jing eq o) peuueid aiow spaJpUNy |iis pue) 3jing

usaq eAeY Jeu) sesnol ey [[e Yim mou JyBu ainpnaselul peaoidl o} pseu ajeiedsep Ul si uopieAle) sjoeloud pesodoid ayy Bujpuny ase

‘Pejou siusWWOD  Jeu sjuswidojeAsp ey} woy sioeduwl JO sJoeye ey} e1eBRIL o) paeu JUsBIN B.10ul S| BI0U) B1eUM Jueds 89 plnoys Aeuol 8iMoNASeyuUl el |

‘pejou sjusluWo) “Buisnoy peses.ou) eu} J0 esnesaq sjenbepeul Mo S| UOUBAIED) Ul Bupued Jeo ‘os|e ‘Buepdn pssu sease Aeld jooyog
'seale 8y} esueyue

0} siesiieusiadns Ujm %10M PUE J1 8j2Acusl Pue 3 eseyoind Juen Jjouncs 8y} Aum puejsiepun juop | pue edelBsip e s| exued uiddoys ey

‘pajou SjusUILIOD) ‘Juewenodwi Joj eoeds s,euet) pue Alond e s Bupped 1 anuss ainsieT ayL

"Hoddns aasesaep ||e sesse Aejd pue sjooyss ‘shem yjem os soljiuie} Ul Joegie o} uoisuedxe
‘Pajou sewwod  Buisnoy Aq papirosd Ksuous si siu Ajjeuld Moy Jejem olseq Yim 2dos o) UOLBAES Jo AJljIqeul B eq |Im uoisuedxe siu} jo Ayjiqejiasul ay )

‘pejouU SjusuoD “Juswienosdwi pesu sepyjiosy Buiddoys pue Bupyed jgao]
‘pauUles S|} esoum Asuow ay) puads pue ebejjia
‘PRjOU SjUSWLO By} ultpm seusLue pue Bupyed enoidw o} sUe|d eje|nULIO 0} PasU ||oUNoD YsUied ay} apisBuoe 99 uopsAle) ul Buipuads spasu Aeuop

‘sdoys Jsbueq

‘supipsuw

1B3IA Jo plod) Ja6 o} sAep Buniem 8q ued ‘LUopaAfed Ul 8A) Mou oym s|doad Jo Junowe 8y yim adoo Jueo Jsil | se Jsiusyd puooes v

“Apuaiino Juswiulodde Ue Joj JIeM O} LJLIOW B JOAC 8 UED 1) "9BejiiA Jo 82is ayj Y 8ded 0} 0s sjusluercidw) A1ebins 4o

‘pejou sluslWoD seoe|d jooyos panoidu|

"9A0GE PSUORUBW JUSWYS|QINIOL U} WO Jyauaq ARSI |t OUM
uaipjiyo BunoA pue ss|ljuse) Jo spaipuny jo seauspadye ey} eAosdwi i senljioeyeRUSS|
a.nsia] - WeyBuRioN ‘UopeAlRD SU} JO JUSLULSIQINSJ []0} O JUBLUBACIAI [BINONAS

*paidnoaoo)

PUE }ing 8q 0} sesnoy pauueld 0og punoJe Jo6 JIis aAem pue ‘mou Jybu uousAieD

Ul einjonyseu; perosdw) Joj pesu ejesadsep e aney s “sioefold pesodoid ey Buipun)
Je Jeu) sjusiudojenap sy woy sjoedwl Jo sjoaye sy BuneBiiw ‘peeu Jusbn elow si alay)
eJeym Jueds Asuolu anjonyseyul ay) eses o) Jejeid pinom | ¢1osloid simonnsesul ueuodui|
Ue S8 Pam8IA aq s} Ued moy “ied Auno) Bunpes) je enues ebeyuey pesodoid ay} Jo}
eswmen[ "ybnoioq sy} ul Bunuswedwi pesu jey) siosfosd ainjonuselul JUsBin Mou ‘sioul
Je} 8 818y} pUB ‘8ijusd 8Insie| UoUBAIED UO Asuow Aue pueds j,uop nok usym Keadss
‘auo mau e Bulpjing uo spunod uolfjiw g Jo 0Z Bulpueds ui Juiod ou s1 aiey} ‘uolpe))|

U} 8Ajueo eunsie| B Apealle s| efey ] ‘siosfoid pesodo.d Jo Jsil ey yym saibesip AjBuons |
"J9AS SE plowy pue

uolpieD st BuiifieA ‘uopeaied Bumoib Jaas ey} Joy Builjou si ssey) uieby "ee.be jou op |
'PaIdND00 puUB Peys|ulY BIe SESNOY MaU Bu} |8

810jeq sy} pue ainjonuiseuu) peaoidwi oy pasu Ajejelsdsep UojeAfes) se yons sabefjiA

“ed Ajunod Bulpes) je siued)
ebejuey, pasodosd ey Apenonied ‘sjosfoid pesodosd 4o Jsi| ay} Yyim saubesip Ajbuoss |

{on] poo - s10150p ey 0} 196 o} asenbs sy Ul Bupped Any eseeld “UoisiAosd Jnonaseyu]
ANY N0y ‘UopeA[BD Ul sesnoy meu Auew os Joj uoissiued Bujuueid usaib saey nok ‘ON
‘aIsymesie palinbel ale sjusLueAcidw
Juabin slow usym Asuow Jo 8)sem (€10} B aq PINoMm djied AnunoD Bulpas) Joy pau
obe)liaH, 8U) PUB UCIUED IO} SUSD BINSIS] MAU V "UCLIBAED) JO} ISI] B4} Lo m:_:uoz&.
‘Joslold aunjorujseuul Juebin ue se pessep eq p|
ed Aiuned ybnoiog Bulipe je egues ebejuey e jey} eAsljeq 1,Uop OS[E | "8AUsD ainsid|
UOHIeAIBD) UO Pa)SeAU) SEM ABUOW 8l St 3] "2U0 Mau e BUIp|ing Uo spunod Jo suoljiw o
Aym os aues eunsie| poob e sey Apealfe uolued ‘sjoslold Jo Jsi Bu UM eaibesIP Albuo.
uoj
o1 asayy soeld Ul Apeeule seoinosal ejesldnp o} seele o} Buiob eq o} Jesdde wook_somom_Dl
KNI
aBej|in sno oju1 Asuow esow jnd o} speeu JUNOS ey os Bulpuedxe i uopBART ‘essbesip ||

quatuds

pue djay pesu |l wnasnu pue sBejusy ejxay|lemsBuiy 6o abejlIA 8L o efiejleloy
[E3L0}S1Y JO UOISIAOI "(UMO]) BBB(IIA 2} UI 810W SPLESNOU) S} JOJ [B}IA MOU SI LUOISIACIG
Ujesy jo uoisuexe Uy "sjeD Alowa Be qniD Buplop [E00] 8U) UO BOUBIRS JOU PBaU [eI00S
Jo} uoisiroud [euoIPPE OS]y “LOMSAED Ul Bnss] Jofew e st Bupied Jo Yoe| o} anp uopsebuod
“Buip|ing mau o) anp uope|ndod pasesisul o} sjqe)inba aq jsnw sebueyo aimonijselju|
‘e|quus) je s1e|io} pue swiool Buibueya ey | ‘seRiiioe) einsie| 9"l sINjINIISRI)

UOMBA[eO UO Jueds eq pInoys eJol "oN

"olBejexs jou s1yed AJuUnod ey - 3 Uo juads yonw o} Je} Sey plowy o

“Jobue| Bunieb dosy

1snf jim sepinousIp esey) usy) 'sh o} o 3,Use0p YMOIB Jeu} LM dley o} piemio) nd Aeuoul
sy pue 1o661q Humeb sdesy abeljia sy) 41 1ng “Jeujo Yoes seye yoof o} Buiky 1snf ejdoed
30 I} eBe|lA Inyanesq Jno jo aunjongseul oYy eroidwl o} pesayo Woddns esow Buises;

€4 0} pasu om pue ebejiA siy ut BuliBBnys oie sjdosd "senss! yieay yim 3Uom 0} 1saq o,
Buikny Ajwey suioou; moj & aie suo 4o} 8 ‘penesiad se JUSNE Se jou aie am pue paloubl
ussq sey Buoj o} Joj abeyiia 1O "sesseo e} pue [ood e o} $Sa308 BU) SABY JUPINOM)
ueJp|iuo Aw pue jlesAw eJjued unsie] Jno 8500} oM §j “Hoddns Jey) Spesl UoLBARD) SE
2JBUM 7Ised 8y) ul JusieAoidwl Pey sey YoM ausd eunsie| ucie) siepdn o} pesn Buieq
MOU s} UoMBAfED) Ul Jueds oq 0} JUBLU SEM LDIum Asuow aasjieq | ‘Inode usobioy Buleq

80 0} swees pue Buinoidwy spesu J) Jesio S Ing ‘jeslB useq sAemie eJjued ainsie] (2007
"PO0} 10} eJot 8)s02 )| sjexieuLiadns ebe| ou se pue ‘|eoo] doys o) eAeyY | uosied pejqesip
€ sy "8BE|IIA INC Jo 821s ay) LM 8dod MOU O} [|BLUS 0} SIOOLDS PUEB JSILIBLD PUE $10}000]
"8Jmny 83 ul Joj pauueld pue jling Apesuie Buisnoy peppe auj ((e uim edoo oy BuyBbnas
seele AUew eABY AN “eq O} LUBaS em UsyoBio) Moy 88s o} ASBa I It UopieAieD) ul BUIALT




"Pelou sjuswWo) inq sejejse Buisnoy meu eblef seiu Jeye 8sodind Joy 11 SSOIAIES BXeU puE eACIdW) O} UCLBAIED Ul pasinbes ApusBin juswiseau)

“youd Aeidninw ¢ v yed xwq ebue| y ‘Wnssnw 967 we| IM YV ‘puncibheld jooyos
‘PRjOU SjUsIIOD  ed JoUB 0} Sjusienoldul| ‘sun (1230 |lews "sadeds Bupyped meu jo sjo *+Aousbe PE8} 3L} se |1ouncd ysued ey Yim ‘UoHBARD Ul Iy

"eJjueo abejuey 837 WM ¥ * [004DS Yled
‘Pajou sjusWwWor Jouel Joy punolbieid MeN v "youd esn ginw 9¢ v “oeu) dwind pue XNg ebie| v ued s Weljipm pue pue eJenbs spujimis je Bupued

S TVESITENTTI ) 2Jjued Jo)isia pue abejley se wel & 'yoyd O¢ pue yued XNg mau e syied e WeIIM Je pue arenbs 8} U bupped [euonippy
"POJOU SjusWoD “Hed Xg v ‘punosbheld jooyos yed Joue o) sepeiBdn “enuss ebejusy 887 WENIM v ‘uopeAeD Ul Bupiied
"Pajou sjusWWo) SN0

"PuUnobAeld s,jo0yds Yied Jourp 0 Jusludojeasd “Buies spesu Aejewes auen) poomuljjioH ‘Bupjoeute;
speeu yied 87 We|lI Je Buiued mopleAo sses) ‘pue| ayj Ang liounog ysiied ey Jf ‘ejueo abefiin su; ul Bupued sloj Jouncy
‘Pejou sjuswe)  Ysied uopsAfeD UM UOHEUIRI0D Ul Asuou IO Buisn Dgo Aq pepuny ‘UouBARD Ul $198foud aunponyseYU! BUWOjio) 8L} 28s 0} 81| PINOM |

‘Pley peou Jaljjod pue yed Ajeeg yed sa) Welim
198} 8INS187 “INOGEPUNO. B 0 SWGI| duses) "9’ pUnolB ||EGIO0) UMO} PloLLY 0F IXBu
punoJe pauinbai sjuawencsdwi Bupped ‘'s1eo elow pue Buipuedxs UOH2AIED UM

18 peAo.dwl 39 0} SNURUOD 0} peau JuswaAoIdwl saj
‘PBIoU SjuewIeD) Buinosduwi ennBeiuogounips UoXo/iL oY ‘aued 8

"18U00S LUoNW eALIY} pue maub ‘Ae|d 0} Usipliyo eyy BuMO|E AUNWWCD el Ul US| BLy

10 SpesLl asIeAp ey} s)ins UoIym JusLULIOIAUe BujelnWRS PUE LNy B SPesU |ooyds 8y L ‘sjuswidojeAsp Meu ey} wol sjusLusalbe 901 uonoas

OAISS800NS U0 Jno pessiw sey jey) ebe|i el U S|ooyds Inoj 3L Jo 2UO AJUO BU} S| [00UDS BY L "PSAGWS) PUE POULLBPUOD SeM juswdinbe

Aeid uiew pjo ey sauls ‘punoibAeld s jooyos Asesiny pue 1UBU| SBd Jouep Jo jusludoleAeq "uoiNjoAe. [eLISNPUI ey} JO Jied Jsil ou) Jo

Jspunoj ‘ee7 WeIJIM Uo paseq ejuso abejusy e pue Sued XINg ebue| ‘eoeds Aeid-ninw ¢ © Buipnjou ‘seiBejelis ebejuey pue buifed suy

10 sjuewalinbes Bulemsue ‘a5uso ebejusy pue JOSIA B Ojul Jayuny sied 827 WellIA oy} Jo Juswidojenaq “sJesk gL 1se] pINom Aisjeisd

a8 9| sy} pue ybnodoq sy ssouoe sjoid yse pue [ewnq alignd Joj pasu sjeledsep e S| e.euy ‘Bune)s spasu Alejewsd aUET POOMUIOH

"80BLNS JBWLIB) B spesu Afjuebin )i ‘epu pue sued jeidloun ue s ‘siesn sued Aq 1snljou ‘mou Aep Kiene pasn si yied 887 WA 18 Yed

J4e3 MojieAo sseib ey} uonippe Uj "pue) eys Ang iounod ysued ey i ‘eBejin 8y} Jo eJjusd ey} ul seoeds Bupyed eiow Je4 “punco

‘PRIOU SJUBWILOD | YsLied UORAIED UjiM LoeuipIo-00 Ul Ksuow 710 Buish Ha9 Aq pepuny ‘UopeAieg i speloid enjonssesur Bumojjo} ay) aes o} M| pjnoM |
‘eale fejd Jioy} aA0JdwW) 0) dJed JOuel 1o} Buipuny pepesu

Uonw se jam sy "eBe|in sy} jo UmolB ey) yym dn desy 0} sjooyds [290] aU) 10 juswidojersq ‘seale Aeyd sebeyjia sy Jo Juswdojaasp Jayung

‘Pejou sjuswwo)) ‘seaue Buiddoys Bunsixe ey punoue Bupjed jeuoyippe j0 pesu ejeJsdsop uj S| uopaAlRD

‘POIOU SJUBWIWIOD "obe||1A oy} 1o} eimjonssesul 8ACIdW! pUE UCHBAIRD U) ASUCW el puads

" Jouoos yonw sAuy) pue moub ‘Aeld o} usJpiiyo sy Bumolle AUNWWOS Sy} Uy USIPIYD au)

10 Sp33U 8SIBAIP BU)} 8}INS LoIYM JusLULOIAUS Bujielnwils pue Uy e Spasu ooyds ay | “sjuswidoieAsp MeU ely} woy sjusesiBe 901 Uohoss

SAISSI30NS L0 N0 passi sey jey) sbe|liA sl Ul S|00y2s Unoj 8U) 10 SUO Ao 8L SI [00YDS Y| "PAACLISS PUE PSLLIBPUOD SEM yswdinbs

Kejd urew plo auy eouls punoibield s,jooyog AlesinN pue 1uBju| Siued Jouel Jo jusludojers "UoINjoAS [BLlsNpul 8y Jo Wed 18y U}

10 Jepunoy ‘837 WelliAA uo paseq e4ues abejusy e pue ed Xwg ab1e| ‘soeds Aejd-pinw 9¢ & Suipnpou ‘seibejess ebejusy pue Buifeld

3U} 4 spueWeInbal Bulemsue ‘esjued sBejusy PUE JOYISIA B OJUJ JeUpny sed 887 WEINIA BU} Jo jueiudojeneq "sjeek Q| Jse| pjnom Kisjeleo

8108 9| siy) pue ybnotoq sy} ssosoe sjoid yse pue |eunq ajjgnd Joj pasu ojesedsep e s| e.su) ‘Gunle)s spasu A1ejswsd sUET POOMUIIOH

"80BJNS DBLWEY} B spaeu AJuebin }i ‘apu pue sied [eioijoun ue s ‘siasn sued Ag 38n[jou ‘mou Kep Kiene pesn s) yed 2o welim

je yed Jeo mojeno ssesb sy} UoRIPPE U] pue| o Ang founco Usued ay 41 “abejjia sy} Jo 2J)U8d 8y u) saoeds Bupied siow Je

‘PRIOU SJUBWILIOD  ysied UOLBAIED) Ujm LoRUIPIO-00 U) Aeuow 1119 Buisn Ogo Aq papuny ‘UousAleD ul sjoslold aunjongseyul Bumoljo) ey 8es o} axji) pnom |

D URSVENTITL Y Pepe.bdn exues einsie 'senioe} do UoISUSIX® S[ooLRS
‘ "bupjooys 7 jnoge
Bunpiue op jouues Jo 0o} Bulm J8yyie 1 8UO OU pue dIN OS{e "JooLds 8y} JO SI0WEA0H pue |1ouncs ysied ‘saljod ‘uawssiopue Bupped

OON ‘1o0Uos ey o} papiodai |fy "S)ealy) sswileLlos pue sjuswnbile Auep “Ajojes SOALP A8 4O 1o uo Jab 0) ses Jouued syuspisal kem

& yons ul Gupped pue juawened ay) uo Bupped ‘seAup sjuapisal JeAo Bupiieq “swp dn xoid pue Jo doup [00YdS SPUKIM IS Jeinonsed ul pue

e|doad esauy Uy ajieq Ajiep & aAeY | sJeum Kepp sjeusy ‘Apejnonsed uj peos Aw o) juiod (| | "UMO} 0} BURNWIWGD USAS PUE SIOM ‘doys

‘Pajou sjuswwo) sy} 0} Bulob eidoad Joj Bunied ou o) enp Bupped ajelepisucoUl LM ayeq Bulobuo ue Buioe) aJe sjuSpISey UONBARD U) SaIlf|oB) Buped

ge 8y &M Ing 1jing Buisnoy meu Jo junowe 8y} 0} anp 1ebpnq ay) o} joje P3NQLIUCS sARY UCLIBAJED)|

Hing sejejse Buisnoy meu abie| saiy)|

Jsye esodind Jo} Ji) Se2IAISS SEW pUB eAcdw) o) uapeAled ul painbas Apusbin juswiseAu|
abey|

1no uj sjusludolensp meu au} sjebpi o} Asuow sy} Buipueds Lels o) pssu NoA isjoefosd
Pejsi| 8y} Jo swos 8Jojq sanosdi) einjanuselyul Jofews Jo pesu ejeiadsap Ul st LOPSAED)
jmou

Bupjied pasu em jnq ((wen e yym Ajqesesed )nq) peusdo 8Ulj [eiouiw 8L 8Yij PINOM oM sok
‘UoleAfed ui seilioe) pue Bupiied se juepod) se Jou g poob aue sjoelosd ay) Jo swog|
punoJBAe|d MBU B SPasU [00YoS Yied Jouepy

Sd ¢uoleusap ebejuey e Buleq sn Jnoge Moy pue sioyop pue sdoys ey o} 1oB ued em|

os saoeds Bupyed pesu o) jsesnoy sy jje 1o6 em usum uolaA[RD) Joj auop si ybnous JoN
syed Anunod Buiipes) 1e asjued

abejliey & usy) oje Bupped Joj pasu Juebin elow $| UoleA[eD INg Ynis poob ewios s alay] |
"Buroepns eJ pesu speol ey} ‘sjooyas

19661q ‘Buppied elow ‘asjues ainsia| pejepdn ue pesu s "2JNjonJiseljul pappe ou eaey

*sjoelosd pesodoid ay) Buipun) ese

1eu siuswdojsaep syl woy Bunebiw ‘pesu soiealb e si eielp sloum jusds Aauow|
anpniselul ey} ees o} Jejaud pnopA 'sjosloud Jo jsij pesodoud Lyim saiBesip AlBuons|
"Bulipes) pue UopeAjea’plouly JeA0D 0} HOMBU Wwesy bujpnjoul

joefoud Jeyeeub Jo Med s 31 sse[un Jnogepuno lood e je spu pue yed yum saibesip |
“Buisnoy meu Jo 5,001 Y Buipuedxa s1 umoysbeljial

Y} pue pano.dul Jou S| 8.3UBD BINSIS] UOLGA(ED S|IUM BINS[e] MBU UOJLED YN saibesip |
“Juswiscudw) sy} Joj Aed pinoys seey Bupped uo uoionposul

8Uj ey} spuncub sy} uo uoisnjoul exjued abejuey shied Aiunoo Buipes) yum saiBesIp |

‘pod
Pbue Jjing aq 0} sesnoy pauueid gOg pUnoJe Job Jjis 8A,eMm pue ‘Mmou 1Bl uole)

Ul anjonaselul peaodull 104 pasu ejeledsep e aAey opA "siveloid pesodaud sy Buip!
le jey sjusiidojensp ey wol syoedwi jo sjoeye ey) BuneBniw ‘pesu Jusbin slow ) 8.
8JUM Jueds AsLio eJmonAsBLUI oL} 88s 0} Jejeid pinom | ;joefold ainon)selL) JUBHO

Ue S pamaln 8q Si) Ued Moy Sied Aqunad Buiipes je enuas ebejusy pesodoud ay)

asmeyIT ‘yBnosog ey} ul Bunuswedun pssu jey; sposfoud sinjonsiselul usbin mou ‘s,
8} 8ie 8lsy pue ‘aljusd einsie| UoMeAleD uo Asuow Aue puads Juop nok usym h__m_o%w
‘suo Meu e B 9 uo spunod uolliiw g Jo 0z Buipuads uijuiod ou si eley) ‘UOIHED)
Ul enueo eunsie) e ApesJje st etey ] ‘soefold pesodoud jo Jsi| ay) Lym seJBesIp AjBLoS |

‘sjqejdaade jou s| ebej|ia au J0 Ymo.B ay) yym dn desy o) sampnLsENUl By} Bunjoe|
Alelanss s) uopeaeD Usym sesle Jeuyo Ul Juads Asuow ‘sjesodoid 8} 0} sa.fie Jou op |

‘aBe|(1n 8y} 0} JUBWILISP 4O S| YoIM ‘Uolje|ndod Ul §SBEIOU) BU) SJBPOWILIOIIE
0} ainjoruiseul o} Juswenoidwl OU useq sey S8y L ‘JINg Usag SABY Seloy meu
40 SpeJpUNY puE SpaJpuNy eJeym UopBABD) Uj Asuow pusds ‘slesodoid su Yym sebesip |

‘paidnaao|

PUe }jinq aq 0} sesnoy psuueld 0Og PUNo.e 106 |Iis 8A8M pue ‘Mou Jybu UoHeAED

Ul aunjonaselul panosdwi Joj pesu eieledsep aney oA ‘sjaelod pesodoud sy BuipLny

ale jey sjuewdojensp eu} Woy sioeduw) Jo seye auy Bunebiius ‘pasu Jusbin alow stelsy)
@aym juads Aeuow snjoniselul sy) ses o} 1ae.d pinom | ¢joslord aJnjonyselul Juepodw)
Ue se pamaiA eq siy) Ued Moy “ed Arunod Bulpes) e eljues eBejuey pasodoid sty o)
esimen ‘ybnoloq sy} ul Bupuswisidwi psau jey) siosfoud aunjonuseyul usbin mou ‘elowl
Je} 818 8IsU) pue ‘aJjusd aInsie) uoheAleD uo Aeuow Aue puads Juop nok usym Kfiepedss|
‘aUo mau e Bulpjing uo spunod uoijiw g 10 oz Bulpusds uj Julod ou s1 213y} ‘uojeD)

Ut aques eunsie] e ApeaJje st esoy L "spaloid pasodoud Jo Jsif sl Yim eesBesip KjBuons |
DIBYIIE OS SI YOJYM 81U8D 8Insis| Jno

PUE s Liojsuejxe sjooyos ‘seniioe) sUN * eBejjia Jno uj aq pinom Kuoud sy} jeyM UopaAleo jo|
2liand ey} ¥se jou Auym abej|ia auy uj uojejndod uno Bulignop aJe oM se Bulssg * )1 1dsaoe em|
Ajj81eush pue Ino Yej sjeb shemie uopeAled * pejs)| spsford pasodoud ey} Yim ssibe juop |

‘Buipuny ou sey
PUE &2|s Ul SMOI6 UopieA|eD Js|iym Apesie seale esal) Je MO} Ussq SBY Lonw 0o} Je




'Pejou sjuswwo) VIN

"8INs[8] Jo} Pasn aq 0} AU S}i Seje}S [1PUN0 [B90] INQ BJUed

"PBJOU SJUBWIWLOD) UlEeY pue joxewiadns Mou e o} oy 83eds JUBIoNS S| 8.6l ‘{ioUNoD (290 O} IXBU PUE| 4O SMJE)S AJUO BaNSi9] 4O |BAGWS] “IpIT 40 I}y
‘PeIOU SjUBIWOD

"|1I2UNoD Ysued [e207 ay) o} Apoeuip pessed

a1 s)dis08y 1D 40 UoIod pooyinoqubieN ey l1ounod
Uslied Uiim ses.e U| pajoe|od Useq eAey sidiecal |0 elsym
SEaIE BU} UIyIM SPBaU pasi|eco] Jeew o) peubisep Ajjeoyoads
81712 Jo Uoiod poouinoqubieN ayL ‘pajou sjuswwoed
‘POJOU SJUBLWIOD

‘Buiddoys sjqepioye ‘Bupped Je9 eJow $pPaeU Yalum UopsAle)) Bugyeueq jou oJ,fey) ‘plolwy g UOYIBD Ul SBep! 8y} 0) ON

*auo epirosd 0] esfoIex8 UoKENSUCD & Ul 91ignd Bu Jo Jequisl e Buosdxe

Uey} Jayjes uolsAled Ul sdnoub Aunwiuiod pue Jounco ysued auyy uym padoleasp ISl Jesjo & aAeY 0} 119unoo yBnolog ey joedxe pinom |
WISOUOD UlBW INO SJE USIPIYD

felquen pue YBno10gPOOAA WO SIONSIA PUB SJUSPISE) UM senss) |eal

"PejoU sjusWWod  Buisned s pue seoeds YBnous JeAsu sl iy se Bupyied eixe Jo sjo| snjd 432U 00| }1 exew 0} 9be|IA sY) Jo BujUsD U} 0} SjUBIBAOIW]

9J@ 9j@ sdnoJb Ayunuuos/sjusAB/MAN(D UM ‘Yijeey
[EUSW punoje Ajuntuwios 1no o} $831AI9S a10w opiAcsd LED 1By} aBE(IA 8U) Ul SqNY AjlUEYSeiUsD SUSIPJIY o) Buipun; Jepisuos sdeyiey

*0J8 2J@ INOIABYS( (1208 JUE BINPBI/ES|[EI0S

0} aJal sUe8} Ino aAlb/uoRE|0s| 83npa/es|[e0s/y 186 0} asn 0) Juem 0} ajdoed alow abeinoous ‘ejes axew ‘sbuipjing o}

‘P8jou SjusWWo)  SjusiUsA0Idw AIESSI0SU SYEW 0} S1)UID LINOA pUE SINSIS| UOKEAIED BU) Jo) Bujpuny pue sJiedes punoJBhe|d sjueu) sped Jousw Joj Buipun4
‘pejou sjuswwo) "Sjuapisal au} Jyeueq || Jey} ‘eBejjia uopeAieD ojul pajseAul aq o} sjoelod @) PINOM |

*Aluo seioeds eApeu Buueld puswiuiooes em ‘pasodoid

s Bupueld say} Aue | "0)e sejems ‘puod & ‘suspieb ujel Jo uonelodioou 8y} apnjoul pjncd
SUOHEISPISUCD JeU)O "esuodsal UoHEINSUCO AIBWINS SARNOSEXT PIOULY UCHIGUY 8u) U0
Sjuswwes Ino o} 3joBq siepeed Jsodubis Jo SJuSIILICD 8SOU) 0) 8oUBJIB)8) 8phjoul 0} Juspnud
69 Aews 3| ysu pooy sy} ebeuew disy 0} SUCHUSAIRIU] |G PUB SANS SARISYS Bunesodiooul
Jo eaueLiodw) 8y} pajyBiUBIY 810jeI8U) BM ‘PIOWY 40 WBWSHES BU} JO LINOS BU) O) Peleso
S Yolym ooug Aeq ey} joedui ssop WINY Ul ya1um plowly Bunoedwi sensst Buipool) Jojem
89BLINS 8Je 8loy) jeul PajuBIUBI em ‘JeABMOH °| 8LOZ POy Ui SoI| plowy jo Ajofeu
ey} eyl 202 Jequisides u) 0} pepuodsel em YoIym LOHE}NSUCS AIBWWING SARN9SXT plouy
UoRIqUIY 8U} 0} UohEel Ul SjUSWLI0D PaiiEIep JNo Ui sull ul ‘Jeus ino juiod pinoys s vdiS|

'sesodoud Juswdojensp spisBuoie paJepisueD 9q PjNoYs pue|
suig|dpooy Jiey} 0) sesinodlelem joeuuooeal o} Ajunpoddo ue sepirid |og ‘seinjeiediusy]
b1y o} Jeijey [eo0] epircsd o} djey osle uea (sang ybnouy ‘B'e) eale ue Buiueslb
pue Buined-aQ ‘Buleqjjom pue Yyesy pue ‘Juswesbeueus 3su pool ‘K)IsIsAtpolq pesesiau}
‘uofiesisenbas uogues 'uoisiaoid Ajjuswe Juswarcidwt Ayjenb Jie se Lons spsusq sepinoid
198 “Jejuis Buiyauwios Jo uofeuolul BUIMOIIS 8L} ephjul 6} sAISUBYSIdWED BioW 8q PINOD
Buipom (198) anoniselu] uessD-enig 8y} JeL 1984 oA JUB1L JOAY B} UO >=m_36
‘Wbnaip/ebueyd sjewiio o} eaualjise) puE apeuys aacidul o) syueqg Buole JeAod
anoidw| 0} eq pInom sapiunpoddo Jaypn "sisixe Ji sleme aq UsAS Jou Aew uojpeo/bulipe
u ejdoed Auep Jeem 0} sse208 sjuspises eAodw; pue dn } uado o} poob eq pl
¥ 08 suoheao] Jsow Ul Aeme uepply s1 o¥Ag esnQ ey ‘slqeiIsep &q pjnom ojgissod e
suopoes Ul Bupepuesw-a. pue aimoniselul £eib ‘ejaJouoo Buinowey ‘anjen {ea1boy
pajiwil AUeA Jo 0 [sULRYD B19.0U0D BJB 8SINDISIEM BU} JO SUGHISS "SyUEG 3y} Buinosdul
liem se "ajqelisep 8g PINom Yoiym esnodssiem el Jo suolioes JybijAep o} selunuodd
PINCS J1ay) - Bullpes UiRiM S{[B} YoIYM SXAQ 8SNO U O} 9PBUL L9sq SEY UojUSL ON EdiS|
UoMeABD o)
¥9eq Asuow s 8 mou ‘ol s31 M yBnoue pealieuy usaq SeY plouly JaxIEulsdns e se)
Swis}] BLeS BU} 3104 8IOW %00E PUB 051 Usemieq ebseyd sdoys [edo] ‘Bulpag) ul suop eAey|
noA se op JSes] Je "sesnoy mau ayj |2 wodp Buiuod s| ASUow sy) nq passaippe Buleq ele
853U} Jo suoU 5,0/6 WioJ} Jouideud Buiddoys pue (ejusp ‘Aisbins Aenb Jood ‘pessaippe|
JOU @8 UOUSAIED UIUIM SBUIoY MBU 8V} 10} Jnjanajsejul Bulpnjoul Buissiw swa)|
‘Buiddoys siqepJope ‘Bunyed|
Jed 3JowW spasu Youm uopeAleD Bunyeusq jou a1,Aey} ‘plouly g LOIED Ul seep| sy 0} ON|
"Uolseyod Hoddns 0} Sjiey puUe SefUNLLLIOD U] JUsU)Uasel sping
18i| anjoniselul sy yoeosdde owydeifosb BN siy Jnoym 9je snjannseul A3 ‘Aunoo|
pue ybno.oq el ssoide sasSNg 's,d9) SE LYons ainjonnysesul feoisAyd sy o) sjusLUBAcIdU
jnouyim Buishoy ut aseesoul ebny e usas sey ebe 1 L “Wswdojensp mau Aq pejoaye|
senuNWWoo ey 0} Buipuny ysnd Apyby Jou seop )i se pamey)} s Js1] aJnjonujsequ) ey,
ssiom Bumeb pue ebejjia ano uj snss) Jofew & s| Bued
“HiNg eJem seshoy ixa ey} je eouls LOJBAED) 0} sjuswancidul Big psau o
‘uopsAle) Ul swejgold eu i 1si SIU) yim sa16e Juop | ON

‘sjuswanoidus Asessaosu pue Jusbin exew o} Buipun) swos woJy Jysusq

Pinom (ooyos sjuejul shied Jouew je puno.bAeid ay) ajdwexa Joj - Aejd pue uies| o) uaJpliuo|
4no Joj sjusLULICAUS Jejes Bulesss uo Jusds eq o) Aeuoiu Jey) Jejeid pinom UOPSAIRD.

J0 sjuepisey Led Anunos Bullpeb je enue) ebejusy ‘Buepdn pue yseue. e spesu
enued ainsie] Bulsixe uoueAleD ¢ Apeslje U0 BABY ABY L ¢ AUM *UOJLED Ul BJUS BINSIB)
Jayjoue aanpouul 0} lesodoud ey} sjdwexs 4o} ajgelinbeul sle paulfine sjesodosd jey) swees|
)l "esodind Jo} 1y Jus! Jsnf Jey) eanjonuseuul Bupiesd ApeeJie INo UO Ysu pue sinssesd
peseasoul ue umnd ese sued jualudojeasp ainjny pue Buisnoy PesBalou| UOHIARD

Ul SIMOnUISeU| Peseaoul paaul am - jO U} Uo pe)si] sjosloud sy uim saubesip |

"Sjusplsal suj Jyeueq || Jey) ‘abel|iA UOLIBAIBD ojul PaiseAu] aq o} sioelold ayi| pnom |




Page 47

ISI7T 2UMOMNUISELU] SU WO PBAOWSI S| WS} SIU} JeU) PUSWILIODa] JOUUED {15Unod AUN0D auj ‘SIy) INOYIAM “Pejseaul

4 0} Spuny 8y} BIqEUS O} UOREOIPOW SIy} 81N03S 0} JUBNOS ) OFD 8y} Jo Woddns 8y) pue PUNED YBno.oq sy} Jo Jadojpsp Buisnoy

U} Aq pauBls oq 0} 194 S| 90L.S ©U} O} LOREOYIPOW BUj} JoASMOH 1517 @JNJONASELU] 8L} U0 PaU[E]e] oq o} PasU JoU PNoM 1oefoud siy} ‘siseq
Sy U0 “Awspeoy ojueD MeUsq peelsul o} oRNgUILED jooys Atewd sy} asodinda o} UOISIIBP S 11BUN0Y 8y} Jo JuBH Ul uawdojeAsp
SI4} Jo} 90L'S B} YBNO.U} PEARIUIE 8] MOU [|M ULeS 3SBUD / AusiljoD) BuIIpsS Jo} SUOINGLIUGS [00yas AIBPUODSS, JEU) PBIOU S1 1|

"ABsjens suolnquiuog Jedojeasq DN Ul soeld Jod 1500 ay)

U0 P3SEq 0E]'06'€3 40 UONINGLIUDD B o} sjenbe pinom ydiym siidnd pabe Alepuooss 6Z) PieIk PInom JAnL Je sBullfemp Gog peniuled oy

‘AleAtiealpu| “4M L J0 10edW] By} 0} eAlE|a) 1O Wl paJnbal 84 || PINom wns sjeuoodold B ‘selayos Jaylo woy 9oL.S ubnouy) papiaoid

oq Kew Burpuny Jsym pue Aoedes jooyos Kiepuocses Poddns o} ML Jo} JuswaaiBy goL.S ey yBnouy Buipuny ou st 2J8y L "4 L Wwoy

uoljejndod jidnd uy ywmoJB o} enp eeuy Buluueld jleusoNH sy} Ul seoe|d jooyas Alepuooss Jo Ausiolnsu UE 8q o} 1Se9810} S| 8l | sn

SINjonLselu| sy} Lo papnioul s JAAL Jo SPasU auy) 1esuw 0} Uojsuedxe [ooyos AIepuodss e jey) jsenbs pInom [DUNOD AUNoD) oy ] MelAe

‘pajou sjuswwo) siu} Bumolioy Isi| 8Ly uo paulelel oq o} pesodosd I (4ANL) MBS KBYBIAA do, 1 J8 SUORNQUILIOD |00LDS AIBpUODSS, JaYIaum Jeejdun s1}|

"€dIS Jopun juswanoudwi ue Jo sidwexs Ue UBY) Jeuyiel IS sinjonaselu

8U) s josoid JounsIp & SB pepnjoul si 19afoad SIU) Jey) PUSWLIOSS PINOM |1BUNOD)
Aunod sy “BuieBuc s) yom Bulsos pue Ayliqises; pue ‘dIVMDT Ul ul Auoud wnipsi

© SB painjes) si joelosd sIy L ‘sulT [BISUIN UOLBAIRD SU 0} 8ualejel uym Aenojed

1517 @imonuiselu] ey} uo (£diS) SYIOM JUBWISACIdW 8INJONISEAU] USBIS)-eNn|g JO UOISH[oUl
L} spoddns jounod Aunod ay L - (EdIS) SHOM Juswsnoidw) amoniselu) usel-anjg
“Ueld 91691enS sHON Jejesisn) su Joj ABslels uoReBRI JusWSSasse Lodsuel) uy] UM
pajlepow Bujeq Ajuenind si Jey) sweyds & ose S| “Hom KiqISes) pajeja) [BUOHIPPE 10
Bupjensapun pue sjepdn U Joj mojle PINOM YdIum BuIpuny snusAs) 0} Ssa09€ [enusiod osje
inq saweyds [eyides Joj uozisoy syy Lo Bulpun; jenusjod si sley) Auoyny Aunoo paulquogy)
SPUBIPIW 183 8y} yBnosyy pue eaisod aJem Ajsnolaaid usyeNepuN yom AlIjIISEs)

U} Loy SBLUOIINQ 'ISI1 2UNJONASBIU| 8} UO 80IAIBS ¥8d [oodeaT au) Jo uoisnjoul

oy} Y seaube |1punod MUnog ay L - (ZdIS) 891AI8S 8p1Y Pue yJed INOGepunoy loodes
“fuond wisy Buol & s) pue papunjun AusLns si (e Msijio) o} 198ULCD o)) eseyd

PiIL &Y} Inq papuny-Lied si (moleq usa.b ul umoys) 18foid sy} jo aseyd pucdes sy L *|dIS
10 UoRdLI9S3P BU} UILKM JOPLLIOD) ZL9Y BU} O} doUBISje) ewodjem Aue[nonued pnom |ouno?)
Aunog ey “yied Anunog Builpas) o1 syull o} PelIl Uey} Jeyjel ‘dIMDT Y Ul sanuoud ey
Uiim S0UBpIedOE Ul ‘YBN0Jog BjoUM 8L} SSOIOB JIoMeu 8jokd dibejels s} 0} SjUaWSAOIdW!
9[qeus o} pauspeolq ! (LdIS) sHUIT [eARI L 9AROY Jo uondLosap ey jey) pejsebbns|
SJojosay) sl )f "9g0Z puokeq [un uoneIapISUOS Joy pewiwelBoid jou s| ‘nsel e se ‘pue
(dIMD7) ueld eunjonuiselu) Bupiiea pue BullokD 16907 ey ut Auolid mo] & Se pejel s1ed
Anunod Bulipeg o} sseode ‘Jaremol "Ajuoud ulew ey se dieq Ajunog Buipas) o} sseooe
saunusp! Ajleauoeds pue jy Aotjod pue ejep puewsp jo UoneIePISUCD YBNoy) patjusp
Ajpeoiq Buiaq senuod sy o} sieje: Juswinoop sy Jsi ainjpniselyu) euy uo (LdIS) sHuI,
[eARI | 8AIDY Jo Uojshioul 8y} spoddns (1Dunod Ajunod eyl - (LdIS) SYUIT [eARIL eANDY




€ 4 € 14 ¥
aqua) afiejliaH yied Anunod Bullpag (9diS) e5juaD QUNWWOD PUE 2.nsiaT UOHED (SdIS)  PIOWIY uoRIquy (pdiS) eimonasesjuj ussio/enig (€dIS) INOGepUNnoy [0odeaT (ZdiS) SYUIT [9ABLL SARDY (1dIS)

suoneasalday Jo aiqe | amj ng
Q
(@)
©
al

]

©QIS HOUN WRAN0IdL U L3 SI0WEXS LR UYL JRGEI 13T unﬁahnbl_

L GR3Im 090040 DURSD B ST LIDNISUI $! 39aI00T $148 1O BURIAIO0R PINOM 108NID

Runod syt Burobun 31 u0w Bunsos sLe Lns3e9; Due ‘eiadT 6 b Kuoud wrase

€ ST DAIMLS; S, DA L “FUT @IDUHY LOUSAED 3T OF 2R v Abeinopies |

1807 SATINDBIRLA M 20 (£01S: IWOM MILM0Tu, FNLINLSELY] YIS G )0 SO0 0 .

W su0ddns FOUN0D Lunad UL - (0diST THOM JuswBACKIH IMDRSSELL; LRID-0 3
Leid DIBAERS TION SEHO NG 50; ADIRLS OB WNISSIFIE LOTTLER A Losi
PB1300u GG ATUILND 5116 AN € 5.2 1.5 LoM & QST DAL UOLPHE 3

SunEnIapun pUB AEPEN U J03 MO PINOM LOIGP BUIDUIS INUANS CF $3I0IE 1E5LAI00 3121

11Q SIS IR J03 SRUOY MG U BuIpur; IERUN0T S NS L0y ALunoD Bou I
SPRDIN 1923 G WONANG pur dAscd diam Asnouasd Janeuapun Wow A 3Ea,

AP WAY SRUOINO T WIHIRIELL §45 UD STANS WTg (S00EDT HI Q0 JOIST 2
T AMCANCTELU I QL PIACUAL 5 WAL IS 1S DURLAICIR! J0LUED IRLN0D KUN0O I "S1E ICULM DAL 10 e 39368 1DLA0D Kun0D AL - 1ZdiSH BN 01k DU TRee INOTEPSHON V23

QG SOUNY N HITLUI O LOLEDLCOW S 221093 0] 1BNOT 31 DBD 21 10 LOTNS I PLE 1IN0 UBNCIOE AL L0 JAI0}NID BLSAOY "K013 wiss Bug; € 9 pue papUnan ALuanund & (<eay 431100 0 10auLco o asen”
g kg paubis 30 01 134 51 90T HA & UORESLIDOL HB JMANON I3 3 JUNNSIELI) R L0 DEUIZIA 3Q 0L 5324 10U PINOM 10900 S04 "SISQ LA #4530 DADUN-UED S (WO udAID Uf LACUS) DIOK: I ;0 FSELT PUODIT UL L
S UO "AUapedy UELED 18040 DAL 03 DOIGUILGS I00U0Y Katwisd 3@ 930411043 OF LISHSD 3,:0L100 A5 J0 15! L) W0 3Aap JO UORTUOSIN 3 G JOCLUIOD TE9Y A OF WVNTW Ru00lar Auemued PR 15ues
U 205 9055 A2 UONORG PAMIIIOE 30 MOU K Lt F3EUD 1 K33:00 BLIDRD 20; SUOHNIRLOD IOCRR'S AEDUCOS, 00 D305 S, It Alumnod) L “Btd AQUNOD BUrpaO G $aun O DI URYJ JMGES S MADT 48 B! 3302 A}
R 0OURRIONOE up "GENRIOG 3 CUR M $3000 JIOVIDY #1040 9BIHRLS 3P Q NUIIIACLE |
“ABSIRAS SUCLNAIINOD 1ROXISIA DIN U 20e1d 130 1900 33 30U 01 DILIPRANT 31 LIDIST 3901 /BARIL SA00Y 30 UORCUSSAD % 163 paisabling
90 DISEQ OPY'F06'CY JO LOZNAILLOD B OF HEDI pinom yoriw sildnd pabe Keouoods 621 Batk PINom AL I $BL3MD SOR PIRKLRG e WOJAMUG 311 FE0Z PUGKIQ 111w UOLEIFEISUOD K0, PILLEIBME j0u ) ‘Ll & 52 .ntm
"KRAZECDUI “JMLL IO J0BCLI I OF 2ALEIS 11O woS PRINDII 3G IS DNOW NS LLLOLICCOK! € 'SKURDS JILO WA F01S ubnang pIoIaNd (cIMOT! wekd aSaNTSEs Bunesa bue BuBAD 10007 R i Aisoud M, € S8 Dol 51 Liv|
#q Aew Guspany 13w pue Q;0e0e0 00U08 AIEPU0OYs 1100dNS CL 2L J0) AWRDY 9055 I UBRGIS BLOW, 0u . LANL SML WAL  ASUNOD BuiDaD O} $3959€ anamos: -ALops w.ow 3 se wee Anunod B ped o) s3300¢
UDFEG00 130G 1a 1w 01 3np eaty Buiuiia HEUNONK U L AV 100408 LEPUEOIS ;0 AIUDBLNsw; U 3G 03 PSEOQ) 3 DAL 1817 SRS 416000903 PUE 15 431,00 PUE E18D BUCLAD JO UOTEIBESI00 USNOAD DILn U
AUTPARILL I AT U0 PSS 1 JML IO IPIU A 193w 0F vopedrd 100493 UEDUCOIS £ 16U 1SN PO IDLNOD KunoD ML WIas Aeaiq Burdg 9210000 HE & T IWALN0H NL 18} ya..unnu?sos.s:u_&¢tl
PIOU HUIAGD 35 Buimoss 151 M U0 P3LIE53S 30 03 PI9000ST 8: {IMLS K 2 KRUS1sA DO 1 SUOKNGIRU0S JO0UYE AEPLOODS, JHLIUM JL33UN & I 20211 A0V 30 LOTSNIIN IS SUOCINS [13UN0D AULNOD ML - |4eiS) S8 ARYL, DAL |



Community Infrastructure Levy Project SIP1.- Active Travel Links SIP2 - Leapool Roundabout Park and Ride Service | 2 Blue/ Green ":;::::"d"re Improvement SIP4 - Ambition Arnold
Evaluation
Weighting Max Score Score Weighted Score Comments Score Weighted Score Comments Score Weighted Score Comments Score Weighted Score Comments
Criteria
Relationship to Local Development 17.5 5 5 17.5 4 14 5 17.5 4 14
Public Benefits 17.5 5 5 17.5 a4 14 5 17.5 4 14
See project tab See project tab See project tab See project tab
Deliverability and Sustainability 175 5 2 7 prol 1 35 Proi 2 7 proi 3 105 Proi
for for for for
Value for Money 17.5 5 1 3.5 1 3.5 1 3.5 1 3.5
Match Funding 30 5 1 6.00 1 6.00 1 6.00 1 6.00
100% 100 51.50 41.00 51.50 48.00
[Ranking 2 5 2 4
SIPS - Carlton Leisure and Ce ity Centre SIP6 - Gedling Country Park Heritage Centre SIP7 - MAS Community CIC HUB SIP8 - Ce ivity Between ick &
Score | Weighted Score | Comments Score | Weighted Score Comments Score Weighted Score Comments Score Weighted Score Comments
5 17.5 4 14 2 7 2 7
5 17.5 See project tab 3 105 See project tab L 0 See project tab 3 105 See project tab
3 10.5 2 7 1 3.5 1 3.5
for for for for
2 7 1 35 2 7 1 3.5
1 6 1 6 3 18 1 6
58.5 a1 35.5 30.5
1 5 7 | 11
SIP12 - Manor Park Infant and Nursery School Play
Weighted Score Comments Score | Weighted Score Comments
4 14 4 14
L) L) See project tab L) L) See project tab
3 10.5 3 10.5
for for comments
2 7 2 7
0 0 0 0
31.5 31.5
Description Criteria Assessment  Score Interpretation
The nomlnatlfm is to dem?nstrate a direct link between the  Relationship to Excellent 5 Exceeds the requirement
proposed projec the CIL Liable developments that have been Development

Exceptional demonstration by the nomination that the relevant project will clearly meet the aims/objectives of the

constructed withmehe locality.
i relevant criteria. Submission identifies several factors that will offer potential added value, with substaintial supporting

m evidence.
The nomination i: e to demostrate the posititve impacts and Wider Public
opportunities the osed project would create for the users and  Benefits g . . . e 3
ppor posec projes f Good 4 Satisfies the requirement with minor additional benefits
the wider general ic. The project should be able to b d ion by th L h h | . il | he ai biecti £ th
demonstrate hoduantributes to the Councils Strategic Policies Above aveltage' emon%tr?tloh yt' 'e nomination t alt the relevant PrOJect will ¢l ear\{ meet the 'alms/'o jectives of the
for its development plan. Where possible projects must be able to relevant criteria. Submission identifies factors that will offer potential added value with supporting evidence.
be utilised by all members of the public rather than any specific
group/organisation. Acceptable 3 Satisfies the requirement
Demonstration by the nomination that the relevant project will clearly meet the aims/objectives of the relevant
The nomination demonstrates that the project is deliverable ina  Deliverability and criteria.
timely manner and that steps have been taken to approach and Sustainability
coll.aborate \'Nlth arTy other sta.keholders / contractors that.wolf\d Minor 2 satisfies the requirement with minor reservations
be involved in getting the project off the ground. The nomination . . . N . N . B P P
. . N Reservations Some minor reservations of the nominations relevant suitability to meet the aims/objectives of the relevant criteria
should also include evidence to demonstrate that once the project o X .
has been delivered, appropriate measures are in place to ensure with little or no evidence to support submission.
that the project will be managed / operational in a sustainable
manner for the foreseeable future. Serious 1 Satisfies the requirement with major reservations
Reservations Considerable reservations of the nominations relevant suitability to meet the aims/objectives of the relevant criteria

with little or no evidence to support submission.
The nomination demonstrates that the project would provide good Value for Money PP

value for money and would be good combination of cost, quality

and sustainability to meet the needs of the locality. Costs should Unacceptable 0 Does not meet the requirement
include and detail ongoing maintenance costs and how these Does not comply and/or insufficient information provided to demonstrate that the nomination would meet the
would be covered. aims/objectives of the relevant criteria with little or no evidence to support the submission.

The nomination details other revenue sources of Match Funding ~ Match Funding
which have been secured or are in the process of being secured.

Match funding is a key consideration when evaluating the

suitability of projects to ensure that maximum value can be

Final Rating

obtained through the CIL Non-Parish Neighbourhood Receipts. 80+ Likely to be considered essential Infrastructure for the future of the Borough.
60-80 Highly desirable and potentially time sensitive Infrasrtucture projects.
40-60 Desireable projects but not considered to be essential.
20-40 Projects that could have value but fall short on multiple criteria.

0-20 Projects that are not deemed suitable.




This page is intentionally left blank



Gedling Borough Council’s Infrastructure List

Community Infrastructure Levy

Secondary School Contributions at Top Wighay

Farm developments.

To be funded through
Strategic portion of CIL
Receipts collected from Top

Wighay Farm development.

Carlton Leisure & Wellbeing Community Centre

To be funded through
Strategic portion of CIL
Receipts collected across the
Borough.

Annual assessment of suitable Infrastructure
projects identified in accordance with Regulation
59F of the Community Infrastructure Levy
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019.

To be funded through the
Neighbourhood portion of
CIL Receipts collected in the

‘relevant area’.

Section 106 Contributions

Provision of Affordable Housing Units either on-site

of through capital contributions.

To be secured through
Section 106 Obligations.

Provision of Open Spaces including new

infrastructure and improvements to existing sites.

To be secured through
Section 106 Obligations.

Provision for Primary Healthcare including new
infrastructure and improvements of existing

surgeries.

To be secured through
Section 106 Obligations.

Any other future infrastructure which is deemed
necessary, in accordance with the Community
Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2)
Regulations 2019

To be secured through
Section 106 Obligations.

Page 51




This page is intentionally left blank



G abed

Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment

Gedling

Borough Council

Name of project, policy,
function, service or proposal
being assessed:

Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review

The main objective of
Community Infrastructure
Levy Strategic Review

The objective of the above proposal is to approve the updating of Gedling Borough Council’s
Infrastructure List to include suitable strategic infrastructure projects in accordance with the

following Officer recommendations.

¢ Internal (staff)

e External (e.g. stakeholders, residents, local businesses etc.)

What impact will the Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review have on the following groups? Please note that you
should consider both external and internal impact:

Please use only Yes’ where applicable Negative | Positive Neutral | Comments
Gender External - - Yes No specific impact
Internal - - Yes No specific impact
Gender Reassignment External - - Yes No specific impact
Internal - - Yes No specific impact
Age External - - Yes No specific impact
Internal - - Yes No specific impact

Marriage and civil

partnership External - - Yes No specific impact




G abed

Internal Yes No specific impact
Disability
External Yes No specific impact
Internal Yes No specific impact
Race & Ethnicity o
External Yes No specific impact
Internal Yes No specific impact
Sexual Orientation External Yes No specific impact
Internal Yes No specific impact
Religion or Belief (or no External Yes No specific impact
Belief)
Internal Yes No specific impact
Pregnancy & Maternity External Yes No specific impact
Internal Yes No specific impact
Other Groups (e.g. any other To ensure thg
vulnerable groups, rural consultation is
isolation, deprived areas, low accessible to a wide
income staff etc.) range of people of
different backgrounds
Please state the group/s: including age, nationality
External Yes and IT capabilities the

consultation shall be
carried out in various
mediums including
newsletters and
webpages which can be
translated into various
languages for peoples




GG obed

whose native language
is not English. A copy of
the consultation will also
be made available to the
public in the Civic Centre
Reception.

Internal

Yes

No specific impact




9G abed

Is there is any evidence of a high
disproportionate adverse or positive No
impact on any groups?

Is there an opportunity to mitigate or
alleviate any such impacts? N/A

Are there any gaps in information
available (e.g. evidence) so that a
complete assessment of different impacts No
is not possible?

In response to the information provided above please provide a set of proposed action including any consultation that is going to
be carried out:

Planned Actions Timeframe Success Measure Responsible Officer

Public consultation on Six-week public consultation | A total of 89 representations | Lewis Widdowson

the Community has been undertaken have been received in Community Infrastructure Levy Officer.
Infrastructure Levy following approval by Cabinet.| response to the consultation.

Strategic Review

Authorisation and Review

Completing Officer Lewis Widdowson

Authorising Head of Service/Director Director of Place

Date 4" September 2025

Review date (if applicable) N/A




)G abed

Appendix 5: Climate Impact Assessment

Gedling

Borough Council

Name of project, policy, Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review
function, service or proposal
being assessed:

The main objective of The objective of the above proposal is to approve the updating of Gedling Borough Council’s
Community Infrastructure Infrastructure List to include suitable strategic infrastructure projects in accordance with the
Levy Strategic Review following Officer recommendations.

What impact will the Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review have on the following. Please read guidance before
completing.

No impact/
Category Negative Positive Negligible Mitigation/
change Comments

Behaviour & Culture

Change - Yes No specific impact




gG abed

Yes

The proposal seeks to
identify suitable
strategic infrastructure
projects which will be
included on a future
revised Infrastructure
List. The provision of
new strategic
infrastructure projects
will play a key role in
mitigating any impacts
created by new
development within
Gedling Borough.

Yes

The proposal seeks to
identify suitable
strategic infrastructure
projects which will be
included on a future
revised Infrastructure
List. Such strategic
projects include, but
are not limited to, of
new public transport
improvements which
would improve
connectivity within
Gedling Borough.




6G obed

Yes

Strategic
infrastructure projects
will enhance and
assist with the
Council’s delivery of
a safe, attractive and
clean Borough which
is committed to
tackling Climate
Change.

Yes

No specific impact

Yes

Several of the projects
identified for the public
consultation are
directly linked to
Blue/Green
Infrastructure and
would play a key role
in improving provision
of such infrastructure
throughout the
Borough better
connecting its
residents and
improving a healthy
community.

Yes

No specific impact




09 abed

going to be carried out

In response to the information provided above please provide if there is any proposed action including any consultation that is

Planned Actions

Timeframe

Potential Outcome

Responsible Officer

Public consultation on
the Community
Infrastructure Levy
Strategic Review

Six-week public consultation
has been undertaken
following approval by Cabinet.

A total of 89
representations have been
received in response to the
consultation.

Lewis Widdowson
Community Infrastructure Levy Officer.

Authorisation and Review

Completing Officer

Authorising Head of Service/Director

Date
Review date ( if applicable)

Lewis Widdowson

Director of Place

4™ September 2025

N/A




Gedling

Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule

Adopted July 2015

Page 61



Introduction

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new levy that local authorities can choose
to charge on new developments in their area. The money can be used to fund a wide
range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of development — for example, new or
safer road schemes, park improvements or schools. The levy applies to most new
buildings and charges are based on the size and type of the new development.

CIL is considered to be fairer, faster and more certain and transparent than the current
system of planning obligations which are generally negotiated on a ‘case-by case’ basis.
Levy rates have been set in consultation with local communities and developers and
provide developers with much more certainty ‘up front’ about how much money they will
be expected to contribute.

Levy rates must be set a level which does not affect the viability of development in the
area taking into account the cost of land, build costs, expected sales price and a return
for the developer. Given the differences in land costs and sales prices across the
Borough it is proposed to set different CIL rates in different parts of the Borough.

The Charging Authority
The Borough of Gedling is a charging authority for the purposes of Part 11of the
Planning Act 2008 and may therefore charge the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in

respect of development in the Borough of Gedling. The Council is also the collecting
authority for its administrative area.

Date of Approval

The Charging Schedule was approved by the Council on 15" July 2015

Date of Effect

The Charging Schedule will come into effect within three months of the date of Council
approval.

Statutory Compliance

The Charging Schedule has been prepared in accordance with the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), Part 11 of the Planning Act
2008 and statutory guidance in 'Community Infrastructure Levy: Guidance' (CLG,
2012).

In accordance with Regulation 14, in setting the CIL rate the Council has aimed to strike
what it considers to be an appropriate balance between

e the desirability of funding from CIL (in whole or part) the actual and expected
estimated total cost of infrastructure required to support the development of

Page 62



its area, taking into account other actual and expected sources of funding;
and

e the potential effects (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the
economic viability of development across its area.

CIL Rate

The rate at which CIL will be charged shall be:

Development Type

Residential Zone 1 Zone 2

£0/sqgm £45/sqgm
Commercial Borough wide
Retail A1, A2, A3, A4, A5 £60/sgm
All other uses £0/sgm

Page 63



Gedling

sTA 7 9

CIL - Residential Charging Zones

O TR IETY.

== 5

ol

Ravenshead

Lambley;

# Netherfield
and Colwick

© Crown copyrght and databaze right 2014, Ordnance Survey Licenca nurmber 100019317, . 9
u i charging I wards - 14 PLW QIS team 140062014 - — -

Page 64



Liability to pay CIL

Liability to pay CIL occurs on the grant of the related planning permission that first
permits the proposed development, such as the grant of full planning, change of use or
approval of the last reserved matter on the grant of outline planning.

CIL payment

GBC will issue a liability notice following the grant of the planning permission for the
chargeable development. The notice will be sent to the applicant, the owner and any
party who has assumed liability for the CIL.

The Regulations state that CIL becomes payable upon the commencement of
development (defined by reference to section 56(4) of the TCPA 1990 and includes
works of demolition and construction and preparatory works such as digging foundations
and installing services). The Council proposes to introduce an instalments payments
policy as set out below:

Chargeable Amount Timescale
Less than £15,000 Full payment within 90 days of development
commencing

Between £15,000 and £50,000 First instalment (25%) within 90 days
Second instalment (50%) within 270 days
Third instalment (25%) within 360 days

Between £50,000 and £100,000 First instalment (25%) within 90 days
Second instalment (50%) within 360 days
Third instalment (25%) within 540 days

Over £100,000 First instalment (25%) within 90 days
Second instalment (25%) within 270 days
Third instalment (25%) within 540 days
Fourth instalment (25%) within 720 days

Calculating the Charge

GBC will calculate the amount of CIL payable ("chargeable amount") in respect of a
chargeable development in accordance with regulation 40 of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, as amended in 2011, 2012 and 2014.

Under Regulation 40, the CIL rate will be index linked with the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors "All In Tender Price Index".

Page 65



Existing Floorspace on a Development Site

Regulation 40 provides that the total floorspace of any existing buildings on a
development site should be subtracted from the floorspace of the chargeable
development, where the existing buildings have been in use for at least six months

within the period of 36 months ending on the day planning permission first permits the
chargeable development.

Exemptions and Reliefs
The following forms of development are exempt from paying CIL:

e Dbuildings into which people do not normally go, or go only intermittently for the
purpose of inspecting or maintaining fixed plant or machinery (Regulation 6);

e developments of under 100 sq m that do not result in the creation of 1 or
more additional dwellings (Regulation 42);

e development by a charity where the development will be used wholly or
mainly for charitable purposes (Regulation 43) and

e self-build housing or self-build communal development (Regulation
54A)

The following types of development are able to apply for relief from paying CIL:
e social housing (Regulations 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54).
In addition, the Council has the option to offer discretionary relief for:

e development by a charity where the profits of the development will be used
for charitable purposes (Regulations. 44, 45, 46, 47, 48); and

e exceptional circumstances (Regulations 55, 56, 57, 58).

The Council's policy on whether discretionary relief is offered will be set out in a
separate policy document, in accordance with the relevant regulations.

Page 66



Regulation 123 List of Projects to be funded by CIL

Project 1

Project Location:

Project Description:

Progress:

Estimated Cost:

Funding:

Gap

Project 2

Project Location:

Project Description:

Progress:
Estimated Cost:

Funding
Gap

Project 3

Project Location:

Project Description:

Progress:

Estimated Cost:

Funding
Gap

Gedling Colliery

Gedling Access Road to facilitate development of
Gedling Colliery/Chase Farm

Full application granted December 2014. Application for
first phase 315 dwellings anticipated summer 2015

£32,400,000

£26,200,000

£6,200,000

Gedling Colliery Country Park
Visitor Centre

Not yet started

£1,000,000

£ 0

£1,000,000

Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm
Secondary School Contributions

Not yet started

£1,689,000
£0
£1,689,000

Page 67



Project 4

Project Location: Top Wighay Farm

Project Description: Secondary School Contributions
Progress: Not yet started

Estimated Cost: £2,816,000

Funding: £0

Gap: £2,816,000

Further Information

Further information on the Community Infrastructure Levy is available on the Borough
Council’'s website www.gedling.gov.uk or contact the Planning Policy team
at planningpolicy@gedling.gov.uk or tel (0115) 901 3757.

Page 68


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
mailto:planningpolicy@gedling.gov.uk

Gedlin

Borough Council

Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy

Guidance Note

December 2016

Page 69



Contents Page

1. Introduction
2. Legislative and Policy Framework
3. Community Infrastructure Levy

4. Gedling Borough Council Approach to Contributions
- Interaction between Planning Obligations and CIL

- Process for seeking developer contributions

- Application process

- Process diagram

- Forms

- Relief and Exemptions

- Discretionary relief

- Timing, Payment and Enforcement of Financial Obligations

- Monitoring

- Spending

- Neighbourhood Portion of CIL (Guidance for Parish Councils)

- Reporting

5. Keeping the CIL up to date
- Updating the Regulation 123 List

- Indexation of the CIL Rate

- CIL Review

Page 70

23



1. Introduction

1.1. This document is based upon the policies of the adopted Gedling Borough
Aligned Core Strategy (2014), the adopted Gedling Borough Replacement
Local Plan (2005) and the emerging Local Planning Document. This
guidance should be read in conjunction with the Gedling Borough Council

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted July 2015.

1.2.This guidance explains how the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and
Section 106 will be used together to deliver planning obligations and will
demonstrate that developers will not be required to pay twice for the provision

of infrastructure through both a CIL charge and Section 106 contributions.

1.3.The guidance provides a clear and transparent system that identifies what
infrastructure will be funded through CIL and in what circumstances would
infrastructure be required in addition to the CIL payment as a planning

obligation.

1.4.The document will identify how the Council will deal with CIL and Planning
Obligations including the identification of clear procedures involved in the

application and setting of contributions.

2. Legislative and Policy Framework

2.1.The legislative and policy framework for planning obligations includes the
following:

e Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended);

e Planning Act 2008 (as amended);

e The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended);
e The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012);

e The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) (2014);

e Gedling Borough Aligned Core Strategy (2014);

Page 71



e Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (2005) and
e Emerging Local Planning Document (2016)

2.2.Paragraph 206 of the NPPF states that planning conditions should only be
imposed where they are necessary, relevant and reasonable in all other

respects.

2.3.Planning obligations should only be used where it is not possible to address
unacceptable impacts through a planning condition and where they meet the
three tests set out CIL Regulation 122 and paragraph 204 of the NPPF:

‘A planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission

for the development if the obligation is —

a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b) Directly related to the development; and

c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.’

2.4.f a planning obligation does not meet all of these tests it cannot legally be
taken into account in granting planning permission. The local authority needs
to be convinced that, without the obligation, permission should be refused.

2.5. Planning obligations cannot be used to deliver projects which will be provided
for by CIL. The Gedling Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 123 List
sets out the infrastructure projects that the Council may fund, in whole or in

part, through CIL and which cannot be the subject of an obligation.

2.6.Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) limits the pooling
of planning obligations towards infrastructure not on the Regulation 123 List.
The pooling limit includes all planning obligations entered into since 6 April
2010. No more than five separate planning obligations may be pooled
towards an infrastructure type or project. This includes planning obligations
attached to applications under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990, which vary a planning condition. Phased payments as part of a

Page 72



2.7.

2.8.

planning obligation collectively count as a single obligation. There are no
pooling limits in relation to affordable housing and for infrastructure that is not

capable of being funded by CIL

In the 2014 Aligned Core Strategy Policy 19: Developer Contributions
identifies what all developments are expected to contribute towards in
relation to the provision and maintenance of new infrastructure as
consequence of development. The policy also identifies that the Council
intend to introduce the Community Infrastructure Levy to secure the

necessary infrastructure to meet the Core Strategy objectives.

The Council have prepared a number of SPDs, documents and informal
guidance that provides further interpretation of the policies contained with the
Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (2005) and Gedling Borough
Aligned Core Strategy (2014). The following GBC SPDs, documents and
informal guidance provides the current basis for the requirement of Planning

Obligations and the Community Infrastructure Levy.

Affordable Housing

Affordable Housing SPD (2009)
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/affordab
le _housing_spd final dec2009.pdf

Open Space and Leisure

Open Space SPD (2001)
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/open s
pace planning guidance document (final edition).pdf

Air Quality

Guidance on Air Quality and Emissions Mitigation (informal guidance)
(2015)
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/GBC%?2
0AQ%20PLANNING%20GUIDANCE%20Aug2015v2.pdf

Economic Development

Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies Part 1 Local Plan (2014) —
Policy 4: Employment Provision and Economic Development
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adopted
alignedcorestrateqy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(Au

5
Page 73


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/affordable_housing_spd_final_dec2009.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/affordable_housing_spd_final_dec2009.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/open_space_planning_guidance_document_(final_edition).pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/open_space_planning_guidance_document_(final_edition).pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/GBC%20AQ%20PLANNING%20GUIDANCE%20Aug2015v2.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/GBC%20AQ%20PLANNING%20GUIDANCE%20Aug2015v2.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf

qust%202014)%203-9-14.pdf

Primary Healthcare

Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies Part 1 Local Plan (2014) —
Policy 12: Local Services and Health Lifestyles
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adopted
alignedcorestrateqy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(Au
qust%202014)%203-9-14.pdf

Community Infrastructure Levy

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule (2015)
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/cils/Cha
rqing%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%202015).pdf

Page 74


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/adoptedalignedcorestrategy/ACS%20Main%20Publication%20First%20Draft%20(August%202014)%203-9-14.pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/cils/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%202015).pdf
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/documents/planningbuildingcontrol/cils/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%202015).pdf

3. Community Infrastructure Levy

3.1. The Gedling Borough Council Community Infrastructure Levy Charge

Schedule was approved by the Council on 15™ July 2015. The Charging
Schedule came into effect on 15" October 2015. The Gedling Borough

Council CIL Charging Schedule can be viewed at: www.gedling.gov.uk/CIL.

3.2. A broad definition of ‘infrastructure’ for the purposes of CIL funding is set out
in section 216(2) of the Planning Act 2008 and includes:

Road and other transport facilities;
Flood defences;

Schools and other education facilities;
Medical facilities;

Sporting and recreational facilities; and

Open spaces.

3.3.The evidence supporting the CIL Charging Schedule shows that

developments would still be viable even though CIL would exceed past levels
of S106 contributions.

3.4.The Council’s approach in the supporting Viability Appraisal reflects

appropriate industry costs and is set at an appropriate and realistic rate.

Contingency costs and significant viability buffers are built in and provide

reasonable margins for any additional costs. The viability assessments

carried out as part of the preparation of the CIL demonstrate that the rates

contained in the CIL Charging Schedule have been set realistically and can

be borne by most developments without making projects commercially

unviable. This represents a cautious but realistic approach to viability and

the CIL rates in the Borough.

Page 75


http://www.gedling.gov.uk/CIL

4. Gedling Borough Council Approach to Contributions

4.1.

4.2.

This section sets out Gedling Borough Council’s approach towards seeking
planning contributions from development schemes. It looks at the interaction
between planning obligations and CIL, the process for seeking planning
obligations, and the Council’s approach to viability considerations. This

section provides worked examples.

Interaction between Planning Obligations and CIL

CIL payments will be sought in line with the Borough’s adopted CIL Charging
Schedule. In addition to CIL, developers will still be expected to mitigate any
impact on the environment or local infrastructure that arises directly as a
result of the development, in line with the tests set out in CIL Regulation 122
and NPPF paragraph 204. The following will still continue to be provided

through planning obligations:

e Affordable housing (as this is outside the scope of CIL);

e Infrastructure that is required as a result of specific development (and
is not included in the Regulation 123 list);

e Commuted sums for the maintenance of facilities/infrastructure that
the developer would like another body to adopt; and

e Mitigating the direct negative impacts of development.

4.3.Figure 1 below sets out a summary of what may be required from a typical

development scheme. This is provided as an illustration only, and there may
be specific cases which vary from this for justifiable reasons. Applicants are
advised to consult the Planning Department at an early stage in the process

in order to discuss requirements relating to specific development proposals.

Page 76



Figure 1 Potential contributions from development schemes (illustrative only)

Type of development

scheme

Standard CIL

charge

Potential planning

obligations

Residential extension less
than 100 m?

No

Mitigation of specific

impacts if required

Residential extensions of
100 m?+

Yes (Residential
Charging Zones 2
and 3 only)

Mitigation of specific

impacts if required

1to 14 dwellings
e Sites > 0.4ha

Yes (Residential
Charging Zones 2
and 3 only)

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required

On site provision of open
space or contribution to
off-site improvements +
commuted maintenance
sum (residential sites
over 0.4 ha)

15 to 99 dwellings
e Sites > 0.4ha

Yes (Residential
Charging Zones 2
and 3 only)

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required

On site provision of open
space or contribution to
off-site improvements +
commuted maintenance
sum (residential sites
over 0.4 ha)

Affordable Housing

100+ dwellings
e Sites > 0.4ha

Yes (Residential
Charging Zones 2
and 3 only)

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required

On site provision of open
space or contribution to
off-site improvements +
commuted maintenance

sum (residential sites

Page 77




over 0.4 ha)
Affordable Housing
Development-specific
infrastructure (where
need created by the
development — e.g.
primary school or
community facility)

Retail development less
than 100 m?

No

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required

Retail development of
100m*+

Yes (Borough wide)

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required
Development-specific
infrastructure (could
include open space,
transport infrastructure

or other aspects)

Other types of
development

No

Mitigation of specific
impacts if required
Development-specific
infrastructure (could
include open space,
transport infrastructure

or other aspects)

4.4.Since 6™ April 2015, Gedling Borough Council have only been able to pool up

to five Section 106 contributions towards the implementation of a specific

item of infrastructure. If such an item is to be delivered wholly or partly

through CIL, this item of infrastructure must be clearly exempt from a

planning obligation and are identified in the Council’s Regulation 123 List,

which details specific items of infrastructure to be delivered by CIL.

Page 78

10




4.5.Figure 2 below seeks to clarify the split between CIL and Section 106

agreements, by listing the key forms of contributions likely to be sought. It

should be noted that the list of infrastructure types is not exhaustive.

Figure 2 Infrastructure types delivered through CIL and Section 106

Type of infrastructure*

S106
infrastructure/mitigation

CIL funded

infrastructure

Transport

Site-related requirements
only.

Project 1- Gedling
Colliery/Chase Farm
Gedling Access Road to
facilitate development of
Gedling Colliery/Chase
Farm

Drainage and flood
protection

Site-related flood defence
infrastructure (such as
SUDS)

Public transport

Site-related requirements

only.
Travel behavioural change | Site-related requirements | -
measures only.

Affordable housing

Affordable housing

Education Mitigation and Project 3 - Gedling
development of specific Colliery/Chase Farm
schools and education Secondary School
facilities to meet needs of | Contributions
new development.

Project 4 - Top Wighay
Farm Secondary School
Contributions

Open Space Site related requirements | -

only or replacement of
open space lost through
development.

Community facilities

Site-related requirements

Project 2 — Visitor Centre

only. for Gedling Country Park
Cultural facilities Site-related requirements | Project 2 — Visitor Centre
only. for Gedling Country Park

Health and social care
facilities

New health facilities within
large developments.

Project 2 — Visitor Centre
for Gedling Country Park

Page 79

11




Emergency services

Site-related requirements
only.

Environmental
improvements

Site-related requirements
only.

Waste recycling facilities

Site-related requirements
only.

Shopping facilities

Site-related requirements
only.

Green Infrastructure

Site-related requirements
only

Information and
Communication
Technology

Site-related requirements
only.

Training and employment
measures for local people

Site-related requirements
only.

*Infrastructure types taken from paragraph 2.19.2 of the Core Strategy (Adopted

September 2014)

Process for seeking developer contributions
4.6. This section sets out the process for CIL and the seeking of developer
contributions, including the collection, financial management and use of

funds.

Application process

4.7.Developers are advised to enter into discussion with the local planning
authority (and other infrastructure providers including Nottinghamshire
County Council) as early as possible in the process, e.g. prior to an

application being submitted.

4.8.The Planning Officer will consider the potential requirements for planning

obligations as outlined in this document and/or CIL charges (if applicable).

4.9.The Planning Officer may draw on advice from other infrastructure providers
and stakeholders in relation to the need for planning obligations. When
dealing with outline applications, the local planning authority is able to

provide an indicator of the requirements for planning obligations. CIL

12
Page 80



4.10

4.11.

4.12.

charges will only apply and be calculated on detailed planning applications

(Full / Reserved Matters) when final floorspaces are known.

.Nottinghamshire County Council has a Planning Obligations Strategy that

was adopted April 2014. The strategy seeks to provide a fair, consistent and
transparent basis for negotiating legal agreements throughout
Nottinghamshire, thereby enabling developers to take account the potential
costs of a proposed development at the earliest stage. The County
Council’'s Planning Obligation Strategy can be accessed via the following
link:

http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/general-

planning/planning-obligations-strateqy

If you have any queries regarding the ‘Planning Obligations Strategy’ please
contact the County’s Planning Obligations Unit, telephone 0115 9774545.

Process Diagram

The process diagrams at Figure 3, 4 and 5 set out how both planning
obligations and CIL are secured, collected, monitored, reported and used
and shows how these individual processes will work in parallel through the

planning system.

13
Page 81


http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/general-planning/planning-obligations-strategy
http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/general-planning/planning-obligations-strategy

Figure 3 Planning Obligation Process

Pre
Application

Submission /
Determination

ﬂ\_“‘“"‘ructure Levy (CIL)

_______ IgnbouThood FONdIng Noté&™ — = = ~

for Gedling Borough Parish Councils

Post
Application

14
Page 82



Figure 4 Community Infrastructure Levy Process (only applicable to detailed

applications — Full/Reserved Matters applications)

Pre
Application

—>

Submission /
Determination

_
Post
Commencement

Pre
Commencement




Figure 5 Spending and Monitoring Process for CIL and Planning Obligations

-

4.13. Planning obligations are generally agreed as part of the planning application
process and then secured when planning permission for a site or scheme is
granted. Unlike S106, CIL is non-negotiable. When an application is
received, council officers will determine if the development is eligible to pay
CIL in accordance with the CIL Regulations. The CIL liability will then be
calculated and the applicant will be informed of the amount due. CIL
collection arrangements are covered in part 8 of the CIL Regulations
(http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/part/8) and shown

in the process highlighted in Figure 4 further information on CIL collection,

16
Page 84


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/part/8

enforcement, forms and templates are also available on the National

Planning Practice Guidance website.

http://planningquidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/community-

infrastructure-levy/

Forms

4.14. When applying and administering the CIL, there are a number of potential

stages where forms and information are required to be supplied to the

Council. All of these forms are available to access and download on the

Council’s website at www.gedling.gov.uk/CIL. The following table highlights

these forms and their purpose:

Figure 6 CIL Forms and Purpose

CIL Form

Purpose

CIL Form 1 — Assumption of Liability

This form is used to assume liability prior

to commencement of development.

CIL Form 2 — Claiming Exemption and or
Relief

This form should be used to claim
charitable relief, social housing relief,
and/or exceptional circumstances relief
prior to the commencement of

development.

CIL Form 3 — Withdrawal of Assumption
of Liability

This is used to withdraw the assumption
of liability. It must be submitted/received
by the Council prior to commencement of

development.

CIL Form 4 — Transfer of Assumed
Liability

This form allows parties to transfer
liability to pay at any time up to the day
before the date when final payment is

due.

CIL Form 5 — Notice of Chargeable
Development

This form should be used when a

development is granted by way of

17

Page 85



http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy/
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/CIL

general consent (i.e. Permitted
Development, Prior Notification etc.) for
additional floorspace for either a
residential extension or retalil
development over 100 sg. m of the

creation of a new dwelling.

CIL Form 6 — Commencement Notice

This notice must be received by the
charging/collecting authority prior to
commencing development. Failure to
issue this may result in losing the ability
to pay the levy in instalments, it may also

nullify any claim for exemption or relief.

CIL Form 7 — Self Build Exemption Claim
Form Part 1

The form is used to claim exemption for a
self build home. It must be granted prior
to the commencement of the
development and a Commencement
Notice must be received prior to the date
of commencement of the development.

If this is not received the applicant will
otherwise be liable for the full levy

charge.

CIL Form 7 — Self Build Exemption Claim
Form Part 2

This form is used to validate the Self
Build Exemption Claim. It must be
submitted to the Council within six
months of the completion of the
development with the detailed supporting
evidence. Without it the applicant may
otherwise be liable for the full levy

charge.

CIL Form 8 — Self Build Residential

Annex Exemption Claim Form

This form is used to claim exemption for
residential annexes. It must be granted
prior to the commencement of the

development and a Commencement

18

Page 86




Notice must be received prior to the date
of commencement of the development.
If this is not received the applicant will

otherwise be liable for the full levy

charge.
CIL Form 9 — Self Build Extension This form is used to claim exemption for
Exemption Claim Form a self build residential extension that is

over 100 sg.m. This relief must be
submitted and granted prior to

commencement.

Relief and Exemptions

4.15. As detailed in the Gedling Charging Schedule a number of forms of

development are exempt from paying CIL:

Buildings into which people do not normally go, or go only
intermittently for the purpose of inspecting or maintaining fixed plant
or machinery (Regulation 6);

Developments of under 100 sq m that do not result in the creation
of 1 or more additional dwellings (Regulation 42);

Self-build Residential Extension and Annexes over 100 sq m.
(Regulations 42A and 42B);

Development by a charity where the development will be used
wholly or mainly for charitable purposes (Regulation 43); and
Self-build housing or self-build communal development (Regulation
54A).

4.16. In order for a relief or exemption to apply to a potential CIL liable

development, relief must be applied for and confirmed by the Council prior to

commencement of the following types of development:

Self-build residential extensions and annexes over 100 sq m;
Development by a charity where the development will be used
wholly or mainly for charitable purposes;

Self-build housing or self- build communal development; and

19
Page 87




4.17.

4.18.

4.19.

4.20.

4.21.

e Social housing.

The Council cannot apply relief or exemptions retrospectively to

development that has already commenced.

Exceptional Discretionary Relief

In the Examiner’s Report into the Examination of the Gedling Borough
Council Revised Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, the
Examiner considered that having or not having a discretionary relief policy is

“a matter for the Council”.

At this time, although there is the legislative framework available to provide
this relief through Regulations 55, 56, 57 and 58 of Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulation 2010 (as amended), the Council does not envisage bringing

forward a policy offering this relief.

Timing, Payment and Enforcement of Financial Obligations

The Borough Council will monitor planning obligations to ensure they are
fulfilled with, and enforcement action will be taken where conditions or
planning obligations are not complied with. Payment of financial
contributions will be in line with triggers in the agreements. Late payment of
more than 3 weeks will trigger a reminder letter and the Council will consider
pursuing appropriate legal action to recover unpaid amounts, including

interest and legal fees.

Payment of the CIL is due upon the commencement of development (defined
by reference to section 56(4) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and
includes works of demolition and construction and preparatory works such as

digging foundations and installing services).

The Council’s CIL Instalment Payment Policy is shown in Figure 7:

20
Page 88



Figure 7 Instalment Payment Policy

Chargeable | Number of Total Payment Periods and Amounts
Amount Instalments | Timescale
for
Instalments
Less than Full payment within 90 days of
£15,000 1 90 days development
Between 1% Instalment (25%) within 90 days.
£15,000 and 3 360 days | 2" Instalment (50%) within 270 days.
£50,000 3" Instalment (25%) within 360 days.
Between 1% Instalment (25%) within 90 days.
£50,000 and 3 540 days | 2" Instalment (50%) within 360 days.
£100,000 3" Instalment (25%) within 540 days.
1% Instalment (25%) within 90 days.
Over £100.000 4 720 days 2" Instalment (25%) within 270 days.

3" Instalment (25%) within 540 days.
4™ Instalment (25%) within 720 days

4.22.

4.23.

4.24.

Unlike Section 106 obligations, CIL payment is mandatory and non-

negotiable. If you do not pay on time:

o you will be subject to a penalty without further notification; and

e any agreement for you to pay by instalments will be withdrawn.

There are strong enforcement powers and penalties for failure to pay,
including Stop Notices, surcharges and prison terms. Further detail
regarding the enforcement of CIL can be found within Part 9 of the CIL
Regulations at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/part/9/made and

will be detailed further in the separate CIL Enforcement Guidance.

Monitoring

The Council will monitor Section 106 agreements closely focusing on key
trigger points for payment and/or delivery of infrastructure related to
development. These triggers are usually based on key stages and levels of
development (e.g. prior to commencement, commencement, completion and
occupation.) Signatures’ of the S106 agreement are responsible for notifying
the Council of when trigger points have been hit. Once the Council have
been notified or have found that a trigger has been met invoices will be
prepared and sent by relevant departments. The Council will monitor Section

21
Page 89



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/part/9/made

4.25.

4.26.

4.27.

4.28.

106 agreements up until the discharge of the agreement once all

requirements have been met.

The Council will publish information on an annual basis outlining the scope of
planning obligations and CIL monies received and how they have been
spent. This information will be detailed in the Council’s Annual Monitoring

Report and will be published on the Council’s website.

Spending

Legal agreements will specify timeframes for spending monies secured
through planning obligations. Where necessary the Council will refund
monies where required to do so in accordance with a Section 106 agreement.
Delivery of infrastructure can take time and may also be delayed due to

availability of funding from other sources.

There is no exact timescale for the spending of CIL receipts. However, there
will be a need to establish relationships with external bodies to agree a
process for the requesting of appropriate funds for payment towards
infrastructure identified on the Regulation 123 List.

Neighbourhood Funding
Information relating to the Neighbourhood Funding element of the CIL is

contained within a separately published guidance note.

22
Page 90



5. Keeping the CIL up to date

Updating the Regulation 123 List

5.1.When a charging authorities wishes to revise their Regulation 123 list, it is
required that any changes are clearly explained and are subject to

appropriate local consultation.

5.2. The National Planning Practice Guidance states that “Charging authorities
(Gedling Borough Council) should not remove an item from the Regulation
123 list just so that they can fund this item through a new section 106
agreement. Authorities may amend the Regulation 123 list without revising
their charging schedule, subject to appropriate consultation. However, where
a change to the Regulation 123 list would have a very significant impact on
the viability evidence that supported examination of the charging schedule,

this should be made as part of a review of the charging schedule”.

5.3. At this time Gedling Borough Council are not proposing to revise the
Regulation 123 List. If the Council were minded to the revise the Regulation
123 List it would undergo a 6 week period of public consultation with key

stakeholders and the general public.

Indexation of the CIL Rate

5.4.CIL payments are index linked from the year when CIL is introduced by the
Council to the year when planning permission is granted. The index which is
used is known as the national All-in Tender Price Index which is published by
the Build Cost Information Service (BCIS).

5.5. This index presents forecast figures, which are updated and finalised
periodically. The indexation will be applied annually (1% January) to keep the

CIL responsive to market conditions.

23
Page 91



CIL Review

5.6. The Examiner assessing the Council’s Charging Schedule concluded in their
Examiners Report dated May 2015 that the Council should review the
schedule within 3 years of adoption.

5.7. The Examiner stated that this approach would ensure that the overall
approach towards the funding the cost of new infrastructure and the potential
effects on the economic viability of development across the charging area

would remain viable and ensure that an appropriate balance was struck.

24
Page 92



Agenda Iltem 6

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOSs) in Netherfield Ward
Date: 4th September 2025
Author: Assistant Director — Development

Wards Affected: Netherfield

Purpose: This an updated report is to inform Members of the suitability of
implementing an Article 4 direction to introduce a requirement for planning
permission to change from a Use Class C3 Dwellinghouse (dwelling) to a Use
Class C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share facilities) in the Netherfield
Ward.

Key Decision: No

Recommendation(s)
THAT Cabinet:

1) Agree that there is currently insufficient evidence to demonstrate
that an Article 4 direction or any other measure is necessary to
protect local amenity or the well-being of the Netherfield Ward.

2) Agree that the overall number of HMOs in the Netherfield Ward
should be monitored.

1 Background

1.1  On 20 April 2022 the Council resolved to refer the principle of making of
an Article 4 Direction to remove permitted development rights for change
of use from Use Class C3 (dwellinghouse) to Use Class C4 (house in
multiple occupation) covering the Netherfield area to Cabinet. The Council
also called upon the government to reverse the legislation it introduced in
September 2010 that removed a requirement for planning permission for
HMOs and resolved to write to local members of parliament accordingly.

Page 93



1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

An Article 4 direction is a direction made under Article 4 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015, which enables the Secretary of State or the local planning authority
to withdrawn specific permitted development rights across a defined area.
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice
Guidance (PPG) advises that the use of Article 4 directions to remove
national permitted development rights should be limited to situations
where an Article 4 direction is necessary to protect local amenity or the
well-being of the area and in all cases, be based on robust evidence, and
apply to the smallest geographical area possible

Reports were considered by Cabinet on 16" June 2022 and 8™ December
2022. Both reports concluded that there was insufficient evidence to
demonstrate that an Article 4 Direction should be served in order to protect
amenity or the surrounding environment.

Appendix 1 was evidence considered by Cabinet on 8" December 2022.
Cabinet agreed with the recommendation to; Agree that i) there was
currently insufficient evidence to demonstrate that an Article 4 direction
or any other measure is necessary to protect local amenity or the well-
being of the Netherfield Ward; and ii) to monitor the overall number of
HMOs in the Netherfield Ward.

Proposal

An updated analysis of the suitability of implementing an Article 4 direction
is attached at Appendix 2 of the report. The report considers the current
evidence available to the Council including the following:

- An assessment of the planning application received since the
Cabinet report of 8" December 2022 being the change of use of 48
Bourne Street to a 7 bedroom, 7 person HMO (Sui Generis use). It
should be noted that this property was already in use as a HMO
with 6 occupiers. The application was determined to be compliant
with the NPPF, Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategy (Part 1
Local Plan), Local Planning Document and the Parking Provision
for Residential Developments — Supplementary Planning
Document

There are 3120 residential properties within the ward of Netherfield
(Valuation Office Agency 2024). An assessment of the composition of the
housing stock in Netherfield concludes that only 0.44%, a total of 14
properties, are HMOs with capacity to accommodate 5 or more unrelated
individuals. There are currently 2 HMOs present on Chandos Street, 3 on
Ashwell Street and 2 on Victoria Road. Presently, there does not appear

Page 94



2.3

2.4

3.1

4.1

to be an over concentration on one particular locality. The distribution of
existing HMOs in the Netherfield Ward is shown at Appendix 3.

There is currently one application being considered for a Lawful
Development Certificate for a HMO of up to 6 occupants at 24 Bourne
Street. This is not an application for planning permission but seeks
confirmation that the proposed development is lawful in planning terms,
i.e. permitted development, and therefore the usual material
considerations are not relevant in the determination of the applications.
Two further applications for Lawful Development Certificates have
recently been granted at 42 Forester Street and 5 Beech Avenue. Should
all 3 of these properties be developed into HMO’s, the total number of
HMO'’s in Netherfield Ward would be 17, or 0.54% of the housing stock.

Analysis shows that there are 2 additional HMQO’s in Netherfield when
compared to the assessment with the Cabinet Report of December 2022.
The overall conclusion of the assessment, having regard to the
requirements set out in the NPPF and PPG, is that there is still currently
insufficient evidence to demonstrate that an Article 4 direction is
necessary to protect local amenity or the well-being of the Netherfield
ward. As there are further HMO’s being developed within the ward, the
situation should however be monitored to ensure that a proliferation of
HMOs does not emerge, in any particular locality or the Netherfield ward
as a whole which might then justify further that consideration of an Article
4 direction is required. No other measures are therefore required to
protect the amenity or well-being of the Netherfield ward.

Alternative Options

An alternative option is to implement either an Article 4 direction to remove
permitted development rights for change of use from Use Class C3
(dwellinghouse) to Use Class C4 (house in multiple occupation) covering
the Netherfield Ward which takes effect immediately, or a non-immediate
Article 4 direction which would result in permitted development rights
being withdrawn upon confirmation of the direction, following local
consultation. These options would not however be evidenced based and
would not comply with the guidance contained within NPPF and PPG.

Financial Implications
There are no direct financial implications arising from the
recommendations in this report. Should either of the alternative options be

pursued this may give rise to a liability to compensate, as detailed in
Section 5, Legal Implications, for which there is no budgetary provision.

Page 95



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10

Legal Implications

The statutory power and policy requirements in relation to the making of
Article 4 directions are set out in section 2 at appendix 3. The making of
such a direction without the necessary justification and evidence as
specified in the NPPF could result in the order being challenged. The
withdrawal of development rights by an Article 4 direction may give rise to
liability to compensate where permission is sought and refused.

Equalities Implications
There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications

There are no carbon reduction/environmental sustainability implications
arising from this report.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Article 4 Directions and the suitability of implementation in
the Netherfield Ward to introduce a requirement for planning permission
to change from a C3 Dwellinghouse (family dwelling) to a C4 HMO (3-6
unrelated people who share facilities)

Appendix 2 — Updated Assessment: Article 4 Directions and the suitability
of implementation in the Netherfield Ward to introduce a requirement for
planning permission to change from a C3 Dwellinghouse (family dwelling)
to a C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share facilities).

Appendix 3 — Distribution of existing HMOs in the Netherfield Ward.
Background Papers

National Planning Policy Framework (2024) National Planning Policy
Framework - GOV.UK

Planning Practice Guidance Planning practice guidance - GOV.UK

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 (as amended) The Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015

Adopted Local Plan and Policy Documents Adopted local plan and policy
documents - Gedling Borough Council

Reasons for Recommendations

Page 96


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/resident/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningpolicy/adoptedlocalplanandpolicydocuments/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/resident/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningpolicy/adoptedlocalplanandpolicydocuments/

10.1 Insufficient evidence exists to support an Article 4 direction to introduce a
requirement for planning permission to change from a C3 Dwellinghouse
(family dwelling) to a C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share facilities)
in the Netherfield Ward.

10.2 To ensure continued monitoring of the position.

Statutory Officer approval

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer

Page 97




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 — Evidence from Appended to Cabinet Report of 8" December 2022

Article 4 Directions and the suitability of implementation in the Netherfield Ward
to introduce a requirement for planning permission to change from a C3
Dwellinghouse (family dwelling) to a C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share
facilities)

1.0 Background

1.1 In April 2010, changes were made to planning regulations involving the introduction
of a new C4 HMO Use Class (applicable to residential properties occupied by between
3 and 6 unrelated people who share facilities). Prior to this, there had been no
distinction in planning terms between such properties and those occupied as a family
home. The April 2010 changes also introduced a requirement for planning permission
to be obtained for a material change of use from a C3 Dwellinghouse (family dwelling)
to a C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share facilities). The result of this was that, it
became possible to assess the merits of individual proposals against local plan
policies and any other material considerations such as traffic impacts and antisocial
behaviour. Planning permission could either be granted with conditions or refused.

1.2 The changes were welcomed by many local authorities, particularly those with high
student populations where there is often a significant demand for HMOs.

1.3 In June 2010, the coalition government announced its intention to introduce further
amendments to the regulations governing HMOs that would introduce a permitted
development right to change the use of a C3 Dwellinghouse to a C4 HMO thereby
removing the newly introduced requirement to obtain planning permission for this
change of use. The changes were subsequently implemented and took effect in
October 2010.

1.4 Local Planning Authorities wishing to reinstate this requirement would then be
required to implement provisions under Article 4 of The Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (“the GDPQ”). This article
allows Local Planning Authorities to withdraw “permitted development” rights for
specified development which would otherwise be permitted where it considers it is
expedient that the development should not be carried out unless permission is granted
for it on an application.

2.0 The Use of Article 4 Directions
2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 53 advises that the
use of Article 4 directions to remove national permitted development rights should be

limited to situations where an Article 4 direction is necessary to protect local amenity
or the well-being of the area and in all cases, be based on robust evidence, and apply

Page 99



to the smallest geographical area possible. The advice is reaffirmed in the Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG) at Paragraph 038, Revision date 20 08 2021. Local Planning
Authorities can therefore only make article 4 direction where it can justify both its
purpose and extent. Use of article 4 directions should be limited to situations where it
is necessary to protect the local amenity or wellbeing of the area and the Local
Planning Authority should clearly identify the potential harm the direction is intended
to address.

2.2 An article 4 direction does not prevent development but means that an application
for planning permission must be made prior to any development taking place. If a Local
Planning Authority makes an article 4 direction it can be liable to pay compensation to
those whose development rights have been withdrawn.

2.3 Two types of article 4 direction can remove permitted rights to change from a C3
Dwellinghouse to a C4 HMO. Firstly, an article 4 direction may take effect immediately
but this must be confirmed by the local planning authority following consultation within
six months or it will lapse. Secondly, a non-immediate article 4 direction may be made
which results in development rights being withdrawn only upon confirmation of the
direction following local consultation. The Secretary of State has the power to cancel
any direction.

2.4 The legal requirement for a non-immediate direction is that the local planning
authority considers it is expedient that the development should not be carried out
unless permission is granted for it on an application. For an immediate direction the
local planning authority must also consider that the development to which the direction
relates would be prejudicial to the proper planning of their area or constitute a threat
to the amenities of their area. Local authorities can elect to make a non-immediate
direction in instances where it would be legally possible to make an immediate
direction. The immediacy of the threat and compensation liability may be
considerations in determining which to use.

2.5 A direction coming into effect immediately would have the clear advantage of
straight away requiring a C4 HMOs to require planning permission. However, it would
also expose the Council to potentially very high levels of compensation liability in
cases where applications submitted within the first 12 months of the removal of the
permitted development rights were refused or granted subject to conditions, such
compensation being based, in part, on the difference in property values arising from
the Council’s decision.

2.6 A non-immediate direction with a prior notice period of 12 months would avoid
compensation liability and also allow the results of local consultation to be taken into
account in advance of the Council deciding to confirm the direction removing permitted
development rights.

Page 100



2.7 As detailed above, any article 4 direction must be evidenced based to comply with
the requirements of the NPPF and the PPG and applied in a measured and targeted
way

3.0 Current Evidence

3.0 Recent Planning Applications

3.1 Over the past 5 years, there have been 4 determined applications for planning
permission in Netherfield to change the use of a property from a dwelling to a HMO
proposing the occupation of the property by more than 6 unrelated people sharing
basic amenities.

3.2 These applications are detailed below:

2020/0484

56 Meadow Road, Netherfield

Single storey extension to rear elevation and change of use from C3 to sui generis, 6
bedrooms, 7 occupants House in Multiple Occupation

The proposal was refused planning permission contrary to officer recommendation. A
revised scheme was subsequently implemented under permitted development
comprising 6 bedrooms.

2020/0630

45 Ashwell Street, Netherfield

Change of use from C3 dwellinghouse to seven bedroom (Sui Generis) HMO including
loft dormer extension.

The proposal was refused planning permission by the Borough Council, contrary to
officer recommendation. An appeal was subsequently made by the applicant to the
Planning Inspectorate. The appeal was allowed and permission was granted.
2020/0789

112 Victoria Road, Netherfield

Proposed change of use from existing residential apartments C3 to a large HMO sui
generis

Page 101



The proposal was granted planning permission under delegated authority, following
consultation with the Planning Delegation Panel.

2022/0153
49 Chandos Street, Netherfield

Proposed change of use from dwelling (C3) to 7 bedroom HMO including rear dormer
loft conversion

The proposal was granted Planning permission following referral to Planning
Committee.

3.3 The four determined applications were each considered in light of the relevant
policies contained within the NPPF, Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategy

(Part 1 Local Plan), Local Planning Document and the Parking Provision for
Residential Developments — Supplementary Planning Document.

3.4 The principle of the proposed use, impact upon residential amenity, highway safety,
flood risk and other issues were fully considered by officers in each report and no
conflict was found with any of the Councils adopted planning policies or national
policies.

3.5 In relation to highway safety, advice was sought from the Highways Authority prior
to determining each application and no objections were received. There is no
evidenced highway safety risk identified by the Highway Authority which would indicate
that existing and proposed HMOs in the Netherfield ward would result in undue
highway safety issues. Dwellings in this locality are situated in close proximity to the
Netherfield designated shopping area where there are a number of amenities, shops
etc. which are within walking distance and the wider area is well served by public
transport.

3.6 There are no highway safety grounds identified through the determination of recent
planning applications which would support an Article 4 direction.

3.7 The analysis of planning applications over the past five years indicates that HMOs
requiring planning permission are in full conformity with national and local planning

policies and no harm has been identified by officers or the Planning Inspectorate.

4.0 Residents Meeting

4.1 Aresidents meeting was held at 7pm on 03 March 2022 at the St Georges Church,
Victoria Road, Netherfield. The meeting was arranged and chaired by a local resident,
and the purpose was to discuss a pending planning application at Chandos Street

Page 102



(which has now been determined and detailed above) and HMOs/Article 4 directions
more generally. The meeting was attended by approximately 50 residents.

4.2 The key concerns raised are detailed below and each concern is assessed in
relation to the relevant planning considerations, which have been established through
appeal decisions and case law.

e Loss of private rented accommodation

Comment: HMOs have the potential to increase the level of private rented
accommodation and diversify the stock of private rented accommodation.

e Loss of family homes

Comment: There has undoubtedly been a loss of some larger properties which are
suitable for families. Planning permission has however been granted for 830 new
homes at Teal Close and there have already been a significant number of completions.
There is also a resolution to grant planning permission for the redevelopment of the
Kendon Packaging site and other housing is anticipated to be delivered in the wider
area.

¢ \Waste bins on pavements

Comment: it is accepted that (larger) HMOs have the potential to generate more litter
but there is no evidence to suggest that this is causing an undue problem or that it
cannot be managed.

¢ Drainage and water supply

Comment: There is no evidence to suggest that HMOs are causing problems with
drainage or the supply of water.

e Impact upon property values
Comment: This is not a material planning consideration.
e Loss of community cohesion

Comment: The numbers are low and there is no evidence that there is a significant
concentration of HMOs or grouping on any particular street.

¢ Highway safety concerns

Page 103



Comment: As detailed above, no concerns have been raised by the Highway Authority.
e Loss of car parking
Comment: As above.

e No demand for further HMOs as some of the rooms within the recently converted
accommodation have not been let.

Comment: If there is an over-supply to meet demand, this is likely to reduce the
number of future HMOs coming forward in Netherfield. The demand for a particular
housing product cannot usually be given significant weight in the overall planning
balance when determining a policy compliant application for planning permission.

e Some of the rooms are being advertised at £700 per calendar month

Comment: This is not a planning consideration and rents will be determined by the
market.

e Insufficient school places in the Netherfield area.

Comment: A new primary school has been constructed at Teal Close, with the first
intake of students expected in September 2022.

e An Article 4 direction should be implemented to deter investors from targeting
properties in Netherfield.

Comment: This is no justification for an Article 4 direction.

4.3 From a planning perspective, none of the concerns either singularly or in
combination would merit suitable justification to progress an Article 4 direction. No
subsequent submissions have been made by residents in support of the concerns
following the meeting, with the exception of further objections to planning application
2022/0153, which has now been determined.

5.0 Submission from Tom Randall MP

5.1 A written submission was however received by the Leader of Gedling Borough
Council on 20 April 2022, detailing the results of a survey undertaken by the MP and
a County Councillor. It is stated that there were 111 respondents. A copy of this
submission is contained in appendix 2.

5.2 The following data is included in the covering letter:

Page 104



e Of those surveyed, 93% said they would like to see Gedling Borough Council
introduce an Article 4 direction in Netherfield.

¢ 40% said that an increase in HMOs in Netherfield is removing family homes off the
market and resulting in the community not knowing their neighbours

e 68% said an increase in HMOs is adding to issues around lack of on street-street
parking.

5.3 Appended to the covering letter is are the survey questions:

e How does the increase in HMOs in Nethefield affect you?

¢ Are you aware of any HMOs in Netherfield?

e Have HMOs always been in the area?

e How do you feel about an increase in HMOs in Netherfield?

e Gedling Borough Council could introduce an Article 4 direction that will require
property owners to apply for planning permission should they wish to convert their
property into a HMO. Would you like to see this introduced in Netherfield?

5.4 No details have been provided in relation to how the data was collected or the
overall number of residents/properties surveyed. It would however appear to be
primary data collected in the local area which reflects the views of the respondents.
The data indicates that the respondents have concerns about HMOs, but it does not
demonstrate any demonstrable harm which needs to be addressed by implementing
an Article 4 direction or any other measures.

6.0 Applications made by Landlords for a Licence under the Housing Act 2004.

6.1 From the 01 October 2018 the Government has extended the scope of mandatory
HMO Licensing throughout England. All HMOs in the Gedling Borough with 5 or more
tenants who do not form a single household require a licence under the Housing Act
2004 and any licences granted include conditions relating to mandatory national
minimum sleeping room sizes and waste disposal requirements.

6.2 In Netherfield, there have been licences granted at 1A Meadow Road, 46 Chandos
Street, 5 Matlock Street, and 72-74 Station Road. A mandatory licence has also been
granted for 1-3 Conway Road for a long established HMO permitted to accommodate
15 persons. This was not previously identified as the licence address states Carlton,
but the site is actually in the Netherfield Ward.

The Council has received HMO license applications for 3 further properties which are
still being processed:

56 Meadow Road
112 Victoria Road

Page 105



45 Ashwell Street

The Council has a 12 month timescale for issuing HMO licences. The licence holders
have met their legal duty when submitting the application.

No application has been made for 49 Chandos Street as it is not currently occupied
by 5 or more individuals.

7.0 Applications made under the Netherfield Selective Licensing Area

7.1 An analysis of Selective Licensed HMOs has identified that there are 3 small HMOs
each accommodating 3 unrelated individuals sharing. The addresses of these
properties are 48 Forester Street, 37 Curzon Street and 7A Victoria Road

8.0 Antisocial Behaviour

8.1 The Community Protection Manager has advised that between all of the known
HMOs in Netherfield, antisocial behaviour levels reported to the Council have been
very low or non-existent so far and their position remains unchanged since being
consulted in May 2022. The bulk of complaints are generated by renovation works
needed to convert the properties into HMOs, but typically no diary sheets were ever
returned and builders generally worked between reasonable hours so no further action
could be taken anyway. Additionally, there seems to be a running theme of complaints
about the state of bins which can and has led to pest control complaints and concerns
about residents parking, as the streets that HMOs are typically on are terraced with no
driveways. The car parking concerns have not however generated any objections from
the highways authority on safety grounds. In relation to noise, litter and antisocial
behaviour, these matters can be controlled through other legislation and do not require
an Article 4 direction.

9.0 Composition of the Netherfield Housing Stock

9.1 There are 2915 residential properties within the ward of Netherfield and evidence
available to the Council indicates that there are 9 confirmed HMOs providing
accommodation for 5 or more unrelated individuals. There are 3 smaller HMOs
providing accommodation for 3 unrelated individuals. The total number of HMOs is 12.
Therefore, 0.41% of the housing stock in Netherfield is comprised of HMOs.
Furthermore, the existing HMOs appear to be distributed across the ward and at the
current time, there does not appear to be an over concentration in one particular
locality. The distribution is shown at Appendix 4.

10.0 Conclusion

Page 106



10.1 The private rented sector is an important part our housing market and HMOs form
a vital part of this sector, often providing cheaper accommodation for people whose
housing options are limited. The available information demonstrates that HMOs in
Netherfield are distributed across the ward and comprise a low percentage of the
overall number of residential properties.

10.2 Having regard to the requirements set out in the NPPF and the PPG, in my view
there is currently insufficient evidence to demonstrate that an Article 4 direction is
necessary to protect local amenity or the well-being of the Netherfield Ward. The
situation should however be monitored to ensure that a proliferation of HMOs does not
emerge in any particular locality or the Netherfield ward as a whole.

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 — Updated Evidence

Article 4 Directions and the suitability of implementation in the Netherfield Ward
to introduce a requirement for planning permission to change from a C3
Dwellinghouse (family dwelling) to a C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share
facilities)

1.0 Background

1.1 In April 2010, changes were made to planning regulations to introduce a new Use
Class C4 Use Class for small HMOs; residential properties occupied by between 3
and 6 unrelated people who share facilities. Prior to this, there had been no distinction
in planning terms between such properties and those occupied as a family home. The
April 2010 changes also introduced a requirement for planning permission to be
obtained for a material change of use from a Use Class C3 Dwellinghouse to a Use
Class C4 HMO (3-6 unrelated people who share facilities). This amendment enabled
Local Planning Authorities to assess the merits of individual proposals against relevant
policies and any other material considerations such as traffic impacts and antisocial
behaviour. Planning permission could either be granted with conditions or refused.

1.2 These changes were largely welcomed by local authorities, particularly those with
high student populations where there is often a significant demand for HMOs.

1.3 In June 2010, the coalition government announced its intention to amend The Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (“the
GDPQ”). to introduce a permitted development right to allow the change the use of a
Use Class C3 Dwellinghouse to a Use Class C4 HMO thereby removing the newly
introduced requirement to obtain planning permission for this change of use. The
changes were subsequently implemented and took effect in October 2010.

1.4 Local Planning Authorities wishing to remove the permitted development right for
changes of use from Use Class C3 to Use Class C4 would be required to implement
provisions under Article 4 of the GDPO. This allows Local Planning Authorities to
withdraw “permitted development” rights for specified development where it considers
it is expedient that the development should not be carried out unless permission is
granted for it on an application.

2.0 The Use of Article 4 Directions

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 54 advises that the
use of article 4 directions to remove national permitted development rights should be
limited to situations where an Article 4 direction is necessary to protect local amenity
or the well-being of the area and in all cases, be based on robust evidence, and apply
to the smallest geographical area possible. The advice is reaffirmed in the Planning

Page 109



Practice Guidance (PPG) at Paragraph 038, Revision date 20 08 2021. Local Planning
Authorities can therefore only make an article 4 direction where it can justify both its
purpose and extent. Use of article 4 directions should be limited to situations where it
is necessary to protect the local amenity or wellbeing of the area and the Local
Planning Authority should clearly identify the potential harm the direction is intended
to address.

2.2 An article 4 direction does not prevent the type of development specified but does
ensure that an application for planning permission must be made prior to any
development which it restricts taking place. If a Local Planning Authority makes an
article 4 direction it can be liable to pay compensation to those whose development
rights have been withdrawn.

2.3 Two types of article 4 direction can remove permitted rights to change from a Use
Class C3 Dwellinghouse to a Use Class C4 HMO. Firstly, an article 4 direction may
take effect immediately but this must be confirmed by the local planning authority
following consultation within six months or it will lapse. Secondly, a non-immediate
article 4 direction may be made which results in development rights being withdrawn
only upon confirmation of the direction following local consultation. The Secretary of
State is able to cancel or modify any direction made.

2.4 The legal requirement for a non-immediate direction is that the local planning
authority considers it is expedient that the development should not be carried out
unless permission is granted for it on an application. The circumstances in which an
immediate direction can restrict development are limited and the local planning
authority must also consider that the development to which the direction relates
presents an immediate threat to local amenity or the proper planning of an area. The
immediacy of the threat and compensation liability may be considerations in
determining which type of direction to use.

2.5 A direction coming into effect immediately would have the clear advantage of
straight away requiring Use Class C4 HMOs to require planning permission. However,
it would also expose the Council to potentially very high levels of compensation liability
in cases where applications submitted within the first 12 months of the removal of the
permitted development rights were refused or granted subject to conditions, such
compensation being limited to abortive expenditure or other loss or damage directly
attributable to the withdrawal of permitted development rights

2.6 A non-immediate direction with a prior notice period of 12 months would avoid
compensation liability and also allow the results of local consultation to be taken into
account in advance of the Council deciding to confirm the direction removing permitted
development rights.

Page 110



2.7 As detailed above, any article 4 direction must be supported by robust evidence in
order to comply with the requirements of the NPPF and the PPG and applied in a
measured and targeted way

3.0 Current Evidence

3.0 Recent Planning Applications

3.1 Within the last 5 years, there have been 4 determined applications for planning
permission in Netherfield to change the use of a property from a dwelling to a HMO
proposing the occupation of the property by more than 6 unrelated people sharing
basic amenities.

3.2 These applications are detailed below:

2020/0484

56 Meadow Road, Netherfield

Single storey extension to rear elevation and change of use from C3 to sui generis, 6
bedrooms, 7 occupants House in Multiple Occupation

The proposal was refused planning permission contrary to officer recommendation. A
revised scheme was subsequently implemented under permitted development
comprising 6 bedrooms.

2020/0630

45 Ashwell Street, Netherfield

Change of use from C3 dwellinghouse to seven bedroom (Sui Generis) HMO including
loft dormer extension.

The proposal was refused planning permission by the Borough Council, contrary to
officer recommendation. An appeal was subsequently made by the applicant to the
Planning Inspectorate. The appeal was allowed and permission was granted.
2020/0789

112 Victoria Road, Netherfield

Proposed change of use from existing residential apartments C3 to a large HMO sui
generis

Page 111



The proposal was granted planning permission under delegated authority, following
consultation with the Planning Delegation Panel.

2022/0153
49 Chandos Street, Netherfield

Proposed change of use from dwelling (C3) to 7 bedroom HMO including rear dormer
loft conversion

The proposal was granted Planning permission following referral to Planning
Committee.

3.3 One additional application was granted for the change of use of 48 Bourne Street
to a 7 person HMO under reference 2023/0925. This property was however already in
use as a Use Class C4 HMO with 6 occupants.

3.4 In addition to the determined planning applications detailed above, the Local
Planning Authority is currently considering 1 application for a Lawful Development
Certificate for a HMO of up to 6 occupants (Use Class C4) at 24 Bourne Street. In
addition, 2 Certificates have recently been granted for HMOs at 42 Forester Street and
5 Beech Avenue. These are not applications for planning permission but seek
confirmation that the proposed development is lawful in planning terms, i.e. permitted
development, and therefore the usual material considerations are not relevant in the
determination of the applications.

3.5 The planning applications detailed above were each considered in light of the
relevant policies contained within the NPPF, Greater Nottingham Aligned Core
Strategy (Part 1 Local Plan), Local Planning Document (Part 2 Local Plan) and the
Parking Provision for Residential Developments — Supplementary Planning
Document.

3.6 The principle of the proposed use, impact upon residential amenity, highway safety,
flood risk and other issues were considered in detail by officers in each report and no
conflict was found with any of the Councils adopted planning policies or the relevant
national policies.

3.7 In relation to highway safety, advice was sought from Nottinghamshire County
Council as the Highway Authority prior to determining each application and no
objections were received. There is no evidenced highway safety risk identified by the
Highway Authority which would indicate that existing and proposed HMOs in the
Netherfield ward would result in unacceptable highway safety issues. Dwellings in this
locality are situated in close proximity to the Netherfield designated shopping area

Page 112



where there are a number of amenities, shops etc. which are within walking distance
and the wider area is well served by public transport.

3.8 There are no highway safety grounds identified through the determination of recent
planning applications which would support an article 4 direction.

3.9 The analysis of planning applications over the past five years indicates that HMOs
requiring planning permission are in full conformity with national and local planning

policies and no harm has been identified by officers or the Planning Inspectorate.

4.0 Residents Meeting

4.1 A meeting with Councillor Hunt and a small number of local residents was held at
the Civic Centre on 28" May 2025. The meeting was arranged to discuss the pending
applications for Certificates of Lawful Development HMOs and article 4 directions
more generally.

4.2 The key concerns raised are detailed below and each concern is assessed in
relation to the relevant planning considerations, which have been established through
appeal decisions and case law.

e Behaviour of builders and contractors during property conversions and extensions
and lack of regard to health and safety regulations.

Comment: Any anti-social behaviour should be reported to the Council’s Community
Protection Team and breaches of health and safety regulations during construction
should be reported to the Heath and Safety Executive as it is not possible to enforce
these concerns through Planning Legislation.

e Loss of car parking

Comment: Due to the character of Netherfield, a large proportion of dwellings do not
benefit from off-street car parking. The Highway Authority has not raised any concerns
when consulted on the planning applications for the change of use of dwellings to
HMO'’s and there is currently no evidence that residents are unable to find on-street
parking in the vicinity of their properties. It terms of vehicle ownership, the Office for
National Statistics Census of 2021 shows that 32.9% of households in the ward do not
have a car (compared to 18.3% for Nottinghamshire) 46.8% have 1 car (41.8% for
Nottinghamshire) 16.4% have 2 cars (30% for Nottinghamshire) and 3.9% have 3 or
more cars (9.9% for Nottinghamshire). The evidence is that car ownership in
Netherfield is low when compared to Nottinghamshire and demand for car parking is
therefore reduced.

Page 113



e Loss of family homes

Comment: There has undoubtedly been a loss of some larger properties which are
suitable for families. However, the proportion of dwellings within the ward that have
been converted is very low. Furthermore, the Housing Delivery Test measurement
(published December 2024) for 2023 shows there were 699 homes delivered in the
borough against a requirement of 497. There is currently no evidence that the housing
mix in Netherfield is not appropriate.

¢ \WWaste management issues and waste bins on pavements

Comment: it is accepted that larger HMOs have the potential to generate more
household waste but there is no evidence to suggest that there are currently issues
with waste management or collection.

e Drainage issues due to the extensions being constructed.

Comment: The properties being extended utilising permitted development rights and
drainage matters therefore cannot be considered by the Local Planning Authority.
However, there is currently no evidence to suggest that HMOs are causing problems
with drainage.

e Loss of community cohesion
Comment: The proportion of dwellings that have been converted is low and there is
no evidence that there is a significant concentration of HMOs or grouping on any

particular street at this time.

4.3 From a planning perspective, none of the concerns raised either singularly or in
combination would merit suitable justification to progress an article 4 direction.

5.0 Applications made by Landlords for a Licence under the Housing Act 2004.
5.1 All HMOs in Gedling Borough with 5 or more tenants who do not form a single
household require a licence under the Housing Act 2004 and any licences granted
include conditions relating to mandatory national minimum sleeping room sizes and
waste disposal requirements.

5.2 In Netherfield, there have been licences granted at 14 properties and the Council
has received HMO license applications for 2 further properties which are still being

considered;

- 6 Godfrey Street

Page 114



- 41 Ashwell Street

The Council has a 12 month timescale for issuing HMO licences. The licence holders
have met their legal duty when submitting the application.

6.0 Antisocial Behaviour

6.1 The Community Protection Manager has advised that between all of the known
HMOs in Netherfield, antisocial behaviour levels reported to the Council have been
very low or non-existent so far and their position remains unchanged since being
initially consulted in May 2022. The majority of complaints are generated by renovation
works needed to convert the properties into HMOs. The car parking concerns have
not however generated any objections from the Highway Authority on safety grounds.
In relation to noise, llitter and antisocial behaviour, these matters can be controlled
through other legislation and do not require an Article 4 direction.

7.0 Composition of the Netherfield Housing Stock

7.1 There are 3120 residential properties within the ward of Netherfield and evidence
available to the Council indicates that there are 14 confirmed HMOs providing
accommodation for 5 or more unrelated individuals. Therefore, 0.44% of the housing
stock in Netherfield is comprised of HMOs.

7.2 There is currently one application being considered for Lawful Development
Certificates for a HMO of up to 6 occupants at 24 Bourne Street with Certificate having
recently been granted at 42 Forester Street and 5 Beech Avenue. Should all these
properties developed into HMQO’s, the total number of HMOs in Netherfield Ward would
be 17, or 0.54% of the housing stock.

7.3 Furthermore, whilst there are 2 HMOs present on Chandos Street, 3 on Ashwell
Street and 2 on Victoria Road, there does not appear to be an excessive concentration
in one particular locality. The distribution is shown at Appendix 3.

9.0 Conclusion

9.1 The private rented sector is an important part our housing market and HMOs form
a vital part of this sector, often providing cheaper accommodation for people whose
housing options are limited. The available information demonstrates that HMOs in
Netherfield are distributed across the ward and comprise a low percentage of the
overall number of residential properties.

Page 115



9.2 Having regard to the requirements set out in the NPPF and the PPG, it is
considered that there is currently insufficient evidence to demonstrate that an Article 4
direction is necessary to protect local amenity or the well-being of the Netherfield
Ward. The situation should however be monitored to ensure that a proliferation of
HMOs does not emerge in any particular locality or the Netherfield ward as a whole.

Page 116



e

® HMOs

® HMOs with
Certificate of
Lawful Use
Granted

Netherfield (Station)

':‘-‘.-
'J!J.,.-

Colwick Industrial Estate North

Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park, Arnold,

Nottinghamshire, NG5 6LU

HMOs in Netherfield

Page 117

Reproduced with the permission of the Controller of HIM.S.O. Crown copyright, Licence No. LA100021246.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

0 0.05 0.1 0.2 Kilometres A




This page is intentionally left blank



6TT abed

Assessment of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield Ward

Please use only ‘Yes’ where applicable

Negative

Positive

Neutral

To assess and inform Members of the suitability of implementing an Article 4 direction to introduce a requirement
for planning permission to change from a Use Class C3 Dwellinghouse (dwelling) to a Use Class C4 HMO (3-6
unrelated people who share facilities) in the Netherfield Ward.

Comments

External

The recommendation to
not remove nationally set
permitted development
rights for the conversion of
Use C3 dwellings to Use
Class C4 HMOs results in no
change to the current
position and will therefore
have no impact upon any
groups

Internal




Gender Reassignment External
Internal o
Age X
External
Internal

Equality Impact Assessment

02T abed

Gedling %

Borough Council




T¢T abed

Marriage and civil

External

partnership
Internal
Disability External
Internal
External
Race & Ethnicity
Internal
Sexual Orientation External
Internal
Religion or Belief (or no | External
M Internal
External
Pregnan M rni
ST 5 LR 57 Internal
External
Other Groups (e.g. any
other vulnerable groups, rural
isolation, deprived areas, low
income staff etc.) Internal




2eT obed

Please state the group/s:

Is there is any evidence of a high
disproportionate adverse or positive
impact on any groups?

There is no evidence of any impact of any groups

Is there an opportunity to mitigate or
alleviate any such impacts?

N/A

Are there any gaps in information
available (e.g. evidence) so that a
complete assessment of different impacts
iS not possible?

There are no gaps present in information

In response to the information provided above please provide a set of proposed action including any consultation that is going to

be carried out:

Planned Actions Timeframe

Success Measure

Responsible Officer




Authorisation and Review

Completing Officer

\ John Krawczyk
Authorising Head of Service/Director

Mike Avery
Date

 21/08/2025

Review date ( if applicable) ‘

¢¢T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Temporary Accommodation compliance and safety standards
Date: 4 September 2025

Author:  Assistant Director — Housing and Resettlement

Wards Affected:

All Wards

Purpose

To seek approval to implement a Temporary Accommodation Maintenance Policy
and Landlord Health and Safety Compliance Policy with an additional 6 supporting
Safety Management Plans which will ensure the Council meets it legal and
regulatory duties as a landlord in providing interim and temporary accommodation
for those individuals and families that are homeless or at risk of becoming
homeless.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.

Recommendation(s)
THAT Cabinet:

1) Approves the Temporary Accommodation Maintenance Policy
enclosed at Appendix 1

2) Approves the Safety Compliance Policy and associated Safety
Management Plans enclosed at Appendix 2-8.

1 Background

1.1 Atemporary accommodation audit was undertaken in March 2025. The
audit concluded that the Council generally has a sound system of internal
controls designed to achieve system objectives in preventing
homelessness and providing temporary accommodation, with some
exceptions identified. And although property maintenance checks were

Page 125



1.2

1.3

1.4

being conducted, the findings showed these were not always being
recorded due to resource limitations. The recommendations stemming from
the audit has resulted in this report being submitted to Cabinet for
approval.

Local councils have a duty to provide interim and temporary
accommodation (TA) to individuals who are homeless and in priority
need. This duty is outlined in the Housing Act 1996 and applies when a
council has reason to believe an applicant may be homeless, eligible for
assistance, and in priority need.

“Priority need” refers to individuals who are considered more vulnerable
and thus require more urgent assistance from a local authority to secure
housing. This includes people who are:

e Vulnerable due to specific circumstances:

This can include factors like old age, mental or physical disabilities,
domestic abuse, or having been in care or prison.

e Families with dependent children:

Families with children under 16 (or under 19 if still dependent) are
automatically considered to have priority need.

e Pregnant women:
Pregnant women are also automatically considered to have priority need.
e« Homeless due to a disaster:

If someone becomes homeless due to a fire, flood, or other disaster, they
have priority need.

e Vulnerable due to other reasons:

Some individuals may be considered vulnerable for other reasons, such
as having been in the armed forces, having experienced violence, or
having drug or alcohol problems.

While the terms "temporary accommodation” and "interim
accommodation” are often used interchangeably, especially in the context
of homelessness services, they can have slightly different meanings
depending on the specific context and the local authority's policies.

e Interim accommodation

Page 126



15

Often refers to the initial, short-term accommodation provided by a local
authority while they assess an applicant's eligibility for longer-term
housing support. It's a temporary place to stay while the council
investigates a person's homelessness claim.

e Temporary accommodation

Is a broader term that can encompass both the initial interim
accommodation and longer-term accommodation provided while the
council finds a permanent solution for a homeless individual.

The Council currently owns 25 individual properties all located in the
Borough and leases a further 8 properties which are all used to provide
temporary accommodation to individuals and families that are homeless
or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Council regularly reviews its temporary accommodation portfolio and
has purchased 18 additional units since 2022.

The Council has also previously used bed and breakfast and nightly
charged accommodation to address its statutory responsibility to provide
temporary accommodation to those individuals and families in priority
need however these Polices and Management Plans will not apply to that
type of temporary accommodation. These specifically apply to the
temporary accommodation the Council manages and are responsible for
maintenance and repairs.

Due to an increasing number of homeless applications, the Council

receives each year the demand for temporary accommodation continues
to grow. This is reflected in the table below:

HOUSEHOLDS IN TEMPORARY

ACCOMMODATION
- —
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Page 127



1.6

1.7

The Council has a legal duty to ensure the temporary accommodation it
owns and manages is safe, free from serious hazards, is in a reasonable
state of repair and meets all legal and regulatory standards.

The Council has a duty of care to all the residents it places in temporary
accommodation and to any visitors to the property including Council staff
and contractors.

The Council continues to deliver improvements to its housing repairs and
maintenance services in its provision of temporary accommaodation. In
doing so the following areas of risk have been identified: -

e Asbestos

e Water management (Legionella)

e Electrical safety

e Fire

e Gas and other heating fuel systems
e Damp, mould and condensation

There is a need to ensure that there is an adequate level of oversight,
awareness and knowledge to address these identified risks and
responsibilities surrounding responsive repairs and maintenance.
Furthermore, to have a clear understanding and appreciation of the
standard of the properties and what is needed to ensure they remain fit
for purpose.

There is also a requirement for all new and existing residents to fully
recognise their rights and responsibilities. There is a requirement for them
to fully understand the terms and conditions set out in the license
agreement and report any safety concerns or repairs and maintenance
issues to the Housing Options Team immediately. This should improve
and ensure safety standards are maintained.

To assist in the Council in complying with its legal duties and
responsibilities, and to set out a clear approach and process for both staff
and individuals in temporary accommodation, the Housing Options Team
has produced a suite of Polices and Management Plans which can be
found at Appendix 1 - 8. These documents clearly set out the Councils
approach to delivering a responsive repairs and maintenance service
which meets the needs of residents, staff and contractors and enables the
Council to meet its statutory and regulatory obligations as a provider of
temporary accommodation.

Page 128



1.8

1.9

1.10

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

The Council will undertake full condition surveys on all the existing
temporary accommodation it owns and manages and any subsequent
accommodation it acquires in the future.

The Council will review the findings of the condition survey reports and
create a 5-year maintenance plan. The plan will involve scheduling regular
inspections and maintenance tasks to preserve the property's condition
and prevent unexpected issues. It will also ensure all planned
preventative maintenance is undertaken at defined time intervals. This
includes cycles for servicing and testing of equipment. The plan will
outline the expected lifespan of various property components and
establish a schedule for their maintenance and eventual replacement.
This will also enable the Council to prioritise all programme works whilst
setting effective maintenance budgets over the 5-year period.

The Housing Options Team will continue to maintain and enhance the
licensee “introduction pack” issued to all new residents, with the aim of
improving communication and the information available on accepting and
moving into a temporary accommodation property. There will be a key
focus on the individuals understanding and accepting their duties and
responsibilities whilst residing in the property.

Proposal

The Council is committed to delivering a high quality, modern and effective
repairs maintenance service to ensure that its temporary accommodation
is comfortable, well maintained and safe for people to live in.

It is proposed that Cabinet approves the Temporary Accommodation
Maintenance Policy enclosed at Appendix 1

It is also proposed that Cabinet approves the Safety Compliance Policy and
associated Safety Management Plans enclosed at Appendix 2-8.

Alternative Options

Cabinet could choose not to approve the Temporary Accommodation
Maintenance Policy and the Safety Compliance Policy and associated
Safety Management Plans at Appendix 1 - 8. However, this is not
recommended. As a provider of temporary accommodation, the Council
cannot ignore its legal duties and responsibilities as a landlord, The
proposed approach ensures the Council has clear written Polices and
Management Plans which adhere to statutory health and safety
requirements.

After consideration of the suite of Polices and Management Plans which
can be found at Appendix 1 — 8 Cabinet could instruct the Housing
Options Team to redraft or remove some of the policies or Management

Page 129



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

Plans. Again, this is not recommended as careful consideration has been
to all aspects when drafting the Policies and Management Plans. They
adhere to statutory requirements and provide sufficient detail to assist
residents, staff, contractors and visitors.

Financial Implications

Until the findings of survey have been concluded it is difficult to estimate
the financial impact.

The service does have an ongoing general repairs budget along with an
annual contribution to a property sinking fund, however as the costs are
unknown at this stage it is uncertain whether there is sufficient budget.

Once the surveys have been conducted a business case would be
required to understand the estimated costs and the phasing of any
improvements to the properties.

Legal Implications

The Council has a statutory duty under the Housing Act 1996 to provide
suitable temporary accommodation to eligible homeless applicants. In
providing this accommodation the Council must ensure that the temporary
accommodation it manages meets the Decent Home Standards set for
social housing providers. While primarily aimed at social housing, it is also
relevant to temporary accommodation. It sets out criteria for properties to
be considered in a reasonable state of repair, with modern facilities, and
free from serious hazards.

Temporary accommodation provided under homelessness legislation in
England must also meet certain safety standards outlined in the Housing
Act 1996 and the Housing Act 2004. Specifically, the accommodation
must be deemed "suitable" for the applicant and their household, and this
involves assessing various factors including the presence of Category 1
hazards under the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HMSRS).

Additionally, the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 requires
adequate fire safety measures are in place.

Failure to maintain accommodation to an acceptable standard may result
in legal challenges, including judicial review or complaints to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman.

Equalities Implications

An Equality Impact Assessment can be found at Appendix 9 of this report.

Page 130



7.1

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4
8.5
8.6
8.7
8.8
8.9
8.10

9.1

10

10.1

Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications
A Carbon Impact Assessment can be found at Appendix 10 of this report.
Appendices

Appendix 1 - Temporary Accommodation Maintenance Policy
Appendix 2 — Landlord Health and Safety Compliance Policy
Appendix 3 — Asbestos Management Plan

Appendix 4 — Damo and Mould Management Plan

Appendix 5 — Electrical Management Plan

Appendix 6 — Fire Safety Management Plan

Appendix 7 — Gas Management Plan

Appendix 8 — Legionella Management Plan

Appendix 9 — Equality Impact Assessment

Appendix 10 - Carbon Impact Assessment

Background Papers

None

Reasons for Recommendations

It is recommended that the enclosed Policies and Management Plans are
endorsed to ensure that the Council:

e Provides temporary accommodation that is safe, in a good state of
repair and is well maintained

e Complies with the statutory requirements, legislation and good
practice relating to the maintenance and repairs of residential
properties

e Addresses the 6 key risk areas of health and safety associated with
rented accommodation

e Provides temporary accommodation that meets the Decent Homes
Standards

Page 131



e Manages its temporary housing stock to agreed standards and
performance levels with transparent monitoring systems and
reporting arrangements

e Sets clear roles and responsibilities for both the Council and
residents

e I|dentifies the different types of repairs and maintenance work and
sets a clear work programme

e Reduce void periods ensuring accommodation is more available to
those individuals and families that need support.

e |dentify how rechargeable repairs will be recovered

e Provides a consistent, fair and equitable quality of service.

e Improve resident satisfaction

Statutory Officer approval

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:
Date:
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer

Page 132




Temporary Accommodation
Maintenance Policy

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 133

Gedling



Contents

1. INTRODUCTION ...cociirmmsmsmssmsssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssassssssasassssssssassans 3
2.  PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY ..cccvcsssinnmsssmsmssssmssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssasass 3
3. RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE........ccoosmsmsmsmssssssasasssans 4
4. SCOPE OF THE POLICY ...cooiiimimnmmsmsmssmsssmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssns 5
5. CONDITION SURVEYS.....ccommmmmmmmmnmmmssssssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasaes 6
6. TYPES OF REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE WORKS.......cccommmmmmmmssssssn 6
7. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR RESPONSIBILITIES ... 9
8. REPORTING A REPAIR.....ciiimismmismsnmsnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssassens 11
9. REPAIR TIMESCALES......ccoinimmmmmsmsssssssssssssssssssssss s ssssssssssssssssassssssasass 12
10. VULNERABLE LICENSEES .......coimmmmnmmsmssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 13
11.  VOIDS MAINTENANCE ......ccciiimmsmsmsmsmsmsssssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssnns 15
12. LEASED TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION......ccsmmmsmmmmsmmsssmssmsssssmssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 15
13. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ....cccosmmmsmsmmnmssssssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssnns 16
APPENDIX 1 - REPAIR CATEGORIES. ..o 17

Page 134



1. Introduction

This policy sets out how the Gedling Borough Council (the Council) will meet its legal
and regulatory duties as a landlord in respect to the management of its Temporary
Housing Stock including repairs and maintenance.

The Council is committed to delivering a high quality, modern and effective repairs
maintenance service to ensure that its temporary accommodation is comfortable,
well maintained and safe for people to live in.

2. Purpose of this Policy

To primary purpose of the policy is to ensure that the Council:

e Provides temporary accommodation that is safe, in a good state of repair
and maintained

e Complies with the statutory requirements, legislation and good practice
relating to the maintenance and repairs of residential properties

e Provides temporary accommodation that meets the Decent Homes
Standards

e Manages its temporary housing stock to agreed standards and
performance levels with transparent monitoring systems and reporting
arrangements

e Provides a consistent, fair and equitable quality of service.

The purpose of the policy is also to provide:

o A set of performance standards that will form the basis of agreements with
third party contractors.

¢ Outlines the specific responsibilities of the Council and the licensee

e Confirms service standards in respect to response times for works.

The policy reflects the Council’s commitment to carbon reduction and includes the
commitment:

¢ To reduce the carbon footprint associated with the management of the
service and by strategic asset investment to our stock in line with the
objectives of the Councils Carbon Reduction Strategy.

e To ensure all temporary accommodation complies with the Minimum
Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES).

Page 135



3. Relevant legislation and regulatory compliance

The Council must ensure that the temporary accommodation it manages meets the
Decent Home Standards set for social housing providers.

A decent home must meet the current minimum standard for housing and be free of
any Category 1 hazards under the Housing Health and Safety Rating System
(HMSRS).

To ensure these standards are maintained the Council will ensure that its properties
are repaired and maintained in accordance with best practice and legislation. The
main legislation includes the following:

o Building Safety Act 2022

o Building Safety Act 2022 (where applicable)

o Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002

o Construction, Design Management Regulations 2015 (as amended)
o Control of Asbestos Regulations (2012)

o Control of Lead at Work Regulations 2002

o Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations

2022

o Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (as
amended)

. Electrical Wiring Regulations 18™ edition

o Electricity at Work Regulations 1989

o Environmental Protection Act 1990

. Equality Act 2010

o Fire Safety (England) Regs 2022

o Fire Safety Act 2021

o Fire Safety Act 2021

o Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998

o Guidance specifically the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

o Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

o Home Standard 2015 Electrical Safety Standards in the Private Rented
Sector (England) Regulations 2020

o Housing Act 1985 and Housing Act 2004

o Human Rights Act 1998

o Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES)

o Public Health Act 1963

o Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

o Section 11 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

o Secure Tenants of Local Housing Authorities Regulations

o The Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 (as amended)

Page 136



o The Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998
(LOLER)

o The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999

o Water Supply (Water Fittings) Regulations 2018 (as amended)

This Policy also works in conjunction with and giving regard to the Council’s
separate Damp and Mould, Asbestos, Electrical, Fire Safety, Gas and Legionella
Management Plans. Each management plan fully details all the legal standards
the Council must meet adhere to meet its obligations as a landlord and
employer.

Scope of the Policy

The scope of the policy includes measures on how the Council is to ensure that
its temporary accommodation meets Decent Homes Standards and obligations
under the legislation referred to in section 3. To do this the Council will:

¢ Maintain and manage accurate records at an individual property level
covering the condition of the accommodation, based on a physical
assessment of all homes and keep this up to date

e Use stock condition data to ensure that the accommodation is of good
quality, well maintained and safe for occupants.

e Have agreed performance standards, reporting and governance oversight
in place.

The scope includes the Council’s responsibility for a range of maintenance works
and reactive repairs as follows:

Planned preventative maintenance / repairs
Major programmed works

Emergency repairs

Urgent repairs

Routine repairs

Emergency out of hours repairs

We will make clear within the policy:

e Licensee responsibilities
e Where rechargeable repairs apply.

Page 137



5. Condition Surveys

The Council will profile a maintenance programme which will provide a
comprehensive understanding of the current state of the temporary accommodation
stock. It will identify potential issues, establish a maintenance schedule and budget.
The Council will undertake stock condition surveys on 20% of its temporary
accommodation properties per year, over a rolling 5-year period. These condition
surveys will inform the requirements for annual programmes of maintenance, repairs
and lifecycle replacements.

The stock condition surveys will include an assessment of building fabric, the
mechanical and electrical installations and fixtures and fittings. The surveys will
assess the life expectancy of roofs, boilers, kitchens, bathroom, windows, doors,
integrated appliances, etc and provide a timetable for replacement works in
accordance with best practice and legislation.

The stock condition survey will form part of the individual property record which will
be held in a single location with all property attribute and component data linked
back to a single, Unique Property Reference Number (UPRN). The data will be
amalgamated into annual programmes of works that are to be approved in
accordance with the Council’s governance and oversight arrangements. Stock
condition risks will be escalated in accordance with the Council’s Risk Management

policy.
6. Types of Repair and Maintenance Works

Planned preventative maintenance (including statutory compliance)

These are maintenance works that are undertaken at defined time intervals as
routine preventative maintenance. The works are undertaken on regular planned
cycles for servicing, inspection and testing of equipment, often as required by statute
or regulations or to maintain the generation condition of the stock, and particularly
the electrical and mechanical installations within the stock. The Council will
undertake the following programmes on a cyclical basis.

Work Programme Frequency

Gas Boiler Service Annually

Gas Safety Check Annually

Electric Safety check 5 yearly

Appliance Safety Checks Annually

including oven, hob and fires

Smoke & Carbon Dioxide Detector checks Annually

Periodic electrical installation condition inspection | 5 yearly (or at change of
licensee)

Page 138



Internal & External Decoration 7 yearly
Water hygiene/Legionella testing Annually
Emergency Lighting (stairwells) Annually
Fire Door Assemblies Annually
Gutters and fascia boards Annually
Asbestos checks against register and LAMP Annually

The Council is to ensure that a work programme is completed within the required
permitted frequency and a record of all the cyclical work is maintained. A regular
report will be provided to the Council’'s Corporate Risk Group to provide oversight on
compliance.

Major programmed works

Major works are usually one of projects aimed to improve the life of the building,
Examples include: -

e renewing/replacing windows and window frames
e door entry installation

e roof renewal

e decorating and repairing shared areas, and

e concrete repair

Planned maintenance programmes aim to achieve economies by replacing
components just before they would otherwise require responsive repairs, anticipating
changes in minimum acceptable standards and thus reducing future requirements for
cyclical work.

Responsive repairs

Responsive or day to day repairs are those carried out when components fail and
they cannot wait to be carried out under a cyclical, planned or improvement
programme. These works typically include repairs to plumbing and sanitary
equipment, damp and mould, flooding and leaks and door and window fittings as well
as those to heating and electrical installations.

Emergency repairs - Same Working Day Response

Where a situation poses a danger to either the licensee or public, or if left
unattended could cause serious damage to the building, a same working day
response will be initiated.

This may involve either making the situation safe or carrying out a repair. However, a
judgement will be made after assessing the circumstances at the time of the visit.

Page 139



The Council’s target is to complete all emergency repairs within five hours of
acknowledgement of the repair by the Council’s Homelessness Team.

Urgent Repairs

These are works that need to be carried out quickly in order to overcome serious
inconvenience and damage to the property. The target is to complete all urgent
repairs within three working days of acknowledgement of the repair.

Routine repairs

Routine repairs are those that will not cause damage to the property. Some of these
repairs may require items to be measured and materials ordered. The target is to
complete all non-urgent repairs within 15 working days of acknowledgement of the
repair.

Emergency out of hours repairs

The Council offers an emergency helpline for any maintenance or repairs issues that
occur outside of normal working hours. The licensee will need to contact the council
via the designated helpline and discuss the situation. The Council will determine the
severity of the issue and act accordingly.

Energy Efficiency and Carbon Reduction

The Council in undertaking any planned maintenance, reactive and lifecycle
replacements will consider w energy efficient and reduce carbon emissions. This will
include the standard of the current insulation of each property, replacing gas boilers
with air source heating or alternatives, providing solar panels, replacing window and
doors and examining the introduction of LED lighting. The programme will align with
Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards to ensure homes are more energy-efficient
and to reduce carbon waste. This will reduce energy bills and increase the warmth
and comfort of the temporary accommodation provided.

The Council will investigate opportunities to source grants and where appropriate will
include Photo Voltaic (PV) or solar panels.

Contracts with suppliers will include consideration of carbon emissions to align with
the Council Carbon Reduction Strategy

Page 140



7. Maintenance and Repair Responsibilities

The following outlines the specific responsibilities of the Council and licensee for
maintenance and repairs to its temporary housing.

The Council’s responsibilities
Keeping the structure and exterior in good condition. This includes:

e Drains, gutters and external pipes

e The roof

e Foundations, outside walls, outside doors, broken glass caused by
fair wear and tear, windowsills, window frames, thresholds

¢ Internal walls, floors and ceilings

e Chimney and chimney stacks

e Access ways to buildings (where these are within the Council’s
control).

The Council is responsible for all installations for the supply of water, electricity and
sanitation facilities, within the property boundary.

These include:

e Water pipes and tanks, gas pipes and electric wiring
e Electric sockets and light fittings

e Baths, basins, kitchen and bathroom sinks

o Toilets

o Water heaters, boilers, fireplaces and radiators

¢ Wired in smoke alarms and other detectors.

The Council will maintain:

e Any garage, shed, porch or outbuilding situated within the boundary
of the property but reserves the right to remove these structures

e All shared and communal areas including communal entrance
doors, staircases and lifts. All shared services, such as lighting in
the corridors and door entry systems

e The structure and exterior of the building including repairs to the
roof, gutters and external pipes.

e The exterior of the property to ensure it remains in a good state of
repair — repainting

Page 141



Licensee responsibilities and Access
The licensee (occupant) is responsible for:

e Keeping the property and any fixtures and fittings provided by the
Council in good repair and condition.

¢ Notifying the Council about any repairs that are needed as soon as
possible to avoid causing further damage.

e Allow access to the property for repairs to be undertaken. Where an
emergency repair is required, and the licensee does not allow
access or is not co-operative with allowing access, the Council will
gain access in the occupiers’ absence.

¢ Notifying the Council of any faults that could cause injury or
damage to other people or property.

e Repairing, renewing or replacing several items in the property that
include but are not limited to:

» Replacing lost or broken keys.

» Changing light bulbs.

» Taking all reasonable steps to heat and ventilate the
property using any suitable means provided to prevent
condensation and follow any reasonable advice given.

» Taking all reasonable precautions to prevent frozen and
burst pipes in the property.

» Installing, repairing and maintaining their own equipment,
such as cookers and washing machines, and making
sure should make sure that these are installed, repaired
and serviced by suitably qualified and competent people.

e Arranging and paying for the supply of gas, electricity and water to
the property.

« Taking adequate precautions to prevent fire in the property by
preventing the build-up of combustible items, ensuring waste bins
have lids and are emptied regularly, not leaving candles or other
naked flames unattended, not drying washing in front of gas fires or
over convection heaters

« Ensure that all gullies, entrances to drains, external airbricks and
vents clear and free from obstruction.

« Not doing anything that causes a blockage to the drains, pipes,
gutters or channels in or about the property. Examples include
pouring oil or fat down the drains or flushing inappropriate items,
such as facial wipes, nappies and sanitary pads, in the toilet.

o Safe keeping of door keys and window locks.

Page 142



8. Reporting a Repair

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report repairs that include:

Telephone:

e Office Hours: On telephone number 0115 9013901, or

e Out of Hours emergency repair Help Line on 0800 096 0306

Email:

housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk,

In person at the
e Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park, Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU
Or by appointment at an advice hub site located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.
e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood
Village, Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

When reporting a repair the licensee must confirm:

e The problem

e How it affects them (injury etc)

e What's the risk to them and others?

e If it’s the first time they’ve reported this problem

e |If the problem is damaging other parts of the home or any other property
e How to contact them to gain access to the property

Once a repair has been reported, appointments will be offered on a morning or
afternoon basis. Consideration will be given to the licensee’s situation and other
factors like appointments that clash with “school run

Out of hours appointments will be considered depending on the severity of the
reported incident and the vulnerability of the tenant. These can be offered on a
weekday evening (last appointment being 6.30pm) or on a Saturday morning (last
appointment being 10.30am).

Page 143


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Where a customer fails to provide access on the appointed date and time, the
contractor will notify the Council immediately.

The Council will contact the licensee directly to establish why the appointment was
missed proving them with the date, time and reason why the contractor could not
access the property,

The Council will seek to arrange another suitable date and time with the licensee, so
the works can be completed. Confirmation of the new appointment will be emailed to
licensee. Alternately where the licensee has no email address, the appointment will
be conformed verbally or by letter.

9. Repair Timescales

The response time for undertaking a repair is dependent upon the urgency of the
repair and whether it poses a health, safety or security risk. Most of the work will be
carried out within one, three or seven working days depending on the availability of a
contractor and whether bespoke parts need to be ordered to resolve the issue.

Emergency repairs should be carried out within one working day if:

¢ You have no water or electricity.

¢ You have no gas, or the supply is reduced.

e Windows or doors are not secure (e.g. following a burglary).

e There is a leak from a pipe, tank or cistern.

e The boiler flue is blocked.

e The heating or hot water is not working between 30th September and
30" April.

¢ The sewage drains or soil stack are blocked (or you only have one toilet,
and it cannot be flushed).

o Electrical lighting or other fittings are unsafe.

¢ Damage to any asbestos containing materials within the property

Urgent Repairs should be carried out within five working days if:

e There is a partial loss of water or electricity.

e The heating or hot water is not working between 30th April and 30th
September.

e Asink bath or basin is blocked.

e Atap cannot be turned on or off.

e You have a loose banister or handrail, or rotten wood on the floor or stair
treads.

e Loose fixture or fittings e.g.: kitchen cupboard doors, loft hatch, internal
doors etc.

Page 144



Repairs should be carried out within seven working days if:

e The roof is leaking.
e An extractor fan is broken.

Some repairs may take longer than 7 days to resolve due to the complexity of the
repair e.g. Where scaffolding is required. These repairs will be carried out as soon as
is reasonably practicable.

On receipt of a qualifying repair, the Council will provide the licensee with an
estimate of the time to undertake the repair that will be updated upon a competent
contractor conducting an assessment.

The licensee will be expected to ensure that a responsible person over the age of 18
and who can make decisions on behalf of the household is present when contract
attends.

If the licensee fails to be at home at the arranged time to let the approved Contractor
into the property, the repair work will be cancelled, and rescheduled.

If a contractor fails to attend at the allotted time the licensee should notify the Council
at the earliest opportunity and a rescheduled appointment will be arranged.

The Council will attempt to ensure that the licensee is present at the time of the
repair. However, in the event of an emergency or very urgent repair that impacts on
health and safety and/or the fabric of the building, the Council reserves the right to
enter the premises without the licensee being present.

A licensee is not permitted to undertake any works to the premises.
10. Vulnerable Licensees

A licensee may be vulnerable due to various factors. These include: -
« Financial difficulties:

Severe debt, recent county court judgments, undischarged bankruptcy,
inability to open a bank account, or income support directly paid to utilities.

o Health and well-being:

Poor health, physical or mental disabilities, frailty, or age-related needs.

Page 145



Social isolation:

Lack of family support, social exclusion, or difficulties in understanding,
speaking, or reading English.

Life events:

Experiences like bereavement, domestic violence, or being a care leaver can
temporarily or permanently increase vulnerability.

Specific circumstances:

Being unemployed, a single parent, a pregnant woman, or a former member
of the armed forces can also place individuals at risk.

Addiction issues:

Individuals struggling with addiction may face challenges in managing their
tenancy.

Lack of independent living skills:

Some individuals may require support to manage their tenancy, such as
understanding their rights and responsibilities.

Inability to self-care:

This could include issues with personal hygiene, medication management, or
other daily living tasks.

Risk of exploitation:

Vulnerable tenants may be more susceptible to scams, fraud, or other forms
of exploitation.

The Council will ensure equality of access for all its licensees, especially those who
are at most risk (vulnerable) due to their or their household’s circumstances.

In certain instances, and in accordance with individual or group needs, the Council

may:

« Routinely adjust the urgency of a repair to the needs of particular user
groups and individual customers if health and safety or security is an
issue.

« Provide appropriate assistance or guidance for customers in carrying out
repairs that are the customer’s responsibility.

o Ensure that the Council’s Tenancy Liaison Officer is present when repairs
are carried out, where this is necessary.

« Provide appropriate assistance for customers in carrying out repairs that
are of a rechargeable nature.

Page 146



11. Voids Maintenance

Whenever a property is vacated, the Council will carry out an inspection promptly to
determine what works need to be undertaken to ensure the property meets our
Decent Homes Standard before letting it again.

The Council will ensure all relevant tests are completed to meet the gas and
electricity safety regulations, check any Asbestos Containing Materials are
undisturbed and change or descale showerheads prior to the property being
occupied

Where practical, repairs will be completed prior to the new licensees moving into the
property. However, to ensure we are able let our properties as quickly as possible,
some repairs may be completed after the property has been occupied. The Council
will inform the licensees of all the outstanding works and make arrangements for
these to be completed as soon as possible.

Re-chargeable repairs at void

The Council will recharge any outgoing licensee for the costs of making good or
renewing any damage caused to the property (outside of normal wear and tear), for
clearing any rubbish and/or belongings that have been left at the property.

Recharges may also be applied for the cost of deep cleaning and/or de-infesting the
property. Photographic evidence will be obtained before the void works are carried
out to formally record and prove the need for the recharge.

The Council will make every reasonable effort to contact the previous licensee to
inform them of any outstanding items for which they will be recharged and the
available means of payment. All recharges will be added to the outgoing licensees
account and may affect any future application for re-housing if they are not cleared.

12. Leased Temporary Accommodation

The Council also manages properties leased from social landlords and other
councils.

Repairs to these properties shall be carried out in accordance with the specific
particulars of the signed lease agreement with the agency but will adhere to the
principals stated within this Policy.

Page 147



13. Performance Management

The Council will maintain and update individual property records for all its temporary
accommodation properties including stock condition surveys, EPC ratings,
compliance records, reactive, planned and lifecycle replacements, linked to a single
UPRN.

The Council will ensure that there is a record of all reported repairs and actions
undertaken that will be used to monitor compliance with response times.

The Council will maintain a record of all risks associated with a property including
risk assessments and actions. Where appropriate risks will be reported to the
Corporate Risk Group.

The Council will maintain an annual schedule of planned and compliance works and
will monitor progress throughout the year reporting to the Corporate Risk Group as
appropriate.

Page 148



Appendix 1 — Repair Categories

Examples of “Emergency” repairs

Cistern leak
Door (boarding up of door)
Drain ‘foul drain’ (where there is no other working WC in the dwelling)
Electrical fitting unsafe. Includes for any electrical fitting e.g. sockets, light
fitting or switch, fused spur
External door insecure — including communal areas
Flue blocked to heating appliance or open fire
Gas leak — Licensee to Phone CADENT on 0800 111 999 immediately then.
o Open all doors and windows to ventilate the property
o Do not turn on/off any electrical switches
o Extinguish all naked flames, do not smoke, strike matches or do
anything which could cause ignition
o If there are any electrical security entry phones/locks, please open door
manually
o Vacate the property
Light (no light to stairs, WC, kitchen, bathroom or communal stairwells)
Lock (Insecure. Only where the door cannot be locked from the inside and
there is no lockable second entrance)
Loss of liquid from pipework or other vessel where it should be ordinarily
contained as part of the fixtures and fittings of the property presenting
immediate danger to occupants. This does not include portable items such as
washing machines
Power (total loss of electrical power to any or all circuits)
Roof leak - make safe only (for health and safety reasons, where bad weather
prevents access to the roof to carry out a repair then the surrounding area at
ground level will be cordoned off until conditions ease. Where future renewal
is identified following make safe, this will be referred to the 13-week ‘Planned’
category to allow arrangements for scaffold, planning in of works etc.)
Smoke detectors (repair or replace as necessary) hard wired only. Battery
type detectors are licensee’s own responsibility
Soil-stack (blocked only where there is no second working WC in dwelling)
Tank leak
Water supply (total loss; does not include internal pipes freezing, excludes
solid fuel heating systems)
WC not flushing (only if there is no second working WC in dwelling)
Window insecure (any level)
Window (boarding up of window, ground floor only)
Wires (where not insulated; damaged; broken)

Page 149



Bath leak (if the leak only occurs whilst showering and the bath can be used
independently for bathing, this is not classed as Very Urgent)

Banister, grab rail or handrail where health and safety concern —otherwise 3
working day repair (re-secure loose banister, handrail or grab rail internally or
externally)

Boiler (back boiler leak, containable)

Brickwork unsafe (make safe only). Where there is a danger of injury or
damage to property if not made safe. Once deemed to be safe any future
works identified unless for health and safety reasons will be assessed for
completion on 13-week category.

Cooker (Gas) if unsafe or not working at all (Sheltered Schemes only)
Cylinder (leaking hot water cylinder)

Fire appliance (glass only)

Flood (damage caused by flooding — make safe only)

Fumes (fumes, smoke, gas or solid-fuel boiler)

Fuse (main) consumer unit. (Licensee to be advised to check trips first.
reference repairs handbook)

Severe adverse weather conditions (damage caused by gales, floods,
lightning etc. — make safe only). Once deemed to be safe any future works
identified unless for health and safety reasons will be assessed and referred
to either the 13-week category or annual major category.

Garage door insecure (make safe only). Applies only if a vehicle is kept in the
garage. Not for storage purposes.

Heating (total or partial loss of space or water heating between 30th
September and 30th April).

Key (lost) if only means of entry and locked out (recharge all category of
licensee)

Lift (not working, make safe only)

Manhole cover (repair or replace broken cover where Gedling Borough
Council responsibility only)

Overflow (at any time if uncontainable)

Paved concreted / tarmac areas deemed dangerous if left unattended (main
access route to entrance doors only). Where the licensee has created their
own paved, concrete or tarmacadam area then this will be their own
responsibility to make safe and repair.

Pipes (leaking supply or heating pipes that cannot be isolated or controlled.
Heating pipe work: make safe if uncontainable leak; 15-working days if
renewal is required)

Radiator leak (if uncontainable make safe; 15-working days allowed if renewal
is required)

Stair tread (replace rotten stair tread to licensee property or Communal
Stairwell)

Stop tap (leak, if uncontainable, if dripping and containable 15-working days
allowed)

Page 150



Valve leak (make safe, if uncontainable; if renewal is required, 15-working
days allowed)

WC cistern leak (uncontainable only)

WC pan leak

Examples of “Urgent Response” repairs

Banister, grab rail or handrail (re-secure loose banister, handrail or grab rail
internally or externally)

Cylinder (renewal)

Door entry system (communal) not working

Power (partial loss of power to electrical circuit)

Fan (repair mechanical extractor fan in bathroom or kitchen). Does not include
external grill as this does not affect the usability of the fan.

Feed tank (renewal)

Fire parts: grates, bricks fire-backs etc. (3-working days for medical reason
only, otherwise 15-working days)

Floorboard (replacement of rotten floorboard)

Flooring (replacement of unsafe timber flooring)

Heating (total or partial loss of heating space or water between 1st May and
31st October)

Examples of “non-urgent” repairs

Bath (repair or renew)

Brickwork (repointing, isolated areas only [less than 2 square metres],
otherwise 13-weeks)

Chimney-stack (repair following make safe, weather conditions permitting)
Chimney pot or cowl (re-fix)

Clothes post (re-fix or renew existing only)

Coalbunker (repair or renew existing only)

Door (external repair)

Fan (renewal of extractor fan to kitchen or bathroom)

Fan (repair or replace external grill only)

Fireplace surround & hearth (repair or replacement)

Fire parts: grates, glasses, bricks fire-backs etc. (If medical reason 3 working
days)

Floor tiles (repair or replacement where no health and safety risk — only if
supplied by the Council)

Flooring (repair or replacement where no health and safety risk)

Garage door (repair)

Garage roof (repair). Only where health and safety concern, otherwise work
will be carried out on the 13-week category

Gulley (unblock - licensee responsible for keeping gulley grate clear of leaves
and debris)

Page 151



Gulley grates (renewal)

Gutter and downpipes (repair or re-fix [renewal 30" September — 30th April])
Heating (space or water partial loss with alternate supply between 30th
September - 1st April)

Heating system (repair where system can still be used or there is other means
of heating or hot water)

Immersion heater (where alternative form of heating water available)
Immersion heater (repair where there is a secondary form of heating the
water)

Kitchen unit (repair)

Leak (investigate underground leak and make temporary repair, where it is the
Council’s responsibility only)

Light (repair/renewal of bulkhead / security light to exterior of property)

Lock (outbuilding renewal)

Overflow (if containable)

Pipe-boxing (repair or renewal)

Pipe work renewal (following make safe)

Programmer (renewal of heating programmer) where system is working
Radiator renewal

Refrigerator repair (if integrated or supplied by GBC — see below*)
Re-glazing (cracked window or door caused through vandalism. Work will only
commence once a police crime number has been provided specific to the
repair. All other occasions will be recharged.)

Rendering (repair or renewal to isolated patches only, otherwise 13-weeks)
Roof tile (renewal or re-fix any type) where there is no ingress of water to the
property, then works will be completed as a 13-week repair

Shower (repair or renewal)

Sill (repair where window secure) where there is no danger to health and
safety, then works will be completed as a 13-week repair

Sink (repair or replacement of sink waste, fittings or brackets)

Sink unit top (re-fix)

Skirting board (re-fix or renewal)

Soakaway — unblock where no water ingress to property

Soil stack (leak where other WC available)

Soil stack (renewal if health and safety hazard)

Stair tread (replacement where no health and safety hazard)

Stop tap (renewal/leak)

Tap (repair. does not include mixer taps fitted by licensee)

Tile (see floor tile, roof tile, sill tile, wall tile)

Valve renewal (following make safe to leak)

Wall tile (re-fix or renewal, including splash-back tiles)

Wash-basin (re-fix or renewal)

WC cistern (re-fix)

WC cistern (renewal)

Page 152



e WC door will not close or stay closed

e WOC flush (repair when other working WC)

e WOC flush pipe (repair of leak)

« WC handle (loose [excludes pull chains and cords to high-level cisterns])

« WC pan (re-fix loose WC pan)

« WC pan (renewal)

« WOC seat (re-fix or renewal) [only where licensee is senior citizen or
vulnerable]

e Window (repair where window secure)

o Worktop (renewal for health and safety reasons)

o Tap (re-washer)

e TV points (Sheltered Schemes and communal areas only). Does not include
repairs to aerial.

« Brickwork (repointing, major areas only [above 2 square metres], isolated
areas 15-days)

o Bricks (replacement of missing bricks)

e Canopy (repair to concrete canopy / porch)

*Cookers and Refrigerators
Where the Council has provided a cooker or refrigerator in a property, the cooker

or refrigerator shall be repaired until it is no longer economical to do so (where
the cost of the repair will exceed £50).

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Accommodation -
Landlord Health and Safety
Compliance Policy

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 155

Gedling



Intent

This policy defines the Councils approach on how it will protect residents, staff,
contractors and visitors from health and safety risk associated with landlord
compliance risks in our temporary accommodation properties.

The policy will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance, best
practice and standards.

Purpose and scope

This Policy applies to all Council owned and managed temporary accommodation
and details the Councils arrangements to manage landlord health and safety
compliance. The Council is responsible for the safe condition of all temporary
accommodation and will proactively manage compliance safety to ensure it complies
with its legal duties.

In achieving compliance, the Councils aim is to:
¢ Provide safe properties.
e Comply with statutory obligations

Areas of Risk
Asbestos

The control of Asbestos Regulations is associated codes of practice and guidance are
intended to protect against the risks from exposure to asbestos.

The Council will achieve and maintain effective management systems relating to the
risks posed by asbestos and will comply with all relevant legislation and regulatory
requirements.

The Councils legal duties require us to: -

e Manage communal areas of housing properties

e |dentify the presence of asbestos.

e Assess work which could potentially expose residents, employees,
contractors and visitors to asbestos.

¢ Plan works involving asbestos.

¢ Notify work with asbestos where applicable.

e Provide relevant information, instruction, and training.

e Prevent exposure to asbestos.

e Ensure colleagues and contractors use control measures as defined in the
relevant risk assessments.

¢ Have arrangements in place to deal with accidents, incidents, and
emergencies.

Page 156



To achieve this the Council will: -

Maintain an Asbestos Management Plan.

The Council will ensure an asbestos survey is undertaken on all temporary
accommodation

The Council will address all the findings of the asbestos surveys including the
removal of asbestos where required.

Maintain an up-to-date register listing the whereabouts of all known asbestos
for each of its temporary accommodation properties.

Water Management

The Council will fulfil its duty of care under The Approved Code of Practice L8:
“Legionnaires' disease: The control of legionella bacteria in water systems” and
Guidance Note HS(G)274 Part 2: “The control of legionella bacteria in hot and cold-
water systems

The Councils legal duties require us to: -

e |dentify and assess the risk of harm from water borne bacteria and scalding.

e Carry out a risk assessment.

e Manage the risks and identify management responsibilities, training, and
competence.

e Prevent or control the risk from exposure to legionella bacteria.

e Keep relevant records.

To achieve this the Council will: -
Maintain a Water (legionella) Management Plan
Have a water hygiene risk assessment
Ensure that arrangements are in place for relet and vacant properties.

Identify and implement reasonable measures to prevent/reduce the risk of
scalding.

Page 157



Electrical Safety

The Electricity at Work Regulations (EAW), The Requirements for Electrical
Installations (BS 7671), Electrical standards, Approved Codes of Practice and
Guidance are intended to protect against risks arising from exposure to electrical
hazards.

The Councils legal duties require us to: -

Ensure that all temporary accommodation properties, and any electrical
equipment provided is safe before a new resident/s take up occupancy and
throughout any period they remain in the accommodation.
Maintaining the electrical installation.

Inspecting the electrical installations periodically.

Keeping records of inspections and certified installations.

To achieve this the Council will: -

Fire

Maintain an Electric Safety Management Plan

Ensure all inspections are timely and undertaken by a qualified electrical
engineer

Remedial works are undertaken through the electrical condition report or
testing programme.

The Fire Safety Act and Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order places duties on the
Council and any occupiers of temporary accommodation and is intended to protect
against risks arising from fire safety.

The Councils legal duties require us to: -

Carry out Fire Risk Assessments of all temporary accommodation properties
to identify fire risks and implement measures to reduce or remove the risk of
fire.

Consider who may be especially at risk.

Provide and maintain arrangements for safe and effective means of

escape, firefighting facilities and detection and warning arrangements.
Provide appropriate information relating to fire safety for all residents, staff
members, contractors and visitors

Keep records of all such measures.

To achieve this the Council will: -

Maintain a Fire Safety Management Plan

Ensure a fire risk-based assessment is in place

Page 158



Prioritise fire risk assessment remedial work.

Maintain all firefighting equipment, fire detection and fire safety features
including fire doors.

Maintain on site fire safety and emergency plans.

Gas and Other Heating Fuel Systems

The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations require the Council to ensure that
all gas systems and appliances within their temporary accommodation properties are
maintained in safe condition.

The Council will comply with all relevant legislative and regulatory requirements
relating to the management of gas and other heating fuel systems.

The Councils legal duties require us to: -
¢ |dentify gas and other heating services and appliances which require regular
testing or inspection.

e Conduct a programme of gas and other heating testing and inspections.
¢ |dentify and assess sources of risk.

To achieve this the Council will: -

Maintain a Gas and Other Fuel Management Plan

Maintain a heating servicing and inspection programme in accordance with
relevant regulations and industry practice.

Conduct remedial works through maintenance or service visits.

Damp, mould and Condensation

The Council has a duty of care to ensure all residents, staff, contractors and visitors
stay safe, health and well. Therefore, it must comply with all relevant legislative and
regulatory requirements relating to damp, mould and condensation.

The Council is responsible for making sure our temporary accommodation properties
including communal areas are free from damp, mould and condensation which could
have a serious impact on the health and wellbeing and cause damage to properties.

The Council has a duty to manage and minimise damp, mould and condensation, to
prevent it becoming a health hazard for residents and to stop properties becoming
damaged and deteriorating.

Page 159



The Councils legal duties require us to: -

To ensure all temporary accommodation is free from damp, mould and
condensation and is fit for human habitation

To be proactive and respond promptly to reports of damp, mould and
condensation

Ensuring adequate ventilation systems are in place to minimise the risk of
damp, mould and condensation.

To achieve this the Council will: -

Maintain a Damp, Mould and Condensation Management Plan

Ensure communication detailing how to prevent/ minimise damp, mould and
condensation is available to all new residents prior to them taking up
occupancy

Visits to the property to ensure the residents are complying with the guidance
given to them.

4. Resident responsibilities

All licensees are expected to:

Comply with the conditions set out in the Licence Agreements.

Allow the Council access to the property for any health and safety inspection
and service or repair.

Not to carry out any works to the fabric of the building including painting and
decorating.

Report any defects or health and safety matters immediately.

5. Contractor Approval process

The council recognises that it has a responsibility to take all reasonably practicable
steps to ensure that contractors appointed or other such persons they engage work
in a manner which minimises risks to the health and safety of employees or other
persons affected by their undertaking.

Only competent contractors will be permitted to undertake services for the Council

The Council will ensure that contractors or other such persons they engage have the
skills, knowledge, and competency to carry out the service to the required standards
without risks to health and safety.

Page 160



Contractors are required to conform to all relevant health and safety legislation or
Council policy, procedure or instructions that are applicable.

Contractors are responsible for any sub-contractors they use.

No Contractor or other such person shall work for the Council unless their health and
safety competency assessment has been reviewed and approved.

. Compliance Reporting

Maintenance compliance monitoring is the ongoing, systematic process of checking
that the Councils maintenance practices, procedures, and activities adhere to all
relevant regulations, standards, and internal policies to manage risks and ensure
safety.

Maintenance metrics are quantifiable measurements that assess the performance
and efficiency of maintenance operations, helping the Council monitor and manage
costs, identify areas for improvement and enhance the planning and scheduling.

The Council will carry out compliance reporting through a set of compliance
performance indictors which will be regularly tracked through the Council’s Budget
and Performance Board.

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Accommodation -
Asbestos Management Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Gedling

Page 163



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to ensure that any asbestos within its
temporary accommodation properties is effectively inspected, maintained, managed,
and remains safe.

The Council will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance,
best practice and standards.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation
they provide is free from serious hazards, including how to manage asbestos, and that
homes are fit for habitation. The Council must treat any incident relating to asbestos
management with the utmost seriousness and act promptly to protect residents.

Property inspections and surveys

Asbestos surveys are required on all council owned or managed temporary
accommodation properties. The surveys will have the following main aims:

e |t must as far as reasonably practicable locate and record the location, extent,
and product type of any presumed or known asbestos containing materials.

e |t must inspect and record information on the accessibility, condition, and
surface treatment of any presumed or known asbestos containing materials.

e [t should determine and record the asbestos type, either by collecting
representative samples of suspect materials for laboratory identification, or by
making a presumption based on the product type and its appearance.

e Within each room description it should identify non asbestos materials to
avoid any potential missed asbestos containing materials.

The Council will ensure there are no occupants or other people within the property
when the survey takes place so reducing any potential risk.

Accommodation built after 2000 does not contain asbestos materials and therefore
any temporary accommodation owned or managed by the Council built after this
date will not require an asbestos survey.

Sampling
This is NOT a survey but can be undertaken by an asbestos surveyor when there is
a query as to whether a material is asbestos containing. For example, where there is

a damaged ceiling with a suspect textured coating which needs removal then we can
request samples to be taken just to determine the presence of asbestos within that

Page 164



product. Samples will not be taken of materials which are deemed by the asbestos
surveyor NOT to be asbestos.

All sampling will be undertaken by asbestos surveying contractors commissioned by
the Council. Licensees and/or their family members must not undertake their own
sampling.

. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

e The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974
e The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations

e The Control of Asbestos Regulations and the Approved Code of Practice and
guidance L143

e Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations (as
amended)

e The Construction, Design and Management Regulations (CDM)

e The Housing Act which introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating
System (HHSRS) and the Housing Health and Safety Rating System
Regulations

e The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR)

e The Defective Premises Act
e The Environmental Protection Act

e HSE advisory note — guidance for social landlords on the refurbishment of
housing stock likely to contain asbestos - 26 MAY 2009

e HSG 264 — Asbestos: The survey guide
e HSG 227 — A Comprehensive guide to managing asbestos in premises
e HSG 247 — The Licensed Contractors Guide

The Health and Safety Act at Work 1974

Under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, the Council has a legal responsibility
to ensure its properties are safe and that residents are not exposed to health
hazards like asbestos. This includes identifying asbestos, assessing the risk, and
implementing a management plan to minimize risks. The Council must also inform
tenants about the presence of asbestos and any precautions they need to take.

The Council must ensure their employees receive the necessary asbestos training,
and that workers and contractors are aware of the location or potential presence of
asbestos in the properties they are working in.

Page 165



The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations

The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations places a general duty
on the Council to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of its employees, including
those working with or potentially exposed to asbestos. This duty extends to

protecting others who may be affected by their work activities, such as contractors.

The Control of Asbestos Regulations and the Approved Code of Practice and
guidance L143

The Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 places a duty on the Council to assess
and manage the risks from asbestos in common areas of multi-occupancy domestic
premises. The duty to manage asbestos applies to common areas in multi-
occupancy domestic premises, such as foyers, corridors, lift shafts, staircases, and
roof spaces. This means the Council must identify the presence of asbestos, assess
the risk it poses, and develop a written plan to manage that risk

Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations (as
amended)

The Council has a duty to manage asbestos in properties built before 2000 under the
Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 and the Control of Substances Hazardous to
Health (COSHH) Regulations (as amended). This includes identifying, assessing,
and managing asbestos risks, informing tenants, and potentially removing or sealing
asbestos materials.

The Construction, Design and Management Regulations (CDM)

The Council is affected by the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
(CDM) as it can be considered a "client" under the regulations, meaning it has
specific health and safety duties when construction work is done on their temporary
accommodation property.

The Construction, Design and Management Regulations apply to all construction
work, regardless of size or complexity. This means that even seemingly small jobs
like installing a new heating system can fall under the regulations.

The Housing Act which introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating
System (HHSRS) and the Housing Health and Safety Rating System
Regulations

The Housing Act of 2004, through the Housing Health and Safety Rating System
(HHSRS), places a legal obligation on the Council to ensure their temporary
accommodation properties are safe and habitable, including addressing asbestos
hazards. The Council must assess asbestos risks, develop management plans, and
take action to address any identified problems

Page 166



The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR)

The Council has a legal duty to manage asbestos in its temporary accommodation
properties, including a duty to report dangerous occurrences under RIDDOR. This
includes reporting incidents where asbestos is disturbed, damaged, or deteriorated,
particularly if it causes harm or puts individuals at risk

The Council must keep an up-to-date asbestos register detailing the location and
condition of asbestos containing materials (ACM’s)

The Defective Premises Act 1972

The Council has a responsibility to ensure properties are safe from hazards,
including asbestos, under the Defective Premises Act 1972. If asbestos is present
and not managed properly, the Council could face legal action from residents,
including compensation claims and court orders to rectify the issue.

The Environmental Protection Act

The presence of asbestos in a property can be classified as a statutory nuisance
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, If an environmental health inspector
deems the asbestos harmful, they can issue an abatement order.

HSE advisory note — guidance for social landlords on the refurbishment of
housing stock likely to contain asbestos - 26 MAY 2009

The Health and Safety Executive's (HSE) advisory note and guidance from the HSE
on asbestos management affect landlords, including the Council, by outlining its duty
to manage asbestos in buildings such as its temporary accommodation property,
especially during refurbishment projects. This includes identifying asbestos,
assessing the risk, and developing a management plan. The Council must also
ensure safe asbestos removal, provide information to workers and emergency
services, and periodically review their management plan.

HSG 264 — Asbestos: The survey guide

This guidance has been prepared by the Health and Safety Executive to help those
carrying out asbestos surveys and those with specific responsibilities for managing
the risks from asbestos. It is also designed to provide guidance in situations where
surveys may be carried out for ‘managing’ asbestos in domestic premises under
wider health and safety legislation and for meeting the requirements of the
Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2007 (CDM). It complements
and supports other guidance on managing asbestos.

Page 167


https://www.hse.gov.uk/asbestos/introduction/actions.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/asbestos/introduction/actions.htm

HSG 227 — A Comprehensive guide to managing asbestos in premises

HSG227 is a comprehensive guide to managing asbestos in premises. It outlines the
Councils legal duty to manage asbestos in its temporary accommodation, especially
in common areas of multi-occupancy properties. This includes conducting surveys to
identify asbestos, assessing the risk, and implementing a management plan.

HSG 247 — The Licensed Contractors Guide

HSG247 - "Asbestos: The Licensed Contractors' Guide," provides guidance on how
to safely manage and work with asbestos. This means landlords need to ensure
asbestos is identified, assessed, and managed responsibly, potentially involving
licensed contractors for certain types of work.

. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that its temporary accommodation has all the measures in
place to ensure that asbestos is managed and maintained safely.

The Council will ensure each property has an asbestos survey undertaken. All
asbestos surveys are completed by the appointed UKAS accredited asbestos
surveying contractor.

The Council will immediately implement any remedial action required to resolve any
high-risk results highlighted from the asbestos surveyor’s report.

The Council will inform all new licensees of the risk of asbestos and how to manage
it.

The Council will maintain an up-to-date asbestos register on all its temporary
accommodation properties.

The Council will inform any contractors of the whereabouts of known asbestos
materials before any works are undertaken.

The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

o Toinspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
e Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any asbestos concerns or issues to the Council
immediately.

The Council should always respond promptly and address issues as a matter of
urgency when there is a significant concern for the resident’s safety.

Page 168



For more complex cases particularly where there is a serious health risk to the
customer or member of their household, the Council may require them to move out
of the property. Where this occurs, the Council will be required to provide the
household with alternative temporary accommaodation.

The Council will ensure all records, inspections, surveys, and documentation are
kept up to date and readily available.

. Council inspection procedure

An inspection regime is in place and the Council will ensure that all temporary
accommodation properties are inspected by a qualified asbestos surveyor.

. Contractors

All contractors carrying out specific asbestos responsibilities within this management
plan will be appropriately procured, managed and monitored.

. Licensees

As part of the tenancy welcome pack all residents are provided with information on
Asbestos

. Asbestos removal and treatment

Removal of asbestos when identified to “remove” through an asbestos survey or
when other works to the property require the removal of asbestos in order to facilitate
the works will be carried out by a licensed asbestos removal contractor.

Contractors involved in the removal or disturbance of an asbestos containing
material must certify the areas to be safe for reoccupation.

Following the completion of removal works relevant documentation will be provided
by the contractor to the Council which will include:

e Statement of cleanliness (non-licensed work).

e Air reassurance certification (NNLW) completed by a trained and competent
analyst appointed through the UKAS accredited asbestos surveying
contractor.

e 4 Stage clearance certificate (licensed work) completed by a trained and
competent analyst appointed through the UKAS accredited asbestos
surveying contractor.

e Waste consignment notice (all works).

Page 169



10.

Addressing asbestos issues

Anyone who believes they have disturbed or identified any asbestos including
contracts, employees and Licensees must report these issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these

are:

By telephone on 0115 9013901, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@agedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Where the Council discovers an asbestos safety issue within the property, or a
licensee reports an incident, the following action takes place:

Identify the severity of the incident

Any asbestos incident involving potential or actual exposure must be reported
Consider if property is suitable for occupation

If the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will enlist a qualified contractor to attend the property, having
agreed a suitable date and time. The licensee should not attempt to resolve
the issue themselves.

The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help
manage asbestos safely.

Page 170


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Temporary Accommodation
Mould, Damp and

Condensation Management
Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 171

Gedling



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to proactively manage the potential risks
and promptly diagnose and prevent issues which may arise from damp and mould in
our properties including communal areas and outlining support available to meet the
needs of our customers.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation it
provides is free from serious hazards, including damp and mould, and that homes are
fit for habitation. The Council must treat cases of damp and mould with the utmost
seriousness and act promptly to protect their resident’s health.

Understanding damp and mould

Damp is the build-up of moisture in a property. It affects building materials (such as
walls, floors, ceilings, foundations) and/or home furnishings and belongings (such as
carpets, curtains, wallpaper, furniture and clothing). In addition to causing damage,
damp can also lead to the growth of mould and other microorganisms.

Damp can occur in homes for a variety of reasons. Irrespective of the type of damp
(water leaks, condensation, penetrating, rising or traumatic), the Council is legally
responsible for addressing damp and mould issues.

Water leaks

Water leaks occur from defective supply or waste pipework (especially in bathrooms
and kitchens) can affect both internal and external walls and ceilings. The affected
area looks and feels damp to the touch and stays damp regardless of the prevailing
weather conditions

Condensation damp

Condensation damp happens when moisture generated inside the home cools and
condenses onto colder parts of the buildings (for example window frames, corners and
low points on walls behind sofas or wardrobes). This is the most common form of
damp.

Page 172



Penetrating damp

Penetrating damp appears because of a defect in the structure of the home such as
damaged brickwork, missing roof tiles, loose flashing or leaking rainwater goods.

All homes can be affected by condensation because the climate is often cool. Normal
household activities also constantly release moisture into the air. Good practices in the
home minimises and alleviates condensation and in many cases prevents it causing
dampness and persistent mould

Rising damp

Rising damp is moisture from the ground that rises up through parts of the buildings in
contact with the ground (walls and floors); it is usually found in older properties and is
often misdiagnosed. It can be identified through visual inspection; however chemical
testing is the most appropriate way of confirming it. Often it is due to defective damp
proof courses and membranes.

Traumatic damp

Traumatic damp can be caused by leaking water from waste and heating pipes,
overflowing baths or sinks, burst pipes or defective water storage vessels inside the
building. Traumatic damp can also originate from outside the property, for example
from another building or from environmental flooding.

. Health risks

Mould is a type of fungus that spreads through spores which are invisible to the naked
eye but are in the air around us all the time that can quickly grow on surfaces into a
visible covering where dampness persists, or water has formed.

Mould can cause adverse health effects as well as damage to buildings.

Damp and mould primarily affect the airways and lungs, but they can also affect the
eyes and skin. The respiratory effects of damp and mould can cause serious illness
and, in the most severe cases, death.

The presence of damp and mould can also affect residents’ mental health. This could
be due to worries about the health impacts of damp and mould, unpleasant living
conditions, and destruction of property and belongings, among other concerns.

Everyone is vulnerable to the health impacts of damp and mould, but people with
certain health conditions, children and older adults are at greater risk of more severe
health impact.

The Council will consider the potential impact of damp and mould on all residents’
health, including respiratory issues, allergies, and other conditions aggravated by
dampness, especially those vulnerable tenants, who may be more susceptible to the
health risks. Prior to any allocation of temporary accommodation, a risk assessment
is undertaken on all family members to ensure the accommodation is suitable for their
needs.

Page 173



5. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

Defective Premises Act 1972

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (section 11)
Housing Act 2004

Decent Homes Standard 2006

Equality Act 2010

Home Standard — Consumer Standards 2015
Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018
Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards

Awaab’s law

Defective Premises Act 1972

Under the Defective Premises Act 1972, the Council has a duty of care to ensure
their temporary accommodation is reasonably safe for tenants, including from
defects that could cause injury. This includes a duty to address damp and mould
issues that are caused by a defect in the property

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Council has a responsibility to
address damp and mould issues if they constitute a "statutory nuisance," meaning
they are prejudicial to health or interfere with the tenant's use and enjoyment of the
property. This includes situations where damp and mould are caused by disrepair or
pose a health and safety risk.

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

New provisions in the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 added by the Homes (Fitness
for Human Habitation) Act 2018 require that properties are free of hazards, including
damp and mould, which are so serious that the dwelling is not reasonably suitable
for occupation in that condition. The current occupier may be taken into
consideration when determining whether the property is suitable.

A home that is fit for human habitation is safe and healthy, which would mean free
from damp and mould that could cause significant harm.

Occupants may wish to take action if their property is unfit for human habitation or
the Council has failed to keep it in repair, under defined circumstances, under
Section 9A and Section 11 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985. Any complaints
about repairs will be responded to in line with the Councils Complaints, Compliments
and Comments Policy.

Page 174



Housing Act 2004

The Housing Act 2004 states that properties must be free from hazards at the most
dangerous ‘category 1’ level, as assessed using the Housing Health and Safety
Rating System (HHSRS), a risk-based evaluation tool. This includes mould and all
types of dampness. A ‘category 1’ hazard means that an occupier or visitor to the
property may require some form of medical attention over the course of a year.

Decent Homes Standard 2006 (DHS)

To meet the Decent Homes Standard, all temporary accommodation must be free
from dangerous ‘category 1’ hazards. But the decent homes standard also states
that the accommodation must be in a reasonable state of repair and provide a
reasonable degree of thermal comfort. Either disrepair or inadequate thermal
comfort, or both, may result in damp and mould. Where the Regulator of Social
Housing (RSH) determines a provider has breached standards, it has a range of
legal powers it can use, including enforcement powers.

Temporary accommodation is short-term housing provided by the Council to
households experiencing homelessness or at immediate risk of homelessness and is
not social housing.

Equality Act 2010

Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a responsibility to ensure their
temporary accommodation properties are reasonably suitable for habitation, which
includes addressing issues like damp and mould that could pose a health risk. They
must act promptly to identify and resolve the underlying causes of damp and mould,
ensuring long-term solutions. This duty extends to the structure and exterior of the
property, as well as installations that provide essential services like heating and
sanitation

Home Standard — Consumer Standards 2015

The Consumer Standards require the Council to be proactive and respond promptly
to reports of damp and mould, focusing on addressing the underlying causes.

Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018

Under the Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018, the Council has a legal
duty to ensure their rental properties are fit for human habitation, which includes
being free from damp and mould. This duty applies both at the start of the tenancy
and throughout.

The council is responsible for addressing damp and mould issues caused by
structural faults, such as leaks, rising damp, or structural problems and ensuring
adequate ventilation systems are in place to prevent condensation and mould
growth, especially in areas prone to moisture, like kitchens and bathrooms.

Page 175



Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards

The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations
2015 require that rented accommodation must meet the Minimum Level of Energy
Efficiency standard of Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) band E (unless
exempt). The regulations do not make reference to damp and mould, but an energy
efficient property is less likely to be affected by condensation, one cause of damp
and mould, provided it is adequately ventilated.

Awaab’s Law (comes into effect 27" October 2025)

Awaab's Law sets specific timescales for social landlords to address health hazards
in properties. The Council must investigate hazards within 14 calendar days of
becoming aware and begin repairs within 7 days for significant hazards. Emergency
repairs must be completed within 24 hours.

The Housing Ombudsman has defined emergency repairs as those presenting "a
significant and imminent risk of harm," including issues like gas leaks, broken boilers,
lack of water supply, exposed wiring, significant leaks, and prevalent damp and
mould impacting breathing.

In situations where repairs cannot be completed within the required timescales and
the hazard poses a significant risk, the Council must offer alternative temporary
accommodation until the issue is resolved.

. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that their temporary accommodation properties have all the
measures in place to ensure that damp and mould have been minimised.

The Council will therefore regularly inspect its temporary accommodation properties,
remedy deficiencies promptly and ensure that they have a regular programme of
maintenance and management.

The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

o To inspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
o Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any issues to the Council immediately. When a
licensee does report damp and mould problems, the Council will need to establish
the source of the damp, whether there is any defect to the property that is causing it
and then carry out the appropriate remedial work. The Council will normally inspect
the property within 5 working days of the reported incident. In some cases,
professional inspections or a damp surveyor may be required.

Page 176



While there is currently no specific timeframe within which remedial work to address
damp and mould must be undertaken unless they are deemed a significant hazard,
Awaab’s Law which comes into effect on the 27" October 2005 which does set
timeframes which will place a requirement on the Council to respond promptly and
address issues as a matter of urgency especially when there is a significant concern
for the residents health.

Further guidance on the can be found at the following link :- Understanding and
addressing the health risks of damp and mould in the home - GOV.UK

For more complex cases particularly where more intrusive building work is required
and/or there is a serious health risk to the customer or member of their household,
the Council may require them to move out of the property. Where this occurs, the
Council will be required to provide the household with alternative temporary
accommodation.

Depending on the nature of the incident, the Council may only be required to provide
an advisory response to a damp and mould enquires. Where damp and mould are a
result of condensation the council will work with the licensee to support them in
taking appropriate measures to prevent the damp and mould reoccurring. This might
include advice about how to control moisture levels or increase ventilation or heating,
so that damp levels are kept low. The Council will encourage all licensees to follow
the advice and explain the implications of any activity that could worsen the problem.

. Council inspection procedure

Under Awaab’s law, the Council must proactively identify and address damp and
mould hazards that pose a significant risk to an occupier and their families health.
Therefore, routine property inspections will be undertaken periodically for any signs of
damp and mould which should help detect issues early and prevent escalation. This
will occur each time a licensee is placed into temporary accommodation and a
minimum of once every 6 months. The Housing Officer carries out a visual check
especially in high-risk areas prone to dampness ad mould such a kitchens, bathrooms
and poorly ventilated rooms. Checks will be undertaken given regard to the following:

Internal and external checks
External checks:

e Damaged or blocked pipes, gutters or downpipes

e Broken seals around windows or ill-fitting windows that do not close fully

e Visible structural or facade defects, such as cracks in render or the foundation,
missing or broken roof finishes

e Bridged (compromised) damp proof course

Page 177


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/damp-and-mould-understanding-and-addressing-the-health-risks-for-rented-housing-providers/understanding-and-addressing-the-health-risks-of-damp-and-mould-in-the-home--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/damp-and-mould-understanding-and-addressing-the-health-risks-for-rented-housing-providers/understanding-and-addressing-the-health-risks-of-damp-and-mould-in-the-home--2

Internal checks:

Peeling wallpaper

Visible damp or staining

Visible condensation

Defective plaster

Consistently high relative humidity, as assessed using a moisture meter or

environmental monitors

Low levels of loft or wall insulation

e Low internal wall temperature

e Damaged, blocked, absent or switched off mechanical ventilation (for example,
extractors in kitchens and bathrooms)

¢ Ineffective or broken heating systems

For properties with ongoing damp and mould issues the Council will conduct a
Damp, Mould and Condensation (DMC) survey to assess the extent of the damp and
mould. This will identify the underlying cause of the problem and recommend
appropriate solution to resolve the issue.

The findings are recorded on a ‘Temporary Accommodation Property Survey’
inspection form which is retained for a period of 7 years (Appendix 1)

All new licensees will also be provided with a leaflet called ‘Preventing damp and
mould in your home’ (Appendix 2) when they sign the license agreement and prior to
moving into the temporary accommodation provided. This includes some information
regarding mould and how best to prevent it within the home.

. Addressing damp and mould
Licensees must report any damp and mould issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these
are:

By telephone on 0115 9013901, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Page 178


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Where the Council discovers mould or damp within the property, or a licensee
reports damp in a property, the following action takes place:

|dentify the severity of the incident

Consider if property is suitable for occupation.

If the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

Instruct contractor to remove mould and treat as necessary.

Carry out repairs if the damp if caused by a building defect.

The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help ensure
incidents do not reoccur in the future.

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Accommodation -
Electrical Management Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 181

Gedling



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to ensure that the electrical installations
within its owned and managed properties, that are provided as temporary
accommodation, are effectively tested, maintained, managed and safe to use.

The Council will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance,
best practice and standards.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation
they provide is free from serious hazards, including the maintenance of electrical
installations, and that homes are fit for habitation. The Council must treat any incident
relating to an electrical safety installation with the utmost seriousness and act promptly
to protect residents.

Specific installations

Inspections will include all in service equipment (equipment with a permanent
connection to supply, for example pumps, cookers, extractor fans or air conditioning
equipment).

If it plugs in, that item is covered by PAT testing codes of practice.

The law requires electrical equipment to be maintained to prevent danger. The type
and frequency of user checks, inspections and testing needed will depend on the
equipment, the environment in which it is used and the results of previous checks.

The Council will arrange an inspection of its properties every 5 years. This includes
consumer units (fuse boxes), electrical wiring, plug sockets, light fittings, electric
showers and extractor fans and other fixed electrical parts,

Communal areas will also be tested every 5 years.

Following a full inspection, the registered qualified contractor will issue an Electrical
Installation condition Report (EICR) which will either formally declare that the
installation is safe for continued use or highlight any suggested or urgent repairs that
need to be made.

However, the Council will arrange a visual inspection to be undertaken by a qualified
electrician on any change of occupancy, but a full test will still be completed every 5
years. If the visual inspection indicates that the installation has been interfered with
by the resident or others, then a full inspection will be carried out and remedial

Page 182



actions undertaken. The resident will also be charged for any works caried out in this
instance.

. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

e BS 7671 Requirements for electrical installations.

e Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

e Housing Act

e Regulatory Reform Fire Safety Order 2005 England and Wales
e Electricity at Work Regulations 1989

e Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

e Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015

BS 7671 Wiring regulations

BS 7671 is the national standard for the installation and inspection of electrical
systems in the UK, adherence to which is important for ensuring safety as well as
legal compliance of all electrical work and installations.

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

The Landlord and Tenant Act 1985, Section 11 requires the Council “to keep in repair
and proper working order the installations in the dwelling-house for the supply of
water, gas and electricity”.

Although the Act does not make mention of a need to carry out periodic inspection
and testing of the electrical installation, they do place an obligation on the Council to
maintain the installation in a condition suitable for the use intended.

Where an installation is not subject to an effective and ongoing planned and
proactive maintenance programme, periodic inspection and testing carried out at
appropriate intervals is a practical way of identifying where maintenance work is
most required in order to keep the accommodation in a condition that is safe for use
and for staff and contractors to work in

Page 183



Housing Act 2004
The key points about electrical safety under the Housing Act are:

e The Council must ensure all fixed electrical installations (like wiring, light
sockets, and plug sockets) are inspected and tested by a registered
electrician, according to the 18th edition of the Wiring Regulations.

¢ Inspections must be carried out at least every 5 years, or when there is a
change of tenancy, whichever is sooner.

e A qualified electrician will provide an EICR after the inspection and testing.

e Licensees must report any electrical faults they notice and allow access for
repairs and safety checks

Regulatory Reform Fire Safety Order 2005 England and Wales

Under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, the Council has a legal duty
to ensure their properties are safe from fire. This involves taking reasonable steps to
protect their residents.

Electricity at Work Regulations 1989

The Council has a legal obligation under The Electricity at Work Regulations for
employers and employees to prevent electrical-related hazards, such as electric
shock, fires, or explosions, which can happen when electrical systems or equipment
are poorly maintained.

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

Under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, the Council has a primary duty

to ensure their temporary accommodation is safe for all occupants, and to prevent
exposure to health and safety risks. This includes maintaining the property's
structure and exterior, as well as common areas, and ensuring proper maintenance
of fixtures and fittings. Additionally, the Council must comply with specific regulations
which includes electrical wiring and fire safety.

Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015

Under the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 (CDM 2015),
the Council has specific duties to ensure the safety of construction projects,
especially when undertaking repairs or new construction. Key responsibilities
include ensuring work is carried out safely, providing relevant information to
designers and contractors, and cooperating with other parties involved in the
project.

Page 184



5. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that its temporary accommodation has all the measures in
place to ensure that electrical safety standards are met.

The Council will inspect its temporary accommodation properties, remedy
deficiencies promptly and ensure that they have a regular programme of
maintenance and management.

The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

« To inspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
e Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any issues to the Council immediately. When a
licensee does report an electrical safety problem the Council will need to consider
the emergency of the repair.

An emergency repair will include incidents such as exposed electrical wiring, broken
accessories showing cooper parts, inoperable switches, no lighting.

The Council should always respond promptly and address issues as a matter of
urgency when there is a significant concern for the resident’s safety.

For more complex cases particularly where there is a serious health risk to the
customer or member of their household, the Council may require them to move out
of the property. Where this occurs, the Council will be required to provide the
household with alternative temporary accommodation.

6. Council inspection procedure

The Council will ensure that an electrical safety inspection is undertaken by a qualified
electrician at each of its temporary accommodation units every 5 years.

Additionally, a visual check is also undertaken by a qualified electrician, when a
property becomes vacant and before a new licensee is placed into the property. If the
visual inspection identifies any potential risks, then a full inspection will be carried out
and remedial action undertaken before the property is occupied.

The findings are recorded which is retained for a period of 7 years (Appendix 1)

Page 185



7. Addressing electrical installation issues
Licensees must report any issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these
are:

e By telephone on 01159013901, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Where the Council discovers an electrical installation safety issue within the property,
or a licensee reports an incident, the following action takes place:

e |dentify the severity of the incident

e Consider if property is suitable for occupation

e |f the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

e The Council will enlist a qualified electrician to attend the property, having
agreed a suitable date and time, who will inspect, test and fix and identified
safety issues. The licensee should not attempt to resolve the issue
themselves.

e The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help ensure
incidents do not reoccur in the future.

Page 186


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Temporary Accommodation -
Fire Safety Mlanagement Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 187

Gedling



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to fire safety management The Council wil
ensure its temporary accommodation properties are effectively inspected,
maintained, managed, and remain safe for its residents, staff, contractors and
visitors.

The Council will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance,
best practice and standards.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation
they provide is free from serious hazards, including fire safety management, and that
homes are fit for habitation. The Council must treat any incident relating to fire safety
management with the utmost seriousness and act promptly to protect residents.

Fire safety management

This plan aims to minimise the likelihood of a fire occurring and the consequences in
the event of a fire.

The Council will implement, manage, monitor and audit a range of fire safety

management actions including: -

e Develop appropriate fire risk assessments

e Appropriate and regular servicing, maintenance and testing of fire safety
equipment including fire doors

e Meaningful engagement with our residents

e Increased awareness of fire safety issues by providing training and support to
staff, contractors and other stakeholders

Page 188



Fire risk assessments

As outlined in the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 and the requirements
of the Fire Safety Act 2021 the council will evidence fire safety management by
carrying out fire risk assessments on an annual basis.

The aims of a fire risk assessment are:

e To identify fire safety hazards in our temporary accommodation.

e To reduce the risk of those hazards causing harm to as low a level as is
reasonably practicable.

e To decide what physical fire precautions and management processes are
required to ensure the safety of any individuals occupying the property in the
event that a fire occurs.

Evacuation process

The Council will advise and promote relevant information about fire evacuation fire
processes. Detailed fire safety information including safe evacuation and the
importance of fire doors will be provided to all new residents and annually to

existing residents.

Due the different types of temporary accommodation the council manages, a
number of evacuation processes will be employed to ensure that residents, staff
members, contractors and visitors remain safe in the event of a fire occurring, or

any other reason prompting the evacuation of a building.

The protocols used for evacuation include the following:

Stay Put

Full Evacuation

e Phased Evacuation
e Partial Evacuation
e Progressive Horizontal Evacuation

e Progressive Vertical Evacuation

Page 189



Firefighting equipment

The Council does not provide any fire fighting equipment such as fire
extinguishers in its accommodation to avoid use by untrained residents, staff
members, contractors or visitors. Where a fire occurs, any occupiers should
evacuate the property and call the Fire Brigade immediately.

Fire blankets will only be made available for temporary accommodation on sites
that have shared communal cooking facilities.

Fire doors

Fire doors installed in the communal spaces and temporary accommodation
managed by the Council must achieve an appropriate standard and / or
certification to ensure that they meet suitable safety standards.

This process requires fire doors to be inspected regularly and evaluated to ensure
that the door, frame, hinges, mechanical closers, smoke and heat seals are of the

correct type and also fitted in compliance with relevant standards.

Initial assessments, labelling, cataloguing and repairs to fire doors will be carried

out by an independent specialist contractor.
Fire Doors will be inspected to the following frequencies:

e Communal fire doors — At least every 3 months

e Flat front doors — At least every 12 months

Communication and Resident Engagement

The Council will engage with residents to make sure they feel safe in their homes
and surroundings, understand how to report problems and concerns and ensure that
they understand exactly what to do if there is a serious incident in the block where
they live. The key objectives for resident engagement are:

Listen and understand — The Council will communicate with residents to make sure
that they receive relevant information and feel well informed. The Council will make

sure that resident’s voices are heard, understood and acted upon.

Involve — The Council will involve residents and encourage them to take part, so they
feel empowered to play a key role in ensuring the safety of their home. Residents
should also me made aware of and understand their responsibilities.

Page 190



4. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

e The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety Order) 2005
e The Fire Safety Act 2021

e The Building Safety Act 2022

e The Building Regulations 2010

e The Housing Act 2004

e The Construction (Design & Management) Regulations 2015
e The Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety Order) 2005

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (FSO) requires the Council to
ensure fire safety in the temporary accommodation they manage, particularly in
common areas of HMOs, flats, and other shared spaces. The Council must carry out
regular fire risk assessments, maintain fire safety precautions, and keep residents
informed about fire safety measures.

The Fire Safety Act 2021

The Fire Safety Act 2021 impacts the Council by clarifying and expanding its
responsibilities regarding fire safety in multi-occupied residential buildings, including
the structure and external walls (including cladding, windows, and balconies), and
entrance doors to individual flats. The Council must ensure fire risk assessments are
conducted, cover these elements, and are reviewed regularly

The Building Safety Act 2022

The Building Safety Act 2022 impacts the Council by requiring them to manage
safety risks in high-rise buildings (high-rise, at least 18 meters tall or 7 storeys, with
two or more residential units), particularly those relating to fire safety, and by
imposing duties to remediate building defects. The Council currently does not
manage any high-rise properties.

Page 191



The Building Regulations 2010

Landlords have a responsibility to ensure fire safety in their properties, particularly
under the Building Regulations 2010 and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order
2005. This includes conducting fire risk assessments, installing and maintaining fire
safety equipment, and ensuring residents are aware of fire safety procedures.

The Housing Act 2004

The Housing Act 2004 and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (FSO)
requires the Council to take reasonable steps to ensure their temporary
accommodation are safe from fire, particularly in houses in multiple occupation
(HMOs) and common areas of flats. This includes carrying out fire risk assessments,
identifying and mitigating fire hazards, and ensuring safe escape routes.

The Construction (Design & Management) Regulations 2015

The Construction (Design & Management) Regulations (CDM) 2015 don't directly
address fire safety in the context of existing buildings, but they do play a role in
ensuring safe construction and renovation work. The Council need to understand
that any fire safety measures taken during construction or renovation must comply
with CDM requirements, and they are responsible for ensuring their properties are
safe from fire.

The Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022

The Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022 requires the Council, in multi-occupied
residential buildings. They require landlords to conduct fire risk assessments,
implement fire safety measures, and ensure ongoing maintenance of fire prevention

systems in common areas. The Council also has a responsibility to inspect flat
entrance doors annually and communal fire doors quarterly.

. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that its temporary accommodation has all the measures in
place to reduce the risk of fire in the temporary accommaodation it manages.

The Council will immediately implement any remedial action required to resolve any
high-risk results identified.

The Council will ensure all approved contractors are qualified and competent to carry
out the specific tasks that they’ve been assigned

Page 192



The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

o To inspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
e Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any fire safety concerns to the Council immediately.

The Council should always respond promptly and address issues as a matter of
urgency when there is a significant concern for the resident’s safety.

For more complex cases particularly where there is a serious health risk to the
customer or member of their household, the Council may require them to move out
of the property. Where this occurs, the Council will be required to provide the
household with alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will ensure all records, inspections, surveys and documentation are kept
up to date and readily available.

. Addressing water systems management issues
Licensees must report any issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these
are:

e By telephone on 0115 9013901, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Page 193


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Where the Council discovers a fire safety issue within the property, or a licensee
reports an incident, the following action takes place:

Identify the severity of the incident.

Consider if property is suitable for occupation.

If the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will enlist a qualified contractor to attend the property, having
agreed a suitable date and time. The licensee should not attempt to resolve
the issue themselves.

The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help prevent
future issues from arising.

Page 194



Temporary Accommodation -
Gas Management Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 195

Gedling



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to ensure that all gas and heating systems
within its temporary accommodation properties are effectively inspected, maintained,
managed, and remain safe.

The Council will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance,
best practice and standards.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation
they provide is free from serious hazards, including how to manage gas and other
heating fuels, and that homes are fit for habitation. The Council must treat any incident
relating to gas and other heating fuels management with the utmost seriousness and
act promptly to protect residents.

Gas and electric heaters
Gas

Regulation 36 of The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations requires the
Council to ensure that gas heating installations are maintained in a safe condition.
This applies to:

a) Any relevant gas fitting meaning:
i) Any gas appliance (other than an appliance which residents are entitled to
remove from the relevant premises) or any installation pipework installed in

any relevant premises: and

i) Any gas appliance or installation pipework, which directly or indirectly,
serves the relevant premises and which either-

e Isinstalled in any part of the premises in which the landlord has an
estate or interest; or

e |s owned by the landlord or is under their control, except that it shall not
include any gas appliance or installation, pipework exclusively used in
a part of the premises occupied for non-residential purposes.

b) Any flue which serves any relevant gas fitting, to prevent the risk of injury to
any person in lawful occupation of relevant premises.

Page 196



Regulation 36 also requires, amongst other things, that a landlord shall
ensure that:

e Each appliance and flue is checked for safety within 12 months of
being installed and at intervals of not more than 12 months since it was
last checked for safety.

e Such checks are carried out by those persons who are a member of a
class of persons approved by the HSE e.g. Gas Safe Register.

e In any room occupied or to be occupied as sleeping accommodation by
a customer, there is not fitted a relevant gas fitting of a particular type

e Written records are kept giving details of appliances or flues checked,
dates of checking, any defects identified, and remedial action
required/taken.

Electric storage heaters

There is no requirement to service these annually, therefore a visual inspection will
be carried out as part of the periodic electrical test and the testing engineer will
check the condition of the unit and controls and note any defects.

. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

e The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

e Building Regulations (England & Wales)

e The Gas Safety (Installation & Use) Regulations (GSIUR)

e The Gas Safety (Management) Regulations

e The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations

e Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR)

e Heating Equipment Testing and Approval System (HETAS) recommendations
and industry standards.

e Manufacturer’s instructions

Page 197



The Health and Safety Act at work 1974

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (HSWA) places a general duty of care on
the Council to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of residents placed in temporary
accommodation, including in relation to gas safety. This means the Council must
ensure gas appliances, pipework, and flues are safe, properly maintained, and
regularly checked.

Building Regulations (England & Wales)

The Council has a legal obligation under the Gas Safety (Installation and Use)
Regulations 1998 to ensure the safety of gas appliances and fittings in their
temporary accommodation properties. This includes regular safety checks and
maintenance. The Council must have a gas safety check carried out by a Gas Safe
registered engineer for all gas appliances and flues they provide for residential use
either annually or every time a property becomes vacant and prior to new residents
taking up occupancy.

The Gas Safety (Installation & Use) Regulations (GSIUR)

Under the Gas Safety (Installation & Use) Regulations (GSIUR), the Council is
responsible for ensuring the safety of gas appliances and flues in their temporary
accommodation properties. This includes regular maintenance, repairs, and annual
gas safety checks by a Gas Safe registered engineer. They must also keep records
of these checks. Additionally, the Council must ensure there is a carbon monoxide
alarm in any living accommodation where a gas appliance is installed.

The Gas Safety (Management) Regulations

The Council must ensure gas equipment in their temporary accommodation is safely
installed and maintained by a Gas Safe registered engineer including an annual gas
safety check on each appliance and flue or the when the property becomes vacant.

The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations

The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations requires the Council
to install working smoke and carbon monoxide alarms in its temporary
accommodation properties, and to maintain them. The Council is responsible for
ensuring these alarms are in working condition on the first day of a new licence.

Heating Equipment Testing and Approval System (HETAS) recommendations
and industry standards.

The Council is legally obligated to ensure the safety of gas appliances and flues in
their temporary accommodation properties, with HETAS and industry standards
playing a key role. This means the Council must comply with the Gas Safety
(Installation and Use) Regulations 1998 (GSIUR) and have an annual gas safety
check conducted by a Gas Safe registered engineer.

Page 198



Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR)

The Council has a responsibility to report certain gas-related incidents under the
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR). This includes reporting dangerous gas appliances, fittings, or work that
could cause harm, as well as serious accidents and near misses involving gas.

Manufacturer’s instructions

The Council is legally obligated to maintain gas appliances and pipework according
to manufacturer's instructions. This includes regular servicing and annual gas safety
checks, ensuring the safety of residents.

. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that its temporary accommodation has all the measures in
place to ensure that gas management is managed and maintained safely.

The Council will ensure each property has the appropriate gas safety checks
undertaken for each new licence and/or on an annual basis.

The Council will immediately implement any remedial action required to resolve any
high-risk results identified.

The Council will ensure all approved contractors are qualified and competent to carry
out the specific tasks that they’ve been assigned

The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

o To inspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
e Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any gas concerns or issues to the Council
immediately.

The Council should always respond promptly and address issues as a matter of
urgency when there is a significant concern for the resident’s safety.

For more complex cases particularly where there is a serious health risk to the
customer or member of their household, the Council may require them to move out
of the property. Where this occurs, the Council will be required to provide the
household with alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will ensure all servicing and maintenance records are kept up to date
and readily available.

Page 199



Customers requests for fitting their own gas appliances will be refused.

. Gas management procedure

The Council will follow the following procedure for the installation, maintenance and
servicing of domestic gas appliances in accordance with associated manufacturers,
statutory and regulatory legislation.

When any work is carried out in relation to gas appliances and other fittings, all
contractors will be competent and hold a valid certificate of competence for each work
activity that they undertake.

Any works to existing system/equipment i.e. boiler, cylinders tanks, flues, radiators etc.
and fit specified replacement gas fired central heating system which may include
renewal of gas installation pipe work, will be undertaken in accordance with
manufacturer’s instructions, relevant standards and regulations.

The whole of the works shall be installed in accordance with the appropriate
manufacturer’s installation instructions and comply with the requirements of the Gas
Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations, current |.E.E Wiring Regulations, current
Building Regulations and all other stated Byelaws, Regulations and British
Standards/Codes of Practice.

All servicing/repairs shall be carried out with due regard to the manufacturer's
appliance installation and servicing instructions. All works and materials will comply
with the requirements of the Gas Safety Regulations and all other stated Byelaws,
Regulations, British Standards and Codes of Practices.

In compliance with current Regulations, the council will carry out an annual service of
all gas appliances and/or when a new license commences.

As a result of this service, if the appliance is found to be in a poor condition and/or
beyond economical repair, the appliance will be recommended for replacement.

At the time of the service, the smoke detection system will also be checked and any
issues reported.

Carbon monoxide detectors will also be checked and if necessary, replaced and any
issues reported.

To comply with The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm Regulations, the heating
engineer must ensure that a Carbon Monoxide detector is fitted in any room containing
a gas boiler or gas fire.

Classification of defective appliance/installation may fall within one of the following two
categories:

e |Immediately Dangerous or

o AtRisk

Page 200



In the event of an appliance/installation being classed as immediately dangerous or
at risk, then the following will apply:

a) If classed as “immediately dangerous”, the Council will appoint a qualified
gas safety engineer to disconnect the appliance/installation and cap off the

gas supply.

b) If classed as “at risk”, the Council will ensure the appliance/installation is
turned of immediately.

It is suggested that all boilers are given a life cycle of 15 years where appliance age
is known or from date of install to help manage this process. The Council will
maintain a record of age of the appliance where known or use any details received
from the property condition surveys recommending future replacement units for each

property.

When undertaking planned or responsive property work such as roofing, plumbing,
building, refurbishment etc. ALL contractors and tradespersons have legal
responsibilities and obligations to plan, manage and monitor construction work and
ensure their work does not affect the safety of gas installations.

. Addressing gas safety management issues
Licensees must report any issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these
are:

e By telephone on 0115 901390, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Page 201


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

Where the Council discovers a gas safety issue within the property, or a licensee
reports an incident, the following action takes place:

|dentify the severity of the incident.

If someone can already smell gas and/or think there could be a leak, they
should call Cadent immediately on 0800 111 999 (at any time of the day or
night). The smell of gas within a property can be alarming and should be
treated seriously.

Consider if property is suitable for occupation.

If the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will enlist a qualified contractor to attend the property, having
agreed a suitable date and time. The licensee should not attempt to resolve
the issue themselves.

The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help prevent
future issues from arising.

Page 202



Temporary Accommodation -
Water (Legionella)
Management Plan

August 2025

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 203

Gedling



Purpose and scope

This policy defines the Councils approach to ensure that all hot and cold-water
systems within its temporary accommodation properties are effectively inspected,
maintained, managed, and remain safe.

The Council will also ensure compliance with the respective legislation, guidance,
best practice and standards.

This policy applies to all customers who occupy accommodation under a licence
agreement.

Background

The Council is a non-stock holding authority but is responsible for several properties
which are used to meet their legal duty to provide homeless households temporary
accommodation whilst permanent move on accommodation is secured.

There is an obligation on the Council to ensure that the temporary accommodation
they provide is free from serious hazards, including how to hot and cold-water
systems, and that homes are fit for habitation. The Council must treat any incident
relating to hot and cold-water systems with the utmost seriousness and act promptly
to protect residents.

Hot and cold-water systems - Legionella

The Council will ensure, as far as is possible, that all hot and cold-water systems in
relation to the control of legionella bacteria in all temporary accommodation that the
Council has a responsibility as landlord, are in a safe condition and that all the

occupants of and persons visiting these properties are in no danger from legionella.

Legionella is:

Legionella is a bacterium that can cause Legionnaires' disease, a serious
respiratory illness.

There are over 40 species of the genus legionella but only a few are
associated with outbreaks

Common in natural (rivers, lakes etc.) and artificial water systems (hot & cold-
water systems, storage tanks, pipework, taps and showers)

Able to survive in low temperatures but will only multiply at temperatures
between 20 and 45°C

Killed within a few minutes at 60°C.

Page 204



Legionnaire’s disease:

e Is atype of pneumonia caused by infection of the lungs by legionella bacteria.

e If not diagnosed promptly can attack other organ systems in the body
resulting in death in some cases.

e Named after a US army veterans (legionnaires) convention where 34 died
from atypical pneumonia. The bacteria was found in the hotel’s air handling
ductwork and in the lungs of the victims

Legionella pneumophilia:

¢ Pneumophilia meaning lung loving
e Can be divided into “serogroups” with serogroup 1 being the major outbreak
strain.

Infection:

e The legionella bacteria has to become airborne in such a way that it can be
breathed in

e Water containing legionella becomes broken up by impact with surfaces or by
devices that create a spray of droplets

e The small droplets or aerosols are of a size that can penetrate deep into the
lungs

The Council temporary accommodation properties only have hot and cold-water
systems and as such only Part 2 of HSG274 applies in relation to compliance.

The Council will ensure that all hot and cold-water systems with a potential legionella
risk within its owned and managed temporary accommodation properties are
effectively inspected, maintained, managed, monitored and remain safe, to ensure
compliance with the respective legislation, guidance, best practice and standards
and as such will have in place procedures to support these responsibilities.

. Legal Standards

This plan enables the Council to meet its obligations as a landlord and employer
under the following legislation:

e The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
e The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations

e ACOP L8 Legionnaires Disease — the control of legionella bacteria in
water systems

e Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations (as
amended)

e The Construction, Design and Management Regulations (CDM)

Page 205



e The Housing Act which introduced the Housing Health and Safety
Rating System (HHSRS) and the Housing Health and Safety Rating
System Regulations

e The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations (RIDDOR)

e The Water Supply (Water Fittings) Regulations including amendments

e HSG274 Part 2 “The Control of legionella in hot and cold-water
systems”

e CSHS 10 Prevention of Scalding

The Health and Safety Act at work 1974

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (HSWA) places a general duty of care on
the Council to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of residents placed in temporary
accommodation which extends to the Legionnaires' disease, which is caused by the
bacteria Legionella risk of Legionnaires' disease, which is caused by the bacteria
Legionella. The Council will do this by managing risk associated with hot and cold-
water systems.

The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations

The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations and the Control of
Hazardous Substances to Health Regulation 2002 place a duty on the Council to
assess and control the risk of exposure to Legionella in their properties, which
typically involves assessing water systems and implementing preventative
measures.

ACOP L8 Legionnaires Disease — the control of legionella bacteria in water
systems

The Council is affected by ACoP L8 (Legionnaires' Disease: The Control of
Legionella Bacteria in Water Systems) because it outlines their responsibilities to
ensure the safety of tenants and others from Legionella bacteria in water

systems. Specifically, the Council has a legal duty to assess the risks of Legionella
exposure, implement control measures, and maintain records of those measures.

Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations (as
amended)

The COSHH Regulations 2002 (as amended) cover biological agents, including
legionella bacteria, which can be found in water systems. The council has a
responsibility to ensure that these biological agents are not harmful to tenants.

Page 206



The Construction, Design and Management Regulations (CDM)

The CDM regulations primarily apply to construction projects, including new build,
demolition, refurbishment, extensions, conversions, and repair and

maintenance. When landlords undertake such work on their properties, they must
comply with CDM requirements,

The Housing Act which introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating
System (HHSRS) and the Housing Health and Safety Rating System
Regulations

The HHSRS is a risk-based evaluation tool that helps local authorities identify and
assess hazards in residential properties. It was introduced under the Housing Act
2004. The regulations specifically address the control of legionella, a bacteria that
can cause serious illness, and other hazards that can affect health and safety.

The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR)

Legionella is a reportable disease under RIDDOR. If a person working at or living in
a property owned or managed by a landlord contracts Legionnaires' disease, the
landlord may be required to report the incident to the Health and Safety Executive
HSE).

The Water Supply (Water Fittings) Regulations including amendments

The Water Supply (Water Fittings) Regulations places a duty on the Council to
identify and assess potential sources of Legionella contamination, including water
systems, pipework, and storage tanks.

HSG274 Part 2 “The Control of legionella in hot and cold-water systems”

The Council must comply with HSG274 Part 2, which focuses on identifying and
controlling legionella in hot and cold-water systems.

CSHS 10 Prevention of Scalding

Child Safety and Health Services (CSHS) 10 focuses on preventing scalds, which
are burns caused by hot liquids or surfaces. Key prevention measures include
adjusting water heater temperatures, testing bath water, and keeping hot drinks and
other potential hazards out of reach of children.

Page 207


https://www.hse.gov.uk/riddor/
https://www.hse.gov.uk/riddor/

5. Complying with the standards

The Council must ensure that its temporary accommodation has all the measures in
place to maintain its hot and cold-water systems in the temporary accommodation it
manages.

The Council will immediately implement any remedial action required to resolve any
high-risk results identified.

The Council will ensure all approved contractors are qualified and competent to carry
out the specific tasks that they’ve been assigned

The Council has the right to enter temporary accommodation properties, with
reasonable notice, but only in specific circumstances which may include:

o To inspect the conditions of the premises
o To perform repairs
o Access to provide services

Licensees are required to report any hot or cold-water system concerns to the
Council immediately.

The Council should always respond promptly and address issues as a matter of
urgency when there is a significant concern for the resident’s safety.

For more complex cases particularly where there is a serious health risk to the
customer or member of their household, the Council may require them to move out
of the property. Where this occurs, the Council will be required to provide the
household with alternative temporary accommodation.

The Council will ensure all records, inspections, surveys and documentation are kept
up to date and readily available.

Plumbing, heating and any other such works carried out by qualified contractors

6. Hot and cold-water management

Failure to effectively manage hot and cold-water systems and legionella bacteria may
result in increased risk to customers, staff, contractors and others and lead to the
following chain of events occurring:

. Contamination — legionella present in the mains supply at low levels
. Proliferation — conditions in the water systems favourable to growth
. Exposure — system releases aerosols

. Infection — susceptible persons are infected

. Diseases — outbreak with possible fatalities

Page 208



Water system risk

Legionella bacteria can be present in water systems and can affect residents, staff,
contractors.

Type of water | Potential Risk Action
system
Solid fuel system High Carry out a water risk assessment.
(Currently no properties use this fuel system)
Tanks (stored High Carry out a water risk assessment
water)
Showers High Provide information leaflets for advice on

cleaning and changing shower heads through
the temporary accommodation sign up pack

Low pressure Medium Provide information in the temporary
cylinders accommodation sign up pack
High pressure Medium Provide information in the temporary
cylinders accommodation sign up pack
Standard boilers Low Provide information in the temporary

accommodation sign up pack
Electric water Low Provide information in the temporary
heating accommodation sign up pack
Combination Low No action
boilers

Proliferation risk factors

General proliferation

e Areas of stagnation or infrequent use

e Parts of the system that may be prone to heat losses or gain (e.g. uninsulated
pipes)

e The presence of scale, sludge or corrosion

e Scale can help legionella attach to a surface

e Thermostatic mixer valve (TMVs) that are located remotely from the outlet
e Failed circulating pumps or standby pumps that are idle or not rotated

e Fouled shower heads and hoses

Page 209



Tank water systems

e Contamination of the cold-water tank

e Materials present that can support legionella growth

Heat gain

Excessive capacity results in poor water turnover in water tanks

Multiple tanks connected in series and parallel may be unbalanced creating
stagnation in one or more of the tanks

Mains water systems

e Contamination of mains supplies from backflow

e Cross connections to hot water service (e.g. failed TMV)
e Stagnation

e Warming

Control measures for water systems

e Temperature control ensuring that cold water stays below 20°C and that hot
water is stored at a minimum of 60°C and distributed above 50°C. This will
include where appropriate temperature monitoring of outlets and circulating hot
water systems

e Various disinfection means such as biocides, ozone, UV
e Flushing of infrequently used outlets
e Legionella testing & sampling

Scalding risk

There is a risk of scalding when the water temperature at the outlet is above 44 °C in
properties with higher risk service users where there is whole body immersion in baths
and showers of vulnerable service users.

Page 210



7. Addressing water systems management issues
Licensees must report any issues immediately.

The Council provides a variety of ways for a licensee to report incidents, and these
are:

e By telephone on 01159013901, or

For any emergency repair issues, outside of the above office working hours,
by calling the out of hours helpline on 0800 096 0306, or

By emailing: housingneeds@agedling.gov.uk, or

In person at the Council Offices located at the Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU

Or by making an appointment at one of our advice hub sites located at either: -

e Carlton Hub — 88 Carlton Hill, Carlton, Nottingham, NG4 1EE.

e Calverton Core Centre — 17 St Wilfred’s Square, Calverton, Nottingham,
NG14 6FP.

e Bestwood Outreach Hub — St Marks Church, School Walk, Bestwood Village,
Nottingham, NG6 8UU.

Where the Council discovers an issue with a hot or cold-water system within the
property, or a licensee reports an incident, the following action takes place:

¢ |dentify the severity of the incident.

e Consider if property is suitable for occupation.

e |f the property is occupied and unsafe, make arrangements to move the
household into alternative temporary accommodation.

e The Council will enlist a qualified contractor to attend the property, having
agreed a suitable date and time. The licensee should not attempt to resolve
the issue themselves.

e The Council should provide support and advise to the licensee to help prevent
future issues from arising.

Page 211


mailto:housingneeds@gedling.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



€T¢ abed

Appendix 9: Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Standards Policies & Management Plans
Equality Impact Assessment

Gedling Borough Council Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Standards Policies & Management Plans

The main objective of
Gedling Borough
Council Temporary
Accommodation
Compliance & Safety
Standards Policies &
Management Plans

The Temporary Accommodation Maintenance Policy sets out how Gedling Borough Council (the Council)
will meet its legal and regulatory duties as a landlord in respect to the management of its Temporary
Housing Stock including repairs and maintenance.

The Temporary Accommodation Landlord Health and Safety Compliance Policy defines the Councils
approach on how it will protect residents, staff, contractors and visitors from health and safety risk
associated with landlord compliance risks in our temporary accommodation properties

The 6 Management Plans covering asbestos, damp & mould, electrical safety, fire safety, gas safety and
legionella define the Councils approach to ensure that its temporary accommodation properties are
effectively inspected, maintained, managed, and remains safe. They also ensure compliance with the
respective legislation, guidance, best practice and standards.

What impact will the Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Standards Policies & Management Plans have on the following

groups?

Please note that you should consider both external and internal impact:
e External (e.g. stakeholders, residents, local businesses etc.)

e Internal (staff)

Gedling

Borough Council




Please use only ‘Yes’ where

) Negative Positive Neutral Comments
applicable

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.
External X
Gender The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards irrespective of the resident’s gender.

Internal X

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
Gender Reassignment ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

v T abed

External X
The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards irrespective of the resident’s gender.
Internal X

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
X ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe

Gedling

Borough Council

Age
External




GT¢ obed

temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards irrespective of the resident’s age.

Temporary accommodation will be maintained to
support both younger and older people who may
have particular needs or who may be vulnerable
as a result of their age.

The focus and commitment on providing safe and
secure accommodation in the immediate and long
term is likely to have a positive impact across
generations including the wellbeing of children
and elderly residents within the Borough.

Internal
Marriage and civil The Policies and Management Plans aim to
partnership ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.
External

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards with no distinction between those who
are married and those who are in a civil

Gedling

Borough Council




partnership. There is no likelihood of either
married couples or couples in a civil partnership
being disproportionately affected.

Internal

X The Policies and Management Plans aim to
ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards irrespective of any resident’s
disabilities.

9T¢ abed

Disability External

The Council owns and manages a range of
properties including flats, houses and bungalows.
The Council will seek to support people with
mobility and other disabilities needs wherever
possible when providing temporary
accommodation although this may be restrictive
depending on the specific need.

Internal X

X The Policies and Management Plans aim to
Race & Ethnicity External ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe

Gedling

Borough Council




/T¢ abed

temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these safety
standards irrespective of the resident’s race or
ethnicity.

Internal

Sexual Orientation

External

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these standards
irrespective of the resident’s sexual orientation.

Internal

Religion or Belief (or no
Belief)

External

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair.

The Council must provide temporary
accommodation that meets these standards
irrespective of the resident’s religious beliefs.

Gedling

Borough Council




8T¢ abed

Internal

The Policies and Management Plans aim to
ensure the Council fulfils its legal duties and
responsibilities as a landlord in providing safe
temporary accommodation that is free from
hazards and is in a reasonable state of repair
taking specific factors into account like dampness

Pregnancy & Maternity | External and accessibility
Temporary accommodation will be maintained
giving regard to those individuals that are
pregnant or recently had a child.
Internal
The Policies and Management Plans do not seek
to place a positively impact on some groups more
Other Groups (e.g. any than others,
other vulnerable groups,
rural isolation, deprived | External The Policies and Management Plans have been
areas, low-income staff written ensuring there is equality across all
etc.). Please state the groups thus preventing discrimination.
group/s:
Internal

Gedling

Borough Council




Is there any evidence of a high

impact on any groups?

disproportionate adverse or positive

No The Policies and Management Plans will have a positive
impact on all groups. It ensures temporary accommodation is
provided to the same standard for all individuals seeking

impacts is not possible?

available (e.g. evidence) so that a
complete assessment of different

assistance.
Is there an opportunity to mitigate or No
alleviate any such impacts?
Are there any gaps in information No

In response to the information provided above please provide a set of proposed action including any consultation that is going to be carried out:

Planned Actions

Timeframe

Success Measure

Responsible Officer

6T¢ abed

Authorisation and Review

Completing Officer

Authorising Service Manager

DE(E]

Review date (if applicable)

Paul Whitworth - Assistant Director for Housing & Resettlement

Mike Avery

25/07/2025

No review required

Gedling

Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Tce abed

Appendix 5:

Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Standards Policies & Management Plans
Carbon Impact Assessment

Name of project,
policy, function,
service, or
proposal being
assessed:

Gedling Borough Council Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Standards Policies & Management
Plans

The main objective
of Gedling Borough
Councils
Temporary
Accommodation
Compliance &
Safety Standards
Policies &
Management Plans

The Temporary Accommodation Maintenance Policy sets out how Gedling Borough Council (the Council) will
meet its legal and regulatory duties as a landlord in respect to the management of its Temporary Housing Stock
including repairs and maintenance.

The Temporary Accommodation Landlord Health and Safety Compliance Policy defines the Councils approach on
how it will protect residents, staff, contractors and visitors from health and safety risk associated with landlord
compliance risks in our temporary accommodation properties

The 6 Management Plans covering asbestos, damp & mould, electrical safety, fire safety, gas safety and
legionella define the Councils approach to ensure that its temporary accommodation properties are effectively
inspected, maintained, managed, and remains safe. They also ensure compliance with the respective legislation,
guidance, best practice and standards.

Gedling #;

Borough Council




zee abed

What impact will this (please insert the name) have on the following Please read guidance before completing.

Category

Negative

Positive

No impact/
Negligible change

Mitigation/
Comments

Behaviour &
Culture Change

The Temporary Accommaodation
Compliance & Safety Standards
Policies & Management Plans
reference the Council’s
commitment to ensure that
temporary accommodation
homes meet the required legal
safety standards.

The Temporary
Accommodation
Compliance & Safety
Standards Policies &
Management Plans

intend to ensure the
temporary accommodation
allocated by the Council is
regulated, meets legal
standards and are energy
efficient and safe.

Built Environment

All  temporary accommodation
provided by the Council is safe,
free from serious hazards is in a
reasonable state of repair and
meets all legal and regulatory
standards

The Council will create a 5-year
maintenance plan. The plan will
involve scheduling regular
inspections and maintenance
tasks to preserve the property's

The Council will seek to
retrofit its temporary
accommodation as part of
its 5-year maintenance
cycle plan.

Gedlin

4
Borough Council e T




gze abed

condition and prevent
unexpected issues. It will also
ensure all planned preventative
maintenance is undertaken at
defined time intervals. This
includes cycles for servicing and
testing of equipment.

The plan will outline the
expected lifespan of various
property components and
establish a schedule for their
maintenance and eventual
replacement.

Transport

No impact

Gedling

Borough Council




yze abed

Energy, Natural
Resources &
Climate Change

The Council will seek to provide
temporary accommodation that
continues to meet the energy
performance certificate (EPC)
standards for rented
accommodation. The minimum
EPC rating for rental properties
in England is currently E, but this
is set to rise to C by 2030.

Switching away from fossil fuels
The Council will develop a 5-
year maintenance plan which
will outline the expected lifespan
of various property components
and establish a schedule for
their maintenance and eventual
replacement. This will include
heating systems. The Council
will review these systems with
the aim of switching away from
fossil fuels in the future.

The Council in providing
temporary accommodation
will ensure it provides safe
and energy efficient
interim homes.

Waste Reduction &
Recycling

The Temporary
Accommodation
Compliance &
Safety Standards
Policies &

Gedlin

Borough Council



Gee obed

Management Plans
do not include
specific references
to waste reduction
and recycling.

Blue-Green
Infrastructure/Biodi
versity

No impact

The Council continues to
increase it temporary
accommodation portfolio.
The Council will always
consider purchasing new
build properties from new
housing developments.
Such developments need
to achieve a minimum of
10% Biodiversity net gain.

Procurement &
Purchasing

The Council will consider energy
efficiency and carbon emissions
when purchasing or leasing
additional accommodation.

The Council is exploring a
range of different
temporary accommodation
options to ensure it
provides safe and energy
efficient interim homes.

The Council will be
undertaking a procurement
exercise in 2025 to secure
a Maintenance Contract.
The successful provider
delivers a housing repair
and maintenance service
that will ensure all
temporary accommodation

Gedlin

Borough Council




9¢e¢ abed

remains safe and
habitable. The provider will
also need to demonstrate
their aim of reducing
carbon emissions in the
service they provide.

be carried out

In response to the information provided above please provide if there is any proposed action including any consultation that is going to

Planned Actions

Timeframe

Potential Outcome

Responsible Officer

Authorisation and Review

Completing Officer
Authorising Assistant Director/Director

Date

Review date (if applicable)

Paul Whitworth

Mike Avery

25" July 2025

No review date needed

Gedling

Borough Council



Agenda Iltem 8

Gedling %

Borough Council
Report to Cabinet

Subject: Update on the Work of the Policy Advisors
Date: 4 September 2025

Author: Chief Executive

Wards Affected

Borough-wide

Purpose

To update Cabinet on the actions and activities that the Policy Advisors have
undertaken since the last report to Cabinet in September 2024.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.

Recommendation(s)

Members are recommended to note the content of the report, and the actions and
activities undertaken by the Policy Advisors since September 2024.

1. Background

1.1  Atthe Annual General Meeting on 22 May 2019 the Leader notified the
Council of the composition of the Cabinet and resulting Portfolio Holders.
The Leader also announced that the Cabinet would be supported by five
Policy Advisors.

1.2  Over the last six years, the number of Policy Advisors has been reduced to
two, and at the Annual General Meeting held on 21 May 2025 the areas
were confirmed as follows:

v Policy Advisor for Vulnerable Communities, supporting the Portfolio
Holder for Communities and Place and the Portfolio Holder for Life
Chances and Vulnerability.

v Policy Advisor for Environmental Services (Operations), supporting
the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services (Operations).

Page 227



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

It should be noted that the Policy Advisor for Vulnerable Communities is
currently vacant as Councillor Sandra Barnes is performing the role of
Deputy Mayor.

Policy Advisors do not hold delegated responsibility but support their
respective Cabinet member on development and progression of specific
Gedling Plan actions as appropriate. The precise focus for the work of
each Policy Advisor is agreed by the Leader, Deputy Leader and relevant
Cabinet member in discussion with the Policy Advisor.

The work of each Policy Advisor has been reported to the Leader on a
regular basis since May 2019, and this report provides a summary of work
undertaken by the Policy Advisors since September 2024.

In general terms the work undertaken by Policy Advisors has been agreed
by the Leader, Deputy Leader and relevant Cabinet member as follows:

Work Applicable to all Policy Advisors

>

YV VvV VYV V¥V

Initially the roles involve fact finding and understanding how decisions
are made in each applicable directorate/service area.

Attending regular meetings held between the Portfolio Holder and
relevant Director to discuss delivery of actions and initiatives as
approved within the Gedling Plan.

These meetings also involve discussion of operational matters that are
of significance to the Portfolio Holder and Policy Advisor.

Attending individual meetings with Assistant Directors and officers as
appropriate to deliver specific actions as allocated by the Leadership.
Feeding back updates, ideas and concerns to the Portfolio Holder and
officers at the regular meetings on the work undertaken.

Keeping up to date with business held at Cabinet, Scrutiny, Licensing
and Planning meetings as appropriate.

Work undertaken by individual Policy Advisors

The following actions and activities have built upon the above actions and
activities in furtherance of the specific projects allocated to each Policy
Advisor.

Policy Advisor for Vulnerable Communities — Councillor Sandra Barnes

Communities and Place:

>

Events and venues — active participation in the summer fair, fun / play
days, and attendance at community centres like Netherfield St
George’s Centre and Daybrook Baptist Church. Also attended the
parish conference.

Support for deprived areas — focussing on Netherfield and Daybrook,
including meeting with foodbanks and breakfast clubs.

Cultural and historical initiatives — attended talks on black heritage and
promoted their displays and engaged with the local Gedling history

group.
Page 228



2.1

3.1

Community groups — involvement with Daybrook bowls club, several
volunteer days and friendship groups. The Chinese New Year event
was a particular highlight.

Youth and employment — noting the success of the school
employability programmes and apprenticeship fairs. Also engage with
the Gedling Play Forum.

Life Chances and Vulnerability:

>

Youth Council — attendance at meetings held every 4-6 weeks,
discussing topics such as knife crime, drugs, bullying and social
mobility.

Housing challenges — notes the shortage of housing and the work
being progressed by the team to support homelessness, future
housing provision, and refugee resettlement.

Domestic Violence — attended a course and engaged with initiatives
such as the ‘Ask for Angela’ scheme in public venues to help victims
discreetly escape unsafe situations.

Health and wellbeing — attending events such as ‘Her Spirit Day’ and
‘Safe Gym Day’ to promote safer environments for women and girls.
Reporting — receive regular updates on housing benefits, mental
health, safeguarding, ang supporting vulnerable groups.

Policy Advisor for Environmental Services (Operations) — Councillor Paul

Wilkinson

>

YV VYV VvV 'V

Regular attendance at monthly Portfolio holder meetings with officers
and other ad hoc meetings to discuss progress against priorities.
Input into these meetings to seek solutions to issues as well as praise
for positive achievements.

Attendance at the depot to thank staff for their hard work and
contribution to Gedling's successes.

Promotion of new road sweeping vehicles.

Regular discussions with Portfolio Holder to contribute to smooth
running of areas of responsibility.

Positive feedback from Portfolio Holder for contributions and
participation.

Proposal

It is proposed that Members note the summary of work, the actions and
activities undertaken by the Policy Advisors since the last update report to
Cabinet in September 2024.

Alternative Options

An alternative option is to not update Members on the work undertaken,
however this report provides an update of work undertaken by the Policy
Advisors across the three Portfolio Holder areas.

Page 229



4, Financial Implications

4.1 Each Policy Advisor receives a Special Responsibility Allowance as
approved annually by full Council as part of the Independent Remuneration
Panel report. For 2025/26 the amount per Policy Advisor is £2,048.30 (pay
award not included). There are no other costs associated with these
positions.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6 Equalities Implications

6.1 Itis the duty of all representatives of the Council to be fully aware of the
equality legislation. However, equalities, diversity and inclusion rests with
the Portfolio Holder for Life Changes and Vulnerability.

7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications

7.1 There are no carbon reduction/environmental sustainability implications
arising from this report. However, carbon management and climate change
rests with the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Natural Habitat.

8. Appendices
None.

0. Background Papers
None.

10. Reasons for Recommendations
To share with Members the good work that the Policy Advisors have been
undertaking since May 2019 across all portfolios, in particular the actions

and activities undertaken by the Policy Advisors since they were last
reported to Cabinet in September 2024.

Statutory Officer Approval

Approved by: Chief Financial Officer
Date:

Approved by: Monitoring Officer
Date:

Page 230




Agenda Item 9

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Budget Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April to July

2025
Date: 4 September 2025
Author: Senior Leadership Team

Wards Affected
Borough-wide
Purpose

To update Cabinet on the forecast outturn for Revenue and Capital Budgets for
2025/26. The budgets include all approved carried forward amounts from the
2024/25 financial year.

To request approval from Cabinet for the changes to the budget as set out in this
report.

Key Decision

This is a key decision because the proposal includes financial implications that are
above the threshold of £0.5m determined by Council for decisions to be regarded as
a Key Decision.

Recommendation(s)
Cabinet are recommended to:
1) Approve the General Fund Budget virements set out in Appendix 1;

2) Note the use of reserves and funds during April to July 2025 as
detailed in Appendix 2;

3) Approve the changes to the capital programme included in
paragraph 2.3.

Page 231



1

11

1.2

2.1

Background

The Council has made a commitment to closely align budget and
performance management. This is in line with accepted good practice.

Following the successful trial of the four monthly reporting cycles in 2024/25,
it has been decided to continue on this basis. Therefore, the Cabinet & Full
Council reporting cycles for 2025/26 will be carried out as follows (April 2025
- July 2025, August 2025 - November 2025 and December 2025 to March
2026). The Financial Regulations are in the process of being updated to
reflect the new budget monitoring periods.

To deliver this commitment, systems to monitor performance against revenue
and capital budgets, improvement activity and performance indicators have
all been brought together and are now embedded in the way the Council
works. Whilst the budget and performance information is presented in two
separate reports, they are reported to Cabinet together and will appear on the
same agenda.

Proposal

General Fund Revenue Budget Summary

The following table summarises the overall financial position of the General
Fund Revenue Budget and the expected total spend for the year. This
information has been compiled using the best information made available to
Financial Services by the relevant spending officers as at 31 July 2025.

The Council’'s General Fund outturn is projected to be in line with the approved
budget of £15,584,200.

General Fund Revenue Budget 2025/26 — Change Analysis

£
Net Council Budget for 2025/26 approved by Council 15.584.200
on 5 March 2025 and Cabinet’s Maximum Budget e
Up to the end of July 2025 expenditure less income 3,166,854
totalled
In the remaining 8 months of year we expect net 12,417,346
expenditure to be
Total net revenue spend for the year is currently 15,584,200
expected to be
Total Projected Revenue (Under)/ Overspend 2025/26 0
'kl;gtal net revenue spend for the year is expected to 15.584.200

Page 232




Appendix 1 outlines how the General Fund Revenue budget is divided
between the Portfolios of the Council and includes a detailed variance analysis
identifying the current proposed changes for the four month period against the
approved budget for each Portfolio area. Cabinet is recommended to approve
these changes.

The major variances detailed in Appendix 1 include:
Expenditure:

e Establishment of budget for Leisure Transformation Project £262,900
to fund RIBA stage 2 designs funded by Leisure Transformation
Reserve.

e Additional agency and overtime costs within the Waste & Street Care
and Fleet service £212,000 due to sickness levels and cover for annual
leave.

o Deferrals of Capital Projects at 2024/25 outturn has led to a favourable
adjustment to the Minimum Revenue Provision (£153,400).

e Impact of a lower agreed 2025/26 pay award against budgeted award
(£150,000).

e Reduction in efficiency risk provision budget (£77,700) to offset
programme deferrals.

e Increased insurance premiums for 2025/26 of £79,700.

e Reduction in 2023/24 Audit fees of (£53,800) as less work was needed
for the 2023/24 Audit.

Income:

e Cemetery income below target by £90,000 of which £40,000 relates to
a pricing review efficiency.
e Additional income for Garden & Bulky Waste Service of (£60,000).

Details of the budget virements authorising the usage of Earmarked Reserves
and Revenue Budget Funds as approved by the Chief Financial Officer and
relevant Corporate Director in accordance with Financial Regulations are set
out in Appendix 2.

No virements were approved by Portfolio Holders for amounts of £50,000 or
less during April to July 2025.

Whilst we are forecasting a balanced budget position at July 2025, it should be
noted that there remains some risk of overspends in the Environmental
Services, which is currently undergoing a transformation review to determine
optimal delivery methods. Additional budget was put into the Waste service for
2025/26 in order to ensure resources were sufficient to cover the number of
waste rounds needed. This was expected to reduce the need for agency staff,
however, the change process is taking longer to embed than initially expected

Page 233



2.2

as the Service continues on its transformation journey. A recent management
restructure is now in place and these positions have now been recruited to. A
revised absence management policy is being introduced Council wide, and a
new waste management system has recently been introduced. There will be a
period of time for the new management and workforce to get up to speed with
the service changes. The actions listed are expected to help to reduce the
need for additional Agency staff and reduce the current levels of sickness
levels currently being experienced within the service area. Budgets are being
monitored closely and reported through the Budget & Performance Board with
significant overspends being referred to the Senior Leadership Team.

Currently the overspends can be contained within the approved budget
envelope due to other underspends set out above, however it should be noted
that any further overspends may result in the Council exceeding the approved
annual budget and at that point additional budget approval will need to be
obtained by Full Council.

Pay Award

The Council approved a budget of £701,500 in the 2025/26 Revenue Budget
for the 2025/26 pay award based upon an assumed £1,290 per FTE post. The
National Employers have agreed an increase of 3.2% on all NJC pay points 1
and above with effect from 1 April 2025. The impact of this is a budgeted saving
of (£150,000).

Interest Rates

At the start of 2025/26 the Bank of England base rate stood at 4.50%, this was
then reduced by The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) on 8 May 2025 to
4.25%, with a further reduction down to 4.00% on 7 August 2025. This has had
a negative impact on investment interest received by the Council on 31 July
2025, however, as the Council is expecting a Capital Receipt from the recent
sale of some land the budget estimate of £1.1m for 2025/26 remains
achievable. If required a revised calculation of interest will be included in the
August to November 2025 Budget Monitoring report.

Efficiency programme — Progress Update

Since 2014/15 the Council has approved nine separate budget reduction
programmes totalling £8.43m net of risk provision, including the new
programme of £108,600 approved as part of the 2025/26 budget process for
delivery in 2025/26.

The total of the current approved efficiency programme is £917,700 for delivery
in 2025/26 — 2026/27.

In terms of 2025/26, the programme due for delivery is £703,200 (£108,600 as

approved in the Budget Report presented to Council on 5 March 2025 and
£594,600 of prior year agreed efficiencies).

Page 234



At July £77,700 of adjustments to the programme are proposed (as shown in
the table below) with a revised programme of £625,500 to be achieved this
year. The amendments made at July 25 can be met from the Budget Risk
Provision.

Approved Efficiency Programme 2025/26 (703,200)
Deferred Efficiencies to 2026/27 at Period 4

Cemeteries Pricing Review 40,000
Waste Services Review 37,700
Total deferrals 77,700
Revised 2025/26 Efficiency Programme (625,500)
Use of Budget Risk Provision (77,700)
Net Impact on General Fund (703,200)

Delivery of the 2025/26 programme will continue to be monitored, and an
update provided in future reports.

The Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) sets out an efficiency requirement
of £4.467m and this includes the latest approved programme of £0.109m and
£0.631m which is expected through digital transformation. £1.167m of the
efficiencies needed have been identified, a further £1.100m of proposals are
currently being considered by the Senior Management Team and will be
brought to Cabinet for approval during 2025/26. This leaves £2.200m of
efficiencies to identify and deliver by 2029/30 in order to maintain a balanced
budget position.

Whilst current Plans for Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) mean that
Gedling Borough Council may not exist as an entity beyond 2027/28, the
Council will still endeavour to identify and deliver efficiency savings to ensure
the Council maintains a balanced budget position prior to LGR.

Workshops will continue to be held with Cabinet Members to explore further
efficiencies during 2025/26 and in-year approvals will be brought forward as a
result of these discussions. Alongside this, officers will be undertaking a mid-
year review of the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) to determine if this
target requires amendment.

2.3 Capital Programme

Appendix 3 details the current projected position on the Capital Programme
and its financing for 2025/26, analysed by Portfolio, this is summarised in the
table below. Cabinet is recommended to approve these changes.

April — July amendments to the current capital programme of (£4,900) are
presented in the table below.

Page 235



Capital Budget 2025/26 - Change Analysis

£
;)(;|295|nal 2025/26 budget approved by Cabinet on 5 March 6,413,400
Council Approved Carry Forwards from 2024/25 3,204,400
Cabinet Report 19/03/25 UKSPF funded projects 513,500
Lgader Rgport 10/04/25 S106 Contributions to 33.400
Linby Colliery Welfare FC ’
Current approved budget for 2025/26 10,164,700
Proposed Amendments to the Programme at July 2025
Additions to existing schemes:
Disabled Facilities Grants 494,900
Hillcrest Industrial Units 43,700
Conway Road Tennis Court Refurbishment 9,000
Kneeton Close Flood Alleviation 8,000
Reductions to existing schemes:
Vehicle Replacement Programme (250,600)
Asset Management Fund (used to fund Hillcrest above) (43,700)
Flood Alleviation Works (used to fund Kneeton Close above) (8,000)
Deferrals of existing scheme:
Play Area Refurbishments (222,000)
Removals from existing programme:
Bestwood Country Park car park extension (36,200)
Total Proposed Amendments (4,900)
Revised Capital Programme 2025/26 10,159,800
Actual Expenditure to Period 4 2025/26 1,288,225
Estimated Expenditure Period 5 to Period 12 2025/26 8,871,575
Projected Outturn 10,159,800

Vehicle Replacement Programme

A full review of the programme has been undertaken by the New Fleet
Manager who has highlighted some changes totalling (£250,600) as follows:

e Removal of a number of Vehicles from the programme totalling
(£214,000). This includes £140,000 for a Hiab Tipper Truck which due
to usage would be more efficient to hire as and when needed; deferrals
of £42,000 to replace vehicles at a later date; an increase of £5,400 for

vehicles being replaced in 2025/26 due to price increases.

Additions to existing schemes:

e Disabled Facilities Grant £494,900, adjusted to reflect increase in
2025/26 DGF grant allocation where the notification was received after
the budget was set, plus the carry forward of 2024/25 underspends.

Page 236




2.4

e Hillcrest Industrial Units £43,700, additional spend due to unforeseen
utility connection issues and additional Project Management and
Quantity Surveyors costs, funded by the Asset Management Fund.

e Conway Road Tennis Court Refurbishment £9,000, contract slightly
higher than budgeted plus additional works for smart access entry gate,
funded by Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) Grant.

e Kneeton Close Flood Alleviation works £8,000, additional costs for
drainage survey and drainage treatment, funded by allocation of Flood
Alleviation Works budget.

Reduction to existing schemes are as follows:

e Asset Management Fund (£43,700) — Budget utilised to fund additional
costs associated with Hillcrest Industrial Units

e Flood Alleviations Works (£8,000) — Budget utilised to fund drainage
works at Kneeton Close.

The proposed deferrals into 2026/27 and removals from the existing
programme
e Play Area Refurbishments (£222,000) — Defer play areas which are now
phased for delivery in 2026/27.
e Bestwood Country Parks Car Park (36,200) — Project on pause as
Parish Council re-prioritise spend, therefore project removed until
further notice.

It should be noted that in line with Financial Regulations underspends on
capital project and removals from the capital programme cannot be transferred
to other capital projects. New capital projects must each be considered and
approved according to Financial Regulations.

Capital Programme Financing

The projected method of financing the current capital programme requirement
of £10,159,800 is detailed in Appendix 3 and summarised in the chart below.

CAPITAL FINANCING 2025/26 (£000'S)

Grants &
Contributions,
£2,582,100, 26%

Borrowing,

S06/CIL, £39,700, £5,725,600 , 56%

0%

Revenue
Contributions,
£158,000, 2%

Page 237



2.5

4.1

5.1

Capital Receipts Monitoring

When the Council sells General Fund assets it is permitted to use this income
to fund capital expenditure. The initial capital receipts estimate for 2025/26
projects that £1,654,400 will be generated and used to finance the capital
programme in 2025/26. Additional capital receipts are expected to be received
during 2025/26, however, these will not be used in year and will be retained to
fund future capital projects.

3 Alternative Options

Option — Not to amend the original Council approved budgets during the year
to reflect the latest projected outturn position.

Advantages:

e The final outturn position of the Council can be easily compared to its
original intentions when the budget was set and areas of budget risk
identified.

Disadvantages:

e Budgets not aligned to current budget pressures resulting in increased
likelihood of budget overspend and emerging Council priorities not being
addressed,;

e Restrict the effectiveness of medium-term planning process and
preparation of the forward budget if pressures and areas of efficiency are
not readily identifiable during budget preparation;

e Budget not reflective of latest performance information.

Reason for rejection — the option is not likely to result in the best outcomes in
financial management or support delivery of priorities.

Financial Implications

The nature of the report is such that it has significant resource implications
across the Council. The report itself demonstrates how resources are being
managed. Whilst the April — July 25 position is currently forecasted to be on
budget, focus must be maintained on the risk of potential overspend in the
environment service for the remainder of the year and the identification and
delivery of the £4.467m efficiency and digital transformation saving targets for
2025/26 — 2029/30.

Legal Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Page 238



6.1

7.1

10

10.1

Equalities Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications
None arising directly from this report.
Appendices

Appendix 1 - General Fund Revenue Budget 2025/26 — Budgetary Control
Report

Appendix 2 - Use of Reserves and Revenue Fund Budgets

Appendix 3 - Capital Programme 2025/26 — Budgetary Control Report

Background Papers
Detailed Quarterly Budgetary Control Exception Reports
Reasons for Recommendations

To align the budgets to the current pressures and priorities and ensure the
delivery of Council objectives is supported.

Statutory Officer Approval

Approved by: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 26 August 2025
Approved by: Monitoring Officer
Date: 26 August 2025

Page 239




This page is intentionally left blank



|Grand Summary

Revenue Quarterly Budgetary Control Report

Communities and Place

Lifestyles, Health & Wellbeing

Public Protection

Life Chances and Vulnerability
Environmental Services

Climate Change and Natural Habitat
Sustainable Growth and Economy
Corporate Resources and Performance

Total Portfolio Budget

Transfer to/ -from Earmarked Reserves
U Total General Fund

Q
(Q Net Council Budget (Cabinets General Fund Maximum Budget)

AZAS

Period 202504

Appendix 1

Current Approved

Prolec[ea Annual

Budget Profiled Budget Actual to date Variance % Projected Outturn Variance
£ £ £ £ £ £
326,800 85,767 76,917 (8,850) (10) 326,300 0
1,748,300 128,391 329,648 201,257 157 2,011,200 262,900
1,357,000 161,200 200,363 39,163 24 1,357,000 0
1,762,900 21,600 (1,069,223) (1,090,823) (5,050) 1,734,900 (28,000)
4,515,800 420,390 472,313 51,923 12 4,816,100 300,300
1,957,900 308,350 406,891 98,541 32 1,972,900 15,000
1,151,000 (191,800) (826,964) (635,164) 331 1,157,300 6,300
3,490,700 3,045,266 3,628,509 583,243 19 3,233,300 (257,400)
16,310,400 3,979,164 3,218,454 (760,710) (19) 16,609,500 299,100
(726,200) 82,000 (51,600) (133,600) (163) (1,025,300) (299,100)
15,584,200 4,061,164 3,166,854 (894,310)  (182) 15,584,200 (0)
15,584,200

G:\FS - Accountancy\Accountancy\Budget Monitoring\2025-26\Cabinet Reports\Period 4 Cabinet 1\Revenue & Capital Report\Appendix 1. Budgetary Control Report April to July 2025 - Final



2 abed

LIFESTYLES, HEALTH & WELLBEING

Appendix 1

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Leisure Facilities
To progress the transformation project to RIBA

Supplies & Services 500.0 762.9 262.9 Stage 2, funded from Leisure Transformation
Reserve (See Earmarked Reserves)

All other budget heads 1,248.3 1,248.3

Including items previously reported

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 1,748.3 2,011.2 - 262.9| Net Portfolio Total

262.9 Adverse




Appendix 1
LIFE CHANCES AND VULNERABILITY

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

ci¢ abed

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Needs

Supplies and Services 137.2 110.2 53.0 nggh sleeping support funded by Rough Sleeping
Initiative (RSI) grant.

80.0 Reduction in B&B numbers partially offset by a

reduction in Housing Bens income

Revenue Income (396.8) (397.8) 53.0 Rough Sleeping Initiative (RSI) grant
Fall in Rental income due to voids and re-phasing

Revenue Income 520 of Temporary Accommodation purchasing project
along with a fall in B&B Housing Benefit income
followina reduction in numbers

All other budget heads 2,022.5 2,022.5

Including items previously reported

PORTFOLIO TOTAL 1,762.9 1,734.9 133.0 105.0| Net Portfolio Total
28.0 Favourable




¢ obed

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Appendix 1

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cemeteries
Revenue Income (538.6) (448.6) 40.0 | Deferral of cemeteries pricing review efficiency
50.0] Reduction in cemetery income
Waste & Street Care
Additional Agency and Overtime costs across
Employee Expenses 223.5 185.8 | Waste & Street Care due to sickness and annual
leave
37.7 | Deferred Waste service review efficiency
Revenue Income (60.0) 60.0 Additonal income in Garden & Bulky Waste service
Fleet
Employee Expenses 26.2 26.2 | Agency staff use & Overtime within Fleet
Supplies & Services 20.6 20.6 Overspend on Equipment & Parts and increased
use of External Contractors
All other budget heads 5,054.4 5,054.4
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL 4,515.8 4,816.1 60.0 360.3| Net Portfolio Total
300.3 Adverse




Appendix 1
CLIMATE CHANGE AND NATURAL HABITAT

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Gir¢ obed

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Parks External Works
Employees Expenses 16.7 31.7 15.0 Re-lestabllshment pf budget for post omitted in error
during budget setting
All other budget heads 1,941.2 1,941.2
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL 1,957.9 1,972.9 - 15.0{ Net Portfolio Total
15.0 Adverse




ot abed

Appendix 1

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH & ECONOMY

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Development Management
Consultancy costs offset with a contribution from
Supplies & Services 17.4 30.7 10.2 earmarked )r/eserves
Supplies & Services 3.1 Exacom module related to Bio Net Gain funded by
Bio Net Gain Grant
Revenue Income (743.1) (770.1) 27.0 2025-26 Bio-Net Gain grant
Building Control
Revenue Income (250.7) (230.7) 20.0 Reduction in Building Control income
All other budget heads 2,127.4 2,127.4
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL 1,151.0 1,157.3 27.0 33.3| Net Portfolio Total

6.3 Adverse




/¢ abed

Appendix 1

CORPORATE RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenues-Local Taxation
Employee Expenses 535.8 520.1 15.7 Vacancy savings
, , Increase in Postage and Printing charges for

Supplies & Services 223.7 283.8 60.1 Council Tax billing

Housing Benefit Administration

Revenue income (232.8) (258.4) 25.6 DWP administration new burdens income

Estates & Valuation

Employee Expenses 157.0 177.0 20.0 Additional Agency resource to conduct rent reviews

Public Land & Bldgs - General
Full year charge of Business Rates and Council Tax

Premises Related Expenses 42.5 75.5 33.0 bills for properties on Front Street due to review of
Ambition Arnold project

Corporate Management
Reduction in Audit Costs for 2023/24 due to lower

Supplies & Services (53.8) 53.8 amount of audit work undertaken under the
backstop arrangments.

Central Provision

Employee Expenses 705.7 555.7 150.0 Impact of agreed 2025-26 pay award against the
estimated pay award

Supplies & Services 142.2 64.5 77.7 Risk provision to offset deffered efficiencies




8¢ abed

Appendix 1

CORPORATE RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Movement in Reserves (MiRs)
_ Adjustment to Minimum Revenue Provision
Capital Interest 1,316.6 1,189.2 153.4 following the 2024-25 capital outturn
26.0 | Direct Revenue Financing adjustments following
amendments (See Earmarked Reserves)
Insurance Premiums
Supplies & Services 0.0 79.7 79.7 | Increase in insurance premiums for 2025-26
All other budget heads 600.0 600.0
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL 3,490.7 3,233.3 476.2 218.8| Net Portfolio Total

257.4 Favourable




EARMARKED RESERVES

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - July 2025

REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

vz abed

Budget Head Current Latest Net Budget Variance Reason for Variance
Approved | Projected (New Items Only)
Budget Outturn
Favourable| Adverse
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Transfer to/from Reserves
Development Management
Contribution from Development & Place Reserve 0.0 (10.2) 10.2 Contribution .to fund consuiltancy costs and concept

masterplanning
Leisure Facilities
Contribution from Leisure Transformation reserve 0.0 (262.9) 262.9 ;c; ;léng Lesiure Transformation project to RIBA
Movement in Reserves (MiRs)
Contribution from Efficiency & Innovation Reserve (26.0) 38.0 Financing adjustments of Capital Programme
Contribution from Asset Management Reserve 12.0 Financing adjustments of Capital Programme
All other budget heads (726.2) (726.2)
Including items previously reported

RESERVES TOTAL (726.2) (1,025.3) 311.1 12.0/ Net Reserves Total
299.1 Net Contribution from Reserves




This page is intentionally left blank



Virements Approved for the use of Earmarked Reserves

Period End 31 July 2025

Appendix 2

Usage of Earmarked Reserves

£
Environment
Management Efficiency Costs £80,100
Contribution from Transformation Fund Reserve -£80,100
Climate Change and Natural Habitat
Installation of fencing at Gedling Country Park £5,000
Contribution from Asset Management Reserve -£5,000
Waste & Parks Redundancy Costs £22,900
Contribution from Transformation Fund Reserve -£22,900
Corporate Resources and Performance
Capitalisation of salaries -£285,000
Contribution from NNDR Pool Reserve £285,000
Empty Homes £15,000
Contribution from NNDR Pool Reserve -£15,000
CFWD Ambition Arnold £50,000
Contribution from NNDR Pool Reserve -£50,000
CFWD Property Surveys £30,000
Contribution from Asset Management Reserve -£30,000
CFWD Re-establish Asylum Dispersal £10,000
Contribution from Welfare - New Burdens Reserve -£10,000
CFWD Re-establish Domestic Violence £30,000
Contribution from Welfare - New Burdens Reserve -£30,000
Total Expenditure -£42,000
Total Reserves £42,000

Page 251




This page is intentionally left blank



April to July 2025 (Period 4): Detailed Capital Monitoring by Portfolio

Appendix 3

Original Revised Capital
. . Approvals | Proposals
Project Capital Carry F/lwds g g Programme
to Period 4 | to Period 4 .
Programme Period 4

Gym Equipment Replacement 270,000 - 0 270,000
ALC Plant Room Improvements - UKSPF 28,000 28,000
Sports Facilities Investment - UKSPF 40,000 40,000
Lifestyles, Health & Wellbeing 270,000.0 - 68,000.0 - 338,000.0
Disabled Facilities Grants 1,200,000 133,600 494,900 1,828,500
CCTV Developments 27,400 27,400
Public Protection 1,200,000.0 161,000.0 - 494,900 1,855,900
Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,919,000 277,000 (250,600) 1,945,400
Waste Management System - Replacement Devices 20,000 20,000
Waste Management System 156,500 156,500
Bentwell Lagoon (Flood Alleviation) 21,400 21,400
Flood alleviation works - Rolling Programme 50,000 50,000
Ouse Dyke repair works 110,000 110,000
Council Street Lighting 37,100 37,100
Feeder Pillars - Various Sites -UKSPF 55,000 55,000
Environmental Services 2,145,500 445,500 55,000 (250,600) 2,395,400
Jackie Bells Play Area 100,000 100,000

Play Area refurbishment - rolling programme 222,000 (222,000) -
Flood Alleviation Works 30,000 (8,000) 22,000
Carlton Cemetery Expansion - final phase 15,000 15,000
Green Lung Project - Flood alleviation Kneeton Close 59,600 8,000 67,600
Green Lung Digby Park to GCP Path Construction 8,500 8,500
Valley Road Play Area Refurbishment 110,000 110,000
Park View Retaining Wall 32,300 0 32,300
Phoenix Farm Estate repairs 35,000 35,000
Green Lung Project - Digby Park Tree Planting & Wildflowers 6,600 6,600
Conway Road Tennis Court Refurbishment | 22,000 9,000 31,000
AMF - Lambley Lane Changing Room & Pitch Renovation 10,000 10,000
Arnot Hill Park Improvements - UKSPF 10,000 10,000
Climate Change and Natural Habitat 367,000.0 284,000.0 10,000/ (213,000) 448,000
Temporary Accommodation 1,100,000 521,200 1,621,200
Hillcrest Business Park Extensions 456,900 43,700 500,600
Linby Colliery Welfare FC (S106 Open Space) 33,400 33,400
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 60,500 60,500
Sustainable Growth & Economy 1,100,000.0 978,100.0 93,900.0 43,700.0 2,215,700
IT Licences 125,000 125,000
Asset Management Fund 150,000 (43,700) 106,300

Future Resource Development Bids 0 -
Replacement Equipment 70,000 70,000
Digital Transformation 819,700 709,700 1,529,400

Bestwood Country Park CP Extension 36,200 (36,200) -
Depot Works 130,000 57,000 187,000
Carbon Reduction Initiatives 31,600 31,600
Fire Door replacement 125,900 125,900
Economic Regeneration Land Assembly 170,200 170,200
Estates & Valuation 49,200 49,200
Agresso Upgrade 47,600 47,600
Replacement Boards Car Park Machines 34,600 34,600
AMF - Bestwood Lodge Drive Resurfacing 80,000 80,000
AMF - Replacement Equipment 30,000 30,000
Community Centre Improvements - UKSPF 50,000 50,000
Anti-Terror Measures - Various Sites - UKSPF 50,000 50,000
Changing Places - Carlton - UKSPF 30,000 30,000
Defibrillators - Various Sites - UKSPF 10,000 10,000
Colwick Car Park Resurfacing - UKSPF 180,000 180,000
Corporate Resources and Performance 1,330,900 1,335,800 320,000 (79,900) 2,906,300
Total Programme 6,413,400 3,204,400 546,900 (4,900) 10,159,800

Page 253




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2025/26 and Treasury Activity
Report for the Period April 2025 to July 2025

Date: 4 September 2025

Author: Principal Finance Business Partner

Wards Affected

Borough wide

Purpose

To inform Members of the performance monitoring of the 2025/26 Prudential Code
Indicators, and to advise Members of the Treasury activity as required by the Treasury
Management Strategy.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.

Recommendation(s)
Cabinet are recommended to:

1. Note the report, together with the Treasury Activity Report
2025/26 for Period 4 at Appendix 1, and the Prudential and
Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2025/26 for the period April to
July 2025, at Appendix 2.

2. Approve the changes to Prudential Indicators detailed at
paragraph 2.7 to align with the latest revenue and capital
budgets being reported to members as part of the Budget
Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April 2025 to
July 2025.

Page 255



Background

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003
to report on its Prudential Code indicators and treasury activity. This report meets the
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the
Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code).

For 2025/26 the minimum reporting requirements are that the Full Council should
receive the following reports:

e An annual Treasury Strategy in advance of the year (the TMSS, considered by
Cabinet on 13 February 2025 and subsequently approved by Full Council on 5
March 2025);

e A mid-year treasury update report;

¢ An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared
to the Strategy.

In 2024/25 reporting to Cabinet & Full Council was carried out in three four monthly
periods (April 2024 to July 2024. August 2024 to November 2024 and December
2024 to March 2025) this was on a trial basis to assess the resource benefits of only
providing three periods of monitoring, allowing officers more time to address
concerns and consider remedial action. This proved to be successful and will be
continued in 2025/26.

Whilst this was a reduction in the number of reports being presented it should be
noted that this still exceeds the minimum requirements.

The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report provides details of
the position at 31 July 2025 and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies.

Proposal

Economic Update - headlines

Economic Activity & GDP

Real GDP fell 0.3% in April, the first decline since October 2024 and largest since
October 2023.

Likely due to unwinding of Q1 boosts from net exports and investment; exports to
the US dropped 31%.

Services output fell 0.4%, offsetting March’s gain; manufacturing down 0.9%
month on month.

GDRP likely flatlined in Q2, with subdued overseas demand and higher domestic
costs from April’s tax hikes.

Page 256



2.2

Bank of England forecasts 0.8% growth for 2025.

Inflation & Monetary Policy

Core CPI eased from 3.8% to 3.5% in May; headline CPI fell slightly to 3.4%.
Services inflation dropped from 5.4% to 4.7%, expected to fall to 3.0% by year
end.

Bank of England cut interest rates to 4.25% in May, with a further cut to 4% in
August.

CPI may stay above 3.0% longer due to energy and food price risks; peak
expected at 3.8% in September.

Labour Market & Wages

Employment fell by 109,000 in May, largest non-pandemic drop on record; total
fall since October’s Chancellor budget is 276,000.

Job vacancies declined, signalling a weakening labour market.

Wage growth softened: average earnings growth (excl. bonuses) fell to 5.2%;
PAYE median earnings dropped to 5.8% year on year.

Retail & Consumer Sentiment

Retail sales volumes fell 2.7% in May, reversing April’'s weather-driven boost.
Consumer confidence rose slightly (GfK index from -20 to -18), suggesting a
modest retail recovery ahead.

Public Finances

Public sector borrowing in May was £17.7bn, slightly above forecast but £2.9bn
below forecast for April/May combined.

Debt interest payments were £1.1bn below forecast, but rising gilt yields may
reverse this trend.

Chancellor may need to raise £13bn to maintain fiscal headroom, implying likely
tax increases.

Interest rate forecast

Our Treasury Management advisors, MUFG, provided their quarterly forecast of
interest rates. These are shown in the table below. PWLB rates in the table are
based on the Certainty Rate which include a 0.2% reduction on the standard
rates. The current bank rate is 4.0% which is earlier than forecast. However, the
current trend of the rates is suggesting a further reduction to 3.75% or 3.50% in
2025/26. Any movement below a 4.0% Bank Rate will, nonetheless, be very
much dependent on inflation data releases in the coming months.

Page 257



Interest Rate Forecasts

Bank Rate Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec- 26 Mar- 27 Jun-27
MUFG CM . o X % 3 75" / .3 “o L 3T5% %

Cap Econ 9 300% 3 00

5Y PWLB RATE

MUFG CM 0 480%  AT0%  460% 0 450% 0 440%  440%  430%  4.20%
Cap Econ’ C460% T430% TTA30% A20% T4A0% T410% T340% 410%

10Y PWLB RATE

MUFGCM 510% _ 500% _ 490% 480% _ 470%  470% _ 460% _  450%
Cap Econ CE30% RN A e0% T 4 80% CAT0% AR T EE0% T 0%
25Y PWLB RATE

MUFGCM 560% _ 550%  540%  530%  520% _ 510% __ 500% __ 500%
Cap Econ T590% 540% UE30% Tea0% T s00% 4s0% T aso% T a80%
50Y PWLB RATE

MUFGCM  530%  6520%  510% _ 500%  490% _ 480% _ A470% __ 470%
Cap Econ TEB0% TR AG% TR 0% B 0% A e0% A T0% T a% T a7 0%

2.3 Treasury Management Strateqy

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2025/26, which
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by Council on 5 March
2025, and sets out the Council’s investment priorities as:

. Security of capital;
. Liquidity;
« Yield.

Whilst the Council will always seek to obtain the optimum return (yield) on its
investments, this will at all times be commensurate with proper levels of security
and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate either
to keep investments short term to cover cash flow needs, or to extend the period
up to 12 months with highly rated financial institutions, selected by the use of the
MUFG creditworthiness methodology (see below) which includes consideration
of sovereign ratings.

Investment counterparty limits for 2025/26 are generally £3m per individual
counterparty, however a higher limit of £4m per Money Market Fund is
considered prudent since such funds are already by definition highly diversified
investment vehicles. There is no limit on Investment with the Debt Management
Office (DMO) since this represents lending to central government. The Chief
Financial Officer has delegated authority to vary these limits as appropriate, and
then to report any change to Cabinet as part of the next report.

Members are advised that no new variations have been made during period 1 to
4 of 2025/26.

Limits with investment counterparties have not exceeded the prevailing levels
approved by the CFO during the period 1 April to 31 July 2025.

Credit ratings advice is taken from MUFG and the Chief Financial Officer has
adopted the MUFG credit rating methodology for the selection of investment
counterparties. This employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from all three of the main rating agencies to give a suggested maximum

Page 258



duration for investments. Accordingly it does not place undue reliance on any one
agency’s ratings.

The methodology subsequently applies an “overlay” to take account of positive
and negative credit watches and/or credit outlook information, which may
increase or decrease the suggested duration of investments. It then applies a
second overlay based on the credit default swap spreads for institutions, the
monitoring of which has been shown to give an early warning of likely changes
in credit ratings. It also incorporates sovereign ratings to ensure selection of
counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. The current Treasury
Strategy permits the use of any UK counterparties subject to their individual credit
ratings under the MUFG methodology. It also permits the use of counterparties
from other countries with a minimum sovereign rating of AA minus. For
information, the UK currently has a rating of AA minus.

The MUFG modelling approach combines all the various factors in a weighted
scoring system and results in a series of colour coded bands which indicate the
creditworthiness of counterparties. The colour bandings are as follows:

Yellow 5 years (UK Government debt or its equivalent)

Dark pink 5 years for Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds (credit score 1.25)
Light pink 5 years for Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds (credit score 1.50)
Purple 2 years

Blue 1 year (nationalised or semi nationalised UK banks only)
Orange 1 year
Red 6 months

Green 100 days
No colour not to be used

Significant downgrades by the Ratings agencies have not materialised since the
beginning of the Covid-19 crisis in March 2020. Where changes were made
these were generally limited to “outlooks”. However, as economies re-opened
some instances of previous reductions were reversed.

Credit ratings are monitored weekly and the Council is also alerted to interim
changes by its use of the MUFG creditworthiness service, however ratings under
the methodology, including sovereign ratings, will not necessarily be the sole
determinant of the quality of an institution. Other information sources used will
include the financial press, share price and other such information pertaining to
the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny process on the
suitability of potential investment counterparties.

The ultimate decision on what is prudent and manageable for the Council

will be taken by the Chief Financial Officer under the approved scheme of
delegation.

Page 259



2.4 Treasury Activity during Period 1 to 4 of 2025/26

The Treasury Activity Report for the period ended 31 July 2025 is attached at
Appendix 1, in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy.

Members will note that investment interest of £224,958 was generated from MMF
activity, term deposits with banks and building societies, and the property fund,
during the period from 1 April to 31 July 2025. This represents an overall equated
rate for the Council of 4.33% which is marginally higher than the compounded
Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) rate, which averaged 4.26%.

During the period from 1 April to 31 July 2025, significant use was made of the
Council’s three Money Market Funds (MMFs). These are AAA rated investment
vehicles which allow the pooling of many billions of pounds into highly diversified
funds, thus reducing risk. The current rates of return on these funds are around
4% which remain generally higher than overnight treasury deposit rates, and
slightly higher than the rate obtainable from the Debt Management Office (DMO).

The Council made an investment of £1m in the CCLA Local Authority Property
Fund (LAPF) on 1 December 2017. The LAPF is a local government investment
scheme approved by the Treasury under the Trustee Investments Act 1961
(section 11). Dividends are treated as revenue income and have in previous
years averaged around 4%.

The fund increased slightly by £1,406 between 1 April 2025 and 30 June 2025.
A dividend of £9,983 was also received in the first quarter of the year.

This investment allows the Council to introduce a property element into its
investment portfolio without the risks associated with the direct purchase of
assets. It should be noted however that the capital value is not guaranteed and
can fall as well as rise. The certificated value of the investment at 30 June 2025
was £895,412 which was lower than the original investment of £1m, this
represents a £104,588 loss. However, this investment is regarded as a long-term
commitment and fluctuations should be expected. A recent meeting with the
CCLA suggested that the investment is expected to increase over the course of
the next few years and dividends continue to be received of approximately £40k
per annum.

Interest rates are still favourable, however they have started to fall due to the
reductions in the bank rate. As loans mature every effort is made to replace them
at favourable rates. As regards investments, security and liquidity will always be
the overriding factors in the Council’s treasury management. As stated in 2.2
above, MUFG currently forecast that the Bank Rate will fall to 3.75% by March
2026.

At the start of 2025/26 the Bank of England base rate stood at 4.50%, this was
then reduced by The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) on 8 May 2025 to

Page 260



2.5

26

2.7

4.25%, with a further reduction down to 4.00% on the 7 August 2025. This has
had a negative impact on investment interest received by the Council on 31 July
2025, however, currently, the budget estimate of £1.1m for 2025/26 remains
achievable, if required a revised calculation of interest will be included in the
August to November 2025 Treasury report.

New borrowing

At 31 July 2025 no new borrowing had been undertaken.

Advice will be taken from MUFG with regard to the amount and timing of any
additional borrowing, and should conditions become advantageous, some
borrowing in advance of need will also be considered by the Chief Financial
Officer. The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents its
underlying need to borrow to finance capital investment. Due to favourable
interest rates, borrowing in advance of need is sometimes desirable, with the
result that the CFR can differ to the actual borrowing planned in the year.

Councils may not borrow in advance of need purely to profit from the investment
of the extra sums borrowed. However, prudent early borrowing for a
demonstrable service objective is permitted. Serious consideration must be given
to the cost of carrying any additional borrowing during the period prior to it being
required for the financing of capital expenditure since this places a further burden
on the General Fund.

Debt rescheduling

When the current day PWLB rate for the same term is higher than that being paid
on an existing loan there is the potential for a discount to be receivable if the loan
is repaid prematurely.

However, debt rescheduling opportunities are limited in the current economic
climate, and due to the structure of PWLB interest rates. Advice in this regard will
continue to be taken from MUFG. No debt rescheduling has been undertaken
during the period from 1 April to 31 July 2025.

Compliance with Prudential and treasury indicators

It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the
affordable borrowing limit. The Council’'s approved Prudential and Treasury
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement (TMSS) approved by Full Council on 5 March 2025.

During the financial year to date the Council has at all times operated within the
majority treasury limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s TMSS,
and in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management Practices. The
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 31 July 2025 are shown at Appendix 2.

Page 261



The Prudential Indicator relating to Capital Expenditure has been exceeded due
to the carry forward of budget from 2024/25 which was approved by members as
part of the Budget Outturn and Budget Carry Forwards 2024/25 report. The
changes in the Capital Programme for 2025/26 are being reported to members
via the Budget Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April 2025 to July
2025, it is proposed that this indicator is increased from £6,413,400 to
£10,159,800.

The Prudential Indicator relating to the ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream is currently at 2.30% which is under the approved indicator of 3.85% due
to a decrease in the original budget of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP),
the change in the MRP budget is being reported to members as part of the Budget
Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April 2025 to July 2025.

All other treasury limits and Prudential Indicators have been achieved for the
period April to July 2025

A) Prudential Indicators:

These indicators are based on estimates of expected outcomes, and are key
indicators of “affordability”. They are monitored on a regular basis, and Appendix
2 compares the approved indicators with the projected outturn for 2025/26, and
shows variances on the indicators, as described below:

a. Capital Expenditure

The latest projected outturn shows that total capital expenditure is expected to
be £10,159,800. This differs to the approved indicator of £6,413,400 due to the
inclusion of approved carry-forward requests from 2024/25 and variations on the
current year’s capital programme.

b. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The CFR represents the historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not
yet been paid for from capital or revenue resources, and is essentially a measure
of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. The CFR does not increase
indefinitely since the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a statutory annual
revenue charge for the economic consumption of capital assets.

At 31 July the projected closing CFR for 2025/26 is £21,052,378. This differs
slightly to the approved indicator of £21,226,000.

c. Gearing ratio

The concept of “gearing” compares the total underlying borrowing need (the
CFR) to the Council’s total fixed assets and the gearing ratio can provide an early

Page 262



indication where debt levels are rising relative to long term assets held.

The projected gearing ratio at 31 July 2025 is 45%, which is in line with the
approved indicator and is broadly comparable with the average gearing ratio for
councils of a similar size.

d. Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of borrowing net of investment
income against the net revenue stream. Financing costs represent the element
of the Council’s budget to which it is committed even before providing any
services.

The projected outturn of 2.30% for service-related expenditure is lower than the
approved indicator of 3.85% due to reduced Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
costs for 2025/26.

e. Maximum gross debt

The Council must ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term,
exceed the opening capital financing requirement, plus estimates of any
additional CFR for 2025/26 and the following two financial years. This allows
flexibility for early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not
undertaken for revenue purposes. The Council’s gross debt at 31 July 2025 was
£10.812m, which was within the approved indicator.

g. Ratio of internal borrowing to CFR

The Council is currently maintaining an “internal borrowing” position, i.e. the
underlying borrowing need (CFR) has not yet been fully funded with loan debt as
cash supporting the Council’'s reserves and balances is being used as a
temporary measure.

The current projected outturn for internal borrowing is 49%, which is higher than
the approved indicator of 45%. This is due to not taking expecting to take out any
additional long-term borrowing for the Vehicle Replacement Programme and the
Temporary Accommodation scheme which are expected to be funded from
internal borrowing. Although the rate is currently projected at 49% we know this
will reduce during the year due to slippage in the capital programme. It is
proposed that this indicator is temporarily increased to 50%, whilst advice will be
sought from our Treasury Management advisors about the optimal time to
undertake new borrowing. Cashflow and liquidity will be monitored closely, and
an update will be provided in the period 8 report.

B) Treasury Management Indicators:

These indicators are based on limits, beyond which activities should not pass

Page 263



without management action. They include two key indicators of affordability and
four key indicators of prudence.

Affordability:

a. Operational boundary for external debt

This is the limit which external debt is not “normally” expected to exceed. In most
cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but it may be lower or higher
depending on the levels of actual debt, and must allow for unusual cash flow
movements.

b. Authorised limit for external debt

This limit represents a control on the “maximum” level of borrowing. It is the
statutory limit determined under s3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003 and
represents the limit beyond which external debt is prohibited. The Authorised
Limit must be set, and revised if necessary, by Full Council. It reflects a level of
external debt which, while not desirable, could be afforded in the short term, but
is not sustainable in the longer term. The Government retains an option to control
either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this
power has not yet been exercised.

Prudence:

c. Upper limits for the maturity structure of borrowing

These are set to reduce the Council’'s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling
due for refinancing.

d. Maximum new principal sums to be invested during 2025/26 for periods in excess
of one year (365 days)

All such investments are classified as “non-specified”. This indicator is subject to
the overall limit for non-specified investments set out in the TMSS, and to the
overall limit per counterparty.

e. Interest rate exposure

The latest Treasury Management Code requires a statement in the TMSS explaining
how interest rate exposure is managed and monitored by the Council, and this is
repeated below:

The Council has a general preference for fixed rate borrowing in order to minimise

uncertainty and ensure stability in the charge to revenue, however it is acknowledged
that in certain circumstances, some variable rate borrowing may be prudent, for

Page 264



example if interest rates are expected to fall. The Council’s investments are generally
for cashflow purposes and accordingly a mix of fixed and variable rates will be used
to maximise flexibility and liquidity. Interest rate exposure will be managed and
monitored on a daily basis by the Chief Financial Officer.

Local indicators for the proportions of fixed and variable rate loans, have been
retained by the Council for information purposes.

Appendix 2 shows the actual position as at 31 July 2025, and demonstrates that
all activities are contained within the currently approved limits.

Risk Management

The CIPFA Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code (both updated in
2021) have placed greater importance on risk management. Where a local
authority changes its risk appetite (for example, moving surplus cash into or out of
certain types of investment funds or other investment instruments) then this change
in risk appetite should be brought to Members attention in treasury management
update reports.

There have been no changes in risk appetite and there are no other significant
treasury management issues that have arisen since approval of the TMSS on 5
March 2025 that need to be brought to the attention of Members.

There are a number of risks inherent within any treasury management strategy, the
most significant risks include:

Reporting is not compliant with statutory guidelines.

Investment and borrowing activity is outside the approved TM framework.
Long term borrowing is taken at rates that are not advantageous.
Investment of principal sums with insecure counterparties.

Investment returns are volatile and may not meet budgeted amounts.
Borrowing is not affordable.

These risks are mitigated by the controls included in the TMSS and are detailed
at section 2.3 - Treasury Management Strategy above.

Alternative Options

An alternative option is to fail to present a Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring
and Treasury Activity Report, however this would contravene the requirement of
the Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS).

Financial Implications

No specific financial implications are attributable to this report.

Page 265



10

11

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising from this report.
Equalities Implications

There are no equalities implications arising from this report.
Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications

There are no carbon reduction/environmental sustainability implications arising
from this report.

Appendices
1. Treasury Activity Report 2025/26 for Period 1 to 4 (31 July 2025).
2. Prudential and Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2025/26 for Period 1 to 4 (31
July 2025).

Background Papers
None identified.

Reasons for Recommendation

To comply with the requirements of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy
Statement.

Statutory Officer approval:

Approved by: Chief Financial Officer
Date: 26 August 2025
Approved by: Monitoring Officer
Date: 26 August 2025

Page 266



TREASURY ACTIVITY REPORT 2025/26

For Period ended 31 July 2025

Position @ Loans Made Loans ﬁepaid Position @
1 April 2025(During Apr - July| During Apr - July| 31 July 2025
£ £ £ £
Long Term Borrowing
PWLB 10,811,577 0 0 10,811,577
Total Long Term Borrowing 10,811,577 0 0 10,811,577
Temporary Borrowing
Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
Central Government 0 0 0 0
Banks & Other Institutions 0 0 0 0
Total Temporary Borrowing 0 0 0 0
TOTAL BORROWING 10,811,577 0 0 10,811,577
Long Term Investment
CCLA LAPF Property Fund (1,000,000) 0 0 (1,000,000)
Total Long Term Investment (1,000,000) 0 0 (1,000,000)
Short Term Investment
Aberdeen MMF (3,690,000) (6,410,000) 6,100,000 (4,000,000)
Bank of Scotland 0 0 0 0
Barclays 0 0 0 0
Blackrock MMF (1,000,000) (11,720,000) 8,720,000 (4,000,000)
CCLA PSDF (MMF) (3,000,000) 0 0 (3,000,000)
Close Brothers (3,000,000) 0 0 (3,000,000)
Debt Management Office (2,520,000) (34,560,000) 21,130,000| (15,950,000)
Goldman Sachs (3,000,000) (480,000) 3,480,000 0
HSBC Treasury 0 0 0 0
Local Authorities & Other 0 0 0 0
Nationwide (2,000,000) (4,460,000) 4,460,000 (2,000,000)
Santander 0 0
Total Short Term Investment (18,210,000) (57,630,000) 43,890,000] (31,950,000)
TOTAL INVESIMENI (See below) (19,210,000) (57,630,000) 43,890,000 (32,950,000)
NET BORROWING /
(INVESTMENT) (8,398,423) (57,630,000) 43,890,000 (22,138,423)

Temporary Borrowing & Investment Statistics at 31 July 2025

Investment:

Fixed Rate Investment (10,520,000) (39,500,000) 29,070,000| (20,950,000)
Variable Rate Investment (8,690,000) (18,130,000) 14,820,000 (12,000,000)
TOTAL INVESTMENT (19,210,000) (57,630,000) 43,890,000 (32,950,000)
Proportion of Fixed Rate Investment 63.58%
Proportion of Variable Rate Investment 36.42%
Temporary Investment Interest Receivable £ 224,958
Equated Temporary Investment £ 5,198,542
Weighted Average Interest Rate Received (Interest Receivable / Equated Investment) 4.33%
Compounded SONIA (3 month backward looking) 4.26%
Borrowing:

Temporary Borrowing Interest Payable £ -
Equated Temporary Borrowing £ -
Weighted Average Interest Rate Paid (Interest Payable / Equated Borrowing) n/a

Page 267

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



ii)

Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators for 2025/26

1 April 2025 to 31 July 2025

Prudential Indicators

Affordability:

Capital Expenditure
Capital Financing Requirement
Gearing (CFR to Long Term Assets)

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream-Services

Maximum Gross Debt
Ratio of Internal Borrowing to CFR

Treasury Management Indicators

Affordability:

Operational Boundary for External Debt:
Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Operational Boundary

Authorised Limit for External Debit:
Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Authorised Limit

Prudence:

Investment Treasury Indicator and limit:

Max. NEW principal sums invested in 2025/26 for periods
OVER 365 days (ie. non-specified investments), subject to
maximum non specified per counterparty of £3m AND to the
prevailing overall counterparty limit, AND to the TOTAL non
specified limit of £5m.

Upper & Lower limits for the maturity structure
of outstanding Borrowing during 2025/26
Under 1 Year
1 Year to 2 Years
2 Years to 5 Years
5 Years to 10 Years
Over 10 Years

Page 269

Appendix 2
2025/26 2025/26
Original Estimate Position at
(Council 05/03/25) 31-Jul-25
£ 6,413,400 | £ 10,159,800
£ 21,226,000 | £ 21,052,378
43% 45%
2.21% 2.30%
£ 21,226,000 | £ 10,811,577
45% 49%
£ 22,000,000 | £ 10,811,577
£ 1,500,000 | £ -
£ 23,500,000 | £ 10,811,577
£ 23,000,000 | £ 10,811,577
£ 1,500,000 | £ -
£ 24,500,000 | £ 10,811,577
£ 3,000,000 | £ 3,000,000
40% 0%
40% 0%
50% 0%
50% 6%
100% 94%




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Gedling:

Borough Council &

5
e S

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Gedling Plan Quarter 1 Performance Report
Date: 4 September 2025
Author: Senior Leadership Team

Wards Affected
Borough wide
Purpose

To inform Cabinet in summary of the position against Performance Indicators and Annual
Delivery Plan Actions in Quarter 1 of 2025/26.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.
Recommendation
THAT:

The progress against Improvement Performance Indicators for quarter 1 of 2025/26 be noted.

1 Background

1.1 The Council has made a commitment to closely align budget and performance
management. This is in line with accepted good practice.

1.2  To deliver this commitment, systems to monitor performance against revenue and
capital budgets, improvement activity and performance indicators have all been
brought together and are now embedded in the way the Council works.

1.3 In addition, performance reports focus directly on the Council’s priorities and offer an
“early warning” system of instances where targets may not be secured.

1.4  The assessment criteria used for indicators is based on red, amber and green traffic
light symbols. To be assessed as green, performance indicators must be in line with
their expected performance at that stage of the year determined within the
performance management system, Ideagen.

Page 271



15

2.2

2.3

24

This report reflects a change to the usual format in that progress against the Annual
Delivery Plan is now reported and replaces the previous section on the Gedling Plan

actions.

Proposal

It is proposed that Cabinet note the current performance information for Quarter 1 of
2025/26 as set out below -

Annual Delivery Plan Actions

In March 2025 Cabinet agreed to the annual delivery plan with 52 actions spanning 6
themes -

Customer Experience and Communities Programme
Smarter Working Programme

Depot Modernisation Programme

Gedling Growth

Leisure Transformation

Governance Control Framework

Milestones are attached to each of these actions. The number of milestones due to
be completed in Quarter 1 was 30 and completion rate is 100%. The chart below
shows the number of milestones completed against each theme.

Quarter 1 - Milestones Completed Against Theme

]
%

»

= Governance Control Framework = Customer Experience and Communities Programme
= Smarter Working Programme = Depot Modernisation Programme
m Gedling Growth = Leisure Transformation

Page 272



2.5 Performance Indicators

Quarter 1 Performance Indicators in 2025/26

There are 30 performance indicators which are monitored on a quarterly basis in
2025/26. In Q1, 12 of these indicators either met or exceeded their target, 8 were
below target, 7 indicators are for tracking purposes only and for 3 indicators data is
not available.

2.6

2025/26 Quarter 1 - Performance Indicators

£

m On Target m Below Target
m Tracking Indicators m No Data Available

2.7 Examples of particularly positive performance over the year include:

Q1 2025/26
Performance Indicator
Value Target
gilrl(;ecrt]é?jge of Business Rates 29.06% 27 2204
Percentage of calls to the
s
tota

Page 273



Percentage of Calls to customer
service answered within SLA 96% 85%
(40 seconds)

Number of affordable homes

delivered (gross) 40 19

Percentage of Major planning
applications processed within 100% 92%
13 weeks

Percentage of Minor planning
applications processed within 8 94.74% 86%
weeks

Percentage of other planning
applications processed within 8 91.75% 80%
weeks

Number of rented households
with health and safety hazards
that fall below the minimum
legal standard that have been
remediated following the
council’s intervention

43 18

2.8 The following performance indicators missed their target in Q1.

Q1 2025/26

Performance Indicator

Value Target

Percentage of customers that
are satisfied with overall 76% 94%
customer service

37 surveys received during this time. 28 respondents were satisfied and 9
were not satisfied. All 9 negative responses were attributed to the waste
service.

Percentage of Council Tax

27.69% 28.44%
collected

The collection rate for Council Tax is 0.75% behind target. Economic
circumstances are having an impact, including the ongoing cost of living crisis
and the migration of legacy benefits to universal credit. The benefit migration
IS resulting in more customers, who are on limited finances, having an amount
of Council Tax to pay. There are resource gaps in the revenues team, which is
further impacted during school holidays and during the start of the financial

Page 274



year with annual billing priorities. The intended restructure, transformation
service design and some changes in the manner we deal with post liability
order cases is expected to alleviate these issues.

Any trends will be carefully monitored and monthly targets reviewed and
altered, as necessatry.

Housing Benefits /Council
Tax Reduction Scheme time | 20 days 15 days
taken to process new claims

Staffing resources in the Benefits team are sufficient to cover current levels of
workload, but due to recent staff changes and vacancies are not currently
sufficient to cover for annual leave or any sickness that may occur in the team.
In addition, recent software releases have caused some issues in the process
where manual intervention has been needed to ensure claims can be
processed, this has been an on-going issue for a number of months due to
problems with the system provider, together with some resourcing issues has
caused delays in processing times.. A staffing restructure is imminent across
both the Revenue & Welfare service which aims to build some resilience in the
team to ensure adequate cover is available. Current software issues are being
resolved by the supplier, which will enable processing times to be reduced and
get back to our internal performance targets

Housing Benefit /Council Tax
Reduction Scheme time
taken to process changes in
circumstances

17.3 days 5 days

Staffing resources in the Benefits team are sufficient to cover current levels of
workload, but due to recent staff changes and vacancies are not currently
sufficient to cover for annual leave or any sickness that may occur in the team.
In addition, recent software releases have caused some issues in the process
where manual intervention has been needed to ensure claims can be
processed, this has been an on-going issue for a number of months due to
problems with the system provider, together with some resourcing issues has
caused delays in processing times.. A staffing restructure is imminent across
both the Revenue & Welfare service which aims to build some resilience in the
team to ensure adequate cover is available. Current software issues are being
resolved by the supplier, which will enable processing times to be reduced and
get back to our internal performance targets

Net additional homes

provided 150 157

The target has significantly increased and until new sites are allocated as part
of Gedling's emerging Local Development Plan, it is unlikely the new target will
be met.

Number of long term (over 12
months) empty homes in the
Borough returned to use as a | 16 18
result of Gedling Borough
Council intervention

Page 275




Very slightly behind target by 2 properties. All 16 properties returned to use
were "high risk” in accordance with the LGA guidance scoring matrix.

Percentage of fly tipping
incidents removed within 10 | 94.54% 98%
working days

The target has been missed in this period due to resource shortages that
include vehicles and staffing.

Working Days Lost Due to
Sickness Absence (rolling 12- | 11.94 days 9 days
month total)

We have a number of complex cases of long-term sickness absence relating
to fitness to work which are being managed with support from Occupational
Health and other specialists, which has contributed to the increase in days
being lost.

2.9 Compliments and Complaints

The compliments and complaints for Q1 2025/26 show the following:

¢ In Q1 2025/26 the council received 74 compliments, which is about 20%
fewer compliments received than in the previous quarter.

e 252 complaints were received in 2025/26, which is 123% higher rate of
complaints received than in the previous quarter.

e 89% of the complaints received in Q1 2025/26 were processed in time,
which is 13% higher rate of complaints processed in time than in the
previous yeatr.

e 69 MP letters were received in Q1 2025/26, which is 34% fewer MP letters
than in the previous quarter.

e 77% of the total number of complaints that the council received in Q1
2025/26, related to Waste Services

40% of all complaints received in 2024/25 were classified as justified.

Page 276



2.10 Achievements

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

Focussed on deliverables from the Annual Delivery Plan, key achievements
identified for particular attention during quarter 1 include:

Successfully delivered the May 2025 election by executing the project
plan, meeting all statutory deadlines, and ensuring accurate completion of
postal voting, verification, and counting processes.

Launch of the Leisure Transformation microsite in June 2025 as part of the
consultation and stakeholder engagement programme.

UK Shared Prosperity Fund proposals to achieve impact against the
Council’'s priorities approved, giving confidence for our UKSPF 25/26
project delivery schedule.

First phases of the implementation of new Customer Relationship
Management and Waste Management Systems are in progress as planned

and on track for delivery.

Alternative Options

Not to present an update on quarterly performance, in which case the Cabinet will

not be aware of performance against the Annual Delivery Plan.
Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising out of this report.
Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising out of this report.
Equalities Implications

There are no equalities implications arising out of this report.
Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications

There are no carbon reduction/sustainability implications arising out of this
report.

Appendices

Appendix A — 2025/26 Performance Indicator - Quarter 1 Report
Appendix B — Annual Delivery Plan Actions - Quarter 1 Report
Background Papers

None identified.

Reasons for Recommendations

Page 277



10.1 To ensure Members are informed of the performance against the Annual Delivery
Plan.

Page 278



Appendix A

Performance Indicators for Q1 2025/26

Gedling #%

Borough Council

PI Status Long Term Trends Short Term Trends

0 Alert Improving ﬁi‘ Improving

J Warning - No Change - No Change

Ia OK Getting Worse 4} Getting Worse

F?- Unknown
.ﬁ Data Only
<))
Q
D
glustomer Engagement
- Ownership Q1 2025/26 Trend
Al & Sl Managed by Portfolio Year to compgred i QErEl Latest Note
Name Value Target previous Status

Owners Date
quarter
LI 315 Volume of Customer Deputy Leader -
unique Visits to Resources and | 92,000 N/A 92,000 aF =)
. : engagement
Council website Performance
LI052 Percentage of
calls to the contact Customer Deputy Leader
centre answered (or Resources and 96.5% 94.0% 96.5% a @
engagement

call back made) - 12 Performance
month rolling total




Ownership Q1 2025/26 Trend
EII COHE & S Managed by Portfolio Year to Compéred to Quarterly Latest Note
ame O Value Target previous Status
WnNers Date
guarter
37 surveys received
during this time. 28
LI252 Percentage of d respondents were
customers that are Governance and Deputy Leader satisfied and 9 were not
OTHELS Resources and 76% 94% 76% N/A -’ > .
satisfied with overall Democracy satisfied. All 9 negative
. Performance
customer service responses were
attributed to the waste
service.
o
@11 Number of Customer Deputy Leader B
stomers attending Resources and 47 N/A 47 Q Lﬂ
engagement
puytreach hubs Performance
%002 Percentage of
Calls to customer Customer Deputy Leader
service answered enoagement Resources and 96% 85% 96% N/A V)
within SLA (40 9ag Performance
seconds)
LI5003 Avo_ldable Customer N/A N/A N/A N/A
contact indicator engagement




Environment

Council Tax collected Welfare Services

Performance

i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M db I(D)wnferlghlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly L N
Name anaged by ortiolio Val Target | YE&r 10 | nrevious quarter Status atest Note
owners cllie 2rde Date
LIS001 Street - pvionment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
cleanliness sampling
LI5005 Per.centage of N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
collected bins
Financial Services
i 1 2025/26
QCode & Short Owner_sh|p Q Trend compared to Quarterly
ﬁ‘%ame Managed by Portfolio VEL - . Year to previous quarter  Status Latest Note
OwWners alue arge Date
§ The collection rate
is 0.75% behind
target which is likely
to be caused by the
wider economic
Deputy Leader situation vyith, f_or
LIO16 Percentage of Revenues and Resources and | 27.69% | 28.44% | 27.69% 3 N example, inflation

increasing sharply
in recent months
and the ongoing
cost of living crisis
as well as
inaccuracies in the
estimate caused by




i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M Ownferlshlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly
Name SIS o)) Pl el Val Target | Y8110 | previous quarter  Status EIESHE eI
owners alue arge Date
fluctuations in the
amounts collected
from month to
month.
Any trends will be
carefully monitored
and monthly targets
reviewed and
U altered as
o necessary.
(Fo17 Percentage of Revenues and Deputy Leader
siness Rates : Resources and | 29.06% | 27.22% | 29.06% 2 @
Welfare Services
Collected Performance
L1018 Percentage of Financial Deputy Leader
invoices paid within Servi Resources and | 99.03% | 99.00% | 99.03% 2 @
ervices
30 days Performance
Current resource
challenges
L1074 Housing following the loss of
. . a team leader and
Benefits /Council Tax Revenues and  Life Chances one administrative
Reductlon Scheme Welfare Services and Vulnerability 20 days | 15days | 20 days 4 . team member are
time taken to process o
) contributing factors.
new claims I .
Resourcing is being
considered to
address the




' 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M db gwnferlshlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly L N
Name anaged by ortrolio Val Target | Y8110 | previous quarter  Status atest Note
owners as eligle Date

challenges due to
resource
constraints.
Current resource
challenges
following the loss of

LI075 Housing Benefit a tearg Igader apd

/Council Tax one administrative

Reduction Scheme Revenues and Life Chances 173 davs| 5davs |17.3 davs ; . L%irﬂi&?mb%gﬁs

time taken to process Welfare Services and Vulnerability |~ y y ' y g "

@anges in Reso_urcmg is being

&rcumstances considered to

[ address the

N challenges due to

& resource
constraints.

Housing and Resettlement

' 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short db Ownfer|§h|p Q Trend compared to  Quarterly
Name MEIEIEE] (957 PlLe value | Target | Y€&' O | previous quarter Status HEHESE NS
owners u 9 Date

LI086 Average length

of time spent in Housing and Life Chances o

temporary Resettlement and Vulnerability 36 wks. N/A 36 wks. ’ a

accommodation (in




i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short Ownershlp Q Trend compared to  Quarterly
Name Managed by Portfolio Vil - Year to previous quarter Status Latest Note
owners alue arget Date
weeks)
Li410 Total number of
family households in  Housing and Life Chances o
B&B at the end of the Resettlement and Vulnerability L7 N/A L7 * Ld
month
Leisure
¥ Ownership Q1 2025/26
@ Code & Short . Trend compared to Quarterly
ame Managed by Portfolio Vil T . Year to previous quarter Status Latest Note
NS owners alue arge Date
@27 Number of Communities, Health and
visits to leisure Leisure and Wellbeing 340,290 | 285,750 | 340,290 3 @
centres wellbeing Lifestyles
L1027f Number of Communities, Health and -
attendances - Leisure and Wellbeing 12,406 N/A 12,406 Q Ld
Bonington Theatre wellbeing Lifestyles




Planning and Planning Policy

i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M db Ig)wnferl_shlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly L N
Name anaged by ortiolio Val Target | Y8110 | hrevious quarter  Status atest Note
owners alue arge Date
The target has
significantly
increased and
until new sites are
NI154 Net additional Development and Sustainable 4 allocated as part
. P Growth and 150 157 150 @ /N of Gedling's
homes provided Place .
Economy emerging Local
o Development
Q Plan, it is unlikely
% the new target will
be met
N :
@55 Number of Development and SusStainable
affordable homes Pl P Growth and 40 19 40 @ @
: ace
delivered (gross) Economy
NI157a Percentage of
Major planning Development and Sustainable
applications Pl P Growth and 100.00% | 92.00% | 100.00% - @
- ace
processed within 13 Economy
weeks
NI157b Percentage of
Minor planning Development and Sustainable
applications P Growth and 94.74% | 86.00% | 94.74% % ()
- Place
processed within 8 Economy
weeks




i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short Owner§h|p Q Trend compared to Quarterly
Name Managed by Portfolio Year to revious quarter Status Latest Note
owners Value | Target Date | P aq
NI157c Percentage of
other planning Development and Sustainable
applications Place P Growth and 91.75% | 80.00% | 91.75% I3 &
processed within 8 Economy
weeks
I;t)mblic Protection
o) i 1 2025/26
RhCode & Short Ownerghlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly
me Managed by Portfolio Year to revious quarter Status Latest Note
<] owners Value | Target | ' J° " | P q
LI 314 Number of
rented households
with health and safety
hazards that fall
below the minimum . . Public Protection
legal standard that Public Protection Portfolio 43 12 43 Q @
have been
remediated following
the council’s
intervention
L1081 Level of Public Protection -
recorded anti-social  Public Protection , 3.27 N/A 3.27 - {ﬂ
. Portfolio
behaviour across




i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M db gwnferlshlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly L N
Name anaged by ortrolio Val Target | Y8110 | previous quarter  Status atest Note
Oowners elte el Date
Gedling Borough (per
1000 population)
Very slightly
L1118 Number of long behind target by 2
term (over 12 months) properties. All 16
empty homes in the Sustainable properties
Borough returned to  Public Protection Growth and 16 18 16 s . returned to use
use as a result of Economy were "high risk" in
Gedling Borough accordance with
Council intervention the LGA guidance
U scoring matrix.
ﬁ133 Number of fly
fPping incidents Community Public Protection o
gxorted to Gedling  Protection Portfolio 293 N/A 293 * &
rough Council
LI276 Percentage of
food premises scoring Public Protection
4 or 5 in the national Public Protection , 95% 95% 95% - @
. ) Portfolio
food hygiene rating
scheme
The target has
LI346 Percentage of be_en m_|ssed n
fly tipping incidents Community Public Protection ‘ this period due to
el : . 94.54% | 98% | 94.54% 3 O\ resource
removed within 10 Protection Portfolio
i shortages that
working days ) .
include vehicles
and staffing.




i 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M db gwnferlshlp Q Trend compared to Quarterly L N
Name anaged by ortrolio Val Target | Y8110 | previous quarter  Status atest Note
owners alue arge Date
Li419 Number of anti- . . . B
social incidents Comr_nunlty Public Protection 71 71 7'\ -
. Relations Portfolio
reported to Council
Workforce
' 1 2025/26
Pl Code & Short M Ownerghlp Q Trend compared to  Quarterly
me anaged by Portfolio VE T . Year to previous quarter Status Latest Note
_IZ_? IS alue arge Date
% We have a
N number of
(o0 complex cases of
0]
long-term
sickness absence

. relating to fitness
L1006 Worklng Days Deputy Leader to work which are
Lost Due to Sickness Workforce Resources and 11.94 9.00 days| 11.94 Qv . being managed
Absence (rolling 12- days |7 y : g g

month total)

Performance

with support from
Occupational
Health and other
specialists, which
has contributed to
the increase in
days being lost.




Appendix B
Annual Delivery Plan Actions - Quarter 1 Report

Annual Delivery Plan Action Quarter 1 - Milestone Status Delivery Theme

Designed and be implementing a new
internal operating model for customer

Customer Experience

001 - Develop and gain approval for conceptual Jun-25 |and Communities

target operating model design

services. Programme

Created, consulted on and embedded a new Customer Experience
Consultation Strategy (supporting 001 - Develop new consultation strategy Jun-25 [and Communities
engagement in the design of services). Programme

Customer Experience
001 - Understand existing verification approach Jun-25 |and Communities
Programme

Implemented a new ID and verification
approach

Implemented the first phases of a waste

68¢ abed

management system and integration with 001 - Data load 1 and 2 complete in test system Depot Modernisation
. . . May-25
CRM, improving end to end processes and |(Domestic) Programme
creating self-service options for customers
001 - Killisick - Exchange contracts Jun-25 ([Gedling Growth

Completed existing projects including the
sale of Killisick and completion of Hillcrest 003 - Hillcrest - Completed Build Jun-25 [Gedling Growth
business units.

004 - Hillcrest - Marketed industrial units Jun-25 ([Gedling Growth

001 - Seek internal approvals for 2025/26 Jun-25 |Gedling Growth

Aligned funding from the UK Shared proposals
Prosperity Fund to achieve impact against 1002 - Procure Programme Management
the Council’s priorities. consultancy to support programme Jun-25 |Gedling Growth

administration



Appendix B

Annual Delivery Plan Actions - Quarter 1 Report 


Have implemented improved risk control,
implemented and embedded the Risk
Management Strategy and supporting
technology / reporting capabilities.

001 - Workshop with Risk Owners to Review
Risks for 2025/26

May-25

Governance Control

Ensure risk is managed effectively within
services and via Corporate Risk Group.

001 - Embed new regular risk boards are
moved to BAU

002 - Deliver training managers on use of Risk
system

Improved reporting up and down, including
budgetary grip within services, and risk
position / mitigation with oversight at SLT.

001 - Deliver training managers on use of Risk
system

004 - Training on financial regulations to
Assistant Directors

06¢ abed

Implemented portfolio management
(standard management of projects,
centralised oversight and reporting, capacity
and dependency management)

001 - Creation of maturity matrix and clear plan

of the progression of the maturity of the portfolio

002 - Creation and collation of Transformation
Central Portfolio Log (Accurate centralised
record of all programmes and projects)

Determined the future for all our Leisure
Centre sites, through Business Cases
Analysis and Feasibility Studies.

001 - Agree a Workforce Strategy for Leisure
Transformation

Completed a feasibility study for a theatre /
cinema

001 - Consult on RIBA Stage 2 Plans for a new
Arts Venue

Agreed an Outline Business Case, Design
Plan and Funding Strategy for the
development of new leisure and cultural
facilities for Arnold Town Centre

001 - Consult on RIBA Stage 2 Plans for a new
Leisure Centre in Arnold

Framework
May-25 Governance Control
Framework
May-25 Governance Control
Framework
May-25 Governance Control
Framework
May-25 Governance Control
Framework
Jun-25 Governance Control
Framework
Jun-25 Governance Control
Framework
Leisure
May-25 Transformation
Leisure
Jun-25 Transformation
Leisure
Jun-25 Transformation




Undertaken stakeholder and community
engagement regarding the future of our
leisure centre service

001 - Agree a Consultation and Engagement
Strategy for Leisure Transformation

002 - Launch Leisure Transformation microsite

Completed the annual review of the Playing
Pitch and Outdoor Sport Strategy and
determined priority sites for future
investment

001 - Review the Football Foundation's
proposed Gedling Local Football Facility Plan.

Created and rolled out a new approach to
Learning and Development across the
organisation, including for employees and
members.

001 - Create an organisation wide Training
Needs Analysis

Improved performance management,
including a new PDR process.

001 - Brief managers and staff in the new
process

T62 abe,

Worked with members to determine the ICT
and devices they need to operate effectively.

001 - Complete workshops with members to
gather feedback and requirements.

002 - Finalise devices and specification

Developed an Asset Management Plan and
Strategy including a full understanding of
compliance position, stock condition and
cyclical maintenance costs so that we
optimise assets including considering
options for retention, re-purposing and
disposal

001 - Compile Asset Register

Delivered a successful election in May 2025.

001 - Executed the prepared election project
plan and followed statutory timetable

002 - Completed the postal vote process to
include data management, quality assurance,
issue, opening and checking

Leisure
May-28 |1 ansformation
Leisure
Jun-25 o nsformation
Leisure
Jun-25 o nsformation
Jun-25 Smarter Working

Programme
Mar-26 Smarter Working
Programme
Apr-25 Smarter Working
Programme
Apr-25 Smarter Working
Programme
May-25 Smarter Working
Programme
Mar-26 Smarter Working
Programme
Mar-26 Smarter Working
Programme




003 - Polling day, verification and counts were
completed successfully

Smarter Working
Programme

26¢ abed




	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 30/07/2025.
	4 Forward Plan
	5 Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review – Consultation Response and Funding Decision
	Appendix 1. Strategic CIL Review Consultation Responses (PDF version with table insert)
	Appendix 2. CIL Strategic Project Evaluation Sheet
	Appendix 3. Revised Gedling Borough Council Infrastructure List
	Appendix 4. Equality Impact Assessment - Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review
	Appendix 5. Climate Impact Assessment - Community Infrastructure Levy Strategic Review
	Background Document - Charging Schedule (Adoption July 2015)
	Community Infrastructure Levy
	Charging Schedule
	Introduction
	The  Charging Authority
	Statutory Compliance
	CIL Rate
	Liability to pay CIL
	CIL payment
	Calculating the Charge
	Existing Floorspace on a Development Site
	Exemptions and Reliefs



	Background Document - Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance Note

	6 Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield
	Appendix 1 - Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield
	Appendix 2 - Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield
	Appendix 3 -  Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield
	EIA 1 for Update on Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Netherfield

	7 Temporary Maintenance Policy
	Appendix 1 - Temporary Accommodaton Maintenance Policy
	Appendix 2 - Landlord Health and Safety Compliance Policy
	Appendix 3 - Asbestos Management Plan
	Appendix 4 - Damp and Mould Management Plan
	Appendix 5 - Electrical Managment Plan
	Appendix 6 - Fire Safety Management Plan
	Appendix 7 - Gas Management Plan
	Appendix 8 - Water (Legionella) Management Plan
	Appendix 9 - Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Equality Impact Assesement
	Appendix 10 - Temporary Accommodation Compliance & Safety Carbon Impact Assesment

	8 Update on the work of the Policy Advisors
	9 Budget Monitoring and Virement Report for the period April to July 2025
	Appendix 1. Budgetary Control Report April to July 2025
	Appendix 2. Use of Earmarked Reserves Period 4 25-26
	Appendix 3. Capital Monitoring Period 4 25-26

	10 Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2025/26 and Treasury Activity Report for the Period April 2025 to July 2025
	Appendix 1 - Treasury Activity Report P4 2025-26
	Appendix 2 - Prudential & Treasury Indicator Monitoring P4 2025-26

	11 Gedling Plan - Quarter 1 2025/26 Report
	Appendix A – 2025/26 Performance Indicator - Quarter 1 Report
	Appendix B – Annual Delivery Plan Actions - Quarter 1 Report




